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About This Report

PT Bank UOB Indonesia (UOB Indonesia) has been
commited to creating long-term value for our
customers, our colleagues and the community
since 1956. We aim to provide continuous product
and services excellence while generating positive
contribution to the development of enterprise and
economic growth, and returns to our stakeholders.

The format of this report follows the requirements
of Indonesian Financial Services Authority/Otoritas
Jasa Keuangan (OJK) and is in line with UOB Group’s
reporting practices.

This report and more information on UOB Indonesia
can be found at www.uob.co.id.
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by Joanne Pang
Mixed media on cotton
140 x 150 cm

Ms Pang's painting, “/; is the design inspiration for this year’s Annual Report.
The artist is a lecturer at LASALLE College of the Arts in Singapore and her
painting received the Gold award in the Established Artist Category in the
2018 UOB Painting of the Year (Singapore) competition.

The painting title is also meant to be read as “either.. or” and represents a
strike in motion. It reflects the artist’s movements between action and inaction
during the painting process as well as captures the concept of time passing
and stopping. Through technique and medium, her painting strokes express the
impact of force, dynamism and transformation.

The essence of the painting captures UOB's approach to banking where due
consideration is given before timely decisions are made for optimal impact.

UOBs support of art is a natural extension of our commitment
to our stakeholders in the communities in which we operate.
The UOB Painting of the Year competition, in its 37* year in 2018, is the Bank’s
flagship art programme held across four Southeast Asian countries.
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PT Bank UOB Indonesia at a Glance

PT Bank UOB Indonesia (UOB Indonesia) was founded on
31 August 1956 as PT Bank Buana Indonesia and started its
commercial banking activities on T November 1956. In 2000, the
Bank changed its status to a public company through an initial
public offering of 194 million shares to public. In 2007, the Bank
changed its name into PT Bank UOB Buana Tbk and at the Bank’s
General Meeting of Shareholders in 2008 approved the change
of the Bank’s status from a publicly listed to private company
and delisted the Bank's shares on Indonesia Stock Exchange.
On 30 June 2010, the Bank accepted the business merger of PT
Bank UOB Indonesia and changed its name into PT Bank UOB
Indonesia in May 20T11.

UOB Indonesia is rated AAA (Idn) by the independent rating
agency Fitch Ratings. The Bank focuses on creating long-term
value for its stakeholders and is determined to be a significant
and trusted bank by providing a wide range of products and
services to meet our customers’ needs. The products and
services offered range from personal financial services and
investment management to treasury and cash management.

Vision

The Bank’s extensive service network comprises a head office,
41 branch offices, 137 sub-branch offices and 160 automatic
teller machines across 30 cities in 18 provinces in Indonesia.
This network is complemented with accessible banking services
through internet banking services for retail customers and
corporate clients, as well as the ATM Prima, ATM Bersama, and
Visa networks.

UOB Indonesia aims to create an innovative and sustainable
value for the stakeholders through its comprehensive suite of
products and services, robust information technology systems,
sound capital management and highly qualified employees. The
Bank gives back to the community through its corporate social
responsibility programme which focuses on art, children, and
education. As part of this programme, we organise the annual
UOB Painting of the Year Competition, and since 2011, we have
donated more than IDR2 billion through our annual fundraising
activity, the UOB Heartbeat Run/Walk.

To be a significant bank in Indonesia, a key part of the UOB Group, valued by our customers, staff, shareholders, and regulators and

admired by the public, as a trusted long term banking institution .

Mission

To create sustainable economic value for all our stakeholders through a team of loyal, dedicated and professional bankers,
committed to meeting and exceeding the needs and expectations of our stakeholders; with the highest quality products and
services for our desired customer segments in retail and wholesale banking, and superior financial and prudential outcomes for our

staff, shareholders and regulators.

Our Values

Honourable
highest standards in all we do.

Enterprising

United

mutual respect, and loyalty.

Committed

v
222,
®

We act prudently to fuel our customers’ success and maintain the

We possess a forward-looking mindset and provide deep insight,
taking the initiative to find solutions.

We reach our corporate and individual goals through cooperation,

We hold ourselves accountable for ensuring that UOB remains a
source of stability, security, and strength.
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PT Bank UOB Indonesia
Financial and Operational Highlights

Statement of Financial Position

(in Billion Rupiah)
Description 31 December
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014*
Assets
Cash 519 398 536 516 591
Current accounts with Bank Indonesia 6,036 6,072 5,724 5,454 5,328
Current accounts with other banks 680 2,453 1,098 704 1,242
Placements with Bank Indonesia and other banks 2,204 3,417 3,321 2,856 5,238
Trading securities and financial investments - net 15,932 16,069 12,918 11,936 7,028
Receivables on securities purchased with agreements to resell 907 1,015 1,902 - -
Derivatives receivable 668 146 202 142 239
Loans - net 72,308 61,998 64,699 60,573 55,833
Acceptance receivable - net 2,175 1,826 1,749 2,613 3,133
Deferred tax assets - net 136 95 36 - -
Fixes assets - net book value 1,118 1,063 1,093 1,135 989
Other assets - net 993 692 816 718 429
Total assets 103,676 95,244 94,094 86,647 80,050
Liabilities and equity
Current liabilities 148 149 101 62 68
Demand deposits 11,401 11,258 9,488 6,887 7,247
Savings deposits 16,231 14,850 16,144 12,624 9,834
Time deposits 49,690 48,939 47,373 44,946 46,154
Deposits from other banks 3,142 2,315 3,642 5,507 1,000
Taxes payable 85 65 145 211 120
Derivatives payable 619 106 194 143 256
Liabilities on securitites sold under repurchase agreements 580 - 339 - -
Interests payable 248 226 211 243 218
Acceptances payable 2,203 1,843 1,771 2,644 3,136
Borrowings 3,200 333 - - 328
Deferred tax liability - net - - - 26 102
Liabilities for employee’s benefits 278 328 209 186 208
Debt securities issued - net 3,791 3,389 3,185 2,488 994
Other liabilities 683 496 471 412 401
Total liabilities 92,299 84,297 83,273 76,379 70,066
Total equity 11,377 10,947 10,821 10,268 9,984
Total liabilities and equity 103,676 95,244 94,094 86,647 80,050

* After the restatement adjustments for adopting SFAS No 24 (Revised in 2013).
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Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

(in Billion Rupiah)
Description For the Year Ended
31 December
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014*

Interest income 7,319 7,268 7,404 7,193 6,835
Interest expense (3,715) (3,757) (3,867) (4,116) (3,819
Net interest income 3,604 3,511 3,537 3,077 3,016
Other operating income - net 856 794 792 681 542
(Provision for) reversal of impairment losses (667)  (1,255) (959) (656) (469)
Other operating expenses 3,111) (2,745) (2,712) (2,471 (2,182)
Operating income 682 305 658 631 907
Non operating income - net 28 4 12 7 26
Income before tax expense 710 309 670 638 933
Tax expense (199) (231) (191) (175) (249)
Income for the year 511 78 479 463 684
Other comprehensive income for the year - net of tax (81) 43 74 (43) 83
Total compherensive income for the year 430 121 553 420 767
Net profit attributable to:

Owner entity 511 78 479 463 684

Non-controlling interests - - - - -
Total compherensive income for the year attributable to:

Owner entity 430 121 553 420 767

Non-controlling interests - - - - -
Net income per share (full amount) 54 8 50 48 72

* After the restatement adjustments for adopting SFAS No 24 (Revised in 2013)
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PT Bank UOB Indonesia
Financial and Operational Highlights

Financial Ratios

(in Billion Rupiah, unless otherwise stated)

31 December

Description
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014*

Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) 15.37%  17.08% 16.44% 16.20% 15.72%
CAR Tier | 13.11% 14.41% 14.30% 13.92% 13.24%
CAR Tier Il 2.26% 2.67% 2.14%  2.28% 2.47%
Gross fixed assets to capital 18.35%  16.81% 16.47% 16.44% 15.92%

Gross fixed assets 2,425 2,181 2,049 1,943 1,676

Capital 13,213 12,973 12,440 11,816 10,528
Capital adequacy ratio (CAR) for credit risk** 17.44%  19.26% 18.23% 18.03% 17.31%
Capital adequacy ratio (CAR) for credit risk and market risk** 16.93%  18.95% 18.07% 17.78% 17.25%
Capital adequacy ratio (CAR) for credit risk, market risk and

operational risk** 15.37%  17.08% 16.44% 16.20% 15.72%
Assets quality

Non-performing earning assets and non-performing non-earning

assets to total earning assets and total non-earnings assets 0.57% 0.51% 1.63% 1.49% 2.17%

Non-performing earning assets to total earnings assets 1.09% 0.80%  2.50% 2.13% 3.10%

Allowance for impairment losses for financial assets to earning assets 1.50% 1.26%  1.34% 1.06% 0.97%

Non-performing loans - gross 1.42% 1.09%  3.24% 2.68% 3.72%

Non-performing loans - net 0.89% 0.93%  2.61% 2.17% 2.85%

* After the restatement adjustments for adopting SFAS No. 24 (revised in 2013).

** Calculated in accordance with Bank Indonesia/OJK Regulation.
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Financial Ratios

31 December

Description
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014*
Earnings
Return on assets (ROA) 0.71% 0.32% 0.77% 0.77% 1.24%
Return on equity (ROE) 4.61% 0.70% 4.49% 4.82% 7.57%
Net interest margin (NIM) 3.79% 3.85% 4.31% 3.97% 4.21%
Operating expense to operating
income (BOPO) 97.08% 97.81% 95.90% 96.46% 90.53%
Liquidity
Loans to deposit ratio (LDR) 93.04% 83.57% 90.11% 95.17% 89.27%
Low cost fund (CASA) ratio 35.74% 34.79% 35.11% 30.27% 27.01%
Compliance
Violation of legal lending limit 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Lending in excess of the legal lending
limit 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00%
Minimum reverse requirement (GMW):
IDR
Primary statutory reserve 6.60% 6.78% 6.84% 7.59% 8.10%
Secondary statutory reserve - 19.48% 14.79% 15.45% 9.62%
Macroprodential liquidity buffer 18.81% - - - -
Macroprudential intermediation
ratio 87.64% - - - -
Foreign currencies 8.10% 8.18% 8.85% 8.10% 8.10%
Net open positions (NOP)
Aggregate 8.13% 2.22% 0.62% 0.63% 1.79%
Growth ratios
Net interest income 2.65% -0.74% 14.95% 2.02% 5.97%
Operating income 123.61% -53.65% 4.28% -30.43% -39.25%
Net income 555.13% -83.72% 3.46% -32.31% -40.42%
Total assets 8.85% 1.22% 8.59% 8.24% 12.14%
Total liabilities 9.49% 1.23% 9.03% 9.01% 12.71%
Total equity 3.93% 1.16% 5.39% 2.84% 8.32%
Others
Debt to equity 811.28% 770.05% 769.55% 743.85% 701.78%
Debt to assets 89.03% 88.51% 88.50% 88.15% 87.53%

Total issued and fully paid shares
capital (full amount)

9,553,885,804

9,553,885,804

9,553,885,804 9,553,885,804 9,553,885,804

*After the restatement adjustments for adopting SFAS No 24 (Revised in 2013).

2 WA

PT BANK UOB INDONESIA ANNUAL REPORT 2018 7



9517%

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

[l Deposits

IDR77,322 billion A 3.0%

B Loans-net

IDR72,308 billion A  16.6%

M LDR

93.04% A  947%

1,377

10,821

9984

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Total equity

IDR11,377 billion A

3.9%

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Total assets

IDR103,676 billion A  89%

17.08%

16.20%
16.44%

15.72%
15.37%

2014 2015 2016 2017 2018

Capital adequacy ratio (CAR) 1537% V¥ 171%

W23 Y s

PT BANK UOB INDONESIA ANNUAL REPORT 2018



Share Listing Chronology

Corporate Actions Distribution Dates New Shares Paid Capital Nominal
(Shares) (Shares) Price
(IDR)
Shares initial public offering 20 July 2000 194,000,000 970,000,000 500
Shares dividend 17 May 2002 223,689,754 1,193,689,754 500
Shares bonus 17 May 2002 47]133,917 1,240,823,671 500
Limited public offering | 20-27 September 2002 248,164,734 1,488,988,405 500
Shares nominal value 23 December 2002 1,488,988,405 2,977976,810 250
Limited public offering II 28 May — 5 June 2003 744,494,202 3,722,471,012 250
Shares dividend 4 November 2003 306,091,338 4,028,562350 250
Shares bonus 4 November 2003 959,549,650 4,988,112,000 250
Shares dividend 12 May 2005 410,821,132 5,398,922,132 250
Shares bonus 12 May 2005 367,309,605 5.766.242.737 250
Limited public offering Il 9-19 June 2006 887114,267 6,653,357,004 250
Tender offer 22 September — 21 October 2008 - 6,653,357,004 250
Delisting of shares listed on stock 20 November 2008 - 6,653,357,004 250
exchange
Business merger 30 June 2010 2,900,528,800 9,553,885,804 250

Bonds Listing

As of 31 December 2018, we had a number of outstanding bonds, listed in the Indonesia Stock Exchange, with interest ranging from
6.15 per cent up to 11.35 per cent. In line with the Bank’s business performance, our bonds were ranked AA (idn) and AAA (idn) by the
Fitch Ratings. UOB Indonesia has paid IDR600 billion to the bondholders in 2018, for the matured Senior Debt | Bank UOB Indonesia
Series B 2015. In 2019, we will have IDR1,462 billion bonds maturing on 3 June 2019 by IDR862 billion and 25 November 2019 by IDR600

billion.

as of 31 December 2018

UOB Indonesia’s Outstanding and Matured Bonds,

Type Date of Maturity Value Due Date Coupon Rating Listing
Emission (in Billion
Rupiah)
Outstanding
Subordinated Debt | 28 May 2014 7 years 1,000 28 May 2021 M.35% p.a AA (idn) Indonesia
Bank UOB Indonesia Fitch Ratings ~ Stock
Exchange
Senior Debt | Bank  1April 2015 5 years 500 1April 2020 9.60% p.a AAA (idn) Indonesia
UOB Indonesia Fitch Ratings  Stock
Series C 2015 Exchange
Bank UOB Indonesia 25 November 3 years 600 25 November 8.00% p.a AAA (idn) Indonesia
Senior Debt Shelf 2016 2019 Fitch Ratings  Stock
Offering | Phase | Exchange

2016 Series B
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Bl ZE



- WASMY 0

Type Date of Maturity Value Due Date Coupon Rating Listing
Emission (in Billion
Rupiah)
Bank UOB Indonesia 25 November 5 years 100 25 November 825% p.a AAA (idn) Indonesia
Senior Debt Shelf 2016 2021 Fitch Ratings  Stock
Offering | Phase | Exchange
2016 Series C
Bank UOB Indonesia 25 November 7 years 100 25 November 9.40% p.a AA (idn) Indonesia
Subordinate Debt 2016 2023 Fitch Ratings ~ Stock
Shelf Offering | Exchange
Phase 12016
Bank UOB Indonesia 17 October 7 years 500 17 October ~ 925% p.a AA (idn) Indonesia
Subordinate Debt 2017 2024 Fitch Ratings ~ Stock
Shelf Offering | Exchange
Phase Il 2017
Bank UOB Indonesia 23 May 2018 370 days 862 3June 2019  615% p.a AAA(idn) Indonesia
Senior Debt Shelf Fitch Ratings ~ Stock
Offering | Phase |l Exchange
2018 Series A
Bank UOB Indonesia 23 May 2018 3 years 83 23 May 2021 740% p.a AAA(idn) Indonesia
Senior Debt Shelf Fitch Ratings  Stock
Offering | Phase |l Exchange
2018 Series B
Bank UOB Indonesia 23 May 2018 5 years 55 23 May 2023 7.65% p.a. AAA(idn) Indonesia
Senior Debt Shelf Fitch Ratings ~ Stock
Offering | Phase |l Exchange
2018 Series C
Matured

Bank Buana 15 July 2004 10 years 300 14 July 2014 13.25% p.a Id A+ (Stable) Indonesia
Indonesia (5th year, (Purchase (years 1st-6™); Pefindo Stock
Subordinated Bonds purchase option 14 22.05% p.a Exchange
| option) July 2009) (6™-10™)

—early

settlement

on 14 July

2009
Senior Debt | Bank ~ TApril 2015 370 days 400 1 April 2016 8.60% p.a AAA (idn) Indonesia
UOB Indonesia Fitch Ratings ~ Stock
Series A 2015 Exchange
Bank UOB Indonesia 25 November 370 days 300 5 December  720% p.a AAA (idn) Indonesia
Senior Debt Shelf 2016 2017 Fitch Ratings ~ Stock
Offering | Phase | Exchange
2016 Series A
Senior Debt | Bank ~ 1April 2015 3 years 600 1April 2018 940% p.a AAA (idn) Indonesia
UOB Indonesia Fitch Ratings  Stock
Series B 2015 Exchange
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Shareholders Structure

United Overseas Bank Limited shareholders composition as of 5 March 2019.

Citibank Nominess
Singapore Pte Ltd

DBS Nominees
(Private) Limited

DBSN Services Pte. Ltd.

United Overseas
Bank Limited

Wee Investment

30.056%
(Pte) Limited
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UOB International
Investment
Private Ltd

Others

HSBC (Singapore) 1.001% 68,943%
Nominees Pte Ltd

PT Bank UOB
Indonesia

Wah Hin and Company
Private Limited

Public

&
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About
United Overseas Bank Limited

Who We Are

United Overseas Bank Limited (UOB) is a leading bank in Asia
with a global network of more than 500 branches and offices
in 19 countries and territories in Asia Pacific, Europe and
North America. In Asia, we operate through our head office in
Singapore and banking subsidiaries in China, Indonesia, Malaysia
and Thailand, as well as branches and offices across the region.

In 1935, amid the economic uncertainties following the Great
Depression, UOB opened its doors to provide banking services
for the merchant community in Singapore.

Since then, UOB has grown organically and through a series of
strategic acquisitions. Today, UOB is rated among the world’s
top banks: ‘Aal’ by Moody’s and ‘AA-* by Standard and Poor’s
and Fitch Ratings.

Over more than eight decades, generations of UOB employees
have carried through the entrepreneurial spirit, the focus on
long-term value creation and an unwavering commitment to
doing what is right for our stakeholders.

At UOB, we believe in being a responsible financial services
provider and we are commited to making a difference in the
communities in which we operate. Just as we are dedicated
to helping our customers manage their finance wisely and

grow their business, we are steadfast in our support of social T
development, particularly in the areas of art, children and : ::-:!:::: w oy
education. _ TUR It
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Where We Operate

) 5 O O branches
and offices

Asia Pacific, Europe
and North America

United Kingdom 1

France 1

Canada 3

J

Myanmar 2
Thailand 154

Vietnam 1

China 22
Hong Kong 3

'I:aiwan 3

South Korea 2

!apan 2

India 2 \.‘-ﬂ.ﬁ.-l K‘(

Malaysia 48

Singapore 69

Indonesia 178

Brunei 2 Australia 4
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United Overseas Bank Limited
Financial Highlights

Five-Year Group Financial Summary

Description 31 December
2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Account Profit or Loss Items (in Million Dollar Singapore)
Total income! 9,116 8,563 7,790 7,807 7,258
Total expenses’ 4,003 3,739 3,425 3,356 2,947
Operating profit ' 5,113 4,824 4,365 4,451 4,311
Net profit after tax 2 4,008 3,390 3,096 3,209 3,249
Account Balance Items (in Million Dollar Singapore)
Net customer loans 258,627 232,212 221,734 203,611 195,903
Customer deposits 293,186 272,765 255,314 240,524 233,750
Total assets 388,099 358,592 340,028 316,011 306,736
Shareholders’ equity ? 37,628 36,850 32,873 30,768 29,569
Financial Indicators (%)
Expense/income ratio 48.6 45.5 45.9 44.7 42.2
Non-performing loans ratio 1.5 1.8 1.5 1.4 1.2
Return on average ordinary shareholders’ 1.3 10.2 10.2 11.0 12.3
equity
Return on average total assets 1.07 0.98 0.95 1.03 1.10
Return on average risk-weighted assets 1.93 1.63 1.51 1.74 1.94
Capital adequacy ratios

Common Equity Tier 1 13.9 15.1 13.0 13.0 13.9

Tier 1 14.9 16.2 13.1 13.0 13.9

Total 17.0 18.7 16.2 15.6 16.9

Per ordinary share

Basic earnings

(in Million Dollar Singapore) 2.34 1.99 1.86 1.94 1.98
Net asset value

(in Million Dollar Singapore) 21.31 20.37 18.82 17.84 17.09
Net dividend (cents) ? 120 100 70 90 75
Dividend cover (times)? 2.00 2.04 273 2.22 2.70

' With effect from 1January 2018, operating profit is presented net of fee and commission expense. The comparative figures have been restated to conform with the current period’s
presentation

2 Relates to the amount attributable to equity holders of the Bank.
* Included a special dividend of 5 cents in 2013 and 2014 respectively and 20 cents in 2017. 2015 included UOB's 80th Anniversary dividend of 20 cents.
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UOB Indonesia - Highlights in 2018

UOB Indonesia Celebrated Series of Big Day Events to Enliven and Respect Cultural Diversity

Lunar New Year

February 2018
UOB Indonesia celebration of togetherness with customers and colleagues to signify good luck and prosperity.

Idul Fitri Celebration

June 2018
UOB Indonesia shared breakfast with the orphans, offered a 4-day daycare facility for colleagues’ children and provided free

transportation to colleagues’ homecoming to their cities and villages.

Christmas Celebration

December 2018
UOB Indonesia’s colleagues celebrated Christmas and conducted a fundraising for Melati Taman Baca foundation.

AT
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UOB Indonesia Embarked on Strategic Partnerships

May 2018
A memorandum of understanding with PT Satria Bahana Sarana on a Short-term
Trade Working Capital Loan and cash management services.

August 2018
A strategic partnership with one of the largest co-working spaces in Indonesia,
COCOWORK, through UOB x COCOWORK workspace.

August 2018
UOB and the Investment Coordinating Board of the Republic of Indonesia reaffirmed
their joint commitment to promote Foreign Direct Investment (FDI) into Indonesia.

September 2018
A collaboration with CloseBuy to provide customers with access to property
ownership through an integrated property mobile application platform.

October 2018

ASEAN Investment Series: Invest in Indonesia — a joint event between UOB Indonesia
(UOBI), UOB China (UOBC) and the Indonesia Investment Coordinating Board of the
Republic of Indonesia/Badan Koordinasi Penanaman Modal (BKPM) in Guangzhou,
China, to explore investment opportunities in Indonesia.

LAUMCHING PROGHAM CASMLESS D4 BT PLN Ftiss
December 2018 DN PENANDATANGANAN PRS PENERIT iasanian

A memorandum of agreement with the State Electricity Company./Perusahaan Listrik
Negara (PLN) for issuance on Bank Guarantee (BG).

¥
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UOB Indonesia’s 62" Anniversary and Independence Day of Republic of Indonesia

August 2018
UOB Indonesia colleagues celebrated the 62" anniversary of UOB Indonesia and launched the Right by Every Generation Brand
Campaign, while commemorating the 73 anniversary Independence Day of Indonesia.

— — = S e e p—

May 2018
YOLO Card, the newly launched credit card to meet the needs of
financially - independent millenials in pursuing their goals.

May 2018
The launch of USD RIEHTMAX, a foreign currency investment solution.

June 2018
The launch of Big Bang Saving programme offering attractive prizes to customers
opening new U-Save accounts.

September 2018
The UOB One Card re-launched
with upgraded features to meet the needs of young families.

October 2018
‘Blast of Surprise 2.0, a year-end promotion programme for UOB Indonesia
credit card members with an array of interesting prizes.

&
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UOB Indonesia Held Series of Events to Deepen Customer Relationships

October 2018
The Annual 2018 UOB Invitational Golf Tournament, exclusively for Commercial
Banking clients to strengthen business relationships and explore opportunities.

October 2018

UOB Indonesia Economic Outlook 2019 - Riding the wave of progressive economic
growth, held in Jakarta and Surabaya, attended by notable government officials,
and aimed to provide a view of Indonesia’s economic development in Asia and
global market.

October 2018

UOB Indonesia’s loyal customers invited exclusively to a Conference and Seminar
series which takes part in the International Monetary Fund-World Bank Group
Annual Meetings 2018.

UOB Indonesia Held Series of Training Programmes for Colleagues and Customer

January 2018
The opening of the UOB Plaza learning centre for colleagues’ training and other
recreational activities.

April 2018

UOB Indonesia’s First Line Managers attended a leadership programme under the
theme of Pencak Silat, a traditional martial art that is believed to reflect effective
leadership principles.

April 2018
Transaction Banking Experience Centre (TBEX) provides product experience training
for wholesale banking customers on cash management and trade products.
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2018 General Meeting of Shareholders

May 2018 October 2018
Annual General Meeting of Shareholders Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders
at UOB Plaza, Jakarta. at UOB Plaza, Jakarta.

January 2018

UOB Indonesia’s Commercial Banking colleagues conducted social activities such
as assisting children with special needs from Daya Pelita Kasih foundation, in doing
cooking and art-making.

July 2018

UOB Indonesia colleagues and customers rallied together for a good cause in the
UOB Heartbeat Run/Walk to raise funds to make art and education accessible to
students in need.

October and November 2018

UOB awarded Suvi Wahyudianto with the 2018 UOB Painting of the Year (Indonesia)
and UOB Southeast Asian Painting of the Year title. This marked the fifth time an
Indonesian artist won the regional prize.

July 2018

As a Major Education Partner of Museum MACAN, UOB supported the artistic
progress of 2016 UOB Southeast Asian Painting of the Year winner Gatot Indrajati,
through the UOB Museum MACAN Children’s Art Space Commission.

August 2018
UOB Indonesia conducted a special exhibition at Art Jakarta 2018 to showcase the
works of UOB Painting of the Year winners.

November 2018

UOB Indonesia’s art exhibition was held at the National Gallery of Indonesia,
showcasing 50 winning and finalists’ artworks from the 2018 UOB Painting of the
Year (Indonesia) competition.

&
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Awards

In recognition of its efforts to deliver products and services to clients, UOB Indonesia garnered a number of awards in 2018, as
presented in this section.

April 2018

The Asset

The Asset Triple A Treasury, Trade, Supply Chain and Risk Management Awards:

1. Best in Treasury and Working Capital, LLCs — Indonesia;

2. Best Service Provider, Cash Management—Indonesia;

3. Best Supply Chain Solution (Indonesia)—PT Eurokars Motor Indonesia;

4. Best Cash Management Solution (Indonesia)—PT Primantara Wisesa Sejahtera;
5. Best Cash Management Solution (Indonesia)—PT Travel Recommends Indonesia;
6. Best Cash Management Solution (Indonesia)—PT MCConnell Dowell Indonesia;
7. Best Structured Trade Finance Solution (Indonesia)—PT Hutama Karya (Persero);
8. Best Supply Chain Solution (Regional)—Philips Lighting.

April 2018
Carre Centre for Customer Satisfaction Loyalty and
Service Excellence Magazine

Contact Center Service Excellence Award 2018:
Regular Credit Card and Regular Banking.
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May 2018 May 2018

SWA Magazine in collaboration with Lembaga Manajemen The Asian Banker

Fakultas Ekonomi Universitas Indonesia The Asian Banker's Choice Awards 2018:
HR Excellence Award 2018 The Best Supplier Relationship

1. Learning and Development with rating A; Management in Indonesia.

2. HR Technology with rating A;
3. HR Transformation with rating BB.

P Raiw Lo Sosl

July 2018 October 2018 December 2018
Asian Banking & Finance (ABF) J.P. Morgan Mastercard
Retail Banking Awards 2018
2018 J.P. Morgan MT 202 Elite Quality Mastercard Award 2018.
ABF Retail Banking Awards 2018 Recognition Award. UOB Lady’s Card as Best Ladies Card
Employer Award of the Year — Silver. Programme.

—
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Milestones

1950

1956

The Bank was established and commercial operations started under the name PT Bank Buana Indonesia.

1970

1972
1974
1975
1976

Acquisition of PT Bank Pembinaan Nasional, Bandung.
Acquisition of PT Bank Kesejahteraan Masyarakat, Semarang.
Acquisition of PT Bank Aman Makmur, Jakarta.

Obtained a license as a Foreign Exchange Bank.

1990

1998

Ranked as “A” category bank by Bank Indonesia.

2000-2018

2000
2003
2004
2005
2007
2008
2009
2010
201
2012
2013
2014

2015
2016

2017
2018

" AN 2

Initial Public Offering and share listing at the Jakarta Stock Exchange and the Surabaya Stock Exchange.

The entry of International Finance Corporation (IFC) as the first overseas shareholder through the Right Issue Il.

» UOB International Investment Private Limited (UOBII) became the second largest shareholder after PT Sari Desa Karsa.

« Issuance of Subordinated Bonds I.

« IFC divested its entire shareholding in the Bank;

» UOBII became the majority shareholder with 6111 per cent shareholding.

e Changed its name from PT Bank Buana Indonesia Tbk to Bank UOB Buana Tbk;

« United Overseas Bank Limited (UOB), through UOB Indonesia, became the majority shareholder of the Bank.

» The Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders approved the change of status to a privately-held entity;

» The UOB share ownership rose to 98.997 per cent following a tender offer for the publicly-held shares;

« Delisting of the Bank’s shares from the Indonesia Stock Exchange.

Call option for the debt principal of Subordinated Bonds I.

The former PT Bank UOB Indonesia merged with PT Bank UOB Buana.

Changed its name to PT Bank UOB Indonesia.

The Bank, together with the UOB Group, introduced a new regional-wide uniform for front-liners conveying an impression

of professionalism, confidence and outlook for the UOB Group.

Core Banking Standardisation project implemented covering infrastructure systems development through to improved

services by the Bank.

Issuance of Bank UOB Indonesia Subordinated Bonds | Year 2014.

Issuance of Bank UOB Indonesia Bonds | Year 2015.

« Issuance of Shelf Registration Senior Bonds | and Subordinated Bonds | Bank UOB Indonesia Phase | Year 2016;

* Business Internet Banking (BIB) and Personal Internet Banking (PIB) service platforms launched to improve the Bank’s
competitiveness and customer service quality.

Issuance of Bank UOB Indonesia Subordinated Debt Shelf Offering | Phase Il Year 2017.

Issuance of Bank UOB Indonesia Senior Bonds Shelf Offering | Phase Il Year 2018.
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Board of Directors and Senior Executive Officers of UOB Indonesia
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Report of the Board of Commissioner

In 2018, UOB Indonesia continued on its
transformation journey. We remained
resolute in generating sustainable growth
by pacing our investments and placing a
priority on improving productivity and our
financial performance.

¥
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Dear distinguished shareholders,

Over the course of 2018, the Indonesian economy grew
moderately to reach an annual growth of 517 per cent. There
was steady growth in household expenditure as Indonesia’s
inflation remained subdued and within Bank Indonesia’s (BI)
target range, standing at 313 per cent at the year-end. The
controlled inflation was the result of low core inflation and
lower volatile food inflation, and was also supported by the
decline in world oil prices.

Indonesia’s current account deficit widened in 2018 - from a
deficit of USD16.20 billion in 2017 to USD31.106 billion in 20718.
This was largely the result of significant capital outflows
triggered by rising US interest rates and simmering trade
tensions between the US and China. Bl responded by raising
its benchmark interest rate by 175 basis points to 6 per cent to
stabilise the Rupiah currency.

Amid this backdrop, UOB Indonesia continues to focus on
strengthening its balance sheet as we maintain a long-term
view to building our business. We kept Non-Performing Loan
(NPL) gross ratio low at 14 per cent and increased our Non-
Interest Income (Non-Nll) by 10 per cent through higher credit
card, trading and investment and wealth management income.
We also maintained a healthy Loan-to-Deposit Ratio (LDR)
at 93.04 per cent through effective loan and deposit growth.
In addition, UOB Indonesia strengthened and diversified its
funding structure to support business expansion by issuing
Senior Bond Il with a maximum target amount of IDR3 trillion
for the period of 2018 — 2020.

Creating sustainable business growth

In 2018, UOB Indonesia continued on its transformation
journey. We remained resolute in generating sustainable growth
by pacing our investments and placing a priority on improving
productivity and our financial performance.

We assessed new business opportunities and initiatives
prudently, always considering not only the rewards but also the
risks. Through our established and integrated regional network,
we continued to support Indonesian businesses as they expand
across Asia. We also helped the growth of Indonesian small-
and-medium- sized enterprises domestically and continued to
deepen our relationships with retail customers as we offered
financial products and services suited to their lifestages and
lifestyle needs.

We increased our investments in the Bank’s technology
infrastructure to meet customers’ needs and create a platform
for future growth. On the innovation front, UOB Indonesia
entered into strategic alliances with digital ecosystem partners
such as e-commerce companies, start-ups and co-working
spaces. We also established a Digital Bank unit to prepare for
launch of our mobile-only bank tailored, for Indonesia’s digital
generation.



UOB Indonesia is committed to investing in training and
development programmes to ensure our people have the skills
necessary for the future. We continued to run programmes
under UOB+you, our employee value proposition which
enables us to attract, to retain and to engage local talents.

Guided by our values of Honour, Enterprise, Unity and
Commitment, we are dedicated to building a culture where our
colleagues are empowered to make a positive contribution to
the workplace, our customers and the community. In fulfilling
the Bank’s corporate social responsibility, UOB Indonesia has
been bringing the community together through its focus on art,
children and education.

Good Corporate Governance Implementation

The Board of Commissioners performs a supervisory function
to monitor UOB Indonesia’s business strategies and policies
managed by the Board of Directors. This supervisory role is
done with the assistance of the Remuneration and Nomination
Committee, Risk Monitoring Committee and Audit Committee,
each chaired by an Independent Commissioner.

The Board of Commissioners is committed to best practices in
Good Corporate Governance and guides the Board of Directors
on embedding sound risk management and strong internal
controls in day-to-day operations to ensure that the Bank meets
all the compliance requirements as defined by the regulator.

Throughout the year of 2018, the Board of Commissioners and
Board of Directors maintained a close working relationship
through regular meetings and discussions. UOB Indonesia’s
Board of Directors drew up plans and strategies for its business
development, as well as the targets to be achieved the Board of
Commissioners accepted the plan.

Changes in Board of Commissioners

In 2018, there was a change in the Board of Commissioners with
Mr Rusdy Daryono retiring as an Independent Commissioner
and Mr VJH Boentaran Lesmana being appointed as a new
Independent Commissioner through an Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders on 9 May 2018. On behalf of the Board
of Commissioners, | would like to thank Mr Rusdy Daryono for
his valuable contribution during his time with UOB Indonesia.

As at 31 December 2018, the Board of Commissioners comprise
myself, Wee Cho Yaw as President Commissioner, Mr Wee Ee
Cheong as Deputy President Commissioner, Mr Lee Chin Yong
Francis as Commissioner, Mr Aswin Wirjadi as Independent
Commissioner, Mr Wayan Alit Antara as Independent
Commissioner, and Mr VJH Boentaran Lesmana as Independent
Commissioner.

On behalf of the Board of Commissioners, | would like to thank
UOB Indonesias loyal customers for the trust placed in the
Bank and to the regulators for the continued support. | would
also like to thank the Board of Directors, the management and
our employees for their dedication and for embracing the UOB
values.

Jakarta, April 2019

Wee Cho Yaw
President Commissioner
PT Bank UOB Indonesia
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Report of the Board of Directors

Guided by our time-tested values of
Honour, Enterprise, Unity and Commitment,
UOB Indonesia improved in all financial
performance measures as we continued to
build our business sustainably throughout
2018.

PT BANK UOB INDONESIA ANNUAL REPORT 2018

On behalf of the Board of Directors of PT Bank UOB Indonesia
(“UOB Indonesia”), | am pleased to present the 2018 Annual
Report for the fiscal year ending 31 December, 2018, together
with the Consolidated Financial Statements.

In 2018, UOB Indonesia made significant progress against its
five year strategic plan. As part of our journey to become a
significant bank in Indonesia, we continue to sharpen our
capabilities and pace our investments. In all our actions we
are guided by UOB’s time-tested values of Honour, Enterprise,
Unity and Commitment.

Overall UOB Indonesia’s performance was robust. This was
reflected across financial and non-financial metrics and was the
result of the efforts of our colleagues in doing what is right and
from the loyal support of our customers.

Economic and Banking Industry in 2018

At the global economy level, the conditions in the United
States remained a major concern, with the Federal Reserve
raising its benchmark interest rate by 25 basis points (bps) four
times in 2018, leading to year-end position of 2.25 per cent to
2.50 per cent. The trade tensions between the United States
and China also affected other trading partners, which tested
the Indonesian economy.

Despite unstable economic conditions globally, the Indonesian
economy grew moderately in 2018 at 517 per cent, compared
with 5.07 per cent the previous year. Indonesia’s inflation in 2018
stood at 313 per cent, within Bank Indonesia’s (Bl) target range of
3.5 4/—1per cent. However, one notable challenge for Indonesia
is its current account deficit. Imports in 2018 surpassed exports
causing an increasingly large trade balance deficit. This became
a focus of the Government as it impacted the Rupiah exchange
rate. The Rupiah weakened to Rp14,390 against the US Dollar at
the end of 2018, the lowest level since the 2008 global financial
crisis. This has resulted in a more challenging environment for
domestic industries that rely on importing raw materials.

To anchor stability in the Rupiah, Bl tightened its monetary
policy by increasing its benchmark interest rate by 175 bps to
6 per cent, more than the increase in the US Federal Reserve rate.

Bl also reported that as of October 2018, overall domestic bank
lending grew an average 13.3 per cent year-on-year with a high
capital position of 23 per cent and Loan to Deposit Ratio (LDR)
at 937 per cent. The Financial Services Authority/Otoritas
Jasa Keuangan (OJK) reported that Indonesia’s Non-Performing
Loans (NPL) Ratio stood at 2.6 per cent in October 2018.

2018 Financial Performance
In 2018, UOB Indonesia improved in all financial performance
measures as we continued to build our business sustainably.

Total assets grew to IDR103,676 billion in 2018, an increase from
IDR95,244 billion in 2017. Total loans (net) grew to IDR72,308
billion from IDR61,998 billion in 2017 and total liabilities stood



at IDR92,299 billion compared with IDR84,297 billion the
previous year.

As at 31 December 2018, we booked our Income Before Tax at
IDR710 billion, which was 230 per cent of what we achieved
in the previous year. Total operating revenue amounted to
IDR4.46 trillion and total operating expenses amounted to
IDR3.78 trillion, resulting in operating income of IDR682 billion.

Loan growth was strong at 17 per cent year-on-year, mostly
supported by Wholesale Banking. LDR reached 93.04 per cent
as we optimised our increasing deposits that grew 3 per cent
year-on-year. The Non Interest Income (Non-Nll) to Total
Income ratio was 27.7 per cent, an increase from 1.3 per cent last
year. Non-Performing Loans (NPL) gross ratio was maintained
below 2 per cent, at 1.4 per cent compared to 11 per cent last
year. Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) was 15.4 per cent, lower by
1.7 per cent compared with previous year, and still well above
the minimum regulatory requirement.

Non-interest income grew by 10 per cent as a result of growth
in wealth management fees of 14.5 per cent year-on-year,
Credit Card fees of 18 per cent year-on-year and Trading and
Investment Income by 8 per cent year-on-year.

In addition, to support business expansion, it is important
that UOB Indonesia continues to strengthen and diversify its
funding structure by issuing Senior Debt shelf offering Il with
the maximum target amount of IDR3 trillion for the period of
2018 — 2020.

Generating Sustainable Growth and Understanding Our
Customer’s Needs

UOB Indonesia strives to build sustainable growth through a
deep understanding of our customers’ needs. We do this by
fulfilling consumers’ financial goals with the right solutions in
their preferred manner and by facilitating businesses’ growth
through cross-border connectivity and specialised sector
expertise.

During the year we launched our Right by Every Generation
brand campaign to celebrate UOB Indonesia's commitment
to be right by customers over the generations while providing
financial solutions that are best suited to their needs.

In Wholesale Banking, we upgraded our service capabilities
by implementing a new Customer Relationship Management
(CRM) system that provides sectorial views, customer insights,
leads and activity management. We sharpened our focus on
industries including consumer goods, oil and gas, construction
and infrastructure and telecommunications, while improving
our fee-based income through cash management and trade and
finance services. All the while, we maintained asset quality and
acquired new customers with good credit quality through our
prudent acquisition processes.

In Retail Banking, we continued to attract new-to-bank
customers and to maintain customer loyalty by offering
products and services to meet customers’ lifestyle and life stage
needs. We also introduced new products and services in our
credit card segment to attract young professionals and young
families, as well as enhanced our payment facilities business to
gain market share through non-cash payments.

With technological advances accelerating the speed and tenor
of change, we ensured that innovation makes banking simpler,
smarter and safer for our customers. Our investments focused
on enhancing products and solutions, improving customer
experience and strengthening our infrastructure to address
regulatory changes, data protection and cybersecurity threats.
In 2018, on the digital front we continued to harness technology
toimprove the customer experience. We connected with various
industry players, including logistics, e-commerce platforms and
gaming industry to provide tailored financial solutions and
services such as unsecured loans to e-marketplace merchants
through our partnership with FinTech companies.

We also used artificial intelligence and machine learning to
develop an alternative digital credit scoring engine to cater for
the digital generation who may be new to credit or unable to
furnish traditional financial records.

In all that we do, we focus on how best to serve the needs
of our customers. In 2018, as part of our Service Excellence
programme we continued with our Branded Service training,
used Net Promoter Scores to measure internal and external
customer satisfaction and advocacy and conducted Fair Dealing
surveys to meet our customers’ expectations.

Investing in Our People

UOB recognises that people are our most valuable asset. Guided
by UOB’s values of Honour, Enterprise, Unity and Commitment,
we continued to attract, to engage and to retain the best talent
to advise and to act in the best interests of our customers.

Our employee value proposition, UOB+you is our commitment
to care for our employee’s well being and to help them grow
professionally.

In 2018, UOB Indonesia launched the U-Bond (UOB Bankers’
Orientation Day) induction programme to welcome new
employees and to guide them on the Bank’s vision, values and
culture. We also understand the importance of supporting
our employee’s career aspirations through our UOB + |_Grow
programme that helps colleagues prepare for roles in different
areas of the bank.

Leaders have the responsibility to demonstrate and to reinforce
behaviors that reflect the UOB values. To strengthen the quality
of our leaders, we launched two leadership programmes in
2018. The Leadership Right By You - First Line Managers (LRBY
FLM) programme challenges leaders to think about the way
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they engage with their people through the principles of pencak
silat. We also conducted a “Manage by Head, Lead by Heart”
leadership training programme to build extraordinary leaders.

Recognition and Awards

As part of our commitment to provide the best and contribute
positively to our stakeholders, we were granted accolades for
cash management, corporate trade finance, service excellence,
transaction banking, retail banking and human resources.

1. The Asset Triple A Treasury, Trade, Supply Chain and Risk

Management Awards :

e Best in Treasury and Working Capital, LLCs — Indonesia

»  Best Service Provider, Cash Management—Indonesia

e Best Supply Chain Solution (Indonesia)—PT Eurokars
Motor Indonesia

e Best Cash Management Solution
Primantara Wisesa Sejahtera

e Best Cash Management Solution (Indonesia)—PT Travel
Recommends Indonesia

e Best Cash Management Solution
MCConnell Dowell Indonesia

e Best Structured Trade Finance Solution (Indonesia)—PT
Hutama Karya (Persero)

e Best Supply Chain Solution (Regional)—Philips Lighting

(Indonesia)—PT

(Indonesia)—PT

2. Carre Centre for Customer Satisfaction Loyalty and Service
Excellence Magazine: Contact Center Service Excellence
Award 2018:

«  Regular Credit Card and Regular Banking

3. The Asian Banker - The Asian Banker’s Choice Awards 2018:
e The Best Supplier Relationship Management in
Indonesia

4. Asian Banking and Finance (ABF) Retail Banking Awards 2018:
e Employer Award of The Year — Silver

5. 2018 J.P. Morgan MT 202 Elite Quality Recognition Award

6. Mastercard Award 2018:
+ UOB Lady’s Card as Best Ladies Card Programme

7. SWA Magazine in collaboration with Lembaga Manajemen
Fakultas Ekonomi Universitas Indonesia - HR Excellence
Award 2018:

e Learning and Development with rating A
*  HRTechnology with rating A
*  HR Transformation with rating BB

Corporate Social Responsibility

The UOB Heartbeat CSR programme focuses on art, children
and education and promotes greater partnership, philanthropy
and participation to help strengthen community bonds. In
2018, UOB Indonesia’s employees contributed more than 1,500
volunteer hours to projects aligned to our CSR pillars.
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We believe that through our steadfast support in art and
education, we can help open minds and hearts to new ways
of thinking, while developing children to their fullest potential.
Throughout 2018, UOB Indonesia partnered the Museum of
Modern and Contemporary Art in Nusantara (Museum MACAN)
in support of its education outreach programmes in Jakarta and
greater areas. More than 100,000 people have visited the UOB
Museum MACAN Children’s Art Space Commission over the
last year.

We also partnered the National Gallery of Indonesia to
showcase 50 winners and finalists’ from the UOB Painting
of the Year competition — our flagship art programme. The
competition has helped to discover and to nurture artists
across the country, including the winners of the UOB Southeast
Asian Painting of the Year in 2012, 2014, 2015, 2016, and 2018.

The UOB Heartbeat Run/Walk is one of the avenues for
colleagues and customers to jointly take part to help
underprivileged children through fundraising activities. This
activity brought together more than 2,000 colleagues and
customers to make a difference to the local community.

Changes in Board Membership

At an Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders on 11
October 2018, there was a change in the Board of Directors
following the retirement of Pardi Kendy as Channels Director
and the appointment of Paul Rafiuly as Technology and
Operations Director. UOB Indonesia hereby expresses its highest
appreciation to Pardi Kendy for his valuable contribution and
dedication during his tenure.

As at 31 December 2018, the Board of Directors comprised:
President Director : Lam Sai Yoke
Deputy President Director : lwan Satawidinata *

Director : Muljono Tjandra
Director : Henky Sulistyo
Compliance Director : Soehadie Tansol
Director : Paul Rafiuly

* Mr Iwan Satawidinata effectively resigned from his position as Deputy President
Director as of Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders on 28 February 2019.

Good Corporate Governance Implementation

The Board of Directors has the responsibility to uphold and
implement Good Corporate Governance (GCG) best practices
as well as accountability, independence and fairness across the
business. The GCG self-assessment conducted in 2018 resulted
in a “good” rating. To keep enhancing our GCG standard, a
range of strategic programmes have been established to ensure
ongoing prudence in risk management, clear policy settings and
strong management performance.

Performance of Committees under the Board of Directors
Applying good corporate governance is something we place
upmost importance on as we create long-term value for our
stakeholders. UOB Indonesia continues to implement good



corporate governance with reference to the provisions set by
the Financial Services Authority, Bank Indonesia and upholds
the best banking practices in the banking industry.

In 2018, all committees executed governance, as well as assisted
the Board of Directors by providing insights, advice, and
opinions to ensure sustained operations and mitigate potential
risks. For their efforts, UOB Indonesia would like to express its
appreciation for their assistance and commitments.

Looking Ahead

Overall, Indonesia’s economic prospects for 2019 remain
positive. However, there will be some notable challenges to
overcome. Economic growth is expected to slow compared
with 2018. The tightness in both monetary and fiscal policies
will continue anchoring the Rupiah’s stability and will attract
capital inflows, while at the same time narrowing the current
account deficit.

Going forward, Indonesia strong economic fundamentals
remain intact. Domestic investment will continue to fuel
economic growth and household spending will continue
to sustain the country’s economic growth momentum. The
steady rise in the middle-income class will drive higher private
consumption. Investment growth is expected to remain robust,
partly due to the continuation of infrastructure investment
projects that are already underway, and from those in the
pipeline. The recent exchange rate depreciation has offered
export price competitiveness in certain economic sectors,
supporting economic growth further.

With stability in the economy expected to be maintained post-
general election, we are cautiously optimistic about Indonesia’s
economy in 2019, even though global growth is expected
to have plateaued in 2018. The strong and large domestic
market is expected to sustain economic growth in 2019, along
with possibly higher investment spending and government
expenditure later in the year. Loan growth is expected to pick
up pace in a range of 11 to 13 per cent.

However, there will still be some lingering external and internal
challenges from 2018, such as the US-China trade tensions,
Brexit, the Chinese economic slowdown and the possibility
of further increases in the US Federal Reserve’s interest rate.
As such, further financial market deepening and broadening of
sources of growth will see financial institutions and especially
banks continuing to play an extremely pivotal role in further
supporting and enhancing Indonesias economic growth
potential.

Appreciation

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to extend
my warmest appreciation to our customers for their support
as well as to our regulators for their guidance and support. |

would like to thank the Board of Commissioners, Committees
and Working Groups, colleagues and all stakeholders who have
contributed to our achievements during the year.

With this close cooperation, mutual trust and the spirit to
continue to grow and to innovate, we feel confident that we
will achieve our long term vision to be a significant bank in
Indonesia. One that is valued by our customers, colleagues,
shareholders and the regulator, and admired by the public as a
trusted long term banking institution.

Jakarta, April 2019

Lam Sai Yoke

President Director
PT Bank UOB Indonesia
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Management Discussion and Analysis

2018 Macroeconomic Overview

A number of world events affected the global economy in
2018. In the Euro-zone, the impact of the Brexit decision in 2016
was causing economic and business uncertainty; while in Asia,
China’s economic growth was slowing down as United States
(US)-China trade tensions increased. On a wider scale, the trade
tensions also indirectly affected the trading partners of the US
and China, including Indonesia. For many other countries, the
US economy remained a major concern as the Federal Reserve
(the Fed) raised its benchmark interest rate to 2.5 per cent by
end of year.

Indonesia’s Economic Performance in 2018

In 2018, Indonesia experienced strong headwinds from external
uncertainties. Nevertheless, the Indonesian economy grew at
517 per cent, above the global growth forecast of 3.7 per cent.
The growth reflects the country’s economic resiliency despite
the rising volatility and the Indonesian Rupiah’s depreciation in
2018.

The largest portion of the economic growth in 2018, about 55.74
per cent, came from Indonesian household spending, which
grew 5 per cent. With spending behaviors shifting towards
online purchases we believe the number is probably slightly
higher. The Indonesian economy was also boosted by a number
of international and national events, such as the Asian Games
and Asian Para Games, the International Monetary Fund-World
Bank annual meetings and the regional local elections.

With the Indonesian Government committed to its
infrastructure development agenda, the investment spending
in construction, as well as in non-construction, continued to
grow supporting the overall growth trend. In terms of inflation,
Indonesia recorded an annual inflation rate of 313 per cent;
which fell within the government target range of 3.5 per cent,
+/— 1 per cent. That demonstrated the Government’s succesful
efforts in managing the stability in food prices and other
inflation components, such as clothing and transportation,
throughout the year.

On the other hand, the persistent Current Account Deficit
(CAD) was a major issue for the Indonesian economy as total
imports (including services) continue to exceed exports
revenue. As a result, the Rupiah weakened against the USD in
2018. This became a concern for the Indonesian Government as
it negatively impacted the economy as domestic industries rely
on imported capital goods and some consumption materials.

In order to create a more stable exchange rate, the monetary
and financial policymakers issued a mix of closely coordinated
policies. The Rupiah, which had reached as high as IDR15,238
(M.3 per cent fall against the USD) in October 2018, closed
at IDR14,390 (6.4 per cent rise) by the end of 2018. Financial
deepening, structural reforms and policy coordination

supported Indonesias economic resiliency in the face of
external economic turmoil.

2018 Banking Performance Overview

In 2018, Bank of Indonesia (BI) increased interest rates by 175bps
in order to stabilise the Rupiah. Following the increases, the
Bl 7-Days Reverse Repo Rate stood at 6 per cent. It is likely to
stay at that rate in 2019 to maintain a stronger Rupiah, however
there is a chance of Bl starting to cut rates in the fourth quarter
of 2019.

Indonesian foreign exchange reserves stood at USD120.7 billion
at the end of December 2018, indicating the good external
position of the country, leading to higher market confidence.
Bl also reported a 13.3 per cent growth in lending as at October
2018 in the domestic banking sector with a high capital position
at 23 per cent and a Loan - to - Deposit Ratio (LDR) of 93.7 per
cent.

Banks in the BUKU IIl category recorded 154 per cent loan
growth with a 25 per cent capital position and 102.8 per cent
LDR. In terms of Non-Performing Loans (NPL), The Financial
Services Authority/Otoritas Jasa Keuangan (OJK) reported that
Indonesian banking industry NPL Ratio stood at 2.6 per cent in
October 2018 (banks under BUKU IlI at 2.6 per cent).

Indonesia’s Economic Outlook for 2019

Overall, Indonesia’s economic prospects in 2019 remain positive
with some notable challenges to overcome. Economic growth
is projected to be relatively stable in 2019 compared with
2018. Nevertheless, it is important policymakers instill stability
before pursuing faster growth.

Some external and internal challenges from 2018 may still
linger over the course of 2019, such as simmering US-China
trade tensions, Brexit running its course, a Chinese economic
slowdown and the possibility of further increases in the
Fed’s rates. As such, further financial market deepening and
the broadening the sources of growth will require financial
institutions, and especially banks, to continue playing an
extremely pivotal role in supporting and enhancing Indonesia’s
economic growth potential.

Taking all things into account, we are cautiously optimistic
about Indonesia’s economice outlook in 2019. The country’s
strong and large domestic market, supported by household
spending, is expected to sustain economic growth in 2019. The
steady rise in the middle-income class will also support higher
private consumption, including via increased spending via the
digital economy and e-commerce.

We also expect higher investment spending and government
expenditure this year, supported by infrastructure investment
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Management Discussion and Analysis

projects that are already underway or in the pipeline. The
recent exchange rate depreciation has also offered export
price competitiveness in certain sectors of the economy and
will support economic growth further. As Indonesia will hold a
general election this year, we expect a stable economy with its
promising potential to be unleashed in years to come.

Nevertheless, tight monetary and fiscal policies will continue
in 2019, anchoring the Rupiah’s stability and attracting capital
inflows. At the same time, the Government is expected to
work on policies to narrow the CAD significantly. Credit growth
consequently is expected to pick up pace to fall in the range of
11 per cent to 13 per cent in 2019.

Business Development Strategy

Economic development, productivity improvements and
enhancements in Indonesia’s investment climate are the focus
of the Government economic reform packages. Its packages
aim to accelerate income growth and distribution more evenly
across the nation, including the private sector. UOB Indonesia
remains committed to supporting the long-term economic
development of Indonesia by leveraging on our extensive
regional network to facilitate investment opportunities across
a range of sectors. With our disciplined business approach and
prudent management practices, UOB Indonesia will continue to
build on the trust of our valued stakeholders — our customers,
business partners, shareholders and regulators — have placed in
us. We will continue to create sustainable business growth as
we strive to become a significant bank in Indonesia.

We are committed to meeting our customers’ needs and strive
to provide the best solutions for them. This commitment will
be realised through the following strategic priorities:

1. Maintaining robust risk management processes and
practices;

2. Continuing to sharpen our prudent financial management
processes;

3. Putting the best interests of our customers at the centre of
all we do;

4. Nurturing a principled, loyal, dedicated and talented team
of bankers; and

5. Harnessing technology to drive performance and improve
the customer experience

Keeping Our Customers at the Heart of All We Do
UOB Indonesia offers a range of products and services to meet
the needs of our customers through our Retail and Wholesale
Banking businesses.

For our retail customers, the main highlights of the year were

the launch of the UOB YOLO credit card to meet the needs
of financially-independent millennials in pursuing their goals,
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and the upgrade of the UOB One Card which offers zero per
cent installments for tuition fees and free personal accident
insurance coverage for families. We continued to build
partnerships with dining, health and beauty, electronics and
travel merchants to meet the lifestyle needs of our credit
cardmembers. In particular, these partnerships enabled us
to provide additional benefits to our PRVI Miles, Preferred
Platinum and Lady’s Card members.

To help our customers manage their personal finances better,
we offered savings products such as the UOB High Yield
Account, UOB Plus Saving, the UOB ONE Account and U-Save.
In 2018, we launched the Big Bang Saving programme offering
attractive prizes to customers opening new U-Save accounts.

We continued to serve our premium customers with a
SmartRisk approach to guide them in achieving their financial
goals through a better understanding of not only the potential
returns of their investments but also the risks. On the digital
front, we have made significant investments in our technology
capabilities as we provide our customers with a simpler, smarter
and safer banking experience, including through our Personal
Internet Banking and Business Internet Banking Plus (BIBPlus)
services. We also engaged a number of partners in Indonesia
across eight industries on collaboration initiatives to develop
and to offer tailored products to help businesses grow.

As part of demonstrating our thought leadership in the market
and in deepening relationships with our stakeholders, we held
annual UOB Indonesia Economic Outlook events in Jakarta and
Surabaya. These events provided valuable insights on the latest
economic trends important to our customers and are attended
by notable guests, comprising government officials, regulators
and customers.

To serve the increasing number of Small-and Medium-Sized
Enterprises (SMEs) in Indonesia, we continue to deepen the
skillset of our bankers in trade financing, cash management and
foreign exchange hedging. Our highly-experienced relationship
managers are equipped with the expertise to advise our SMEs
customers on how to grow their businesses. Since 2016, UOB
Indonesia has collaborated with the Institut Teknologi Bandung
(ITB) Business Management School to conduct the SME
Certificate UOBI-ITB Programme. As at December 2018, 29 of
our bankers have completed the certification programme.

As part of our commitment to support of the country’s
infrastructure development initiatives, we have extended our
financial expertise and solutions to infrastructure financing,
corporate financing and project financing for national and
provincial infrastructure projects.

We continued to offer our corporate customers current and
savings account products, namely Giro88 and Tabungan Bisnis88
that offer competitive interest rates and fee-free transactional
features based on the customer’s account balance.



Operational Review

Retail Banking

Retail Banking provides Personal and Business Banking
customers with financial solutions essential for them to
achieve their financial goals and aspirations. Our Personal
Banking products include deposits, investments and insurance
(DI}, mortgage and secured loans, credit cards and payments,
as well as wealth advisory services for our affluent customers
through UOB Privilege Banking. We also provide our Business
Banking customers with a range of products, including deposits
and loans account, cash management and trade finance to
support their business growth.

Personal Financial Services (PFS)

Guided by our values, we provide customers with solutions
right for their financial needs. In 2018, PFS recorded deposits
of IDR25,893 billion and loans of IDR9,607 billion. Contributing
factors included enhancements to our loans, credit cards and
wealth advisory products and services.

Deposits, Investments and Insurance

To help our customers to invest and grow their money wisely,
we offer deposits and investment in Rupiah and foreign
currencies, as well as mutual funds, bonds, treasury products,
bancassurance and advisory services. We generate both fee-
based income and interest income by offering the right solution
at every stage of a customer’s life and in keeping with their
lifestyle.

In 2018, our wealth management revenue rose 20 per cent while
assets under management increased 47 per cent. In 2019, we will
ensure that our financial solutions remain relevant to the ever-
changing needs of our customers.

With market uncertainty ongoing, our focus will be on helping
our customers grow their wealth by investing wisely and
continuing to provide prudent advisory services. To achieve this,
we adopt SmartRisk approach — a risk-based financial advice
and investment solutions to ensure customer understands the
risks associated with a product before any discussion takes
place on its possible returns.

Mortgage and Secured Loans

We provide our customers with a range of options to suit
their property buying needs, including home equity loans for
first time homebuyers, loans to upgrade properties, property
refinancing or to purchase a new property.

In 2018, we continued to focus on residential properties
and partnered reputable developers across more than 200
property projects throughout the country. We launched UOB
Home Search, which enables customers to access property
information and special housing loan schemes based on their
particular needs. Our partnerships resulted in our housing loans
increasing 253 per cent to IDR959 billion, compared with the
previous year.

We also established a Corporate Employee Programme where
we collaborated with corporate customers to offer housing
loans to their employees.

Our priorities in 2019 include:

1. Strengthening relationships with reputable developers
and property agents to provide enhanced services for our
customers;

2. Launching bundled mortgage and current account savings
account solutions to meet our customers’ needs; and

3. Implementing a straight through process for faster loan
process approvals.

Credit Cards and Payments

We create financial solutions essential for the lifestyle of our
customers through a range of credit cards, comprising PRVI
Miles, Preferred Platinum, Lady’s Card, One Card and YOLO
Card.

Early in 2018, we launched the UOB YOLO credit card to
meet the needs of financially-independent millennials with a
penchant for trends and travel. By focusing on their banking and
lifestyle needs, the YOLO card helps millennials starting out in
their careers to stretch their budgets further.

During the year-end festive season, we launched the UOB Blast
of Surprise 2.0 promotion which offers our card members a
chance to win prizes through digital games. The spend and win
promotion increased the number of transactions during the
period.

We continued to build partnerships with merchants from dining,
health and beauty, electronics and travel sectors to meet the
lifestyle needs of our customers. These included offering:

1. Airline miles from retail transactions, including domestic
and overseas transactions made on the UOB PRVI Miles
card;

2. Three times reward points for retail transactions made with
the UOB Preferred Platinum card;

3. Special offers in selected hair salons and merchants, and
access to exclusive events for Lady’s Cardmembers;

4. Zero per cent installments for tuition fees, plus free
personal accident insurance coverage up to IDR600 million
for transactions on the UOB One Card; and

5. Free travel with online transportation, zero per cent travel
installments and more daily deals for transactions on the
UOB YOLO Card.

In addition, in line with the regulatory requirement to enhance
the safety of banking transactions, we issued debit cards with
chips and exceeded our implementation target by 20 per cent
by year end.

In 2018 we achieved a robust growth of 26 per cent in credit
cards loans and a 14 per cent increase in transaction volume
year on year, contributing to a 14 per cent increase in total
income.
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The priorities for Credit Cards and Payments in 2019 are:

1. Continue to strengthen PRVI Miles, Preferred Platinum,
Lady’s Card, One Card, and YOLO Credit Card as our flagship
products;

2. Continue to enhance our credit processes, policies and
procedures to improve the customer experience; and

3. Increase card activation, customer loyalty and building the
right partnerships to meet our cardholders’ needs.

Privilege Banking

Privilege Banking is dedicated to managing the wealth of
customers with assets of IDR1 billion and above. Our customers
benefit from our comprehensive suite of personal and
investment product and services to achieve their financial
goals.

In 2018, we continued to provide information about risk and
return through our Smart Risk Approach, thereby helping our
customers to grow and to preserve their wealth over generations.
Our UOB Privilege Banking Client Advisors ensure customers
have a deep understanding of the future risk and growth
potential of recommended products. Each recommendation
we make is based on the customers’ affordability, risk appetite
and present and long term financial needs.

In 2018, we continued to provide customers with the latest
financial market updates and insights at domestic, regional and
global level. We also continue to provide a Wealth Planning
Calculator to assist our customers in planning for their
retirement and their children’s education.

Our Privilege Banking customers enjoy the benefits and offers
from various merchants through the UOB Privilege Banking
ATM/Debit Card and the UOB PRVI Miles Credit Card.

The priorities for UOB Privilege Banking In 2019 are:

1. Continue to deepen client relationships by providing quality
advisory with personalised and up-to-date information;

2. Tap the expertise of our Wealth Advisory team to create
innovative investment solutions;

3. Offer our Privilege Banking referral service to customers’
family and friends; and

4. Enhance our digital channels and branch infrastructure to
ensure quality and consistent customer experience.

Business Banking

Our Business Banking team creates business solutions for
Small and Medium Enterprises (SMEs) across all industries as
they progress through different stages of growth. We offer a
wide range of products and services including; commercial
loan facilities with a limit up to IDR20 billion, a wide range of
deposits, cash management, foreign exchange, trade financing,
bancassurance, and BizSmart, our new digital business solutions.
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To help prepare SMEs for a digital future, we released the
ASEAN SME Transformation Study which shared insight on the
importance of business transformation in adapting with the
rapid current technology advancements.

In 2018, we provide on the following Business Banking products
and services:

1. Current and Savings Account — UOB Indonesia has four
type of business accounts available for Business Banking
customers, Giro 88, U-Biz88, and Tabungan Biz88 for
Indonesian Rupiah currency, and Vapro for foreign currency.
Each product has specialised features that allow customers
to enjoy competitive interest rates, preferential transaction
fees, and many other benefits depending on the business
requirements of the customers;

2. Business Internet Banking Plus (BIBPlus) — This service
enables customers to manage their banking transactions
more conveniently and efficiently through internet banking
capabilities;

3. Transaction Services — We provide a variety of foreign
exchange, bancassurance, trade and cash management
products and services;

4. BizSmart — We offer customers a suite of integrated digital
business solutions that let customers to manage processes
such as sales, invoicing, payroll and accounting;

5. Business Property Loans — We provide financing facilities
for purchasing or refinancing commercial properties with a
tenor up to 20 years;

6. Business Solutions — We offer financing facilities for
business banking customers to meet their short-term
working capital and long-term investment needs. In
addition, we also provide foreign currency hedging and
trade services for customers with business operations in
trading or export-import activities; and

7. Business Express — We deliver financing services as a
working capital loan facilities with cash collateral equal to
100 per cent of the loan facilities granted.

In 2018, Business Banking Indonesia recorded a total income
of IDR796 billion, accounting for 18 per cent of the Bank’s
total income in 2018. Business Banking contributed 21 per cent
to the Bank’s total gross loans, and 16 per cent to the Bank’s
deposits during the year. Fee income was also a strong income
contributor off the back of referral activities, cross-selling and
bundling initiatives. We also focused on policy and process
improvements in our lending and funding products to provide a
faster turnaround time for our customers.



Business Banking Indonesia gross loans amounted to IDR15,235
billion, at 2 per cent year-on-year increase from 2017. The
growth was due to improved loan processes and policies which
helped with sales productivity.

In 2019, Business Banking will focus on the following areas:

1. Helping our customers maximise their potential growth by
digitalising their business processes with BizSmart;

2. Meeting the needs of SMEs through our line of products
and services;

3. Refining our processes and practices to improve the
customer experience; and

4. Continuing to offer customised financial solutions to
customers based on their industry.

Wholesale Banking

Wholesale Banking helps companies and institutions optimise
their business operations and cash flow, manage risks, expand
into new markets and manage their capital needs by providing
tailored financial solutions, services and sector insights. We
develop trusted partnerships by focusing on our clients’
long-term interests and by helping them meet their strategic
objectives. Our unique combination of local presence and
expertise, astute market insights and regional network
connectivity enables us to help unlock Asia’s potential for our
clients.

Commercial Banking - Enabling the Growth of Medium-
Sized Businesses

Our Commercial Banking teams — comprising Commercial
Wealth Management, Enterprise Banking and Industry Group
experts - are dedicated to supporting the growth of UOB'
medium-sized corporate clients. We provide a full suite of
Wholesale Banking solutions to help them overcome challenges
and to achieve their business objectives.

With our clients located across Indonesia, our Commercial
Banking teams are based in the country’s major centres of
commerce and industry. In 2018, Commercial Banking total
loans growth was IDR4.4 trillion, representing 50 per cent of
the total growth in UOB Indonesia’s overall loan portfolio of
IDR8.9 trillion. Aside from loan facilities, Commercial Banking
also provided clients with deposits products, with total non-
bank deposits reaching IDR3.5 trillion in 2018

In 2019, Commercial Banking will focus on deepening our
relationships with our clients by providing financing solutions in
industrial sectors with stable growth such as consumer goods,
metal and mining, plantation, forestry, automotive, machinery,
equipment, component, textiles, oil and gas, construction and
infrastructure, and telecommunication industry sectors.

We will also focus on growing our Current Account Savings
Account (CASA) deposits products to serve more medium-
sized business clients, mainly across large cities such as Jakarta,
Bandung, Surabaya, and Medan.

Corporate Banking - Supporting Large Corporate Clients
in Their Regional Expansion

Our Corporate Banking team supports large corporate clients
in a number of categories including government, state owned
government-linked and private companies. Through UOB's
established and integrated network, our global and local teams
of relationship managers offer our clients seamless connectivity
and specialised expertise as they expand across Asia. We
also provide a suite of integrated solutions to meet their
financial needs, including support for cross-border merger and
acquisition opportunities, financing short-term working capital
through to long-term capital expenditure, cash management
services and foreign exchange and hedging solutions.

In 2018, our loan disbursements increased to IDR18.1 trillion
from IDR15.8 trillion while deposits (including CASA) increased
to IDRI15.7 trillion.

In 2019, Corporate Banking will:

1. Maintain its solid loan portfolio performance;
2. Develop our deposits business; and

3. Optimise foreign exchange flows.

Financial Institutions Group - Partnering Financial
Institutions as They Grow and Expand Across Borders
Our Financial Institutions Group is backed by strong knowledge
of the Indonesian market and regional expertise to support our
financial institution clients which comprise banks, non-bank
financial institutions (central banks, diversified financial, public
sector, insurers and real money funds) and property funds.
We help our clients to grow their business and to drive their
profits across the region. We do this by offering comprehensive
solutions in cash management, trade financing, interest rate and
currency derivatives, hedging, specialised finance structures
and capital markets.

In 2018, we achieved balanced growth in loans and fee-based
income and maintained funding stability through diversification
in income sources. Our products and services included
insurance, asset management, pension funds and CASA
products, virtual account services, e-tax services and BIBPlus.
We are also a receiving bank for Initial Public Offerings (IPO).

Financial Institutions recorded a 495 per cent of growth
in net interest income. Our net profit before tax grew by 42
per cent compared with the previous year. This performance
was supported by an increase in lending of 53 per cent, and
an increase in income from Global Markets products of 63 per
cent.

In 2019, Financial Institutions will:

1. Deepen our relationships with existing clients as we support
their business growth;

2. Attract new customer by offering working capital solutions;

3. Increase income from transaction banking and global
markets;

4. Monitor closely interest rates and liquidity in the banking
system; and
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5. Diversify our funding into insurance, asset management and
pension funds while increasing combined CASA balances.

Transaction Banking

Transaction Banking is committed to providing a comprehensive
suite of cash management, trade finance and FSCM solutions
to help our clients enhance their operations and cashflow and
optimise their working capital. Through our integrated, regional
network and cross-border solutions, we offer our clients the
connectivity they need as they internationalise and set up
regional treasury centres to facilitate their expansion across
the region.

Cash Management

Our cash management services are designed to meet the needs
of different client segments, providing them with efficiency
and convenience in managing their cash flows, including
transactions settlement and payment, receipts and cash
collection, and cash liquidity management.

Trade Finance and Services

Our Trade Finance and Services products and services facilitate
clients’ trade transactions, while managing market risk. We
provide innovative and comprehensive solutions for corporate
clients. The appropriate trade view is also conveyed so that
clients receive reliable information to manage their businesses.

In 2018, our efforts to improve our clients’ experience in
transaction banking were as follows:
1. Industry-based Trade and FSCM Solutions
a. We offered a more flexible and competitive trade
finance packages for our clients to enable them seizing
every business opportunity in the rapidly changing
market dynamics;
b. We optimised working capital with tools to negotiate
more favourable payment and sales terms; and
c. We grew business by maintaining a prudent risk
management approach.

2. BIBPlus quality improvements
We added Global View features to UOB Business Internet
Banking (BIBPlus) to provide easier access for large-scale
corporate clients with regional accounts to see a summary
of their account balances with one click. With this feature,
clients can access the system using a token and can make
full use of BIBPlus for ease of transactions.

3. Regional File Transfer System
The Regional File Transfer System is a new electronic
channel which allows multi-national scale corporate clients
to send flexible regional payment instructions through a
single connection to UOB Singapore.

Our strong support of clients’ Cash Management and Trade
enabled us to record a 10 per cent growth in our operating
account portfolio, while trade finance business grew by 20 per
cent. Our strong performance was also recognised externally
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where we received nine awards; eight awards from The Asset
Triple A, and one award from The Asian Banker.

In 2019, we will stay focused on meeting the needs of our
clients by continuing to strengthen our product and service
capabilities, harnessing technology to offer distinct, integrated
solutions as well as borderless, reliable and efficient services.
This is our long-term commitment as we seek to expand our
client base in the region.

Global Markets

Global Markets develops a customised financial products and
treasury solutions across multiple asset classes to help our
clients meet their investment, liability and risk management
needs. We also manage UOB Indonesia’s funding and liquidity
in accordance with regulatory requirements and optimise the
Bank’s assets within our risk framework. Our prudent approach
towards managing liquidity helps to maintain UOB Indonesia’s
funding stability and balance sheet strength.

In 2018, the Global Markets focused on improving the
performance of foreign exchange (FX) options and rate hedging
products, such as interest rate and cross-currency swaps.
Product offerings were expanded to include fixed income
products, such as bonds and bond repos. In addition, the
team launched a new product as an alternative for customer
hedging, namely a Domestic Non-Deliverable Forward (DNDF).
This product launch was in accordance with Bank Indonesia
regulations to support the Government's efforts to stabilise the
Rupiah exchange rate.

In 2018, Global Markets collaborated internally to launch two

new products:

1. Working with Financial Institutions, we launched cash-
backed funding products to meet the need for long-
term Rupiah funding after taking into account currency
differences in our clients’ assets and liabilities. Through cash-
backed funding, clients’ Rupiah loans can be guaranteed by
USD deposits. These guarantees can be monitored daily and
include a top up and down mechanism.

2. Working with Commercial Banking and Transaction Banking,
we launched new multi-currency payment services such
as the Indian Rupee for clients growing their business
investments in India. The product has helped the Bank to
double the number of foreign exchange transactions in 2018
as compared with 2017.

In 2019, Global Markets will improve its productivity and
efficiency while meeting our clients’ financial needs. We will
collaborate with business segments across the Bank, as well as
improving the products and services capabilities in line with
client business segmentations.

Connecting with our customers

Taking our omni-channel approach through our integrated
customer touchpoints, we continue to harness technology to
enhance the customer experience. Our customers can easily



access our services across our branch network, automated teller machines (ATMs), internet and mobile banking platforms. This
ensures that every experience of theirs is safe, reliable, to their preference and wrapped in the warmth of the human touch.

Our customers can conduct their banking at any of our 178 branch offices in 30 cities across Indonesia. Through partnerships
with third parties retailers such as coffee or pastry shops, we have broadened the appeal of our branch spaces. By adding retail
components to our branches, we welcome customers with a unique experience and attract walk-in customers who are interested
to learn more about our services.

In 2018, we created distinctive customer experiences through:

1. Launching Branded Service training, which included a focus on soft skills development in areas such as communication skills.
It increased the product knowledge of our colleagues and equipped them with skills to resolve customer complaints. We also
extended the training to our security personnel in branches;

2. Celebrating festive occasions in our branches. This simple yet meaningful approach to customer engagement helped
increase our NPS to 9617 per cent in 2018. It also helped increase the productivity of our frontline colleagues by
58 per cent in 2018 compared with 2017; and

3. Setting customer standards through dedicated Duty Managers roles which focus on ensuring faster service times and quality of
service. This is in addition to the single captain model introduced in year 2017.

In 2019, our Distribution Channels team will focus on:

1. Expanding our footprint in major cities in Indonesia;

2. Enhancing our customer touchpoints to improve how we serve our customers and to drive business efficiencies and lower
operating expenses; and

3. Relocating branch to more strategic locations to provide convenient access improve customer experience and satisfaction.

Customers

Our heritage and values guide how we establish and deepen relationships with our customers wherever they are. UOB Indonesia
is committed to acting in the best interests and we help them meet their business, financial and lifestyle goals by providing them
with the most appropriate solutions and services. This ensures that every experience of theirs is safe, reliable, to their preference
and wrapped in the warmth of the human touch.

Our Customer Commitments
In all our and actions for our cutomers, we strive to meet four commitments, each of which is built on our values of being
Honourable, Enterprising, United and Commited.
@ Honourable: - Enterprising:
Do What is Right ? Build Meaningful Careers

We maintain the highest professional and ethical
standards in all our dealings with our customers. We are
uncompromising in our discipline, clarity and courage to
do what is right for them and to make every decision in
their best interest.

Y United:
¢S Make a Real Difference
(VI V]
We learn our customers’ preference and know what
counts for them with every interaction. By understanding
them better, we anticipate their needs and offer them the
most relevant financial solutions.

We draw on our experience, insight and entrepreneurial
spirit to provide our customers with solutions that help
them achieve their financial goals and aspirations, and
manage their daily and future requirements, however
simple or complex.

Committed:
Lead by Positive Example

t)

We value the relationship that we build and hold with
our customers and we are ready to help them through
market cycles, across borders and over generations.
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Treating our customers fairly

In dealing with customers, we maintain the highest professional
and ethical standards. As part of this, we conduct Fair Dealing
surveys to ensure that customers are treated with integrity,
trust and respect by all of our colleagues.

We take the customer feedback we receive seriously and have
robust procedures in place to address concerns fairly, effective and
in timely manner. We have launched an change to The Art of Service
Recovery training programme for our colleagues to help improve
their ability to resolve customer complaints. In 2018, we held two
Art of Service Recovery workshops to equip our colleagues with
skills to turn challenging situations into positive outcomes.

Raising customer satisfaction and advocacy

Customer's satisfaction remains a top priority and we use
feedback from our customers to keep raising the standard of our
products and services. To measure customer satisfaction and
retention across our business and product groups, we use the
Net Promoter Score (NPS) metrics which indicate the likelihood
of a customer recommending a company’s brand, product or
service to others. NPS is an established worldwide metric used
to measure customer loyalty and to predict business growth.

Our external NPS score in 2018 increased to +3, up from -3
achieved in 2017. We also extended NPS metrics to departments

within the Bank, ensuring that in all interactions we are serving
internal and external stakeholders in accordance with UOB’s
values. Our internal NPS improved from -15.30 per cent in 2017
to +38.00 per cent in 2018.

We also conduct mystery shopping, service huddles and
benchmarking initiatives to review our service performance and
practices against industry best practices and to identify areas
for improvement. Through our service huddles, we encourage
colleagues from all parts of the business to share their ideas on
how to support customers at the times that matter most to them.
Through the insight we gained from the benchmarking survey, we
have launched faster and simpler account opening processes. We
have also trained our security personnel in branches to direct
walk-in customers to the right branch representative.

Setting the Standard for Excellent Customer Experience

The UOB Customer Commitments Awards campaigns remind
us of our responsibility to our customers on our customer-
facing roles. The annual campaign culminates in the UOB
Customer Commitments Awards ceremony to acknowledge our
colleagues who had been exemplary in fulfilling our customer
commitments. In 2018, we recognised 4 individual colleagues
and 2 teams for being role models who had best demonstrated
our customer commitments in their daily decisions and actions.

UOB's Best Customer Service teams across Asian countries; Indonesia, Singapore, Malaysia, Thailand, Vietnam and
China receiving the highest appreciation of Customer Commitment Awards, in July 2018.

L ——

Mr Kevin Lam, President Director of UOB Indonesia
proudly awarding the winners of Customer Commitments

Awards from Indonesia.
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Colleagues

The decisions we make and the actions we take are guided
by our values of Honour, Enterprise, Unity and Commitment.
These values are also expressed in our care for the professional
and personal growth of our colleagues across the organisation.
We are dedicated to building a culture where our colleagues
are empowered to make a positive and meaningful difference
in what they do for our internal and external stakeholders.
We do this by fostering an inclusive, prudent, progressive
and high-performing organisation that encourages the best

@ Honourable:

Do What is Right
We do the right for all of our stakeholders and make
decisions that are in the best interests of our organisation,
our colleagues and our customers.

/6\ United:
‘.L,‘.’ Make a Real Difference

Our unwavering commitment to upholding the UOB
values is reflected in how our colleagues serve our
customers and our communities with passion. We are
here to make a real difference to shape our future and to
add value to the lives we touch.

Doing What is Right

Our Commitment to Fairness

UOB Indonesia is committed to building a safe, nurturing and
inclusive workplace where all colleagues are treated respectfully
and professionally and are given equal opportunity based on
merit. We promote work-life harmony and an environment free
from discrimination, bullying or harassment.

of each individual from our team of principled professionals.
We are also committed to looking after our colleagues” well-
being because we believe people give their best when they are
supported, healthy and happy.

Our Employee Commitments

Our values give us a shared identity and sense of belonging, and
our four employee commitments encourage us to keep raising
the standards of our behaviour and performance in service of
our customers.

YA Enterprising:
9 Build Meaningful Careers

We encourage enterprise and ambition at all levels. We
believe in bringing out the best in everyone through
professional development and empowering our
colleagues to take ownership of their career paths.

t)

Our leaders act as role models, guiding indviduals and
teams to take on challenges and to take ownership of
their actions. Together, we focus on enabling the success
and advancement of all our colleagues.

Committed:
Lead by Positive Example

Our expectations of our people and the policies we expect
them to abide by are stated in the UOB Code of Conduct. We
update our Code of Conduct periodically to stay relevant with
the times and to address regulatory requirements and policy
changes. All colleagues are also required to uphold Good
Corporate Governance principles.
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Upon joining UOB Indonesia, all new colleagues are informed
of, and sign up to, their obligations and rights under our
Code of Conduct. All colleagues are required to refresh their
knowledge and to renew their commitment to our Code of
Conduct through completing an e-learning module every year.
We also help deepen understanding and embed the practice
of our Code of Conduct through frequent and interactive
communications across the organisation.

Maintaining a Risk-focused Organisational Culture

Our values drive our conduct and form the bedrock of our risk
culture. They are the foundation for the four principles that
guide our approach: enforcing robust risk governance; balancing
growth with stability; ensuring accountability for all our risk-
based decisions and actions; and encouraging awareness,
engagement and consistent behaviour in every colleague.

Our comprehensive framework of policies, processes,
methodologies and tools helps usidentify, measure, monitor
and manage material risks and opportunities faced by the
Group. Where applicable, an individual's key performance
indicators (KPIs) also include risk control metrics.

Ongoing training reinforces risk-focused conduct that enables
us to earn the trust of our stakeholders over generations. Many
of the training programmes are also available online to enable
our colleagues to learn and to complete them at their own
pace. The training topics include:

Anti-money laundering, prevention of terrorism funding;
Assessment and handling of operational risks;

Ethics of fair dealing;

Prevention of fraud;

IT security and awareness of cyber risk;

The UK Bribery Act;

Risk Management Certification; and

Insider trading.

© N U W

In 2018, to enhance knowledge on risk and to strengthen risk
awareness, the Bank also opened up opportunities for high
potential bankers to join professional certification programmes
in Financial Risk Management.

Encouraging Feedback

We value the opinions of our colleagues and encourage them
to share their thinking on what matters to them. Every article
that is posted on MyUOB, the organisation’s intranet, seeks
their views which can be given openly or privately.

In 2018, we acted on the feedback provided in an Employee-
wide Survey conducted the year before. We analysed the
survey results and our Human Resources team partnered
function heads to develop and to roll out initiatives to address
key improvement areas. Among these was a Manager Index
report aimed at helping our people managers to improve their
managerial skills and effectiveness to strengthen employee
engagement.
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We also have a whistle-blowing system that enables colleagues
to raise matters of potential concern in a secure manner
without fear of reprisal report actions or behavior that are not
in accordance with our values or policies. All reported cases
are swiftly investigated and resolved. The status of all whistle-
blowing cases is tracked by Internal Audit and reported to the
Audit Committee every quarter.

Upholding Human Rights

UOB Indonesia is committed to supporting internationally-
accepted human rights principles in accordance with the
prevailing regulations in Indonesia. We do not tolerate
discrimination, forced labor and child labor practices in the
workplace. In line with that, we respect equality in workplace.

Ensuring Freedom of Association

We respect our colleagues’ lawful right to freedom of
association and collective bargaining. Our approach is to
maintain mutually trusted and respectful relations with
unions. We hold regular meetings with union representatives
to understand and to address their concerns and expectations.
As part of management-trade union engagement, a Collective
Labour Agreement has been developed covering various
industrial relations topics, including working time, working
arrangenment, leave & permit and social walfare.

Building Meaningful Careers

Offering a Distinctive Employee Value Proposition

We focus on developing our colleagues’ capabilities to prepare
them for the future. We create an environment where they can
perform to their best. We also care for their well-being. Our
approach is upheld through our employee value proposition,
UOB+you, which is supported by a wide range of programmes
that covers flexible work arrangements, training and
development courses, health and wellness, welfare benefits
and recognition programmes.

Developing Our Colleagues for the Future

Setting rewarding career paths, offering educational
opportunities and coaching are essential components of our
approach to creating a dynamic and engaged workforce. We run
numerous training and development programmes to equip our
colleagues with the right skillsets to realise their own potential
and to serve our customers better.

In 2018, we developed new training programmes focusing on
preparing our people for the future. More than 4,360 colleagues
were trained for a total training time of 264,897 hours.

To improve the quality of our training programmes, our
trainers and facilitators must complete the Learning Champion
Certification Programme. The objective of the programme is to
increase the effectiveness of learning materials, delivery and
programme management. In 2018, 32 trainers and 15 facilitators
passed the certification training classes and continued to fulfil
teaching hours requirements of the certification process.



Through our focus on personal development and career
advancement, we offer scholarships and a career development
programme called UOB + |_Grow. Scholarships are provided
to high-performing and high-potential colleagues. In 2018,
nine colleagues were awarded scholarships for further study
at accredited universities in Indonesia. Our UOB + | Grow
programme was introduced in 2018 to empower our colleagues
to achieve their career aspirations. UOB + | Grow provides
in-class and on-the-job training opportunities guided by the
mentors to ensure colleagues’ succeed in their new job postings.
In its first year, the programme helped us to fill Personal Bankers
roles from within the Bank.

To balance between colleagues’ work schedules and need for
continuous learning and development, in 2018 we used a bite-
size learning approach to conduct short knowledge sharing
sessions and regular mini workshops. An example was the
Advanced Legal Workshop which focused on legal guarantees
for retail loans and was attended by representatives from
various businesses and corporate functions. We also
organised mini workshops for our colleagues to gain a better
understanding of the developments shaping the banking
industry. This included weekly Tech Talks for all colleagues
to hear from experts from renowned technology companies.
Highlights from the talks were shared with all colleagues
through the Bank’s intranet, MyUOB.

We also focused on deepening our colleagues’ knowledge of
new products including transaction banking, global markets/
treasury, bancassurance and retail liabilities products. For
instance, we conducted training with our Relationship
Managers and Credit Analysts on our loan processes. The
training included updates on our Credit Master System, client
onboarding, call report preparation, Credit Risk Management,
and sharing sessions between Client Fulfilment Service (CFS),
Credit Administration Control (CAC) and Legal.

In 2018, we collaborated with the School of Business and
Management, Institut Teknologi Bandung, in the SME Bankers
Executive Certification Programme. A total of 29 colleagues
completed this programme to deepen their understanding of
small and medium enterprise (SME) business practices. Using
the knowledge they have gained, they are able to help our
SME customers to develop their business.

In order for our people to deepen their skills, in accordance

with the prevailing regulations, we held various mandatory

and professional certification programmes such as:

1. Risk Management Certification;

2. Mutual Funds Effect Sales Agent Representatives/Wakil
Agen Penjual Reksadana (WAPERD);

3. Indonesia Life Insurance Association/Asosiasi Asuransi Jiwa
Indonesia (AAJI);

4. Indonesian Society of Appraisers/Masyarakat Profesi

Penilai Indonesia (MAPPI);

Certificate in Trade Finance Compliance;

6. Certificate for Documentary Credit Specialists;

v

7. Credit Certification; and
8. Treasury Certification.

UOB Indonesia continued to evolve its organisational structure
as part of our ongoing transformation. We have established a
transformation office unit dedicated to driving our efforts and
as part of keeping our colleagues informed of the changes we
are making, we conducted a series of roadshows and townhall
sessions.

Improved Training Facilities for Our Colleagues

As part of our efforts to foster a continuous learning culture, we
set up a new training centre in UOB Plaza in Jakarta to enhance
our colleagues’ training experience. Among other facilities, the
centre has dedicated rooms for e-learning, a simulation room for
assessment and a multi-function hall for training purposes. Our
colleagues also use the hall to promote well-being through a
series of health and wellness activities such as yoga, zumba, table
tennis and aikido organised by the UOB Indonesia Staff Club.

Leadership Development and Succession Planning

Leadership development is a key focus area. As part of our
ongoing efforts to build our bench strength, we offer distinctive
programmes to develop and to retain the best talents and
establish the next generation of leaders within UOB Indonesia.

One of our signature leadership development programmes
for our next generation of leaders is Leadership Right by You
(LRBY). The spirit of the programme is based on pencak silat
- an Indonesian martial art which reinforces honesty, ethics
and bravery as the core principles in leading our lives. Pencak
silat’s philosophy also represents the mindset and skills which
a caring and courageous leader should exhibit in guiding UOB
Indonesia colleagues. In 2018, LRBY was introduced to 110 First
Line Managers.

To keep our leaders abreast with the most recent leadership
and managerial trends, we also rolled out the Manager Leader
Programme. This programme enriches our leaders’ skillsets
through managerial tools and leadership insights. Through this
programme, we develop leaders with career coaching skills
that can help them in building effective teams. In 2018, 84
colleagues, comprising branch leaders and sales team leaders
completed the programme.

Other programmes we offered included the Managing
Millennials training programme which focused on improving
leaders’ abilities to manage different generations of
colleagues. Our leaders also completed the Leader as a Coach
Programme and the Executive Coaching Programme to assist
them in developing their leadership capabilities.

Grooming Young Talent

Our long-established UOB Management Associate (MA)
programme aims to attract high-calibre, early-career talents
from top universities across the country to take on roles in
UOB Indonesia. The MA participants were given overseas
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assignments to gain regional experience. Since the 18-month
long programme started in 2008, UOB Indonesia has hired 73
MA.

We consistently seek to improve our selection process
to ensure that we bring in the best talent to build up our
leadership pipeline. In 2018, we updated the selection criteria
for the MA programme with the development of a new MA
Success Profile — a set of key competencies developed with
inputs from senior leaders and high-performing MA alumni.
These key competencies listed in the MA Success Profile are
aligned to our UOB Leadership Strategise, Engage, Execute,
Develope (SEED) Competency Model and are used to assess the
suitability of each potential candidate.

As millennials relate to creative and interactive concepts, we
added game elements to our online MA selection assessment
for candidates applying for the 2019 programme.

Through our General Development Programme (GDP), we focus
on preparing our relationship managers and credit analysts for
future leadership roles. GDP is a 20-month long programme
in collaboration with the Indonesian Banking Development
Institute ./ Lembaga Pengembangan Perbankan Indonesia
(LPPI) to equip participants with deep knowledge about the
overall banking industry. In the programme, they also had
the opportunity to learn about the Bank’s business segments,
observe the Bank’s activities, participate in on-the-job training
and engage in projects at various work functions, while obtaining
a general banking and risk management certification. In 2018, 15
participants completed the programme and have been placed
in different job functions and 23 participants joined the on-the-
job training.

We appreciate potential of young talents and provide
opportunities for them through our apprentice programme,
designed for high school graduates and equivalent, as well as
D3 (Diploma 3) graduates with an interest in building a career
in banking. In 2018, 48 participants attended this programme.

Managing Employee Performance

UOB's performance management framework is the foundation
of our strong performance culture. Under this framework, the
performance management process is called PEAK, which stands
for Plan, Engage, Appraise and Keep Track. It is a meritocratic and
values-based approach to assess and to reward performance,
and to support career development.

To enhance our performance management process, we
added 360-degree feedback as an additional lens to the SEED
competencies and Values measures which we use to assess
performance. In 2018, all managing directors in the country
underwent the 360-degree feedback process to have a clearer
view of their strengths and weaknesses for self-improvement.
The 360-degree feedback will be extended to other cohorts in
2019.
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Making a Real Difference

Caring for Our Colleagues

In caring for the well-being of our colleagues, we offer a range
of benefits to encourage them to achieve better work-life
harmony. These benefits include annual leave, parental leave,
staff loans, special allowances and reimbursements, healthcare,
social security-equivalent contributions, life insurance and
accident insurance. The Bank also provides benefits through
various talent development programmes, such as international
and domestic project assignments, scholarships, and leadership
trainings.

UOB's remuneration philosophy is to provide risk-based
competitive remuneration to retain, to motivate and to
encourage colleagues’ to make decisions and to act in
accordance with UOB's values. Our remuneration packages
are designed to support organisational development, provide
competitive advantage for businesses and enable flexibility to
respond dynamic business requirements.

UOB Indonesias remuneration philosophy is governed in
accordance to the OJK regulation No.45/POJK.03/2015
concerning the Implementation of Governance in the Provision
of Remuneration for Commercial Banks.

Engaging Our Colleagues

We believe that strong engagement with our colleagues
leads to nurturing a positive working environment. In 2018,
we updated our new employee onboarding procedures and
processes to share the Bank’s vision, mission and values in an
induction programme called U-Bond (UOB Bankers Orientation
Day). This ensures that every new employee can appreciate the
Bank’s history, business philosophy, strategic focus and culture.

Aligned with UOB Indonesia’s philosophy and culture, we hosted
a range of engagement activities with our colleagues including:
Recognition Night, Staff Club Activities, Healthy Talk Show,
Employee’s Children Scholarship Programme, Happy Retirement,
Sport Championship, UOB Heartbeat, Homecoming Travel,
Takjil and Breakfasting activities, Indonesian Independence Day,
etc.

Our culture of appreciation and recognition culminates in the
prestigious CEO Award where one colleague is recognised
for their leadership in upholding the UOB values and their
consistency in delivering performance innovative and
continuous process improvements.

In 2018, UOB Indonesia received human resources-related
awards in three different categories at the 2018 SWA Magazine
HR Excellence Awards in collaboration with the FEB Ul
Management Institute. The award categories were ‘Learning
and Development’, ‘HR Technology’ with an A ranking, and ‘HR
Transformation’ with a BB ranking, and an award from the ABF
Retail Banking Awards 2018 in the ‘Employer Award of the Year’
category.



Grand Opening of UOBI Learning Centre Christmas Celebration

&
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Health Talk Show HR Excellence Award 2018

Improving our Human Resources practices

In 2018, we continued to develop our HR Technology, Global Employee Management System (GEMS). GEMS has enabled us to
have more effective employee management processes, such as organisation and job post management, employee administration,
employee learning and development, employee performance appraisals and payroll administration.

Diversity of Our People

We draw upon the diverse strengths, experiences and capabilities of our colleagues. This helps to enrich our knowledge and
appreciation of each other and the markets in which we operate. It also enables us to be sensitive to the needs of our customers
and to serve them more effectively. The composition of our colleagues’ diversity based on gender, age, rank, education, years of
service, and work function, are detailed as follows:
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Employee Composition by Gender

Employee Composition by Length of Service

Description 2018 2017 2016 Description 2018 2017 2016
Women 2,177 2,182 2,306 1years 910 759 523
Men 1,861 1,846 2,043 1- 4 years 1,120 1,251 1,664

10-14 years 431 425 456
Employee Composition by Age 15-19 years 371 338 349

Description 2018 2017 2016 »20 years 489 513 541
< 25 years old el 153 71 Total 4,038 4,028 4,349
25-29 years old 616 665 784
30-34 years old 866 886 1,006 Employee Composition by Function

Description 2018 2017 2016
3539 years old 72 7 766 h |p 1,312 1,352 1,409
Channels ' , ,
40-45 years old 745 711 738 e 335 357
Corporate
> 45 years old 738 669 664 Sup[;ort
Total 4,038 4,028 4,349 Global Markets 57 56 55
Retail 1,382 1,459 1,692
Employee Composition by Position Technology 560 542 564

Description 2018 2017 2016 And
Senior 159 128 121 Operations
Management Wholesale 294 284 272
Middle 359 292 273 Banking
Management Total 4,038 4,028 4,349
Junior 1,804 1,744 1,756
Management Employee Composition by Employment Type
Staff 1,716 1,864 2,198 Description 2018 2017 2016
Non Staff 0 0 1 Contract 220 277 323
Total 4,038 4,028 4,349 Permanent 3,818 3,751 4,026

Total 4,038 4,028 4,349
Employee Composition by Education Level To provide our colleagues with exposure to international best
Description 2018 2017 2016 practices, we do employ Foreign Workers / Tenaga Kerja Asing
== 258 277 (TKA). A cross-border employee exchange programme has been
Master and Doctoral > rolled out for temporary positions and for our colleagues to
Degree participate in specific projects. The experience and knowledge
Bachelor Degree 2,939 2,853 3,117 of TKAs is therefore able to be transferred to UOB Indonesia
§ colleagues.

To support the efforts of our colleagues, UOB Indonesia also

430 468 492 PP gues,
Others outsourced supporting roles in certain fields as permitted by
Total 4,038 4,028 4,349 the Ministry of Manpower and Transmigration as stipulated

in Regulation No. 19 of 2012, the Ministry of Manpower and
Transmigration Circular No. SE.04/MEN/VIII/2013 and POJK
No.9/POJK.03/2016. We also have in place policies and
procedures in line with government regulations regarding the
use of sub-contracted employees.
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Looking Ahead
UOB Indonesia will remain committed to develop a pool of principled and talented individuals, while empowering them to take
ownership of their careers. In 2019, the Bank’s human resources strategic objectives are as follows:
1. Developing an organisation ready for the future where our people capabilities support UOBI’s long-term business strategy and
plans;
2. Accelerating our talents’ career growth by placing them in different work functions in order to deepen their skills;
3. Establishing career-oriented learning and development programmes:
a. Strengthening employee capabilities and career pathways through UOB +|_Grow;
b. Developing a Banking Management Programme and Certification And providing Credit Certification;
c. Establishing Wholesale Banking career path programmes;
4. Improving the assessment of employee performance and development through the Performance Development Committee;
5. Improving our recruitment and learning journey:
a. Development of eRecruit feature on GEMS to ensure quality recruitment processes;
b. Offering operational learning opportunities via mobile devices; and

c. Implementing a digital-based training system to improve accessibility to development courses.

Public Seminar “Pension Plan” in

Management Together
with Labor Union Collaboration with SWA Magazine

Knowledge Transfer from Foreign Worker
(PFS and Digital Bank)

" -1_ ‘ ’ _. .
UOB Indonesia Leaders at Leadership by You
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Sales Award

Technology and Operations

With the rapid advances in innovation and technology, we
continue to pace our technology and digital investments to
provide our customers with a safer, smarter and simpler banking
experience. Our investments focus on building and maintaining
a robust technology platform, automating more business
processes and harnessing technology to develop innovative
products and services to serve our growing customer base.

In 2018, Technology and Operations implemented the following:
1. Loan Origination System - We started enhancing our loan
application system for Wholesale and Retail Banking to
cover more areas to be more automated and to reduce
processing time and increase quality control and monitoring.

2. Enhanced SWIFT system using Alliance Messaging Hub
(AMH) - Enhanced the SWIFT (Society for the Worldwide
Interbank Financial Telecommunication) messaging system
in line with regulatory requirements and to ensure more
efficient and automated business processes.

3. Customer Relationship Management (CRM) System for
Wholesale Banking - Developed a Wholesale Banking
CRM system to provide centralised source of industry
data, customer insights and prospective customer data.
This enables us to offer more relevant services based on
customer behaviour and to improve Relationship Manager
(RM) productivity through a digital sales support tool.

4. Enhancement of Cash Management System - Implemented
a series of initiatives to enhance our Cash Management
System, Liquidity Management and Consolidated Statement,
as well as increasing the availability of transaction services
to 24 hours, seven days a week.

5. Deployment of the National Payment Gateway (NPG) - This
initiative is also to support the government’s Programme.
The implementation of NPG was done smoothly and in
timely manner.

6. Technology Infrastructure Refresh - As the commitment
to ensure resiliency and robustness of our infrastructure,
UOB Indonesia continued to refresh its Information

CEO Award

Service Award

Technology (IT) infrastructure. There were several major
deployments, such as Core Banking System servers
replacement, remittance servers’ replacement, network
devices replacements.

Our Operations team continued to provide optimal support to
all of the business units including Wholesale Banking, Global
Markets and Retail Banking.

Wholesale and Global Market Operations

In 2018, Bank Indonesia launched a new Domestic Non-
Deliverable Forward (DNDF) product and UOB Indonesia has
been appointed as one of the few main banks to perform the
new product transactions. We established a new system to
support our DNDF product. The team supported the launch of
new products, such as Dealer Financing and Bill Purchase.

We also implemented a number of other improvements
including the automation of manual processes, such as Lalu
Lintas Devisa (LLD)/Flow of Foreign Exchange Report and
Laporan Harian Bank Umum (LHBU)/Commercial Bank Daily
Report. These improvements have increased the accuracy of
and efficiency in monitoring foreign exchange transactions. We
have also reduced the processing time significantly.

Our strong performance has been recognised in 2018, through
a number of awards:
1. The 2017 Straight-Through Processing (STP) Awards for STP
Rate message type (MT) 103 from Bank of New York;
2. The 2017 Elite Quality Recognition Awards for STP MT 202
rate of 99.99 per cent from JP Morgan Chase, New York;
3. Triple A Best small-medium enterprise (SME) Solutions
Award 2018 (in collaboration with Transaction Banking):
a. Best Supply Chain Finance Solution: PT Eurokars
Indonesia;
b. Best Cash Management Solution: Primantara Wisesa
Sejahtera and PT Travel Recommends Indonesia.
4. Triple A Best Industrial Solutions 2018 (in collaboration with
Transaction Banking):
a. Best Structured Trade Finance Solution
PT Hutama Karya;
b. Best Cash Management Solution: PT McConnell Dowell

Indonesia.

Award:

AT
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Retail Operations

Retail Operations supports Personal Financial Services
and Business Banking segments through its six operational
centres, including Retail Loan Operations, Appraisal and Loan
Administration, Channel Operations, Cards Operations and
Processing, Retail Operations Readiness and Contact Centre.

In 2018, our Retail Loan Operations centres improved processes
and work efficiencies in areas, such as credit assessments. The
Retail Operations Readiness Centre continued automating
processes to support reporting to regulators.

Our Contact Centre has maintained strong performance as
reflected through the award we achieved during the year. In
2018, we were recognised for second consecutive year at the
Exceptional Performance in Contact Centre Service Excellence
Award in the categories of Regular Banking and Regular Credit
Card. This was awarded by the Carre Centre for Customer
Satisfaction Loyalty and Service Excellence Magazine.

Board Supervision on Information Technology
Implementation

UOB Indonesia’s Information Technology Committee plays a
significant role in monitoring and supervising IT development
and implementation across the organisation. The President
Director is the Committee Chairman with the Technology
and Operations Director as the Committee Vice-Chairman,
supported by relevant Directors and Senior Management as
committee members. Regular meetings are conducted to
discuss relevant topics, to provide directions and to make

strategic or major decisions on IT matters.

The IT Committee has the following responsibilities:

1. To determine IT development priorities;

2. To approve IT development plans and budgets; and

3. To approve policies related to Information Technology and
IT Security.

2019 Information Technology Focus areas:

1. Risk management - A number of IT security initiatives will
support and strengthen IT monitoring and risk control. This
includes the plan to implement a Governance, Risk and
Compliance platform as well as the development of further
IT Security technologies, such as identity management,
end-point detection system;

2. Financial management - IT will focus on developing a
platform for financial reporting to strengthen financial
analysis, control and management, in order to generate
enhanced management reporting;
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3. Customer banking experience - The focus is to improving
the customer on-boarding experience and automating
processes. This includes enhancements to the card and
payment systems, enhancement and upgrade of the
digital channels, and Transaction Banking systems. In
addition, IT will provide infrastructure support to enable
strategic collaborations with financial technology (FinTech)
companies and third-party partnership to build a digital
ecosystem; and

4. Digital bank launch - Launch of the digital bank— the first
mobile-only digital bank tailored for specific customer
segments. It uses the latest technology and behavioural
insights to deepen customer engagement and offer a
different banking experience.

In support of our business growth, we will continue to

strengthen our IT infrastructure by carrying out the following

initiatives:

1. Network Redundancy Implementation - Network
Redundancy implementation will improve the Bank’s
IT infrastructure in order to ensure that our IT network
supports and contributes towards the sustainability of our
business operations;

2. IT Infrastructure Refresh - This initiative is an annual
work programme to renew infrastructure that is no longer
supported by major manufacturers. We will further virtualise
our IT infrastructure to reduce the need for physical
infrastructure and data centre space and to accelerate
server set-up, while maintaining levels of service excellence;

3. Work Environment Transformation - Employee productivity
will be improved through workplace tools such as the
expansion of our head office wireless network facilities,
enhancements to our internal email system and deployment
of mobile-based work tools; and

4. Information Security - We will continue to invest in the
latest IT security systems to protect our customers’ and the
Bank’s data to support the bank's further penetration into
the digital space. In addition, the bank will strengthen the
security at the system development phase, as the preventive
measure. Besides protection tools implementation, the team
continues to conduct initiatives to improve productivity.

In 2019, we will continue to improve the quality of our
operational services and support, reduce operational risks,
and improve automation. In addition, we will upgrade some
systems including Cash and Trade systems, Loan Origination
systems, Treasury systems, Regulatory Reporting systems. More
importantly, as part of our continued commitment to the
regulator, the bank will also onshore the required systems and
infrastructure, such as Treasury and SWIFT systems.



Financial Review

Comprehensive Analysis of Financial Performance

Statement of Profit or Loss and
Other Comprehensive Income

For the Year Ended

31 December

(in Billion Rupiah) 2018 2017
This financial review is prepared based on the financial Other operating expenses
statements of PT Bank UOB Indones.ia (UoB Indones[a) that Salaries and employees’
have been prepared and presented in accordance with the benefits (1,877) (1,638)
Indonesian Financial Accounting Standards issued by the o
Indonesian Financial Accounting Standards Board (DSAK). All General and administrative e 1107
information in the financial statements has been presented in a expenses .28 (1,107)
complete and truthful manner. Total other operating expenses (3,111) (2,745)
i 682 305
The Financial Statements of UOB Indonesia was audited Operating Income
by Public Accountant Office Purwantono, Sungkoro, and Non-operating income
Surja (mgmber' ﬁrms Of. Ernst & Young Glgbal Fimited), with Gain on sale of fixed assets
unmod|f|eq opinion, which sjtated that the.ﬂnanual statements and abandoned property 4 3
present fairly, in all material respects, in accordance with 24 1
Indonesian Financial Accounting Standards. Others — net
) Total Non-Operating Income 28 4
IStatement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income Before Tax Expense 710 309
ncome
Tax expense (199) (231)
Statement of Profit or Loss and For the Year Ended Income for The Year 511 8
Other Comprehensive Income 31 December
(in Billion Rupiah) 2018 2017 Other Comprehensive Income
Operating Income and Item that will not be
Expenses reclassified to profit or loss:
Interest income and expense Actuarial remeasurement of
contribution benefit plan 91 (75)
Interest income 7,319 7,268 I i P
ncome tax relating to
Interest expense (3.715) (3.757) components of other
Interest Income — Net 3,604 3,511 comprehensive income (23) 19
68 (56)
Other Operating Income Items that shall be reclassified
Administration fees and to profit or loss:
commissions — net 259 253 M ‘
ovement in respect of
Realised and unrealised gain fair-value change of
on securities sold and from available-for-sale financial (199) 133
changes in the fair value of 119 184 investment
trading securities - net Income tax related to
Gain from foreign currency component of other
transactions 269 167 comprehensive income 50 (33)
Others — net 209 190 (150) 100
Total Other Operating Income Other comprehensive income
— net 856 794 for the current year - net of
tax (81) 43
(Provision for) reversal .
of impairment losses Total Comprehensive Income
for The Year 430 121
Financial assets (662) (1.25¢6)
Foreclosed assets (5) 1
Total provision for impairment
losses (667) (1,255)
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Interest Income

Interest income is derived from loans, financial investments,
receivables on securities purchased with agreements to resell,
placements with Bank Indonesia and other banks, as well as
current accounts with Bank Indonesia and other banks.

For the Year Ended

Interest Income 31 December

(in Billion Rupiah)
2018 2017

Loans 6,070 6,146
Financial investments 1,041 961
Receivables on securities

purchased with agreements

to resell 146 121
Placements with Bank Indonesia

and other banks 52 29
Current accounts with Bank

Indonesia and other banks 10 1
Total 7,319 7,268

Interest income from loans was the largest contributor with a
portion of 82.9 per cent of the total interest income.

Interest income in 2018 amounting to IDR7,319 billion, increased
by 0.7 per cent or IDR51 billion compared to IDR7,268 billion in
2017.

The increase in interest income was due to an increase in
interest income from financial investments, receivables on
securities purchased with agreements to resell, and placements
with Bank Indonesia and other banks.

1. Interest income from financial investments increased by 8.3
per cent or IDR8O billion compared to the previous year.

2. Interest income from receivables on securities purchased
with agreements to resell increased by 20.7 per cent or
IDR25 billion compared to the previous year.

3. Interest income from placements with Bank Indonesia and
other banks increased by 793 per cent or IDR23 billion
compared to the previous year.

The increase in Interest income from financial investments was
due to an increase in amount of financial investments by 4.3 per
cent or IDR641 billion compared to the previous year.

The increase in Interest income from receivables on securities
purchased with agreements to resell was due to an increase in
effective interest rate for receivables on securities purchased
with agreements to resell for Rupiah ranged between 5.95 per
cent - 7.30 per cent in 2018, compared to 4.44 per cent - 4.59
per cent in 2017.

The increase in interest income from placements with Bank
Indonesia and other banks was due to a increase in average
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interest rates for placement with Bank Indonesia and other

banks, are as follows:

1. The average interest rate for placement with Bank Indonesia
and other banks in Rupiah, in 2018 was 4.35 per cent - 5.69
per cent and in 2017 was 3.87 per cent - 5.13 per cent.

2. The average interest rate for placement with Bank Indonesia
and other banks in foreign currency, in 2018 was 0.49 per cent
- 2.02 per cent and in 2017 was 0.49 per cent - 1.71 per cent.

However, interest income from loans decreased by 1.2 per cent
or IDR76 billion compared to the previous year, from IDR6,146
billion in 2017 to IDR6,070 billion in 2018.

The decrease was due to a decrease in average contractual
interest rates for loans in Rupiah. The average contractual
interest rate for loans in Rupiah, in 2018 was 10.45 per cent
and in 2017 was 10.73 per cent, decreased by 0.28 per cent. The
loan portfolio in 2018 is dominated in Rupiah with a portion of
72.2 per cent of the total loan portfolio.

Interest Expense

Interest expense of UOB Indonesia was incurred on time
deposits, demand deposits, saving deposits, debt securities
issued, premium on government guarantee, deposits and
borrowing from other banks, and liabilities on securities sold
under repurchase agreements.

Interest Expense Year Ended 31 December

(in Billion Rupiah) 2018 2017
Time deposits 2,429 2,563
Demand deposits 367 407
Debt securities issued 326 305
Saving deposits 287 273
Premium on Government

guarantee 146 155
Deposits and borrowings from

other banks 135 43
Liabilities on securities sold

under repurchase agreements 25 "
Total 3,715 3,757

Interest expense of UOB Indonesia in 2017 was dominated by
customer deposits in the form of time deposits with a portion
of 65.4 per cent of the total interest expense.

Interest expense in 2018 was IDR3,715 billion, decreased by
11 per cent or IDR42 billion compared to IDR3,757 billion in 2017.

The decrease in interest expense was mainly due to a decrease

in interest expense for time deposits and demand deposits.

1. Interest expense for time deposits decreased by 5.2 per cent
or IDR134 billion compared to the previous year.

2. Interest expense for demand deposits decreased by 9.8 per
cent or IDR40 billion compared to the previous year.



The decrease was due to a decrease in the average interest
rate for time deposits and demand deposits in Rupiah, are as
follows:

1. The average interest rate for time deposits in Rupiah, in 2018
was 6.24 per cent and in 2017 was 6.59 per cent, decreased
by 0.35 per cent, Time deposit balance was dominated in
Rupiah with a portion of 76.6 per cent of the total balance
of time deposits.

2. The average interest rate for demand deposits in Rupiah,
in 2018 was 3.33 per cent and in 2017 was 3.86 per cent,
decreased by 0.53 per cent, The Bank's demand deposits
balance was dominated in Rupiah with a portion of 93.0 per
cent of the total balance of demand deposits.

Other Operating Income

For the Year Ended
Other Operating Income 31 December
(in Billion Rupiah)

2018 2017

Administration fees and

commissions — net 259 253
Realised and unrealised gain

on securities sold and from

changes in fair value of

trading securities — net 119 184
Gain from foreign currency

transactions 269 167
Others — net 209 190
Total 856 794

Other operating income in 2018 was IDR856 billion, increased
by 7.8 per cent or IDR62 billion, compared to IDR794 billion in
2017.

The increase in other operating income was mainly due to gain
from foreign currency transactions that increased by 611 per
cent or IDR102 billion, from IDR167 billion in 2017 to IDR269
billion in 2018.

Operating Expenses

Operating expenses consists of provision for impairment losses,
salaries and employees’ benefits, and general and administrative
expenses.

For the Year Ended

Operational Expenses 31 December

(in Billion Rupiah)

2018 2017
(Provision for) reversal of
impairment losses
Financial assets (662) (1,256)
Foreclosed assets ©) 1
Total Provision for Impairment
Losses (667) (1,255)
Other Operating Expenses
Salaries and employees’
benefits (1,877) (1,638)
General and administrative
expenses (1,234) (1,107)
Total Other Operating Expenses (3.111) (2,745)
Total (3,778) (4,000)

The total operating expenses in 2018 was IDR3,778 billion,
decreased by 5.6 per cent or IDR222 billion, compared to
IDR4,000 billion in 2017.

The decrease in the total operating expenses was mainly due
to the decrease of impairment losses on financial assets by
47.3 per cent or IDR594 billion, from IDR1,256 billion in 2017 to
IDR662 billion in 2018. The decrease was in line with the quality
improvement of financial assets owned by the Bank. In addition,
the decrease was a result of the sale of loans to related parties
in 2018.

However, there was an increase in salaries and employees’
benefits, and general and administrative expenses.

Salaries and employees’ benefits increased by 14.6 per cent or
IDR239 billion, from IDR1,638 billion in 2017 to IDR1,877 billion
in 2018.

The increase in salaries in employees’ benefits was mainly due
to an increase in salaries, wages, and education and training
expenses.

General and administrative expenses increased by 11.5 per cent

or IDR127 billion, from IDR1,107 billion in 2017 to IDR1,234 billion
in 2018.
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The increase in general and administrative expenses was mainly
due to an increase in professional fees by 47.6 per cent or IDR30
billion, an increase in depreciation of fixed assets by 14.6 per
cent or IDR25 billion due to the addition of fixed assets by 73.4
per cent or IDR116 billion, and an increase in advertising and
promotion expenses by 16.7 per cent or IDR22 billion.

Income Before Tax Expense

As at 31 December 2018, UOB Indonesia booked Income Before
Tax Expenses at IDR710 billion, which was 230 per cent of what
we achieved in the previous year.

The increase in income before tax expense was due to an
increase in net operating income, other operating income, and
non-operating income. In addition, The increase was due to an
decrease in provision for impairment losses.

Tax Expense
Tax expense decreased by 13.9 per cent or IDR32 billion, from
IDR231 billion in 2017 to IDR199 billion in 2018.

Income for the Year

Income for the year of UOB Indonesia in 2018 was IDR511
billion, significantly increased by 555.1 per cent or IDR433 billion
compared to IDR78 billion in 2017.

The significant increase in income for the year was due to
decrease on impairment losses on financial assets, as described
above in the ‘Operating Expenses’ section.

Comprehensive Income for the Year

Comprehensive income for the year increased by 255.4 per cent
or IDR309 billion, from IDR121 billion in 2017 to IDR430 billion
in 2018.
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Statement of Financial Position

Assets 31 December
(in Billion Rupiah) 2018 2017
Cash 519 398
Current accounts with

Bank Indonesia 6,036 6,072
Current accounts with Other

Banks 680 2,453
Placements with Bank Indonesia

and Other Banks 2,204 3,417
Trading securities 344 1,118
Financial investments - net 15,588 14,951
Derivatives receivable 668 146
Loans - net 72,308 61 ,998
Receivables on securities

purchased with agreements

to resell 907 1,015
Acceptances

Receivables - net 207S 1,826
Deferred tax assets - net 136 95
Fixed assets — book value 1,118 1,063
Other assets - net 993 692
Total 103,676 95,244

The majority of UOB Indonesia’s assets were derived from net
loans with a portion of 69.7 per cent of total assets.

Total assets of UOB Indonesia increased by 89 per cent or
IDR8,432 billion, from IDR95,244 billion in 2017 to IDR103,676
billion in 2018. This increase was mainly due to an increase in
net loans by 16.6 per cent or IDR10,310 billion.

However, there were decrease in current accounts with other
banks, and placements with Bank Indonesia and other banks.

Current Assets

Current assets consists of cash, current accounts with Bank
Indonesia, current accounts with other banks, placements with
Bank Indonesia and other banks, trading securities, financial
investments, derivative receivables, loans, receivables on
securities purchased with agreements to resell, and acceptances
receivable.

Current assets of UOB Indonesia in 2018 was IDR101,429 billion,
increased by 8.6 per cent or IDR8,035 billion compared to
IDR93,394 billion in 2017. This increase was mainly due to an
increase in net loans.

Non-Current Assets
Non-current assets consists of Deferred tax assets, fixed assets,
and other assets.



Non-current assets of UOB Indonesia in 2018 was IDR2,247
billion, increased by 21.5 per cent or IDR397 billion compared
to IDR1,850 billion in 2017. This was due to an increase in net
deferred tax assets by 43.2 per cent or IDR41 billion, increase in
fixed assets by 5.2 per cent or IDR55 billion, and an increase in
net other assets by 43.5 per cent or IDR301 billion.

Loans

Net loans of UOB Indonesia in 2018 was IDR72,308 billion,
increased by 16.6 per cent or IDR10,310 billion compared to
IDR61,998 billion in 2017.

Loan portfolio in 2018 was IDR73,681 billion, increased by 16.9
per cent or IDR10,650 billion compared to IDR63,031 billion in
2017.

The loan portfolio has the largest contribution to UOB
Indonesia’s total assets by 711 per cent. The biggest exposure
was working capital loan with a proportion of 53.5 per cent of
the total loan portfolio.

The following is the loans portfolio based on loans type:

31 December

Loans

(in Billion Rupiah) 2018 2017
Working capital 39,452 31,323
Investment 9,645 12,047
Housing 5,465 4,677
Multi-purpose 1,866 1,966
Credit card 2,082 1,654
Motor vehicles 27 24
Others 15,144 11,340
Total 73,681 63,031

The following is loans portfolio based on loans segmentation:

Segmentation 31 December

(in Billion Rupiah) 2018 2017

Commercial Banking 24,753 20,448
Corporate Banking 18,077 15,801
Business Banking 15,235 14,972
Personal Financial Services 9,617 8,532
Financial Institution 5,999 3,278
Total 73,681 63,031

Based on business segmentation, increase in loans was mainly
due to an increase in loans portfolio of Commercial Banking
segment by 21.1 per cent or IDR4,305 billion, from IDR20,448
billion in 2017 to IDR24,753 billion in 2018. In addition, loans
portfolio of other segments was also increasing.

The following is loans portfolio based on currency:

31 December

Loans

(in Billion Rupiah) 2018 2017
Rupiah 53,168 45,919
Foreign currency 20,513 17,112
Total 73,681 63,031

The majority of the loans were derived from loans denominated
in Rupiah with portion of 72.2 per cent of the total loan

portfolio.

In 2018, the loan portfolio denominated in Rupiah increased by
15.8 per cent or IDR7,249 billion, from IDR45,919 billion in 2017

to IDR53,168 billion in 2018.

In 2018, the loan portfolio in foreign currencies also

increased

by 199 per cent or IDR3,401 billion, from IDR17112 billion in 2017

to IDR20,513 billion in 2018.

The following is loans portfolio based on economic sector:

Economic Sector

31 December

(in Billion Rupiah) 2018 2017
Processing industry 20,410 16,305
Wholesale and retail 17,606 16,442
Household 9,628 8,523
Financial intermediaries 6,040 3,362
Agriculture, hunting and

forestry 4,605 4,060
Real estate and business service 4,409 4,074
Construction 3,740 2,394
Accommodation provider 2,340 2,614
Mining and excavation 2,164 1,246
Transportation, warehousing,

and communication 1,924 3,206
Electricity, water and gas 442 428
Social service 194 160
Educational service 53 55
Fishery 46 48
Health service 45 86
Personal service 4 3
Others 31 25
Total 73,681 63,031

Loans portfolio are dominated by the processing industry and
the wholesale and retail household with a portion of 27.7 per
cent and 23.9 per cent respectively of the total loan portfolio.
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Based on the economic sector, the increase in the loan portfolio
was mainly due to an increase in the loan portfolio from the
processing industry by 25.2 per cent or IDR4,105 billion, from
IDR16,305 billion in 2017 to IDR20,410 billion in 2018.

Allowance for impairment losses on loans in 2018 was IDR1,373
billion, increased by 32.9 per cent or IDR340 billion compared
to IDR1,033 billion in 2017.

Allowance for Impairment 31 December

Losses on Loans

(in Billion Rupiah) 2018 2017
Beginning balance 1,033 1,090
Provision during the year 647 1,260
Recovery of loans previously

written-off 122 108
Loans written-off during the

year (314) (774)
Foreign exchange translation 19 )
Settlement of allowance

related to loans sold (134) (649)
Ending Balance 1,373 1,033

The Bank sold loans with the following details:

» On 3 December 2018, the net proceeds obtained by UOB
Indonesia from the sale of loans amounted to IDR291 billion.

e On 2 February 2018, the net proceeds obtained by UOB
Indonesia from the sale of loans amounted to IDR346 billion
and SGD3,497,367 (full amount).

e On 27 December 2017, the net proceeds obtained by UOB
Indonesia from the sale of loans amounted to IDR1,974
billion and USD41,041,102 (full amount).

The sale of loans was conducted at book value after considering
allowance for impairment losses of loan, the Bank does not
book gain or loss on sale of loans. The transfer of the rights was
effective on the transaction date.

Net Financial Investments

Net financial investments in 2018 increased by 4.3 per cent or
IDR637 billion, from IDR14,951 billion in 2017 to IDR15,588 billion
in 2018.

The increase in financial investments was mainly due to an
increase in Government Bonds and State Treasury Notes, as
well as investments in Certificates of Bank Indonesia in 2018.

1. Investments in Government Bonds increased by 999 per
cent or IDR2,677 billion from IDR2,680 billion in 2017 to
IDR5,357 billion in 2018;

2. Investments in State Treasury Notes increased by 5691
per cent or IDR1,565 billion from IDR275 billion in 2017 to
IDR1,840 billion in 2018; and

3. Investments in Certificates of Bank Indonesia in 2018 was
IDR1,191 billion.
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Otherwise, investments in Certificate Deposit of Bank Indonesia
decreased by 95.2 per cent or IDR5 billion from IDR5,371
billion in 2017 to IDR260 billion in 2018.

Placement on financial investments was a temporary placement
to channel the excess liquidity of the Bank.

31 December

Liabilities
(in Billion Rupiah) 2018 2017
Current liabilities 148 149
Deposits 77,322 75,047
Demand deposits 11,401 11,258
Saving deposits 16,231 14,850
Time deposits 49,690 48,939
Deposits from other banks 3,142 2,315
Interests payable 248 226
Taxes payable 85 65
Derivatives payable 619 106
Acceptance payable 2,203 1,843
Liabilities on securities sold
under repurchase agreements
Borrowings 580 -
Liabilities for employees’ 3,200 333
benefits
Debts securities issued - net 278 328
Other liabilities 3,791 3,389
683 496
Total 92,299 84,297

The majority of UOB Indonesias liabilities were derived from
deposits from non-bank customers with a portion of 83.8 per
cent of total liabilities.

Total liabilities of UOB Indonesia increased by 9.5 per cent or
IDR8,002 billion, from Rp84,297 billion in 2017 to IDR92,299
billion in 2018.

The increase was mainly due to an increase in borrowings by
861.0 per cent or IDR2,867 billion. In addition, there was an
increase in Saving Deposits from customer by 9.3 per cent or
IDR1,381 billion.

Customer Deposits

Customer deposits consist of demand deposits, saving deposits,
and time deposits. Deposits from customers of UOB Indonesia
are dominated by time deposits with a portion of 64.3 per cent
of total customer deposits.

Customer deposits increased by 3.0 per cent or IDR2,275 billion,

from IDR75,047 billion in 2017 to IDR77,322 billion in 2018.

1. Saving Deposits increased by 9.3 per cent or IDR1,381 billion,
from IDR14,850 billion in 2017 to IDR16,231 billion in 2018;



2. Time Deposits increased by 1.5 per cent or Rp751 billion,
from IDR48,939 billion in 2017 to IDR49,690 billion in 2018;

3. Demand Deposits increased by 1.3 per cent or Rp143 billion,
from IDR11,258 billion in 2017 to IDR11,401 billion in 2018.

Borrowings
Borrowings significantly increased by 861.0 per cent or IDR2,867
billion, from IDR333 billion in 2017 to IDR3,200 billion in 2018.

31 December
2018 2017

Borrowings
(in Billion Rupiah)

Third parties
Rupiah
PT Bank ICBC Indonesia 758 -
Foreign Currencies
PT Bank Resona Perdania 352 333
PT Bank ICBC Indonesia 5 -
Related Parties
Foreign currencies
United Overseas Bank Ltd,
Singapore

Total

2,085 -
3,200 333

Debt Securities Issued
Debt securities issued increased by 11.9 per cent or IDR402
billion, from IDR3,389 billion in 2017 to IDR3,791 billion in 2018.

The increase occurred due to the Bank issued Bank UOB
Indonesia Senior Debt Shelf Offering | Phase Il Year 2018
totalling IDR1,000 billion consists of Bonds Series A amounting
to IDR862 billion, Series B amounting to IDR83 billion, and
Series C amounting to IDR55 billion with fixed interest rate
of 615 per cent, 740 per cent, and 7.65 per cent, respectively,
which is repayable every three months and will mature on
3 June 2019, 23 May 2021, and 23 May 2023, respectively.

UOB Indonesia has paid the principal on Bonds | Bank UOB
Indonesia in 2015 Series B with a nominal value IDR600 billion,
respectively which matured on 1 April 2018.

31 December

Equity
(in Billion Rupiah) 2018 2017
Share capital 2,388 2,388
Additional paid-in capital — net 2,107 2,107
Other comprehensive income (157) (76)
Retained earnings
Appropriated 112 112
Unappropriated 6,927 6,416
Total 11,377 10,947

Total equity of UOB Indonesia increased by 3.9 per cent or
IDR430 billion, from IDR10,947 billion in 2017 to IDR11,377 billion
in 2018, The increase in total equity is in line with the increase
in income for the year.

In 2018, there was no additional capital and dividend payment.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies or processes
in 2018 and 2017.

The Bank'’s policy is to maintain a healthy capital structure in
order to secure access to finance at a reasonable cost.

Statement of Cash Flows

The Statement of Cash Flows is classified on the basis of
operating, investing, and financing activities.

Cash and cash equivalents consists of cash, current accounts
with Bank Indonesia and current accounts with other banks,
placements with Bank Indonesia and other banks, and financial
investments, maturing within three months or less from the
acquisition date provided they are not used as collateral for
borrowings nor restricted.
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For the Year Ended
Cash Flows 31 December
(in Billion Rupiah)
2018 2017
Net cash (used in)/provided by
operating activities (6,881) 5,444
Net cash used in investing
activities (2,218) (3,550)
Net cash provided by financing
activities 3,829 192
Net increase (decrease) in cash
and cash equivalents (5,270) 2,086
Net effect on exchange rate on
cash and cash equivalents 160 95
Cash and cash equivalents at
the beginning of year 14,809 12,627
Cash and cash equivalents at
9,699 14,808

end of year

Net Cash (Used in)/Provided by Operating Activities
Net cash used in operating activities increased by 226.4 per
cent or IDR12,325 billion.

Cash out-flows from operating activities are used for interest
payments, payment of operating expenses, payment of income
taxes, and increase in loans.

Net Cash Used in Investing Activities

Net cash used in investing activities decreased by 37.5 per cent
or IDR1,332 billion, from IDR3,550 billion in 2017 to IDR2,218
billion in 2018. This decrease was due to a decrease in the
purchase of financial investment in 2018 compared to 2017.

Cash usage for investing activities consists of purchase of
financial investments and acquisitions of fixed assets.

Net Cash Provided by Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities increased by 1894.3
per cent or IDR3,637 billion, from IDR192 billion in 2017 to
IDR3,829 billion in 2018.

The increase in cash in-flows from financing activities was due
to the receipt from borrowings amounting to IDR3,200 billion
and proceeds from issuing of Bank UOB Indonesia Senior Debt
Shelf Offering | Phase Il Year 2018 totalling IDR1,000 billion in
2018.
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Financial Ratios

31 December

Financial Ratios

2018 2017
Capital adequacy ratio 15.37% 17.08%
Non-performing loans (NPL) —
gross 1.42% 1.09%
Non-performing loans (NPL) — net
Return on assets (ROA) 0.89% 0.93%
Return on equity (ROE) 0.71% 0.32%
Net interest margin (NIM) 4.61% 0.70%
Operating expense to operating 3.79% 3.85%
income
Loans to deposit ratio (LDR) 97.08% 97.81%
Minimum statutory reserves (GWM) 93.04% 83.57%
Rupiah
Primary statutory reserves 6.60% 6.78%
Secondary statutory reserve - 19.48%
Macroprudential liquidity 18.81% -
buffer*
Macroprudential 87.64% -
intermediation ratio ** 8.10% 8.18%
Foreign currency
Net open position (NOP) 8.13% 2.22%

Aggregate

*  Asof 16 July 2018, based on PBI No,20/4/PBI./2018 dated 29 March 2018, the term
GWM Secondary changed to PLM (Macroprudential Liquidity Buffer)

** As of 16 July 2018, based on PBI No,20/4/PBI./2018 dated 29 March 2018, the term
LFR GWM changed to RIM (Macroprudential Intermediation Ratio)

Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR)
In 2018, Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) decreased by 1.71 per
cent, from 17.08 per cent in 2017 to 15.37 per cent in 2018.

The required minimum capital in accordance with the risk
profile is 9.00 per cent of the RWA.

In 2018 and 2017, the Bank’s Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) is
computed in accordance with POJK No. 34/POJK.03/2016
dated 22 September 2016 and is computed in accordance with
Bl Regulation No. 14/18/PB|/2012 dated 28 November 2012 and
Bl regulation No. 15/12/PBI/2013 dated 12 December 2013.

Non-Performing Loans (NPL)
In 2018, the gross NPL ratio increased by 0.33 per cent, from 1.09
per cent in 2017 to 1.42 per cent in 2018.

Otherwise, the net NPL ratio decreased by 0.04 per cent, from
0.93 per cent in 2017 to 0.89 per cent of the total loans in 2018.

Net NPL ratio is calculated in accordance with Bank Indonesia
Regulation No.15/2/PBI/2013 dated 20 May 2013, the maximum
net NPL ratio is 5 per cent of a Bank’s total loans.



The Net NPL Net ratio showed good performance since it was
still below the maximum of five per cent required by Bank
Indonesia, as well as it reflects UOB Indonesia’s commitment
to manage credit risk by continuously implementing banking
prudent principle.

Non-Performing Loans (NPL) amounted to IDR1,046 billion and
IDR685 billion in 2018 and 2017, respectively.

Return on Assets (ROA)
In 2018, Return on Assets (ROA) increased by 0.39 per cent, from
0.32 per cent in 2017 to 0.71 per cent in 2018.

The increase in ROA was due to an increase in income before
tax expense by 129.8 per cent or IDR401 billion.

Return on Equity (ROE)
In 2018, Return on Equity (ROE) increased by 3.91 per cent, from
0.70 per cent in 2017 to 4.61 per cent in 2018.

The increase in ROE was due to the increase in income for the
year by 555.1 per cent or IDR433 billion.

Net Interest Margin (NIM)
Net Interest Margin (NIM) in 2018 and 2017 were 3.79 per cent
and 3.85 per cent respectively, decreased by 0.06 per cent.

The decrease in NIM was due to an increase in earning assets
owned by the Bank.

Operating Expense to Operating Income (BOPO)
BOPO ratio decreased by 0.73 per cent to 97.08 per cent in 2018
compared to 2017 by 97.81 per cent.

The decrease in BOPO was due to the decrease in the provision
for impairment losses on financial assets. In addition, the
decrease in BOPO was also due to an increase in net interest
income and other operating income.

Loans to Deposit Ratio (LDR)

Loan to Deposit Ratio (LDR), which identifies the extent to
which the Bank’s loans are funded by customer’s deposits was
recorded at 93.04 per cent in 2018, increased by 9.47 per cent
compared to 83.57 per cent in 2017.

The increase in LDR was due to an increase in the loan portfolio
by 16.9 per cent or IDR10.650 billion.

UOB Indonesia will continuously maintain the LDR in a
soundness range.

Minimum Statutory Reserves (GWM)

UOB Indonesia is required to maintain minimum statutory reserves
(GWM) in rupiah for conventional banking and statutory reserves
in foreign currencies for foreign exchange transactions.

Primary Minimum Statutory Reserve is a minimum reserve that
should be maintained by the Bank in Current Accounts with
Bank Indonesia. Secondary Minimum Statutory Reserve is the
minimum reserves that should be maintained by the Bank,
comprised of Certificates of Bank Indonesia (SBI), Certificates
Deposit of Bank Indonesia (SDBI), Government Debenture Debt
(SUN).

Macroprudential liquidity buffer is the minimum liquidity
reserve in Rupiah that the Bank is required to maintain in form
of the percentage of treasury bonds over third party fund in
Rupiah.

Macroprudential Intermediation Ratio is resulted from
comparison of loan and corporate bonds owned by the Bank
towards third party fund in form of current account, savings
and deposits (excluded other banks) and bonds issued by the
Bank.

UOB Indonesias GWM ratios as of 31 December 2018, complies

with Bank Indonesia Regulation No. 20/3/PBI/2018 dated 29

March 2018 regarding Minimum Reserve Requirement in Rupiah

and Foreign Currency For Conventional Bank and Board Member

of Governor Regulation (PADG) No. 20/10/PADG./2018 dated

31 May 2018 which have been further amended with PADG

No. 20/30/PADG/2018 dated 30 November 2018 regarding

Minimum Reserve Requirement in Rupiah and Foreign Currency

For Conventional Bank. Parameter of required GWM:

a. For GWM Rupiah determined at 6.50 per cent, fulfilled in
daily basis of 3.50 per cent and in average basis for certain
reporting period of 3.00 per cent.

b. For GWM foreign currencies is at 8.00 per cent, fulfilled in
daily basis of 6.00 per cent and in average basis for certain
reporting period of 2.00 per cent.

UOB Indonesias Macroprudential Intermediation Ratio and
Macroprudential Liquidity Buffer as of 31 December 2018 are
complies with Bank Indonesia Regulation No. 20/4/PBI/2018
dated 29 March 2018 regarding Macroprudential Intermediation
Ratio and Macroprudential Liquidity Buffer For Conventional
Bank and Board Member of Governor Regulation No. 20/11/
PADG/2018 dated 31 May 2018 regarding Macroprudential
Intermediation Ratio and Macroprudential Liquidity Buffer For
Conventional Bank.

UOB Indonesia's GWM ratios as of 31 December 2017, complies

with Bank Indonesia Regulation No. 19/6/PBI/2017 dated

17 April 2017 regarding The Fifth amended to Bank Indonesia

Regulation No. 15/15/PBl/2013 dated 24 December 2013

regarding Minimum Reserve Requirement in Rupiah and Foreign

Currency For Conventional Bank.

1. Primary GWM for Rupiah Currency is set at 6.50 per cent
from total third party funds in Rupiah;

2. Secondary GWM is set at 4.00 per cent from total third
party funds in Rupiah;

3. GWM in foreign currency is set at 8.00 per cent from total
third party funds in foreign currency.
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Net Open Position (NOP)

In accordance with Bl regulation concerning NOP as amended
by Bl Regulation No. 6/20/PBI/2004 on 15 July 2004 and as
further amended by Bl Regulation No. 17/5/PBI/2015 dated
29 May 2015, the maximum NOP of banks should be 20 per
cent of capital. NOP represents an absolute amount arising
from the differences between the assets and liabilities in
foreign currencies in the statements of financial position and
administrative accounts. The NOP of the Bank as of 31 December
2018 and 2017 is in compliance with Bl regulations, i.e. 813 per
cent and 2.22 per cent, respectively.

Legal Lending Limit (BMPK)

In 2018 and 2017, UOB Indonesia is in compliance with the legal
lending limit (BMPK) regulations, both for the related and non-
related party borrowers.

Capital Expenditure

Material Bonds and Investment on Capital Goods

Total capital expenditure increased by 73.0 per cent or IDR116
billion, from IDR159 billion in 2017 to IDR275 billion in 2018.
This increase was due to additional of infrastructure and office
equipments.

Investment on capital expenditure is used to develop
information technology infrastructure, addition of office
equipments for UOB Indonesia’s operational needs.

31 December
2018 2017

Addition of Fixed Assets
(in Billion Rupiah)

Addition through purchase of

fixed assets 257 146
Addition of fixed assets

through reclassification

construction in progress 18 13

Total 275 159

Other Financial Information

Target Achievement of 2018 compared with Bank
Business Plan (RBB) 2018

NPBT in 2018 was recorded at IDR710 billion, which was 94.7 per
cent achievement of the budget. This was mostly contributed
by higher NII by 10.2 per cent vs budget driven by higher loan
balance by IDR3.8 trillion or 5.5 per cent, while higher expenses
as the bank focused to invest in IT, build talent and customer
experience.
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Total assets in 2018 was recorded at IDR103,676 billion, or
97.6 per cent of the target. The total loans were recorded at
IDR73,681 billion or 105.5 per cent of the target, and NPL was at
1.42 per cent.

Total liabilities in 2018 was 95.9 per cent of the target, driven
by lower third party funds (99.8 per cent achievement) and
securities issued (42.3 per cent achievement), Loans to Deposit
ratio (LDR) was at 93.04 per cent.

Capital adequacy ratio (CAR) was at 1537 or 939 per cent
achievement of the target.

Financial Projection of 2019 in accordance with Bank
Business Plan (RBB) 2019

2019 is the year of the UOB customers, a year of focus on
customers which is key part of long term strategic pillars &
priorities of UOB Indonesia for performance & excellence. Loan
growth is projected to increase by 11to 12 per cent and deposits
growth by 10 to 14 per cent. The focus of deposit growth is on
low cost fund (current account and saving account), CASA mix
is projected at 41 per cent and gross NPL is at the level of 2.3
per cent.

In addition, UOB Indonesia will also focus on profitability growth
while in an investment mode. UOB Indonesia will focus to
increase loan growth, low-cost fund (CASA), fee based income and
managing NIM. CAR is projected at 15.8 per cent in 2019.

Capital Policy

Capital Structure

The primary objective of UOB Indonesia’s capital management
is to ensure that it maintains healthy capital ratios in order to
support its business and maximise shareholders value.

UOB Indonesia manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it, in light of changes in economic conditions. In
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, UOB Indonesia
may adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, issue new
shares or raise debt financing.

Material Information on Investment, Expansion,
Divestment, Acquisition or Debt/Capital Restructuring
Throughout 2018, UOB Indonesia did not conduct any material
transaction or activities related to investment, expansion,
divestment, or acquisition.

Information of Utilisation of Public Offering Proceeds

In 2018, UOB Indonesia has conducted public offering of
Senior Debt UOB Indonesia | Phase Il year 2018. The issuance of
IDR1 trillion was aimed to increase productive assets and
support UOB Indonesia’s business expansion.



Impact of Market Interest Rate Movement to Bank’s
Performance

In order to maintain domestic economic stability amidst
unfavorable global economic situation including Fed Fund
Rate (FFR) hike, worsening geo political and trade tension
and propagation risk triggered by economic turmoil in some
emerging countries, Bank Indonesia increased Bl 7-Day Reverse
Repo (BI7DRR) by 175bps from 4.25 per cent to 6.00 per cent per
cent at the end of 2018.

BI7DRR and FFR basically are the reference rate of Indonesia
banking Industry, that directly and indirectly affects the
movement of loan and deposit rate.

In order to mitigate the interest rate risk in 2018, Bank has
adjusted the interest rate in accordance to the movement
of market interest rate. Furthermore, UOB Indonesia has
consistently managed its rate sensitive assets and liabilities
to align with market rate movement and bank’s risk appetite.
System, Policy and limits are collaboratively set to aim with a
precautious monitoring of interest rate risk exposure and to be
regularly reviewed.

Impact of Change of Laws on Bank Performance
The change of laws did not give any significant impact to UOB
Indonesia.

Accounting Standards Issued but not yet Effective

The standards and interpretations that are issued by the

Indonesian Financial Accounting Standards Board (DSAK),

but not yet effective for current year financial statements

are disclosed below. UOB Indonesia intends to adopt these
standards, if applicable, when they become effective.

1. SFAS No. 71: Financial Instruments, adopted from IFRS 9,
effective 1January 2020 with earlier application is permitted;

2. SFAS No. 72: Revenue from Contracts with Customers,
adopted from IFRS 15, effective 1 January 2020 with earlier
application is permitted;

3. SFAS No. 73: Leases, adopted from IFRS 16, effective
1January 2020 with earlier application is permitted, but not
before an entity applies SFAS 72: Revenue from Contracts
with Customers;

4. Amendments to SFAS No. 24: Employee Benefits regarding
Amendments, Kurtailmen, or Programme Settlement,
effective 1 January 2019;

5. IAS No. 33: Foreign Currency Transaction and Advance
Consideration, effective 1 January 2019 with earlier
application is permitted; and

6. 1AS No. 34: Uncertainty of Income Tax Treatment, effective
after 1January 2019 with earlier application is permitted.

UOB Indonesia is presently evaluating and has not yet
determined the effects of these accounting standards on its
financial statements.

Financial Information on Extraordinary Events
UOB Indonesia did not experience any extraordinary events
that has a material impact to the financial performance in 2018.

Material Information on Transaction with Conflict

of Interest and/or Material Transaction with Related
Parties

Throughout 2018, there were no transactions that can be
categorised as transactions with conflict of interest.

In 2018, in carrying out its business activities, UOB Indonesia
conducted several transactions with related parties, including
loans and deposits from customers. The detail of total, type,
and nature of transaction with related parties can be seen on
Notes No. 36 in Notes to the Financial Statements.

Dividend Policy and Net Profit Usage

Dividend distribution is conducted based on decision taken
in Annual General Meeting of Shareholders, by considering
financial condition and UOB Indonesia’s capital needs attributed
with business development, especially loans growth, as well as
taking into account other relevant factors for shareholders.
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Good Corporate Governance

PT Bank UOB Indonesia (the Bank) believes that Good Corporate
Governance (GCG) is fundamental to safeguarding the interests
of stakeholders, protecting and enhancing the value of the Bank
and achieving sustainable growth. The Bank implements GCG
according to the principles of Transparency, Accountability,
Responsibility, Independence and Fairness, and monitors the
execution of GCG practices according to prevailing rules and
regulations.

l. Good Corporate Governance Strucure
A. General Meeting of Shareholders

The General Meeting of Shareholders (GMS) is the forum
where shareholders make key decisions pertaining to the
Bank. At the GMS, shareholders are authorised to evaluate the
performance of the Board of Commissioners and the Board
of Directors, approve the annual report, appointment and/or
resignation of members of the Board of Commissioners and
Directors, determine the amount and type of compensation/
remuneration and other benefits for members of the Board

of Commissioners and the Board of Directors; and appoint
an Independent Auditor. The Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders (AGM) is held once a year. The Bank may also
convene an Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders
(EGM) when required.

General Meeting of Shareholders 2018
In 2018, the Bank convened 1(one) AGM and 1 (one) EGM.

AGM 2018

The AGM 2018 was held on 9 May 2018 at UOB Plaza, at JI. MH
Thamrin No. 10, Central Jakarta, 10230. The AGM was attended
by shareholders and/or their proxies representing 9,553,769,677
shares or 99.99 per cent of 9,553,885,804 shares with voting
rights issued by the Bank.

EGM 2018

The EGM 2018 was held on 11 October 2018 at UOB Plaza, at
JI. MH Thamrin No. 10, Central Jakarta, 10230. The AGM was
attended by shareholders and/or their proxies representing
9,458,230,389 shares or 98.999 per cent of 9,553,885,804 shares
with voting rights issued by the Bank.

Resolution and Realisation of AGM 2018

Net Profit of the
Company for the
Financial Year
ended 31 December
2017.

financial year ended 2017 as follows:

1. A sum of IDR775,212,646 shall be booked as general reserve
to comply with the provision of Article 70 of the Limited
Liability Company Law and Article 20 of the Articles of
Association of the Company;

2. To book the entire net profit earned in financial year 2017
after general reserve and dividends as Retained Earnings
amounting IDR77,746,051,933 and for the year of 2017,
Company does not distribute dividend.

Agenda AGM Resolution leg::yf)d leiang;e)ed Realisation
1. Approval of the To approve the Annual Report of the Company for the financial 100% - Realised
Annual Report year ended at 31 December 2017 including oversight report
of the Company of the Board of Commissioners of the Company, and the
including the Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year
Oversight Report ended 31 December 2017 as audited by Public Accounting Firm
of the Board of of Purwantono, Sungkoro & Surja according to report No. RPC-
Commissioners, 5709/PSS/2018 dated 25 January 2018 with Unqualified Opinion,
and ratification therefore providing release and discharge of responsibilities
of the Financial (Acquit et Decharge) to members of the Board of Directors over
Statements of their management and to the Board of Commissioners of the
the Company for Company over their oversight duties during financial year 2017,
the financial year provided such actions are reflected in the Annual Reports and
ended 31 December  Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year of
2017. 2017.
. Allocation of To approve the use of the net profit of the Company for the ~ 100% - Realised
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Good Corporate Governance

Agreed  Disagreed

Agenda AGM Resolution (in %) (in %) Realisation
3. Appointment of To authorise the Board of Commissioners of the Company to ~ 100% - Realised
Public Accountant  appoint a Public Accounting Firm registered with the Financial
Firmto audit the  Services Authority (OJK) to audit the Financial Statements
Company Boqks of the Company for financial year 2018 in observance of the
for the Financial recommendations of the Audit Committee and to authorise
vear of 2.0?8 the Board of Directors of the Company to sign the engagement
and Provision of . : ;
Authority to Board ~ ontract and decide upon the fee for the audit service and
Yy . ) . .
of Directors to other requirements in relation to such appointment.
determine the
fee for the Public
Accountant and
other requirements
relating to its
appointment.
4.Change in Members 1. To accept the resignation of Mr Rusdy Daryono as 100% - Realised
of the Board of Independent Commissioner of the Company in accordance
Commissioners. with his letter of resignation dated 24 April 2018 which shall

be effective upon the adjournment of this Meeting; and
accordingly, release and discharge Mr Rusdy Daryono off his
responsibilities in exercising supervision of the Company in
his position as Independent Commissioner of the Company
from1January 2018 up to 9 May 2018; in so far as such actions
are reflected in the Annual Report and Financial Statements
of the Financial Year of 2018 provided the Annual Report
and the Financial Statements of the Financial Year 2018 are
approved and ratified at the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders for the relevant financial year.

2. To appoint Mr VJH. Boentaran Lesmana as Independent
Commissioner of the Company as of the adjournment of
this Meeting until the adjournment of the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders of the Company which will be
convened in 20719.

The composition of members of Board of Commissioners
following the adjournment of this Meeting and up to the
adjournment of Annual General Meeting which will be
convened in 2019 are as follows:

Board of Commissioners

President Commissioner : Wee Cho Yaw

Deputy President Commissioner : Wee Ee Cheong
Commissioner : Lee Chin Yong Francis
Independent Commissioner : Wayan Alit Antara
Independent Commissioner : Aswin Wirjadi
Independent Commissioner . VJH Boentaran Lesmana

3. To authorise the Board of Directors of the Company to
state the reappointment of the members of the Board of
Commissioners of the Company in a separate deed drawn
up before a Notary (where necessary) and to arrange the
delivery of a notification to that effect to the Ministry of
Law and Human Rights of the Republic of Indonesia.
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Agenda AGM Resolution Az,gr:i/f)d Dlziang::)ed Realisation
5. Provision of 1. To authorise the majority Shareholders of the Company, 100% - Realised
honoraria, facilities, United Overseas Bank International Investment (“‘UOBII”),
allowances and to determine the amount of honoraria, facilities, allowances
bonuses for and bonuses in regard of financial year 2018 for members of
the members the Board of Commissioners of the Company considering
of the Board of the recommendations provided by Remuneration and
Commissioners and Nomination Committee.
Board of Directors. 3 To authorise the Board of Commissioners of the Company
to determine the amount of salaries, facilities, allowances
and bonuses in regard of financial year 2018 for members
of the Board of Directors of the Company considering the
recommendation provided Remuneration and Nomination
Committee.
6.Report on the Given that no decision was required of shareholders on the There For the sixth
Realisation of the  report, there was no resolution on this Agenda. was no agenda, the
Use of Funds From questioner Company
the Issuance of on the sixth submitted
Shelf Registration agenda the report
of Subordinated of the on the
Bond | Bank UOB meeting. realisation
Indonesia Tranche |I of the use of
Year 2017. funds from
the issuance
of Shelf
Registration
of
Subordinated
Bond |
Bank UOB
Indonesia
Tranche I
Year 2017.
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Resolution and Realisation of EGM 2018

Agenda EGM Resolution Azlgr:eo/e)d Dlzia:]gg/e)ed Realisation
1. Change in the To accept the pension request of Mr Pardi Kendy from his 100% - Realised

Composition of
Members of the
Board of Directors
of the Company

position as Director of the Company, in accordance with
his pension request letter dated 21 September 2018 which
shall be effective as of the adjournment of this Meeting;
subsequently granting release and discharge to Mr Pardi
Kendy from his duties and responsibilities in managing the
Company in his capacity as Director of the Company from
1 January 2018 to 11 October 2018; insofar as the actions are
reflected in the Annual Report and Financial Statements for
Financial Year 2018 and insofar as the said Annual Report
and Financial Statements for Financial Years 2018 have been
approved and ratified at the Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders for the relevant Financial Year.

. To appoint Mr Paul Rafiuly as Director of the Company,

which have been received Fit and Proper Test result from
Financial Services Authority, as of the adjournment of this
Meeting until the adjournment of the Annual General
Meeting of Shareholders of the Company convened in 2021.

The composition of members of Board of Directors
subsequent to the adjournment of this Meeting until the
adjournment of Annual General Meeting which will be
convened in 2021 are as follows:

Board of Directors

President Director : Lam Sai Yoke
Deputy President Director :  Iwan Satawidinata
Director ' Muljono Tjandra
Director : Henky Sulistyo
Compliance Director : Soehadie Tansol
Director . Paul Rafiuly

To grant authority to the Board of Directors of the Company
with substitution right to restate the resolutions of the
Meeting in relation to the change in membership of the
Board of Directors of the Company in a notarial deed and
notify the competent authorities of such change, and in
relation thereto, to take any actions necessary in accordance
with the prevailing laws and regulations.
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Resolution and Realisation of AGM 2017

Public Accountant
Firm to audit
company books for
financial year 2017
and provision of
authority to Board
of Directors to
decide upon the
fee for the Public
Accountant and
other requirements
relating to its
appointment.

appoint a Public Accounting Firm registered with the Financial
Services Authority (OJK) to audit the Financial Statements
of the Company for financial year 2017 in observance of the
recommendations of the Audit Committee and to authorise
the Board of Directors of the Company to sign the engagement
contract and decide upon the fee for the audit service and
other requirements in relation to such appointment.

Agenda AGM Resolution Ailgr:i/f)d DI?;g::)ed Realisation
. Approval of the To approve the Annual Report of the Company for the financial ~ 100% - Realised
Annual Report year ended 31 December 2016 including the oversight report
of the Company of the Board of Commissioners of the Company and to ratify
including the the Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year
Oversight Report ended 31 December 2016 as audited by Public Accounting Firm
of the Board of of Purwantono, Sungkoro & Surja according to report No. RPC-
Commissioners, 2965/PSS/2017 dated 24 January 2017 with Unqualified Opinion,
and ratification therefore providing providing the release and discharge of
of the Financial responsibilities (acquit et decharge) to the members of the
Statements of Board of Directors over their management and to the Board
the Company for of Commissioners of the Company over their oversight duties
the financial year during financial year 2016, provided such actions are reflected
ended 31 December in the Annual Report and Financial Statements of the Company
2016. for the financial year of 2016.
. Allocation of To approve the use of net profit of the Company for financial 100% - Realised
Net Profit of the year ended 2016 with details as follows:
Company for 1. A sum of IDR4,792,730,245, shall be booked as general
Financial Year reserve to comply with the provision of Article 70 of the
ended 31 December Limited Liability Company Law and Article 20 of the Articles
2016. of Association of the Company;
2. To book the entire net profit earned in financial year 2016
after general reserve and dividends as Retained Earnings
amounting to IDR474,480,294,326; and for the Company to
not distribute a dividend for financial year 2016.
. Appointment of To authorise the Board of Commissioners of the Company to ~ 100% - Realised

PT BANK UOB INDONESIA ANNUAL REPORT 2018

A LB



Good Corporate Governance

Agreed  Disagreed

(in %) (in %) Realisation

Agenda AGM Resolution

4. Change in members 1. To approve the re-appointment of members of Board of  100% - Realised
of the Board of Commissioners:
Commissioners and President Commissioner : Wee Cho Yaw
Board of Directors Deputy President Commissioner : Wee Ee Cheong
of the Company Commissioner . Lee Chin Yong Francis
Independent Commissioner : Rusdy Daryono
Independent Commissioner : Wayan Alit Antara
Independent Commissioner : Aswin Wirjadi
Effective from the adjournment of this AGM until the
adjournment of the AGM which will be convened in 2019.

2. To approve the re-appointment of members of Board of
Directors:
President Director . Lam Sai Yoke
Deputy President Director : Iwan Satawidinata
Director : Muljono Tjandra
Director : Pardi Kendy
Director : Henky Sulistyo
Compliance Director : Soehadie Tansol

Effective from the adjournment of this AGM until the
adjournment of the AGM which will be convened in 2021.

And to align the term of office with the other members
of Board of Directors, it was proposed to re-appoint Mr
Henky Sulistyo as Director from the adjournment of this
Meeting until the adjournment of Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders which will be convened in 2021.

3. To authorise the Board of Directors of the Company to
state the re-appointment of members of the Board of
Commissioners and the Board of Directors of the Company
in a separate deed drawn up before a Notary (where
necessary) and to arrange for the delivery of a notification
to that effect to the Ministry of Law and Human Rights of
the Republic of Indonesia.

5. Provision of 1. To authorise the Majority Shareholder of the Company,  100% - Realised
honoraria, facilities, United Overseas Bank International Investment (“UOBII”),
allowances and to determine the amount of honoraria, facilities, allowances
bonuses for and bonuses for financial year 2017 for members of the
members of the Board of Commissioners of the Company considering
Board of Directors the recommendation provided by Remuneration and
and Board of Nomination Committee.

Commissioners. 2. To authorise the Board of Commissioners of the Company
to determine the amount of salaries, facilities, allowances
and bonuses for financial year 2017 for all members of
the Board of Directors of the Company considering
the recommendation provided by Remuneration and
Nomination Committee.
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Composition of
Members of the
Board of Directors
of the Company.

President Director of the Company, in accordance with
his resignation letter dated 30 December 2016 which
shall be effective upon the adjournment of this Meeting,
subsequently release and discharge Mr Tan Chin Poh of his
duties and responsibilities in managing the Company in his
capacity as Deputy President Director of the Company for
Financial Year 2016 and from 1 January 2017 to 7 February
2017, insofar as the actions are reflected in the Annual
Report and Financial Statements for Financial Year 2016 and
Financial Year 2017 provided that the said Annual Report and
Financial Statements for Financial Years 2016 and 2017 have
been approved and ratified at the Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders for the relevant Financial Year.

. To Appoint Mr Henky Sulistyo as Director of the Company as of

the adjournment of this Meeting until the adjournment of the
4" Annual General Meeting of Shareholders of the Company
following his appointment. This appointment shall be effective
upon the approval of the Financial Services Authority.

In the event that the said approval is not obtained, the
appointment shall automatically become void, and the
approval of the proposed appointment at the General
Meeting of Shareholders will not be required.

To authorise the Board of Directors of the Company with the
substitution right to restate the resolutions of the Meeting
in relation to the change in membership of the Board of
Directors of the Company in a notarial deed and to notify
the competent authorities of such change, and in relation
thereto, to take any actions necessary in accordance with
the prevailing laws and regulations.

Agenda AGM Resolution Azlgr:i:)d D'?:_lg;)ed Realisation
6. Report on the Given that no decision was required of shareholders on the  There For the sixth
realisation of the report, there was no resolution on this. was no agenda, the
use of funds from questioner Company
the issuance of on the submitted the
Shelf Registration sixth report on the
of Senior Bond | agenda realisation
and Subordinated of the of the use of
Bond | Bank UOB meeting. funds from
Indonesia Tranche | the issuance
Year 2016. of Shelf
Registration
of Senior
Bond | and
Subordinated
Bond |
Bank UOB
Indonesia
Tranche | Year
2016.
Resolution and Realisation of EGM 2017
Agenda EGM Resolution Agreed  Disagreed Realisation
(in %) (in %)
. Change in the To accept the resignation of Mr Tan Chin Poh as Deputy 100% - Realised
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B. Board of Commissioners

1. Duties and Responsibilities of the Board of Commissioners
Pursuant to the Articles of Association, the Board of
Commissioners must perform supervision of management
policies and the general conduct of the management in relation
to both the Company and its businesses, and to advise the
Board of Directors.

In performing their duties and responsibilities, each member
of the Board Commissioners is guided by the Work Guidelines
and Regulations of the Board of Commissioners which are in
accordance with Bank of Indonesia/Financial Services Authority
(OJK) regulations. The said Work Guidelines and Regulations
of the Board of Commissioners are reviewed periodically. The
last review was performed in 2018, resulting in the Decree of
The Board of Commissioners PT Bank UOB Indonesia No. 18/
COM/0001 dated 11 October 2018 concerning Work Guidelines
and Regulations of Board of Commissioners of PT Bank UOB
Indonesia.

In addition, every member of the Board of Commissioners shall
not act individually, but only by virtue of a decision of the
Board of Commissioners.

Generally, the Board of Commissioners assumes the following
responsibilities pursuant to the Board of Commissioners’ Work
Guidelines and Regulations:

a. Supervise and be responsible for supervising management
policies, the general conduct of business of the Bank and
the Bank’s business, and advise Board of Directors;

b. Direct, supervise and evaluate the implementation of
the Bank’s strategic policies conducted by the Board of
Directors. It is not involved in any decision making on the
Bank’s operational activities, unless otherwise required
under applicable regulations;

c. Examine and approve the Bank’s business plan;

d. Provide directions to the Board of Directors with regard
to Corporate Governance and ensure that Corporate
Governance has been implemented in regard of all business
activities of the Bank at all levels of the organisation;

e. Provide directions and recommendations for the Bank’s
strategic development planand evaluate the implementation
of the Bank’s strategic policies;

f. Ensure that the Board of Directors has followed up on
audit findings and recommendations provided by the
internal auditor and external auditor, and on the results of
supervision by regulators and other authorised institutions.

g Analyse and approve the Bank’s risk management framework;

h. Inform the appropriate regulator no later than 7 (seven)
work days following any finding relating to a:

« Violation of any laws in the financial and banking
industry; and

» Situation or presumed situation which may jeopardise
the business continuity of the Bank.
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i. The Board of Commissioners must establish at least:
e An Audit Committee;
e ARisk Monitoring Committee;
* A Remuneration and Nomination Committee;
and ensure that the established Committees perform their
duties effectively;

j. Convene meetings of the Board of Commissioners on a
regular basis, at least once in 2 (two) months, at which all
members of the Board of Commissioners must be physically
present at least 2 (two) times a year;

k. Convene joint meetings with the Board of Directors at least
once in 4 (four) months.

Execution of Duties and Responsibilities of the Board of
Commissioners

In order to ensure the effectiveness of the execution of its
duties and responsibilities, the Board of Commissioners is
assisted by the Audit Committee, the Remuneration and
Nomination Committee and the Risk Monitoring Committee,
each of which is chaired by 1(one) Independent Commissioner.

Generally, the responsibilities of the Board of Commissioners,
pursuant to the Board of Commissioners” Work Guidelines
and Regulations, are to supervise the implementation of
duties, responsibilities and policies conducted by the Board of
Directors and to advise the Board of Directors.

The abovementioned supervision is conducted through Board
of Commissioners’ meetings and joint meetings of the Board of
Commissioners’ meetings the Board of Directors where reports
relating to business, operational, human resources, and other
aspects presented by the Board of Directors are discussed.

In 2018, in carrying out its supervision function, the Board of
Commissioners has provided recommendations to Board of
Directors, which included:

a. Related to Bank’s Business Plan:

e Approved the revised 2018-2020 Business Plan and
2019-2021 Bank’s Business Plan;

» Approved the Supervisory Report of Bank Business Plan
for the 2" Half of 2017 and the 1 Half of 2018;

» Approved the issuance of Senior Debt through the
Shelf Offering 2018-2020 with a maximum value of IDR3
trillion;

e Approved the Bank’s Sustainable Financial Action Plan
for the next 1 (one) year and 5 (five) years.

b. Based on recommendation from Audit Committee, Risk
Monitoring Committee, and Remuneration and Nomination
Committee:

* Approved the update of Work Guidelines and
Regulations of Board of Commissioners;
» Approved the update of the Audit Committee Charter;



Approved the appointment of EY Indonesia as a Public
Accountant Firm and Muhammad Kurniawan as a Public
Accountant, to conduct audits for financial year 2018;
Received recommendations for nominations of
candidates for an Independent Commissioner and a
member of the Board of Directors;

Approved the recommendations relating to the
nomination of the new Chairman of the Remuneration
and Nomination Committee;

Approved the recommendation of a new Senior
Executive Officer;

Approved the recommendations relating to the amount
of remuneration for Directors and total remuneration
for Senior Executive Officers in 2018;

Approved the recommendations for increasing honoraria
for new and existing independent members for Board of
Commissioners’ Committees;

Approved the recommendation for the appointment
and reappointment of members of the Risk Monitoring
Committee and Integrated Corporate Governance
Committee;

Approved the recommendations for the appointments
of new members of the Audit Committee.

Risk Management Framework, Policies and Risk Appetite
Statement:

Approved Risk Appetite Statement (RAS) in 2018;
Approved the Update of the Balance Sheet Risk
Management Framework version 6.0;

Approved the Integrated Capital Management Policy;
Approved Data Governance Framework and Policy;
Approved RAS trigger limit excess for Single Obligor
Concentration insofar as it does not violate the Legal
Lending Limit set by the Regulator or 25% of the Bank’s
Total Capital, for some customers;

» Approved updates to the Operational Risk Management
Framework version 5.0;

e Approved the proposed revision of the Credit
Discretionary Limit (CDL).

e Approved updates to the Consumer Credit Policy
version 7.0.

» Approved updates to the Outsourcing Policy version 8.0.

» Approved the update to the Balance Sheet Risk
Management Framework.

e Approved the update to the Risk Management Policy.

» Approved the update to the General Credit Policy.

d. Annual Report
» Approved the Annual Report of the Bank including
ratifying the Financial Statements of the Bank, Report
from Board of Directors, and Oversight Report of the
Board of Commissioners for the financial year ended 31
December 2017.

e. Annual General Meeting of Shareholders and Extraordinary
General Meeting of Shareholders
e Approved the schedule and agenda of the Annual
General Meeting of Shareholders dated 9 May 2018 and
Extraordinary General Meeting of Shareholders dated 11
October 2018.

f.  Miscellaneous:
e Approved the Framework for the UOBI Recovery Plan
in 2018;
» Approved proposals for projects submitted by
Management; and
» Approved the revision of the Information Technology
Strategic Plan (RSTI) in 2018 and the RSTI in 2019.

2. Composition, Criteria and Independence of the Board of Commissioners
The following are the members of the Board of Commissioners of the Bank as of 31 December 2018:

Effective Date Expiry
Name Position Regulator Re-Appointment of

GMS Tenure

Approval
Wee Cho Yaw President Commissioner 26 December 2005 14 October 2005 26 April 2017 2019
Wee Ee Cheong Deputy President 31 August 2007 22 June 2007 26 April 2017 2019
Commissioner

Lee Chin Yong Francis Commissioner 19 December 2005 14 October 2005 26 April 2017 2019
Wayan Alit Antara Independent Commissioner 8 January 2009 20 June 2008 26 April 2017 2019
Aswin Wirjadi Independent Commissioner 29 June 2009 12 June 2009 26 April 2017 2019
VJH Boentaran Lesmana  Independent Commissioner 22 December 2017 9 May 2018 - 2019
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On 9 May 2018, the Bank held an Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders (AGM) where the change in members of the
Board of Commissioners of the Company was one of the
matters tabled. The AGM by way of deliberation to reach a
consensus approved the resignation of Mr Rusdy Daryono
as Independent Commissioner of the Company and the
appointment of Mr VJH. Boentaran Lesmana as Independent
Commissioner of the Company as of the adjournment of the
AGM until the adjournment of the AGM of the Company which
will be convened in 2019.

The composition of the Bank’s Commissioners and Independent
Commissioners as outlined in the table above complies with
the provision of Financial Services Authority (OJK) Regulation
No. 55/POJK.03/2016 concerning Implementation of Good
Corporate Governance for Commercial Banks, where 50 per
cent of members of the Bank’s Board of Commissioners are
Independent Commissioners.

Independence of the Board of Commissioners

Article 2 paragraph (18) of the Work Guidelines and Regulations
of the Bank’s Board of Commissioners states that “a majority of
members of the Board of Commissioners are prohibited from
having up to second-degree family relationship with fellow
members of the Board of Commissioners and/or members of the
Board of Directors”. All members of the Board of Commissioners
do not have up to second-degree family relationship with fellow
members of the Board of Commissioners and/or members of
the Board of Directors except the parent-child relationship
between the President Commissioner, and Wee Ee Cheong, the
Deputy President Commissioner.

None of the Independent Commissioners of the Bank has
financial, management, shareholding, and/or up to second-
degree family relationship with fellow members of the Board
of Commissioners, members of the Board of Directors and/
or majority shareholders that may affect his ability to act
independently.

In accordance with Financial Services Authority/Otoritas Jasa
Keuangan (OJK) Regulation No. 55/POJK.03/2016 concerning
Implementation of Good Corporate Governance for
Commercial Banks, members of the Board of Commissioners
are prohibited from holding  concurrent positions as
Commissioner, Director or Executive Officer in any bank/non-
bank financial institution or non-financial institution/company
and in more than 1 (one) non-financial institution/company
either domiciled domestically or overseas.

This excludes concurrent positions held by (a) a member of
the Board of Commissioners as a director, commissioner or
executive officer performing supervision in 1 (one) non-bank
subsidiary controlled by the Bank; (b) a non-independent
Commissioner performing his functional duties assigned by
the Bank's shareholders for a legal entity in the Bank's business
group; and/or (c) a member of the Board of Commissioners in a
non-profit organisation or institution.
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Hence, all members of the Board of Commissioners are in
compliance with the aforementioned regulations.

3. Fit and Proper Test Information Disclosure

Members of the Board of Commissioners as listed in the
table on page 71, were all appointed at the General Meeting
Shareholders after due consideration to the key criteria
including integrity, competency, professionalism, and financial
reputation, according to the “fit and proper” test requirements
prescribed by regulators.

4. Frequency of the Board of Commissioners Meetings
Pursuant to regulatory provision on the implementation of
Good Corporate Governance for Commercial Banks and Articles
of Association of the Bank, the following guidelines for the
Board of Commissioners meeting procedures and executions
have been developed with reference to the Work Guidelines
and Regulations of the Board of Commissioners:

a. Meetings are held at least once in 2 (two) months or
when deemed necessary by a member of the Board of
Commissioners or upon written request from the Board
of Directors or upon the request of 1 (one) or more
shareholders holding 1/10 (one tenth) of the total number
of shares issued by the Company with valid voting rights.

b. Board of Commissioners Meetings may be held via
teleconference, but meetings are to be physically attended
by all the members of Board of Commissioners at least 2
(two) times in a year.

c. The Board of Commissioners shall schedule joint meetings
with the Board of Directors on a periodic basis, at least
once in 4 (four) months.

d. The Board of Commissioners shall schedule Board of
Commissioners meetings for the subsequent year before
the financial year ends.

e. Meetings of the Board of Commissioners are chaired by
the President Commissioner. In the event that the President
Commissioner is absent or unavailable, and the evidence for
such absence is not required to be provided to any third
party, the meeting of the Board of Commissioners shall be
chaired by the Deputy President Commissioner and if he is
unavailable, the meeting shall be chaired by a member of
the Board of Commissioners elected by members of the
Board of Commissioners who are present.

f.  The meeting of the Board of Commissioners is only valid
and may adopt binding decisions if more than 2 (half) of the
total number of the Board of Commissioners are present or
represented at the meeting.

g. Thedecisions of the Board of Commissioners meetings must
be adopted by way of deliberations to reach a consensus.
In the event that no consensus is reached, decisions are
adopted when the number of affirmative votes is more than
half of the total votes validly cast at such meetings.

h. Inthe event of an equality of votes, the Chairman of the Board
of Commissioners Meeting shall cast the deciding vote.

i. The results of the Board of Commissioners Meetings must
be recorded in the minutes of meetings and properly
documented.



During 2018, the Board of Commissioners convened a meeting
once every 2 (two) months, during which the Board of
Commissioners sought explanation from the Directors regarding
their duties and responsibilities in the previous 2 (two) months,
as well as discussed the Bank’s performance in general.

During 2018, the Board of Commissioners held 6 (six) Board of
Commissioners meetings and 4 (four) Joint Meetings with Board
of Directors. Of the 6 (six) Board of Commissioners meetings,
2 (two) were physically attended by all member of Board of
Commissioners and the remaining 4 (four) were conducted via
teleconference.

Meeting results, including dissenting opinions (if any), were
well documented in minutes of meetings which were properly
maintained by the Corporate Secretary.

Based on the aforementioned matters, the Bank has fulfilled the
prevailing regulations related to the Board of Commissioners
Meetings.

The following is the Commissioners’ attendance at meetings
held in 2018:

Name Position ool Feduetcr o Percentage
Wee Cho Yaw President Commissioner 6 5 83%
Wee Ee Cheong Deputy President Commissioner 6 6 100%
Lee Chin Yong Francis ~ Commissioner 6 6 100%
Wayan Alit Antara Independent Commissioner 6 6 100%
Aswin Wirjadi Independent Commissioner 6 6 100%
VJH Boentaran Lesmana* Independent Commissioner 6 4 67%

* VJH Boentaran Lesmana effectively serves as Independent Commissioner as per 9 May 2018.

The table below sets out the attendance at Board of Commissioners Joint Meetings with Board of Directors in 2018:

Name Position Nr\;‘]giier:g(:f F;\i?:r?c?:r)m’ czf Percentage
Wee Cho Yaw President Commissioner 4 3 75%
Wee Ee Cheong Deputy President Commissioner 4 4 100%
Lee Chin Yong Francis ~ Commissioner 4 4 100%
Wayan Alit Antara Independent Commissioner 4 4 100%
Aswin Wirjadi Independent Commissioner 4 3 75%
VJH Boentaran Lesmana*  Independent Commissioner 4 3 75%
Lam Sai Yoke President Director 4 4 100%
Iwan Satawidinata Deputy President Director 4 4 100%
Muljono Tjandra Director 4 4 100%
Hengky Sulistyo Director 4 4 100%
Soehadie Tansol Compliance Director 4 4 100%
Paul Rafiuly** Director 4 1 25%

* VJH Boentaran Lesmana effectively serves as Independent Commissioner as per 9 May 2018.

** pau| Rafiuly effectively serves as Director as per 11 October 2018.
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5. Performance Appraisals for the Commissioners

The Bank has a policy regarding Guidelines on Commissioners’
Evaluation and Directors’ Performance Appraisals effective
from February 2017 which provides technical guidance to
Commissioners in conducting appraisals and standardises the
performance criteria to be applied. The policy governs the
following:

Performance Evaluation
Each member of the Board of Commissioners will conduct a
self-assessment of his performance 1(one) time a year.

Performance Criteria

Members of the Board of Commissioners are appraised based

on the following:

a. Independence of the Commissioner;

b. Fit and proper criteria which comprise honesty, integrity,
reputation, competency and financial soundness; and

c. Performance of the Commissioner.

Evaluation Result
Result of self-assessment is reported to the Remuneration and
Nomination Committee.

6. Recommendations of the Board of Commissioners
for Funding and Authority to Incur Expenditure on
Goods and Services

Approving proposals for projects submitted by Management

include:

a. Examination of vessels for trade finance transactions that
will be carried out by the UOB Group;

b. Renewal agreement related to Oracle maintenance for the
period 2018-2020;

c. DCI Data Center contract extension for 3 years;

d. Updates to AS400 devices and their maintenance for the
next 5 years;

e. GWB Customer Relationship Manager Management Tool
(CRMY);

f. Microsoft License Purchase for IT projects PLCE Instant
Approval and Common Reporting Standard (CRS) Projects;
and

g. Extension of IBM Hardware Maintenance Period 2019-2020.

C. Board of Directors

1. Duties and Responsibilities of the Board of Directors
The Board of Directors is the organ of the Company with the
authority and full responsibility for carrying out his duties in
the interests of the Bank in achieving the Bank’s intent and
purposes and to represent the Bank both inside and outside
of court. Each member of the Board of Directors shall carry
out his duties in good faith and responsibly in accordance with
prevailing laws and regulations and Articles of Association of
the Bank.
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The principle duties of the Board of Directors include, among

other things:

a. Manage the Bank pursuant to his authority and
responsibilities as stated in the Articles of Association and
prevailing laws and regulations;

b. Take full responsibility of the Bank's management;

c. Represent the Bank legally and directly inside and outside
the Court on all matters and in any event, binding the
Bank with other parties and other parties with the Bank,
and carrying out all good actions concerning stewardship
and ownership, but with restrictions as regulated in Bank’s
Articles of Association;

d. The President Director and Deputy President Director are
justified and authorised to act for and on behalf of the
Board of Directors and the Bank;

e. In the event that the President Director and Deputy
President Director are both unavailable due to any cause
whatsoever, for which third-party evidence is not required,
then 2 (two) members of the Board of Directors are justified
and authorised to act for and on behalf of the Board of
Directors and the Bank;

f.  Implement business strategies recommended by the Board
of Commissioners;

g. Perform internal monitoring in an effective and efficient
manner;

h. Establish the following work functions:

» Internal Audit Function;

e Risk Management Function and Risk Management
Committee; and

» Compliance Function;

i. Follow up on audit findings and recommendations from
the Internal Auditor and External Auditor, and results of
assessments by Bank Indonesia and/or other authorities/
regulators as well as other authorised institutions;

j- Implement principles of Good Corporate Governance
in every business activity of the Bank at all levels of
organisation;

k. Provide complete, accurate, relevant and timely data and
information to the Board of Commissioners;

[ Monitor and manage risk encountered by the Bank.

m. Maintain a favorable work condition so as to improve
productivity and professionalism;

n. Manage and develop employees and maintain organisational
sustainability;

o. Disclose strategic employment policies of the Bank
to employees. The disclosure must be done through
appropriate means which are known to or which are easily
accessible to employees; and

p. Report the implementation of their duties to shareholders
in the General Meeting of Shareholders.

Furthermore, in carrying out his duties and responsibilities,
each member of the Board of Directors shall refer to the
distribution of work, responsibility and authority which is
based on the Board of Directors Decree No. 17/SKDIR/0025
on the Duties and Authorities of members of the Board of
Directors, with the following details:



President Director

a.

an

Justified and authorised to act on behalf of the Board of
Directors and to represent the Bank;

Coordinate the implementation of the Bank’s management;
Determine the Bank’s strategy.

Ensure the implementation of the compliance function, and
the implementation of the principles of good corporate
governance as well as prudent banking practices.

Deputy President Director - Business

a.

In the event that the President Director is unavailable due to
any reason whatsoever, the Deputy President Director shall
act on behalf of the Board of Directors and represent the
Bank;

Assist the President Director in directing the Bank’s policies
and strategies, in accordance with the scope of coordinated
area; and

Provide direction and guidance for the Bank’s business
development.

Finance and Corporate Services Director

a.

Responsible for the financial report of the Bank as well as
the formulation of the Bank’s financial management strategy
to support Bank’s performance;

Ensure the integrity of financial data and provide financial
report analysis on the performance of the Bank to support
the decision taken by the management of the Bank; and
Develop financial system and procedure as well as lead,
direct and monitor the implementation of corporate
actions conducted by the Bank.

Risk Management Director

a.
b.

Formulate the overall risk management strategy of the Bank;
Develop risk management system, rules and procedures
covering Operational Risk, Credit Risk and Market Risk;
Ensure the mechanism, identification, and mitigation of
risk are in place and are implemented according to the
prevailing laws and regulations;

Coordinate with related functions to increase risk awareness
in the Bank;

Provide recommendation in relation to risk management;
Ensure the management and development of human
resources; and

Responsible for managing the portfolio of bad loans for the
wholesale segment and ensuring recovery and assurance
management strategies.

Compliance Director

a.

b.

Formulate strategies in order to build a culture of compliance
in the Bank;

Propose compliance policies or principles for approval by
the Board of Directors;

Implement compliance system and procedures that will be
used to develop internal provisions and guidelines:

Ensure that all policies, guidelines, systems, procedures and
business activities conducted by the Bank are in compliance
with the requirements of regulators and applicable
provisions of laws and regulations;

Perfom oversight over the implementation of Anti-Money
Laundering and Combating the Financing of Terrorism;
Minimise the Bank’s compliance risk and provide
recommendations on compliance-related issues; and
Perform preventive measures so that the policies and/or
decisions taken by the Board of Directors do not violate
the provisions of regulator as well as other prevailing
regulations.

Technology and Operations Director

a.

b.

Responsible for formulating long-term blueprint for
Technology and Operation;

Responsible for formulating, evaluating and determining
strategies for infrastructure, systems and information
technology security so that operational activities can be
carried out effectively and efficiently;

Responsible for formulating, evaluating and determining the
Bank’s Operational strategies that can drive business units
to profit;

Ensure the application development, technology and
communication infrastructure networks to support high
security and confidentiality of the Bank and customer data;
Ensue that the mechanism of identification and mitigation
of risks to the infrastructure system, technological security
and operational processes are available and implemented in
accordance with the provisions; and

Cooperate with other relevant units to ensure technology
cost effectiveness and determine priority scale according
to the Bank's capabilities.
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2. Composition, Criteria and Independence of the Board of Directors
Members of the Board of Directors of the Bank as of 31 December 2018 were:

Effective Date

Name Position Regulator GMS Re-Appointment E')I('gri\rg r:f
Approval
Lam Sai Yoke President Director 2 May 2016 2 November 2015 26 April 2017 2021
Iwan Satawidinata* Deputy President Director 10 June 2010 15 April 2010 26 April 2017 2021
Muljono Tjandra Director 12 May 2015 28 April 2015 26 April 2017 2021
Henky Sulistyo Director 18 April 2017 7 February 2017 26 April 2017 2021
Soehadie Tansol Compliance Director 31 December 2002 25 November 2002 26 April 2017 2021
Paul Rafiuly Director 27 August 2018 11 October 2018 - 2021

* Mr lwan Satawidinata effectively resigned from his position as Deputy President Director as of 28 February 2019.

On 11 October 2018, the Bank held an Extraordinary General
Meeting of Shareholders (EGM) which the only meeting agenda
is change in the composition of the Board of Directors of the
Company. The EGM by way of deliberation to reach a consensus
accepted the resignation of Mr Pardi Kendy as Director of the
Company and approved the appointment of Mr Paul Rafiuly as
Director of the Company.

On 28 February 2019, the Bank held an EGM which the only
meeting agenda is change in the composition of the Board of
Directors of the Company. The EGM by way of deliberation
to reach a consensus accepted the resignation of Mr Iwan
Satawidinata as Deputy President Director of the Company.
Upon the result of this EGM, the following is the current
composition of Bank’s Board of Directors:

Name Position
Lam Sai Yoke President Director
Muljono Tjandra Director
Henky Sulistyo Director

Soehadie Tansol Compliance Director

Paul Rafiuly Director

Term of Office for the Bank’s Directors as abovementioned is
up to the closing of AGM of the Bank to be held in 2021.

Independence of the Board of Directors

a. None of the members of the Board of Directors of the
Bank have mutual financial and up to second-degree
family relationships with fellow members of the Board of
Directors and/or members of the Board of Commissioners
and majority shareholder;

b. None of the members of the Board of Directors, either
individually or collectively, own shares amounting to more
than 25 per cent of the issued share capital at the Bank or
any other company;
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c. None of the members of the Board of Directors hold a
concurrent position as a Commissioner, Director or an
Executive Officer at any other bank, company and/or
institution; and

d. The President Director of the Bank is a party independent
of the majority shareholder of the Bank and does not
have any financial, management, shareholding and/or
family relationship with the majority shareholder of the
Bank.

3. Fit and Proper Test

The appointment of members of the Board of Directors by
the GMS as outlined in the table above followed criteria that
was approved by the Board of Commissioners i.e. integrity,
competence, professionalism and financial reputation, in
accordance with the requirements of the “fit and proper” test
prescribed by the Regulator.

4. Frequency of Board of Directors Meetings

Pursuant to the provision of the Articles of Association and

Work Guidelines and Regulations of the Board of Directors, the

following guidelines for the Board of Directors meetings had

been formulated:

a. Meetings are to be held at least once a month, and when
deemed necessary by one of the members of the Board
of Directors, or upon the written request from one or
more members of the Board of Commissioners, or upon
the written request from one or more of the shareholders
representing 1/10 (one tenth) of the total shares allocated
by the Company with valid voting rights;

b. The Board of Directors holds a joint meeting with the Board
of Commissioners on a periodic basis at least once in four
months;

c. The Board of Directors schedules the meeting of the
subsequent year prior to the conclusion of a financial year;
and

d. The Board of Directors meeting is valid and decisions held at
such meetings are binding, provided more than V2 (half) of the
total number of members of the Board of Directors are present
at the meeting;



e. The decisions at the Board of Directors’ meetings shall be
based on deliberation to reach consensus. If a decision
could not be reached through deliberation, the decision
will be made through voting based on supporting votes of
more than ¥4 (half) of the total valid votes of members of
the Board of Directors present at the meeting;

f. In the event of an equality of votes, the Chairman of the
Board of Directors meeting has the deciding vote; and

g. The results of the Board of Directors meeting are recorded
in minutes of meeting and properly maintained.

In 2018, Board of Directors held 17 (seventeen) meetings, of
which 13 (thirteen) were Board of Directors meetings and four
were joint meetings with the Board of Commissioners.

The results of the meetings including dissenting opinions
(if any) were well documented in the minutes of meeting which
were properly maintained by the Corporate Secretary.

Based on the above, the Bank has met the prevailing regulations

related to Board of Directors meetings.

The following is the attendance of Board of Directors at meetings held in 2018:

Number of

Frequency of

Name Position Meetings Attendance Percentage
Lam Sai Yoke President Director 13 13 100%
Iwan Satawidinata Deputy President Director 13 13 100%
Muljono Tjandra Director 13 13 100%
Henky Sulistyo Director 13 13 100%
Soehadie Tansol Compliance Director 13 13 100%
Paul Rafiuly* Director 13 2 15%
* Paul Rafiuly effectively serves as Director as of 11 October 2018.
The table below sets out Directors’ attendance at Joint Meetings with Board of Commissioners in 2018:
Name Position ngiﬁ:ng F::I::g:r): Ccéf Percentage
Lam Sai Yoke President Director 4 4 100%
Iwan Satawidinata Deputy President Director 4 4 100%
Muljono Tjandra Director 4 4 100%
Henky Sulistyo Director 4 4 100%
Soehadie Tansol Compliance Director 4 4 100%
Paul Rafiuly* Director 4 1 25%
Wee Cho Yaw President Commissioner 4 3 75%
Wee Ee Cheong Deputy President Commissioner 4 4 100%
Lee Chin Yong Francis Commissioner 4 4 100%
Wayan Alit Antara Independent Commissioner 4 4 100%
Aswin Wirjadi Independent Commissioner 4 3 75%
VJH Boentaran Lesmana** 4 3 75%

Independent Commissioner

* Mr Paul Rafiuly effectively serves as Director as of 11 October 2018.
** Mr VJH Boentaran Lesmana effectively serves as Independent Commissioner as of 9 May 2018.
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5. Performance Appraisal for the Directors

The Bank has a policy regarding Guidelines on Commissioners’
Evaluation and Directors’ performance appraisals effective
February 2017 which provides guidance to the members of Board
of Directors in conducting the evaluation and a standardised
set of performance criteria to be applied. The policy governs
the following:

Performance Appraisal
Each member of the Board of Directors will conduct a self-
assessment of his performance one time a year.

Performance Criteria
Members of the Board of Directors are assessed based on the
following:

a. Performance Target and Achievement Process;

b. Competency of Strategic, Engage, Execute and Develop
(SEED) indicators; and

c. Exemplification of corporate values namely Honourable,
Enterprising, United and Committed.

Appraisal Result

Result of the self-assessment will be submitted to the
Supervisor who will report to the Board of Commissioners
with recommendation from the Remuneration and Nomination
Committee. Thereafter, the final result of the appraisal will be
delivered to each Director.

6. Workshop/Training/Seminar Attended by the Board of Directors

Name Workshop/Training/Dissemination Venue
Anti-Money Laundering and and Countering the Financing of Terrorism Jakarta
Lam Sai Yoke The Next Frontier of Asia’s Financial Service Riding the Wave of Global Bali
Disruption in the Banking Industry IMF-World Bank Annual Meeting
Anti-Money Laundering and Countering the Financing of Terrorism Jakarta
Iwan Satawidinata
Media Training UOBI Spokespersons Jakarta
Operational Risk Management 2018 Jakarta
Henky Sulistyo Anti-Money Laundering and Countering the Financing of terrorism Jakarta
Media Training UOBI Spokespersons Jakarta
Blockchain and Risks Bogor
Soehadie Tansol
Anti-Money Laundering and Countering the Financing of Terrorism Jakarta
Anti-Money Laundering and Countering the Financing of Terrorism Jakarta

Muljono Tjandra

ASEAN Global Leadership Programme 2018

Cambridge, UK

Media Training UOBI Spokespersons Jakarta

Risk Management Certification Level 5 Jakarta

A Impact of Basel and Bank Soundness Rating on Technology and Operation Jakarta

Paul Rafiuly Focus Group Discussion and Indonesia Banking Expo Seminar 2018 Jakarta
Anti-Money Laundering and Countering the Financing of Terrorism Jakarta

WAy s
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ll. Completeness and Implementation of Committees’ Duties

A. Board of Commissioners Committees

1. Remuneration and Nomination Committee

Pursuant to the Board of Directors’ Decree No. 18/SKDIR/0030 dated 22 May 2018 on the Appointment of Members of the
Remuneration and Nomination Committee, the composition of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee is three members.

Remuneration and Nomination Committee Members as of 31 December 2018

Name

Position

VJH Boentaran Lesmana

Chairman (Independent Commissioner)

Lee Chin Yong Francis

Member (Commissioner)

Herman Cahyadi

Member (Executive Officer responsible for Human Resource)

Nationality, age, educational background, and work experience of Remuneration and Nomination Committee members can be found under Profile section on page 369 of this Annual

Report.

Term of Office

The term of office of the Remuneration and Nomination
Committee members is for two years and will expire in 2019.
Remuneration and Nomination Committee members whose
term of office has expired may be re-appointed.

Independence of Remuneration and Nomination Committee
Members

All members of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee
have high integrity and good moral character, in keeping with
the requirements of Remuneration and Nomination Committee
members as stated in Board of Directors’ Decree No. 16/
SKDIR/0002 on Policies and Procedures for the Nomination,
Replacement and/or Dismissal of Members of the Board of
Commissioners, Board of Directors, Senior Executive Officers,
and Committees Reporting to the Board of Commissioners, and
also have met the criteria set by the Regulator.

Duties and Responsibilities

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee performs
its duties, responsibilities and authorities based on the
Work Guidelines and Regulations of the Remuneration and
Nomination Committee including:

a. On Remuneration Policy:

e Perform evaluation of remuneration policy by taking into
consideration performance, risk, peer group, targets,
and Bank’s long-term strategy, fulfillment of general
reserve obligations as stipulated in the regulations and
the Bank’s potential income in the future;

e Provide evaluation and recommendations to the Board
of Commissioners concerning:

- Remuneration policy for the Board of Commissioners
and Directors to be submitted to the General
Meeting of Shareholders;

- Remuneration policy for Senior Executive Officers,
Executive Officers and employees as a whole to be
submitted to the Board of Directors;

- Remuneration structure for members of the Board
of Commissioners, the Board of Directors and Senior
Executive Officer;

- Amount of remuneration for members of the Board
of Commissioners and the Board of Directors;

- Assistance to the Board of Commissioners in
conducting performance appraisal in accordance
with remuneration received by each member of the
Board of Directors and the Board of Commissioners;

Provide evaluation and recommendation to Board of

Directors concerning the amount of remuneration for

members of the Senior Executive; and

Ensuring that remuneration policy is in accordance with

applicable regulations.

On Nomination Policy

Formulate and provide recommendation on the system

and procedure for selection and/or replacement of:

- Board of Commissioners and Directors to the Board
of Commissioners for submission to the GMS;

- Senior Executive Officer to be submitted to Board
of Commissioners

Analyse and provide recommendation to the Board of

Commissioners concerning candidate of the Board of

Commissioners and/or the Board of Directors to be

submitted to the AGM,;

Committee member who has a conflict of interests with

the recommendation shall disclose the condition in the

recommended proposal;

Provide recommendations to the Board of

Commissioners on the appointment of Senior Executive

Officers including the extension of term of service

of Senior Executive Officers exceeding their normal

pension age limit; and

Make recommendations to the Board of Commissioner on

the appointment of independent parties to be members

to the Audit Committee, Remuneration and Nomination

Committee, and Risk Monitoring Committee.
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Frequency of Meetings
Remuneration and Nomination Committee meetings are held
regularly, at least 1 (one) time in 4 (four) months.

e Provide recommendation to the Board of Commissioners
on:

- Composition of positions of members of the Board
of Directors and/or the Board of Commissioners;

- Policies and criteria required in the nomination of
members of the Board of Directors, the Board of
Commissioners and Senior Executive Officers;

- Performance policy and evaluation for members of
the Board of Directors, members of the Board of
Commissioners and/or Senior Executive Officers;

e Assist the Board of Commissioners in appraising the
performance of members of the Board of Directors,
members of the Board of Commissioners based on the
benchmark determined as evaluation material; and

In 2018, the Remuneration and Nomination Committee held
7 (seven) meetings, including via teleconference, which were
attended by more than 51 per cent of the members including
1 (one) Independent Commissioner and executive officer
overseeing Human Resources.

The decisions at the meetings were made through deliberations
to reach consensus or by simple majority of votes in case of
dissenting opinions. All decisions were recorded in the form of
minutes of meeting signed by all members of the Committee

Provide recommendation to the Board of Commissioners
on personal development programmes for members of
the Board of Directors and/or members of the Board of
Commissioners.

present and were properly maintained.

The results of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee
meetings are in the form of recommendations which can be

used optimally by the Board of Commissioners.

The Work Programme of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee and its realisation in 2018 included but was not limited to:

No.

Work Programme

Realisation

1

Perform evaluation towards remuneration policy by taking
into consideration on performance, risk, peer group, target,
and Bank’s long-term strategy, fulfillment of general reserve
as stipulated in the regulations and Bank’s potential income
in the future.

Remuneration and Nomination Committee discussed the
remuneration policy regarding Material Risk Taker and
Variable Compensation Deferral on the Remuneration
and Nomination Committee’s meeting dated 11 October
2018 and Variable Compensation Deferral and Its Taxation
Impact on meeting dated 23 November 2018.

Analyse and provide recommendation to the Board of
Commissioners of qualified candidate to be appointed as
members of the Board of Commissioners and/or Directors to
the Board of Commissioners, to be put to the shareholders’
vote at a General Meeting of Shareholders.

Remuneration and Nomination Committee has made
recommendations to the Board of Commissioners on
candidates to be appointed to the Board of Commissioners
and Board of Directors and the selected candidates have
been approved by Shareholders at the General Meeting of
Shareholders dated 9 May 2018 and 11 October 2018.

Provide recommendations to the Board of Commissioners
on the independent parties appointed to be members of the
Audit Committee, Risk Monitoring Committee and Integrated
Corporate Governance Committee.

Remuneration and  Nomination Committee  has
recommended independent parties as candidates for
appointment as new independent members of Audit
Commitee, re-appointment as members of the Risk
Monitoring  Committee and Integrated Corporate
Governance Committee, and also proposed a candidate
for the new Chairman of Remuneration and Nomination
Committee.

Assist the Board of Commissioners in appraising the
performance of members of the Board of Directors and/
or members of the Board of Commissioners based on the
determined benchmarks for evaluation.

Remuneration and  Nomination Committee has
recommended Board of Commissioners and Board of
Directors Performance Evaluation at the meeting dated
15 March 2018.

Provide evaluation and recommendations to the Board
of Commissioners regarding the Remuneration structure
for members of the Board of Commissioners, the Board of
Directors and Senior Executive Officer and also the amount
of remuneration for members of the Board of Commissioners
and the Board of Directors.

Remuneration and Nomination Committee has provided
recommendation regarding amount of remuneration for
members of the Board of Commissioners and the Board
of Directors as well as the remuneration structure for
members of Senior Executive Officers on the meeting
dated 15 March 2018.

WA SN s0
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No.

Work Programme

Realisation

Formulate and provide recommendation on the system
and procedure of selection and/or succession of Board of
Commissioners and the Board of Directors to the Board
of Commissioners to be submitted to General Meeting of
Shareholders

Remuneration and Nomination Committee has provided
recommendation on the re-appointment of the Board of
Commissioners and the Board of Directors to Board of
Commissioners to be conveyed in Annual General Meeting
of Shareholders.

Provide recommendation on the appointment of Senior
Executive Officers including the extension of the term of
service of the Senior Executive Officers who have exceeded
the normal pension age limit to the Board of Commissioners.

Remuneration and Nomination Committee has
recommended on the appointment of Senior Executive
Officers on the Remuneration and Nomination Committee’s
meetings dated 1 February 2018, 15 March 2018 and T August
2018.

Evaluate and provide input on current policies and update on
matters related to Human Resources, not just limited to Board
of Commissioners, Board of Directors but for all employees.

In 2018, Remuneration and Nomination Committee
(RNC) convened 7 (seven) meetings to discuss on Human
Resources. RNC also provided its recommendation on
the RNC Workplan for 2019 for Board of Commissioner’s
approval on the meeting dated 23 November 2018.

Analyse and provide recommendation of qualified candidate
for appointment to the Board of Commissioners and/or
Directors to the Board of Commissioners to be put to a vote

RNC convened a meeting on 1 February 2018 to discuss on
succession plan for Independent Commissioner for Board
of Commissioners’ and subsequently for General Meeting

at a General Meeting of Shareholders.

of Shareholders’ approval.

2. Audit Committee

Based on Board of Directors’ Decree No. 18/SKDIR/0061 dated 15 October 2018 on the Appointment of Members of the Audit
Committee, the Audit Committee consists of 3 (three) members, namely:

Audit Committee Members as of 31 December 2018

Name

Composition

Wayan Alit Antara
Setiawan Kriswanto

Nina Diyanti Anwar

Chairman (Independent Commissioner)
Member (Independent Party)
Member (Independent Party)

Nationality, age, educational background, and work experience of Audit Committee members can be found under Profile section on page 370 and 371 of this Annual Report.

Term of Office

The term of office of the Audit Committee members must not
exceed the term of office of the Board of Commissioners as
regulated in the Articles of Association of the Bank and such
members may be reappointed only for one other subsequent
period.

Independent Commissioners serving as Audit Committee
members may only be reappointed into the Audit Committee
for 1 (one) other term of office of the Audit Committee. The
term of office of the current Audit Committee will expire on
2019.

Independence of Audit Committee Members

All committee members have met the prevailing regulations on
the independence requirements of integrity, morals, and ethics
of each member of the Audit Committee.

To maintain its independence and objectivity, the Audit
Committee consists of Independent Commissioners and
Independent Parties. Board of Directors members may not sit
on the Audit Committee.

All members of the Audit Committee have high integrity and
good moral character, in keeping with the requirements of
Audit Committee members as stated in Board of Directors’
Decree No. 16/SKDIR/0002 on Policies and Procedures for
the Nomination, Replacement and/or Dismissal of Members
of the Board of Commissioners, Board of Directors, Senior
Executive Officers, and Committees Reporting to the Board
of Commissioners, and also have met the criteria set by the
Regulator.

The Audit Committee performs the duties, responsibilities

and authorities based on the Audit Committee Charter, which
include:
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Reviewing the financial information to be issued by the

Bank to the public and/or other authorities, financial

statements, projections and other reports pertaining to the

Bank’s financial information;

. Analysing the Bank's level of compliance towards laws and

regulations pertaining to the Bank’s activities;

Providing an independent opinion in the event of

disagreement between the management and the Public

Accountant for services rendered;

. Perform evaluation on the last year audit services provided

by the prior Public Accountant (“AP”) and/or Public

Accounting Firm (“KAP”), by assessing:

« Conformity of audit services conducted by AP and KAP
with the prevailing regulations;

e Adequacy of fieldwork time;

e Assessment on the adequacy of audit scope and the
adequacy of the sampling testing; and

» Recommendation for improvement by the AP and/or
KAP;

Providing recommendation to the Board of Commissioners

pertaining to the appointment of the AP and KAP taking

into consideration the following:

» Independence of KAP, AP and persons in KAP;

e Audit scope;

e Audit fee;

» The expertise and experience of AP, KAP and audit team;

e Audit methodologies, techniques, and facilities used by
KAP;

e Fresh eye perspective benefit to be obtained through
the change of AP, KAP and audit team;

o Potential of risk from the use of the same KAP for
consecutive period; and/or

e The results of evaluation on the audit services provided
by the prior AP and KAP in the previous year, if any;

Monitoring, analysing and evaluating audit planning and

implementation as well as monitoring follow-up actions on

the internal audit results in order to assess the adequacy

of internal control, including the adequacy of financial

reporting process;

. The Committee shall at least monitor and evaluate:

» The implementation of tasks of the Internal Audit;
« Consistency between audit implementation by the KAP
and the prevailing auditing standards;

» Consistency between the financial reports and the
prevailing accounting standards; and

e Implementation of follow-up actions by the Board of
Directors on findings made by the Internal Audit Unit,
AP, and the results of supervision by Bank Indonesia
and/or the Financial Services Authority, and provision
of recommendations to the Board of Commissioners;

h. Recommending the appointment, resignation or dismissal of
the Internal Audit Head and providing inputs on the annual
assessment of his/her performance and remuneration;

i. Preparing the Annual Work Programme and reviewing the
Committee’s Scope of Functions and its own effectiveness
as well as recommending any necessary change to the Board
of Commissioners;

j. Analysing complaints received by the Audit Committee on

the Bank’s accounting and financial reporting processes, as

well as ensuring the follow-up to such complaints;

Analysing and providing recommendations to the Board

of Commissioners concerning the existence of potential

conflicts of interest of the Bank;

[ Maintaining strict confidentiality of documents, data and
information of the Bank.

The meetings of the Audit Committee were based on the needs
of the Bank. In 2018, the Audit Committee held 33 (thirty three)
meetings, all of which were attended by more than 51 per cent
of all members of the Audit Committee.

Meeting resolutions were made by way of deliberations to reach
consensus or by simple majority of votes in case of dissenting
opinions. All decisions of the meetings, including dissenting
opinions (if any), were recorded in minutes of meeting signed
by all members of the Committee present and were properly
documented,

The results of Audit Committee meetings are recommendations
which can be used by the Board of Commissioners.

The Audit Committee’s work programme and realisations in
financial year 2018 included but were not limited to:

No. Work Programme Realisation

Monitoring and evaluation on planning and implementation
of audits as well as monitoring on the follow-ups to audit
findings in order to assess the adequacy of internal control.

There were 5 (five) meetings with Internal Audit as
invitee throughout 2018 in order to monitor and evaluate
on planning and implementation of audits as well as
monitoring on the follow-ups to audit findings in order to
assess the adequacy of internal control.

Evaluation on the implementation of the duties of Internal
Audit.

Meetings were conducted and attended by Internal Audit as
invitee to discuss on implementation of duties of Internal
Audit, i.e. 2018 audit realisation and significant audit issues.
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No.

Work Programme

Realisation

Evaluation on appropriateness of financial report compared
to prevailing accounting standards.

e The meeting was held to review the draft audit report
with the Finance Division and External Auditor of the
Bank as invitees;

»  The meeting was held to discuss the monthly and
quarterly publications of financial report and to
evaluate their appropriateness to the prevailing
accounting standards.

Perform evaluation on the audit services provided by the
prior AP and/or KAP in the previous year.

The Finance Division and Internal Audit Division were
invited to the meeting to provide inputs for the evaluation
of the audit services on the financial statements for the
period 31 December 2017, conducted by KAP Purwantono,
Sungkoro & Surja (EY Indonesia) and Danil Setiadi Handaja
as Public Accountant.

Monitoring on the implementation of audit plan by external
auditor.

The meeting was held to discuss interim audit progress,
with the Finance Division and External Auditor of the Bank
as invitees.

Evaluation on follow-up by the Board of Directors to findings
of Internal Audit, external auditor and supervision result of
the Financial Services Authority/Otoritas Jasa Keuangan
(OJK).

The meeting was held with Compliance Function as
invitee to discuss the report on the implementation of
the Bank’s compliance function to the Board of Directors
and to evaluate the implementation of the follow-up
taken by Management on the results of supervision by
Bank Indonesia and/or the Financial Services Authority/
Otoritas Jasa Keuangan (OJK) as a recommendation to the
Board of Commissioners. In this case, the discussion was on
the Implementation Report of Bank Compliance Function
Semester 11-2017 and Semester 1-2018.

Analysing the Bank’s level of compliance towards laws and
regulations pertaining to the Bank’s activities.

The meeting was held with Internal Audit Function as
invitee to update regarding laws and regulation pertaining
and discuss revisions to the Internal Audit Charter and also
revisions to the Audit Committee Charter.

Recommendation on the appointment of Public Accountant
and Public Accounting Firm pursuant to prevailing provisions.

The Meeting was held by inviting the Finance Division,
Internal Audit Division and KAP Purwantono, Sungkoro
& Surja (PSS — Ernst & Young Indonesia) to discuss the
proposal from PSS related to the audit services for period
2018.

The Audit Committee provides recommendation to the
Board of Commissioners on the re-appointment of Public
Accounting Firm PSS (member of Ernst & Young Global)
and Muhammad Kurniawan, as Public Accountant of for
the financial year of 2018, based on considerations in
accordance with OJK Regulation and the evaluation result
of audit services for previous year 2017, conducted by
Public Accounting Firm PSS.

9.

Evaluation on audit implementation conducted by Public
Accounting Firmin accordance with prevailing audit standards.

The meetings were held with Finance Division and External
Auditor to discuss:

e The final audit result of the financial year ended
2017, interim financial year as at June 2018 and its
Management Letters;

e Audit programme and methodologies and the audit
progress with of the financial year ended 2018.
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No. Work Programme

Realisation

10.  Preparing the Annual Work Programme and reviewing the The meeting was held to prepare the Annual Work

Committee’s Scope of Functions and its own effectiveness as

Programme and to conduct annual review of the

well as recommending any necessary change to the Board of Committee’s Scope of Functions and its own effectiveness

Commissioners.

as well as recommending any necessary change to the
Board of Commissioners.

3. Risk Monitoring Committee

Based on Board of Directors’ Decree No. 18/SKDIR/0043 dated 1 August 2018 on the Appointment of Members of the Risk
Monitoring Committee, the Risk Monitoring Committee consists of three members, namely:

Risk Monitoring Committee Members as of 31 December 2018

Name

Composition

Aswin Wirjadi

Chairman (Independent Commissioner)

Hendry Patria Rosa

Member (Independent Party)

Thomas Abdon

Member (Independent Party)

Nationality, age, educational background, and work experience of Risk Monitoring Committee members can be found under Profile section on page 372 and 373 of this Annual Report.

Term of Office

The term of office of Risk Monitoring Committee members
is two years and will expire in 2019. Member of the Risk
Monitoring Committee whose term of office has expired may
be reappointed.

All members of the Risk Monitoring Committee have high
integrity and good moral character, in keeping with the
requirements of Risk Monitoring Committee members as
stated in Board of Directors’ Decree No. 16/SKDIR/0002 on
Policies and Procedures for the Nomination, Replacement
and/or Dismissal of Members of the Board of Commissioners,
Board of Directors, Senior Executive Officers, and Committees
Reporting to the Board of Commissioners, and also have met
the criteria set by the Regulator.

The Risk Monitoring Committee performs its duties,

responsibilities and authorities based on the Work Guideline

and Regulations of the Risk Monitoring Committee, which

cover:

a. Evaluation on the compatibility between risk management
policy and the implementation of risk management policies;

b. Monitoring and evaluation on the implementation of duties
of the Risk Management Committee; and

c. Monitoring and evaluation on the implementation of duties
of the Risk Management Function Unit.

The meetings of the Risk Monitoring Committee were
convened based on the needs of the Bank and were attended
by members of the Committee and Risk Management Unit as
invitees (if necessary). In 2018, the Risk Monitoring Committee
held 12 meetings, which were attended by more than 51 per
cent of members of the Risk Monitoring Committee.

The decisions of the meetings were made through deliberations
to reach consensus. All decisions of the meetings, including any
dissenting opinions, were recorded in the minutes of meeting
and properly documented.

The Work Programme of the Risk Monitoring Committee and
its realisation in 2018 included but was not limited to:

No. Work Programme

Realisation

1 Performing evaluation on the compatibility between
risk management policy and the implementation of risk

management policies

Meeting was convened to evaluate on the compatibility
between risk management policy and the implementation
of risk management policies and to discuss the Bank’s risk
profile on quarterly basis.
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No. Work Programme

Realisation

2. Monitoring and evaluating the implementation of duties and Meeting was held to discuss the implementation of duties
responsibilities of the Risk Management Committee and Risk of Risk Management Unit. In addition, the Chairman of Risk

Management Unit

Monitoring Committee has attended Risk Management
Committee’s meeting to provide input regarding the
implementation of risk management in the Bank.

Performance Appraisal for Committees under the Board of
Commissioners

Throughout 2018, Board of Commissioners’ Committees have
implemented their respective duties and responsibilities
in accordance with their respective Work Guidelines and
Regulations. The Board of Commissioners’ Committees had
effectively contributed by evaluating and providing constructive
recommendations on the implementation of various internal
policies and initiatives of the Bank. The realisation of Board of
Commissioners’ Comittees work programme during 2018 can
be found in the table of work programme and realisation on
respective Board of Commissioners’ Committees.

B. Directors Committees

1. Executive Committee (EXCO)
Pursuant to Board of Directors’ Decree No.17/SKDIR/0061dated
27 November 2017 regarding Executive Committee (EXCO), the
composition as well as the duties and responsibilities of the
EXCO are as follows:
a. Strategic Policies
e Submitting proposals and recommendations to the
Board of Commissioners regarding medium- and long-
term objectives, strategic directions, goals and priorities
of the Bank; and
» Formulating and reviewing policy matters, with a view
towards the overall planning and development of
strategies to achieve medium- and long-term objectives
of the Bank.
b. Expense for Properties Purchase/Other Capital Expense
Analysing and deciding or approving proposals or requests
concerning:

e Purchase or sale of the Bank’s Fixed Assets;

e Purchase or sale of the Bank’s inventory, including
computer hardware and software; and

e Procurement of other goods and services conforming to
applicable regulations.

EXCO approval is provided according to the applicable

authority limits.

c. Treasury and Investment Activities

Determining relevant policies and guidelines for all dealers,

officers and relevant committees involved in the Treasury

and Investment activities of the Bank.
d. Credit Decision

To provide credit decision in accordance with its

discretionary limit that includes on all types of

exposures, direct and/or contingent, such as exposures
to counterparties and customers arising from lending/
financing, underwriting/syndication, securities (loan
replacement), derivative instruments, settlement risks,
interbank limit, End Financing (EF) mortgages limit and
other product programmes.

e. Others

e Deciding on urgent and important business of a
confidential nature or requiring immediate and/or
prudent decision, but this delegation to the EXCO must
be endorsed by the Board of Directors;

» Deciding on business matters which are of unusual
or extraordinary nature or which have strategic or
significant impact (financial or otherwise) on the Bank;

e Performing such other functions as may be delegated to
it from time to time by the Board of Directors.

The EXCO is required to report to the Board of Directors and
Senior Executive Officers on meetings where major decisions
were made.

Executive Committee Members as of 31 December 2018

Chairman and acting Permanent Member

President Director

Deputy Chairman and acting Permanent Member

Deputy President Director - Business

e Non-Credit Related

Permanent Members - Finance and Corporate Services Director as permanent member

for all non-credit issues.

» Credit Related
- Risk Management Director (does not have voting right, to
recommend only)
- Head of Retail Credit Approval as permanent member

» Non-Credit Related: Corporate Services Head

Secretary o Credit Related: Related Credit Approval Division

—
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EXCO meetings are held as necessary, depending on the volume
and urgency of issues requiring follow up. EXCO meetings may
be attended in person by EXCO members or via telephone/
video conference. The quorum is at least the majority of EXCO
members (>50 per cent), including the EXCO Chairman or EXCO
Interim Chairman if the Committee’s Chairman is unavailable.

Decisions made at EXCO meetings shall be made through
deliberation to achieve a consensus. In the event that a
consensus cannot be reached, the Chairman of the Committee

may also be made by circulation, provided that EXCO members
have been notified in writing of the proposal submitted.
Decisions made in such manner shall be as valid as decisions
made at any EXCO meeting.

All decisions of meetings are stated in the minutes of meeting
signed by attending Committee members and properly

documented, including any dissenting opinions.

The Work Programme of EXCO and its realisation in 2018

or Interim Chairman has the final casting vote. EXCO decisions includes but is not limited to:

No. Work Programme Realisation

EXCO members have reviewed issues on policies by taking
into consideration all planning and implementation of
strategy to achieve the Bank's medium and long term
goals.

1. Formulating and reviewing any issue on policies by taking into
consideration all planning and implementation of strategy to
achieve the Bank’s medium and long term goals.

2. Analysing and making decisions for proposals or requests on the EXCO has conducted meetings to discuss matters such as
purchase or sales of the Bank’s fixed assets, Bank’s inventories, project close-out report on office relocation from Harmoni
goods and services procurement, to be in line with the prevailing to UOB Plaza, long-term property, proposal to sell property
regulation. assets, and progress update on MRT Tunnel Projects.

EXCO has provided credit decision in accordance with
its discretionary limit.

3. To provide credit decision in accordance with its discretionary
limit that includes on all types of exposures, direct and/or
contingent, such as exposures to counterparties and customers
arising  from lending/financing, underwriting/syndication,
securities (loan replacement), derivative instruments, settlement
risks, interbank limit, End Financing (EF) mortgages limit and
other product programme.

2. Assets and Liabilities Committee (ALCO)
Based on Board of Directors’ Decree No. 18/SKDIR/0034 dated 29 June 2018, the composition of Asset and Liability Management
Committee is as follows:

Assets and Liabilities Committee Members as of 31 December 2018

Chairman President Director

Deputy Chairman Deputy President Director — Business

Secretary Market and Balance Sheet Risk Management Head

e Finance and Corporate Services Director

e Risk Management Director

e Channels Director

e Head of Wholesale Banking

»  Head of Global Markets

e Head of Personal Financial Services
Permanent Members e Head of Business Banking

e Head of Commercial Banking

e Head of Corporate Banking

e Head of Transaction Banking

e Head of Financial Institutions

e Central Treasury Unit Head

«  Retail Liabilities Product Head
Permanent e Economic Research Head
Invitee *  PLM-MMD/Deputy Treasurer Head

= "‘(-:?i‘w 86 PT BANK UOB INDONESIA ANNUAL REPORT 2018



The ALCO meeting shall be held based on the requirements of
the Bank, or at least once a month.

Duties and responsibilities of the ALCO are as follows:

a. Grant approval for the following:

« Market Risk Management Policy, Interest Rate Risk
Management Policy, Liquidity Risk Management Policy,
and Fund Transfer Pricing Policy and related model/
methodologies and assumptions used in the asset and
liabilities management;

e Delegation of risk appetite limits, risk control limits and
risk limits relating to Market Risk, Banking Book Interest
Rate Risk and Liquidity Risk;

 Ratification of limits excesses by businesses;

» Granting of temporary limits by businesses;

e Limits should be review at least once a year;

e Strategic Pricing, Fund Transfer Pricing, and Prime
Lending Rate; and

e Funding strategies (Target Balance Sheet Mix, debt
issuance), and market risk valuation reserve.

b. Provide endorsement for the following:

e Framework related to Balance Sheet Risk Management
(Interest Rate Risk on Banking Book and Liquidity Risk);

e Review and recommend Internal Model related
initiatives (when ready) used in regulatory reporting.

Monitoring and Reporting:

Monitor and highlight limits excesses of risk appetite
limits, risk control limits and other risk limits concerning
market risk, banking book interest rate risk and
liquidity risk; for escalation to ALCO, Risk Management
Committee, and Board of Directors;

Monitor, assess and review critical market, banking book
interest rate and liquidity risk profiles and exposure,
vulnerabilities, Profit & Loss, material issues and major
transactions;

Monitor earnings spread, asset/liability distributions
and maturity, liquidity risk, market risk, and capital
allocations for market risk;

Provide forum for discussion and decisions related to all
aspects of market risk, interest rate risk on banking book
and liquidity risks;

Ensure compliance with regulatory requirements that
are relevant to market risk, interest rate risk on banking
book and liquidity risk management.

Review the current and prospective liquidity positions
and monitor alternative funding sources; and

Monitor and ensure a sufficient liquidity is available for
unanticipated contingencies.

The Work Programme of ALCO and its realisation in 2018 includes but not limited to:

No. Work Programme

Realisation

1 To conduct ALCO meeting at least once a month, or During 2018, ALCO held 13 (thirteen) meetings which consist of 12
as necessary due to changes in national economic (twelve) regular meeting and 1 (one) ad-hoc meeting. Urgent matters
conditions, or the Bank’s condition and risk profile, to be approved between ALCO meetings and can be dealt through

particularly market and liquidity risk.

circulation of a resolution in writing outside the ALCO meetings. The

ALCO approved 1 (one) proposal on 6 September 2018 regarding the
approval on proceeding sub debt issuance in October 2018 proposed
by Central Treasury Unit and 2 (two) proposals on 10 October 2018
regarding expected life mortgage and core non-core calculation
proposed by Performance Management.

3. Risk Management Committee

Based on Board of Directors’ Decree No. 18/SKDIR/0060 dated 12 October 2018, the composition of Risk Management Committee

(RMQ) is as follows:

Risk Management Committee Members as of 31 December 2018

Chairman

Risk Management Director

Deputy Chairman

Finance and Corporate Services Director

Secretary

Operational and Enterprise Risk Management Head

»  Deputy President Director

e Compliance Director

e Technology and Operations Director
e Head of Human Resources

e Internal Audit Head

Permanent Members

» Legal Head

e CEO Office Head

e Integrated Fraud Management Head
e Retail Operations Head

e Business Compliance Head
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Risk Management Committee Members as of 31 December 2018

Permanent .
Invitee .

e  President Director

Client Fulfillment and Services Head
Branch Operational Control and Development Head

»  National Special Investigation Head

RMC meetings are held on a regular basis, with a minimum of 10
(ten) meetings per year.

The duties, authorities and responsibilities of the RMC are as
follows:

a.

Recommend or approve Bank-wide risk management

g. Provide forum for discussion and decision on issues, matters,

and Regulatory changes impacting the risk and capital
of the Bank, including approval on exceptional business
decisions from established risk management policy and
procedures, among other taking position or risk exposure
beyond tolerable risk thresholds or limits;

strategies, model and methodologies, policies, frameworks, ~ h. Monitor and evaluate fraud investigation reports including
and guidelines; follow up actions;

b. Endorse or approve the improvement and development  i. Review and approve Bank-wide stress test scenarios,
plans of risk management of the Bank based on the risk assumptions, methodology, result, and risk mitigation
management implementation evaluation result; actions to be taken, as well as contingent plans if needed;

c. Ensure an effective risk management implementation j. Develop Bank-wide risk awareness culture and foster
through proper risk measurement methodologies; commitment in managing risk, including enforcement

d. Recommend and/or approve Risk Appetite and tolerable of consequence management through the performance
risk thresholds or limits, as well as monitor and manage risk appraisal and sanction, if needed;
portfolio of the Bank to be within the prescribed risk limit; k. Review and decide resolution for un-resolved issues or

e. Evaluate and approve the result of self-assessment on the matters from new product and activity review process
Bank soundness rating (Risk Based Bank Rating), including escalated by new product and activity assessment parties
the self-assessment on the risk profile rating of the Bank; through Operational Risk Management Division;

f. Assess and evaluate the internal capital adequacy of the | Review and approve new outsourcing activity.

Bank, to ensure the Bank has an adequate capital based on
its risk profile; The Work Programme of RMC and its realisation in 2018 includes
but is not limited to:
No. Work Programme Realisation

RMC meeting is held on a regular basis, with minimum of 10

(ten) meetings per year.

In 2018, RMC meetings were conducted 14 (fourteen)
times.

The topics discussed in RMC meeting are, but are not limited

to:

Risk Profile;

Bank Soundness Rating;

Risk Appetite;

Risk Management policy, guidance and procedure;
Capital Adequacy assessment;

Stress Test;

@m0 AN ow

to the Bank’s risk profile;
Issues related to Fraud;
i. Issues that are significant to the Bank’s position; and

T

j. Other matters, including discussion regarding the Bank’s
main risks that are not covered in other Committees such c.

as Strategic, Compliance, Legal and Reputation Risk.

Key Operational Risk Indicators (KORI) and potential or
incident of Operational Risk which are deemed significant

a. Quarterly, RMC discuss related to Bank’s Risk Profile,
and semi-annually, discuss related to Bank Soundness
Rating;

b. In 2018, policies and guidelines approved through RMC

included Operational Risk Management Policy, Clean

Desk Policy, Data Governance Policy, Business Continuity

Management Policy, Media Communication Policy,

Outsourcing Policy, Operations Policy, Insurance Policy,

and Outsourcing Guideline. The RMC recommended

several frameworks and policies for Board of

Commissioners approval, including the Recovery Plan

Framework, Data Governance Framework, Operational

Risk Management Framework, and Risk Management

Policy (Umbrella); and

The RMC discussed other significant issues relating to

the Bank’s risk exposure.
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4.

Credit Policy Committee

Based on Board of Directors’ Decree No. 17/SKDIR/0048 dated 19 October 2017 the composition of Credit Policy Committee (CPC)
is as follows:

Credit Policy Committee Members as of 31 December 2018

Chairman

Risk Management Director

Deputy Chairman

Head of Retail Credit

Secretary

Credit Risk Management Head

Permanent Member

e Head of Related Credit Approval (according to CPC topic)

e Function Head of related business (according to CPC topic)
» Head of Technology and Operations*

¢ Internal Audit Head

* Appointed as Technology and Operations Directors as of 11 October 2018.

CPC meeting shall be held based on the necessity of the Bank.

Roles and responsibilities of the CPC are:

Roles

a.

Provide recommendation and initial approval of Credit
Policy that will be approved by Board of Directors and/or
Board of Commissioners;

Oversee so that the Bank’s Credit Policy can be applied and
executed properly;

Formulate solutions to address issues arising from the
implementation of Credit Policy;

Conduct regular review of Bank's Credit Policy and
provide suggestion to Board of Directors if changes and
improvements are needed;

Monitor and evaluate the compliance with the prevailing
Credit Policy, regulations and other rules in the
implementation of fund provision;

Monitor and evaluate the overall development and quality
of the credit portfolio (including rating grade distribution,
migration and exposure reports);

Monitor and evaluate the effectiveness of credit risk
management structure;

Monitor and evaluate the correctness of authority
implementation of credit discretionary limit;

Provide input to the Board of Directors in determining
authority of credit discretionary limit for Bank’s officers;

.

Monitor and evaluate the correctness of process,
development, and quality of fund provision to the Bank’s
related parties and certain big debtors;

Monitor and evaluate the correctness of the implementation
of Legal Lending Limit (LLL) regulation;

Monitor and evaluate the solution of non-performing loans
in accordance with the Credit Policy;

Monitor and evaluate the Bank’s efforts to fulfill the
adequacy of General Provision;

Monitor and evaluate the adequacy of credit infrastructure
owned by Bank; and

Approve, monitor and evaluate the implementation
and execution of Internal Rating Based (IRB) Credit Risk
parameter, models and scorecard.

Responsibilities

a.

Submit written reports on a regular basis to the Board
of Directors with a copy to the Board of Commisioners,

concerning:
» Supervision report of Credit Policy implementation and
execution;

» Result of monitoring and evaluation on items stated in
the Duties of CPC.

Provide recommendation to the Board of Directors

on corrective actions with a copy to the Board of

Commissioners related to items on part (a) above.
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The Work Programme of CPC and its realisation in 2018 includes but is not limited to:

No. Work Programme Realisation

1. Monitoring and evaluation on credit portfolio quality, stress- CPC periodically monitors the Bank’s credit portfolio. The
testing and other significant issues related to credit business. Bank’s credit growth will be monitored for each division,
namely, Unsecured Business, Mortgage and Secured Loan,
Business Banking, Commercial Banking, Corporate Banking,
and Financial Institutions. CPC also monitors other limits
such as top 25 debtors, foreign currency loan concentration,
and provision made by the Bank. Such monitoring will equip
CPC with the necessary knowledge to enable it to give the
right direction for Bank’s credit portfolio growth.

CPC was also kept updated on matters such as rating model
review, review of stress test, and credit policy revision.

2. Review and provide recommendations on the revised credit In 2018, the CPC held 36 (thirty-six) meetings. It endorsed
policy. the General Credit Policy and Consumer Credit Policy. The
major changes on General Credit Policy were:
1. Changes on Environmental, Social, and Government
provisions;
2. Alignment with OJK regulation relating to external
appraisal requirement; and
3. New guideline for Management of Watch List Account.

The major changes for Consumer Credit Policy were:

1. Introduce higher risk credit definition for PEP loan
related; and

2. Alignment with OJK regulation related to external
appraisal requirement and Loan to Value (LTV).

The CPC also approved credit policies, including:
1. Business Banking Lending Product; and
2. Mortgage and Credit Card Product Review Document.

5. Human Resources Committee
Based on Board of Directors’ Decree No. 18/SKDIR/0079 dated 14 November 2018 concerning Human Resources Committee for
Head Office, the composition of Human Resources Committee (HR Committee) is as follows:

Human Resources Committee Members as of 31 December 2018

Chairman President Director

» Deputy President Director
Members e Finance and Corporate Services Director
e Head of Human Resources

Secretary OD and Talent Management Head

Directors, Function Heads, and/or other parties which have relevance

Invitees to the subject of the meeting.
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HR Committee meetings are held as and when required, or at
least once in every three months.

The duties and authorities of HR Committee are:
a. Duties

Review and approve HR strategy to support company’s
strategy and objectives;

Review and approve HR policies which cover:

- Recruitment and assesment;

- Organisation development;

- Learning and development;

- Talent management;

- Employee performance management;

- Reward and recognition;

To ensure the execution of HR strategy and HR policies.

Authorities

Review and approve proposed key HR policies and
programmes presented;

Review HR strategies including resourcing, remuneration,
retention, motivation, staff engagement and development;
Review and approve HR policies and programmes in
talent management and succession planning;

Review and approve identified talents for the Bank and
at regional level;

Review and approve overall staff performance rating,

compensation standard and performance bonus
distribution;
Review and approve promotion guidelines and staff
promotions;

To recommend to the Remuneration and Nomination
Committee the appointment or replacement of Senior
Executive Officer based on competencies, capabilities
and experiences, HR Committee can also recommend
the remuneration package.

The Work Programme of HR Committee and its realisation in 2018 includes but is not limited to:

No. Work Programme Realisation
1. HR Committee meetings are held as required, or at least once In 2018, the Human Resources Committee conducted
in every three months. meetings in every quarter, with a total of 11 (eleven)
meetings held in the year.
2. lssues or topics discussed at the HR Committee meetings a. In 2018, HR committee meeting conducted staff

include but are not limited to:

Recruitment and assesment;

Organisation development;

Learning and development;

Talent management;

Employee performance management; and
Reward and recognition.

mo a0 os

performance and promotion calibration. HR Committee
endorsed the guidelines of employee salary increment
2019 and performance bonus distribution for 2018;
Discussed and decided on the follow-up on cases of
violation of code of ethic and corporate values or fraud
or indisciplinary by staff, which had been reviewed
previously by the ethic panel;

Endorsed the revision of HR Committee and ethic panel
terms of reference; and

Approved the nomination of new member of Senior
Executive Officer.

Discussed the succession and talent pool to ensure the
availability of successor for critical positions - Function
Head, Division Head and Area Manager;

Approved the development programmes for potential
employees, among others are approved scholarship
for 9 (nine) employees and professional certification
programme for 2 (two) employees;

Approved strategic framework for talent development,
including regional assignment and monitoring of
development plan execution to key talent in the Bank;
Approved several benefit guidelines, including those
relating to pension benefit management, salary
scale, employee leave, material risk takers, relocation
allowance, and part time work scheme; and

Approved the awardees of the UOB Honours
Recognition Programme for 2018.
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6. Business Continuity Management (BCM) Committee
Based on Board of Directors’ Decree No. 18/SKDIR/0024 dated 16 April 2018 the composition of Business Continuity Management
(BCM) Committee is as follows:

Business Continuity Management Committee Members
as of 31 December 2018

Chairman (Recovery Director) Technology and Operations Director

Deputy Chairman (Alternate Recovery Director) Channels Director

Business Continuity Management - Information Security, Technology

Secretar :
Y and Operations Assurance

 Finance and Corporate Services Director
« Compliance Director

» Head of Retail Credit

» Head of Global Markets

e Head of Human Resources

» Operational Risk Management Head
 Strategic Communication and Customer Advocacy Head
» CEO Office Head

» Corporate Real Estate Services Head

» Retail Operations Head

»  Wholesale and GM Operations Head

e Business Compliance Head

Permanent Member

e Shared Infrastructures Services Head

Permanent Invitee e Client Fulfillment Services Head

BCM Committee Meeting is held at least twice a year.

The duties and responsibilities of BCM Committee are:

Drive BCM implementation within the Bank;

Ensure effectiveness of BCM capability within the Bank;

Support the policy, guidelines and strategy of BCM,;

Approve list of critical functions;

Manage BCM particularly as related to risk management matters;

Review regular reports related to BCM programme status within the Bank; and
Review annual BCM Assessment within the Bank.

o anow
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The Work Programme of BCM Committee and its realisation in 2018 includes but is not limited to:

No. Work Programme

Realisation

1. Conduct BCM Committee meeting twice a year

a.

b.

1t BCM Committee meeting 2018 conducted on 1 August
2018; and
2" BCM Committee 2018 conducted on 18 December 2018.

2. Conduct following activities on annual basis:

Business Continuity Plan (BCP) Exercise;

Call Tree exercise;

Integrated Crisis Management (ICM) table top exercise;
BCM annual attestation;

Evacuation Drill.

D0 oW

These activities have been conducted as per follow:

a.

BCP Exercise have been conducted successfully as below :
BCP Live Transfer Work Exercise for Retail Loan Operations
Center (RLOC) Unit was conducted on 7 November 2018;
BCP Live Alternate Site Exercise for Bank Indonesia
(Bl) Critical Systems (National Clearing System (SKN),
Real Time Gross Settlement (RTGS), Scripless Securities
Settlement System (SSSS), Bank Indonesia-Electronic
Trading Platform (BI-ETP)) was conducted on 12-13
November 2018;

BCP Live Alternate Site Exercise for ISTOA ID Admin was
conducted on 22 November 2018;

BCP Live Alternate Site Exercise for Contact Center was
conducted on 29 November 2018;

BCP Alternate Site Exercise for critical units in UOB Plaza
was conducted on 8 December 2018;

BCP Alternate Site Exercise for critical in UOBI Wahid
Hasyim was conducted on 24 November 2018;

Bank Wide Call Tree Exercise was implemented on 8

December 2018 with successful result (above 90% of all staff

has been successfully contacted within 2 hours);

Integrated Crisis Management (ICM) table top exercise was

conducted on 2 & 29 November 2018;

BCM annual attestation was approved on 18 December 2018

at the 2" meeting of the BCM Committee; and

Evacuation Drill was conducted on 20 December 2018 for

UOB Plaza and 17 December 2018 for Wahid Hasyim.

7. Credit Committee

Based on Board of Directors’ Decree No. 18/SKDIR /0065 dated 21 October 2018 concerning Executive Committee — Credit (EXCO)
and Credit Committee (CC), the composition of the Credit Committee is as follows:

Credit Committee Members as of 31 December 2018

Chairman

President Director

Deputy Chairman

Deputy President Director — Business

» Risk Management Director (does not have voting right, but to
recommend only)
» Head of Related Credit Approver

- Head of Corporate Credit

Member - Head of Commercial Credit 12
- Head of Commercial Credit 2*
- Financial Institution Credit Head
- Head of Retail Credit®

Secretary Related Credit Approval Division

2 For Commercial Banking.
® For Business Banking and PFS credit proposal.

PT BANK UOB INDONESIA ANNUAL REPORT 2018 93

WA



WA o4

Good Corporate Governance

CC meetings are held when necessary.

Discretionary authority of CC is to provide credit decision in
accordance with its discretionary limit that includes on all types
of exposures, direct and/or contingent, such as exposures to
counterparties and customers arising from lending/financing,
underwriting/syndication, securities (loan replacement),
derivative instruments, settlement risks, interbank limit, End
Financing (EF) mortgages limit and other product programme.

8. Information Technology Committee

In 2018, 1,203 credit proposals were submitted to the Credit
Committee, consisting of 194 proposals from Corporate Banking
segment, 949 proposals from the Commercial Banking segment,
40 proposals from the Financial Institutions segment and 20
proposals from the Retail Credit segment.

Based on Board of Directors’ Decree No. 18/SKDIR/0083 dated 26 November 2018 concerning PT Bank UOB Indonesia Information
Technology Committee, the composition of Information Technology Committee (IT Committee) is as follows:

Information Technology Committee Members as of 31 December 2018

Chairman President Director
» Finance and Corporate Services Director
» Risk Management Director
Members . )
» Compliance Director
» CEO Office Head
Branch Operational Control and Development Head
Invitee The IT Committee may invite other Directors, function heads, and/or

other parties that have relevance to the subject of the meeting.

IT Committee meeting shall be held on regular basis, at least 4
(four) times a year.

Duties, authorities and responsibilities of IT Committee are as
follows:
a. Duties and Responsibilities

o Assisting the Bank in deciding and supervising the Bank’s
investments in the field of IT, and being also responsible
for developing infrastructure, IT security and strategic
plans for information technology, while ensuring that
everything is in line with the business strategy of the
Bank;

» Discussing specific plans on information technology
development, either existing or new;

» Discussing the policies in relation to the utilisation of
information technology such as utilisation of software,
hardware, and professional service to be engaged;

e Assisting the Bank in directing, overseeing and managing
information technology security risk in accordance with
technology security policies;
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» Reviewing the progress of IT key activities on periodical
basis, in order to ensure sufficient Bank resources to
support the IT key activities and to resolve issue arising
from those IT key activities; and

e Assuming responsibility for duties and responsibilities
delegated as established in this Decree.

b. Authorities

» Approve information technology development plans,

either existing or new;

Note :

Expenses will remain governed by the SOPfor Requisition,
Procurement and Payment through Procurement and
Expense Management System (PEMS);

» Approve policies in relation to strategy or utilisation of
information technology such as utilisation of software,
hardware, and professional services to be engaged;

e Set priorities for IT developments which are strategic,
compliance, business or customer service in nature; and

» Approve based on prevailing guidelines of IT security,
any risk deviation from standard policy in utilisation of
technology as a result of security risk assessment report.



No.

Work Programme

Realisation

Conducted routine meetings to review and approve
IT investment (for purchase of equipment and IT
projects implementation), monitoring of IT strategic
projects, and approve strategic IT policy.

IT Committee conducted 11 (eleven) meetings to review and
approve IT investments, with details of agenda of discussion as
follows:

a. National Payment Gateway (NPG) for ATM/Debit Card;

b. Branch Secondary Link;

c.  AS/400 — Technology Refresh;

d. Transaction Banking — Cash Management Roadmap phase 2;

e. Visa/MasterCard/Amex/UnionPay Compliance April 2018;

f. Visa Claim Resolution Compliance 2018;

g Summary of SLIK Reporting Changes;

h. CC — Bscore (FICO);

i. IT Security Management Policy — Annual Review;

j. Additional Budget and Re-baseline for UOBI Instant Approval
and DMS;

k. Independent consultant to implement SWIFT AMH, Murex;

and Trade Financial Supply Chain Management;

Email and Mobility Upgrade — To purchase WinTel Tech

Refresh, Ms. Exchange Server and Good upgrade;

m. e« Distributed Denial of Service (DDOS) Protection;
Security Baseline Configuration Monitoring, with free of charge;
»  Automated Security Software Testing, with free of charge;

n. Credit Master System;

0. STASH Account;

p. Global Markets Platform - MUREX;

g. Trade Roadmap (New Trade and FSCM System);

)

s

t

Global Electronic Banking (GEB) Next Gen;

Governance, Risk and Compliance (GRC) system;

Information Security Project (APT for DR Site, SIEM for

Disaster Recovery Site, e-Mail Encryption);

u. BIBPlus Bulk e-Tax Service;

v. VISA/MasterCard October 2018 Compliance

w. Data Center Tactical;

x. Onshoring AMH;

y. Technology Obsolete - 2018;

z.  Action from Group Employee Survey;

aa. Disaster Recovery untuk DVR UOBI Global Markets;

bb. Implementation of e-Recruit and Digital Learning;

cc Silverpeak Tech Refresh;

dd. Fixed Deposit Online with Special Rate Table within Personal
Internet Banking (PIB); and

ee. Scope Changes for Branch Communication Link.

—
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9. Anti-Money Laundering Committee

Based on Board of Directors’ Decree No. 18/SKDIR /0076 dated 14 November 2018 concerning Anti-Money Laundering Committee,
the composition of Anti-Money Laundering Committee (AMLC) is as follows:

Anti-Money Laundering Committee Members as of 31 December 2018

Chairman (also act as member)

Compliance Director

Deputy Chairman

Head of Commercial Banking

»  Head of Technology and Operations

e Head of Personal Financial Services and Digital Bank
e Head of Business Banking

e Head of Corporate Banking

Member .

Head of Financial Institution

e Branch Operational Control and Development Head
»  Operational and Enterprise Risk Management Head
e Compliance Head

e Business Compliance Head

Permanent Invitees

Internal Audit Head

AMLC may invite other Directors, Function Heads, and/or other

Invitees
inputs.

parties which have relevance to the subject of the meeting to provide

AMLC shall meet on a monthly basis and meetings may be
conducted more often when a decision in line with its duty,
authority and responsibility is required. In this case, the AML
Committee secretary will initiate a meeting/request for
approval via circulation.

For urgent AML/Sanctions cases that require immediate
attention, ad-hoc meetings will be called. In the event that such
meetings cannot be convened, the cases will be circulated to
the AMLC members via e-mail or members that participate via
teleconference.

Duties, authorities and responsibilities of AMLC are to:

a. Reviewandendorse changes to core tenets of, and deviations
from, the Bank’s Policy on the Anti-Money Laundering and
Countering of Terrorism Financing and Sanctions (AML/CFT
and Sanctions);

b. Review and endorse Sanction Directives, in line with the
applicable AML/CFT and Sanctions framework;

c. Approve the on-boarding of prospective or the continuation
of an existing relationship with specific customers deemed
to pose higher reputation and ethical risks to the Bank;
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. Manage, arbitrate and decide on conflicts arising from

differing views between Business Work Function and
Compliance Function on customer acceptance of specific
new customers, and the retention of existing customer;
Approve account closure arising from the associated AML/
CFT and Sanctions compliance risk exposure associated
with specific existing customers;

Approve any significant AML/CFT and Sanctions related
matter that increases money laundering or terrorist
financing risk exposure to the Bank;

Approve any AML/CFT and Sanctions controls
implementation that pose high AML/CFT risks and approve
the compensating AML/CFT controls for implementation;
Provide a forum for the Board of Directors discussion and
decision on any reputational and regulatory compliance
issues relating to money laundering, terrorist financing and
sanctions; and

Review and provide guidance on significant weakness in
processes and inspection/audit issues noted in the Bank.

During 2018, AMLC held 7 (seven) meetings and granted
approval via circulation 5 (five) times. No significant AML/
CFT and Sanctions case was escalated to the AMLC.



Directors Committee Membership

Pursuant to the regulation as stipulated in OJK Circular Letter No. 30/SEOJK.04./2016 dated 3 August 2016 regarding Annual Report
Form and Content of the Issuer or Public Company, followings is the information of the Directors Committees as of 31 December

2018.

No

Position

Education Work Experience

Name Nationality ~Age Background (with last held position)

President Director
Chairman of EXCO
Chairman of ALCO
Chairman of HR
Committee
Chairman of Credit
Committee
Chairman of IT
Committee

Lam Sai Yoke  Information on nationality, age, education background, and work experience are provided in
the Board of Directors profile in page 366.

Deputy President
Director - Business
Deputy Chairman of
EXCO

Deputy Chairman of
ALCO

Permanent Member of
RMC

Permanent Member of
HR Committee
Deputy Chairman of
Credit Committee

Iwan Information on nationality, age, education background, and work experience are provided in
Satawidinata  the Board of Directors profile in page 366.

Finance and Corporate
Services Director
Permanent Member of
EXCO

Permanent Member of
HR Committe
Permanent Member of
ALCO

Permanent Member of
BCM Committee
Deputy Chairman of
RMC

Member of IT
Committee

Muljono Information on nationality, age, education background, and work experience are provided in
Tjandra the Board of Directors profile in page 367.

Risk Management
Director
Permanent Member of
ALCO

Chairman of RMC
Chairman of CPC
Member of Credit
Committee
Member of EXCO
Committee (Credit-
related)

Member of IT
Committee

Henky Sulistyo Information on nationality, age, education background, and work experience are provided in
the Board of Directors profile in page 367.

—
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No

Position

Name

Education

Nationality Age Background

Work Experience
(with last held position)

Compliance Director
Permanent Member of
RMC

Permanent Member of
BCM Committee
Permanent Member of IT
Committee

Chairman of AML
Committee

Soehadie
Tansol

Information on nationality, age, education background, and work experience are provided in

the Board of Directors profile in page 368.

Technology and
Operations Directors
Permanent Member of
RMC

Chairman of BCM
Committee

Deputy Chairman of IT
Committee

Member of AML
Committee

Permanen Member of
CPC

Paul Rafiuly

Information on nationality, age, education background, and work experience are provided in

the Board of Directors profile in page 368.

Head of Human
Resources

Permanent Member of
RMC

Member of HR
Committee
Permanent Member of
BCM Committee

Ani Pangestu

1990, Bachelor
Degree, Kennedy
Western
University,
Wyoming, USA

* 1991, Master
Degree, Kennedy
Western
University
(Distance
Learning)

Indonesia 53 .

1991 - 2000, Asia Pulp & Paper, Senior Human
Resources Manager

2000 - 2002, HM Sampoerna, Head of
Human Resources and Development

2002 - 2003, Bentoel Prima Indonesia, GM
Human Resources Development

2003 - 2008, Dexa Medica, Head of Human
Resources

2008 - 2010, PT Bank CIMB Niaga Tbk, Head
of HR Strategy

2010 - 2012, GE Finance Indonesia, HR, Legal
and Compliance Director

2012 - 2015, Bll Maybank, Human Capital
Director

20715 - present, UOB Indonesia, Head of
Human Resources

Has more than 26 years of experience in
banking and other industries.
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Education

Work Experience

No Position Name Nationality Age Background (with last held position)

8 Head of Commercial FX Yanto Edy  Indonesia 46 1996, Bachelor » 1999 - 2001, PT Bank Fuji Internasional
Credit 2 Umar Degree, Bandung Indonesia as Business Plan Supervisor
Permanent Member of Institute of e 2001 - 2004, PT Bank Mizuho Indonesia as
Credit Committee Technology Officer Business Development
Permanent Member of » 2006 - 2007, PT Bank OCBC Indonesia as AVP
CPC Credit & Marketing Dept

» 2007 - 20009, PT Fitch Ratings Indonesia as
Associate Director

e 2009 - 2016, PT Bank Danamon Indonesia as
Wholesale Business Head

e 2016 - 2017, PT Bank Permata as Head
Business Credit Analyst and Portfolio
Management

2017 - present, UOB Indonesia as Head of
Commercial Credit 2

Has more than 19 years of experience in

banking.

9. Head of Corporate Geoffry Indonesia 47 1995, Bachelor * 1996 - 1999, Bank Danamon as Relationship
Banking Nugraha Degree, Hawaii Manager
Permanent Member of Pacific University « 1999 - 2000, Rabobank International as Risk
ALCO * 1999, Master Management Credit Analyst
Member of CPC Degree, Hawaii ~ » 2003 - 2005, HSBC Indonesia as Vice
Committee Pacific University ~ President
Member of AML e 2007 - 2008, Standard Chartered Bank,
Committee Country Head Transaction Banking

« 2012 - 2013, Bank ANZ Indonesia as Head of
Corporate and Institutional Banking

* 2014 - present, UOB Indonesia as Head of
Corporate Banking

Has more than 23 years of experience in

banking

10 Head of Wholesale Harapman Indonesia 50 * 1990, Bachelor * 1990 - 1997, PT Bank Niaga, Tbk as Regional
Banking Kasan Degree, Marketing Head

Permanent Member of
ALCO

Permanent Member of
CPC

Universitas of
HKBP Nomensen

* 1999, Master
of Business
Administration,
Lembaga
Manajemen
Internasional
Indonesia

* 1999, Master of
Science,
Kennedy Western
University

* 1997 - 2001, Credit Lyonnais as Branch
Manager

2001 - 2010, Citibank as Director, National
Sales Head For Commercial Banking Group

e 2010 - 2015, PT Bank Danamon Indonesia, Tbk
as EVP, Wholesale Business Head

« 2015 - 2018, Citibank as Managing Director
Head Of Citi Commercial Bank

2018 - present, UOB Indonesia as Head of
Wholesale Banking

Has more than 28 years of experience in

banking
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o, . . Education Work Experience
No Position Name Nationality Age Background (with last held position)
1« Head of Financial Jenny Lesmana Indonesia 48 * 1992, Bachelor * 1992 - 1994, Bank Dharmala as Head Teller/
Institutions Degree, Trisakti Assistant to Head Operations
» Permanent Member of University 1995 - 2002, Pemeringkat Efek Indonesia as
ALCO 1995, Master Senior Manager, Rating Division
e Member of AML Degree, Prasetiya » 2002 - 2018, Citibank,N.A as Director, Head
Committee Mulya Business of Financial Institutions
School 2018 - present, UOB Indonesia as Head of
Financial Institution
Has more than 26 years of experience in
banking
12« Head of Business Banking Kan Ngee Fei ~ Malaysia 44 ¢ 1998, Bachelor ~ * 1998 - 2000, SembCorp Industries Ltd as
e Permanent Member of of Engineering, Project Engineer
ALCO National » 2000 - 2003, Aretae Pte Ltd as Project
« Permanent Member of University of Manager, Telecommunication and Financial
AML Committee Singapore, Industries
» Permanent Member of Singapore » 2003 - 2005, Canon Singapore Pte Ltd
CPC e 2012, Master as Team Leader, Enterprise Solutions For
of Business Financial Industry
Administration, ¢ 2005 - 2013, Standard Chartered Bank as VP,
Manchester Team Head Medium Enterprise, SME Banking
Business School, * 2013 - 2018, United Overseas Bank as
The University Executive Director, Group Sales Management
of Manchester, ¢ 2018 - present, UOB Indonesia as Head of
United Kingdom Business Banking
Has more than 20 years of experience in
finance, accounting and banking.
13« Head of Personal Khoo Chock  Malaysia 63 1977, Bachelor 1977 - 1981, Lee Wah Bank, Ltd (Malaysia) as
Financial Services & Seang of Economics, Branch Manager
Digital Banking University of « 1981 - 2001, Pacific Bank as Head, Sales
 Permanent Member of Malaya, Malaysia Management
ALCO 2001 - 2002, United Overseas Bank as Head
e Permanent Member of of Consumer Banking
AML Committee » 2002 - 2018, United Overseas Bank Malaysia
» Permanent Member of Bhd as Head of Sales and Distribution (PFS)
CPC 2018 - present, UOB Indonesia as Head of PFS
and Digital Bank
Has more than 40 years of experience in
banking
14« Head of Corporate Ratnasari Indonesia 54 1989, Bachelor * 1990, PT Nikko Securities as Corporate
Credit Kartawiria Degree, California Finance Officer

« Permanent Member of
Credit Committee

e Permanent Member of
CPC

State University

1991 - 2008, ABN Amro Bank as Head of
Credit Portfolio Management

2008 - 2011, The Royal Bank of Scotland as
Head of Transactional dan Portfolio

2011 - present, UOB Indonesia as Head of
Corporate Credit

Has more than 27 years of experience in
banking.
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No Position Name Nationality Age Background (with last held position)
15« Head of Retail Credit Rudy Widjaja  Indonesia 47 1992, Bachelor » 1992 - 1995, Seagate Technology Singapore as
o Deputy Chairman of CPC Degree, lowa State Industrial Engineer
« Member of Credit University » 1995 - 1996, PT Indo Airo Sugih Indonesia as
Committee Business Development Manager
« Permanent Member of » 1996 - 2006, Citibank Indonesia as Country
BCM Collections Head
2006 - 2008, Citifinancial Japan, Collections
Head
2008 - 2014, Citibank Phillipines & Guam,
Credit Operations Director
2014 - 2016, Citibank Indonesia, Credit
Operations Director
* 2016 - present, UOB Indonesia as Head of
Retail Credit
Has more than 26 years of experience in
banking and other industries
16« Head of Commercial Siswo Indonesia 52 1990, Bachelor 1988 - 1990, Kristen Satya Wacana University
Credit 1 Soebianto Degree, Kristen as a Lecturer
» Permanent Member of ~ Iksan Satya Wacana * 1990 - 1994, PT Bank Danamon Indonesia as
Credit Committee University Account Officer
e Permanent Member of 1994 - 2000, PT Bank Tiara Asia as Head of
CPC Treasury and Internal Division
» 2000 - 2010, PT Bank Internasional Indonesia
as Corporate Credit Portfolio Head
¢ 2010 - 2017, PT Bank Danamon Indonesia as
Senior Credit Officer
2017 - present, UOB Indonesia as Head of
Commercial Credit 1
Has more than 30 years of experience in
banking and education.
17« Head of Global Markets  Sonny Indonesia 49 2018, Master * 1990 - 1994, Deutshe Bank Indonesia as
o Permanent Member of ~ Samuel Degree, Bina Treasury Dealer
ALCO Nu§ant§ra » 1994 - 1997, Bank of America as Head Treasury
* Permanent Member of University Marketing
BCM * 1997 - 1998, Barclays Capital as Associate

Director

e 2000 - 2004, Standard Chartered Bank as
Head Sales and Marketing

» 2004 - 2009, RBS Indonesia as Treasury
Director

» 2009 - 2011, Rabobank Intl as Treasury
Director

2011 - 2014, PT Bank CIMB Niaga Indonesia as
Head Global Marketing

e 2014 - 2018, PT Bank ANZ Indonesia as Head
of Global Markets

2018 - present, UOB Indonesia as Head of
Global Markets

Has more than 28 years of experience in

banking

—
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o, . . Education Work Experience
No Position Name Nationality Age Background (with last held position)
18 Head of Commercial Tonny Timor  Indonesia 43 1997, Bachelor » 1997 - 2004, OCBC Bank Ltd Singapore as
Banking Basry Degree, Indiana Assistant Vice President
Permanent Member of State University e 2004 - 2006, Standard Chartered Bank China
ALCO as Head of Sales
Permanent Member of e 2006 - 2009, Standard Chartered Bank
CPC Indonesia as General Manager for SME
Deputy Chairman of Banking
AML Committee » 2009 - 2015, UOB Singapore with last
position as Commercial Banking - Industry
Group Head 1
» 2016 - present, UOB Indonesia as Head of
Commercial Banking
Has more than 22 years of experience in
banking
19 Head of Transaction W. Kartyono  Indonesia 40 1999, Bachelor ¢ 1999 - 2005, Bank Central Asia, Trade and
Banking Degree, Payment Specialist at International Banking
Permanent Member of Targmapegara Divison
ALCO University * 2005 - 2010, Bank DBS Indonesia as Head of
Trade Finance Sales
e 2010 - 2010, ANZ Panin Bank as Head of Trade
and Supply Chain Sales
* 2010 - present, UOB Indonesia as Head of
Transaction Banking
Has more than 19 years of experience in
banking
20 Internal Audit Head Dawny Indonesia 52 1990, Bachelor * 1990 - 1992, PT Bank Bukopin, Tbk as Internal
Permanent Member of ~ Rachella Tahar Degree, Bogor Control Officer
RMC Institute of * 1992 - 2017, Standard Chartered Bank as
Permanent Member of Agriculture Country Head of Audit
CPC 2018 - present, UOB Indonesia as Internal
Audit Head
Has more than 29 years of experience in
banking
21 CEO Office Head Endang Santi  Indonesia 39 » 2002, Bachelor  « 2001 - 2002, IPB Research Institute as

Permanent Member of
RMC

Permanent Member of
BCM Committee

Permanent Member of IT

Committee

Degree, Bogor
Institute of
Agriculture

» 2009, Master
Degree, Bogor
Institute of
Agriculture

Research Assistant

» 2002 - 2010, PT Bank OCBC NISP, Tbk as
Senior Manager Treasury Business

e 2010 - present, UOB Indonesia as CEO Office
Head

Has more than 17 years of experience in

banking.
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No Position

Education

Name Background

Nationality Age

Work Experience
(with last held position)

22« Business Compliance

Head

e Permanent Member of
RMC

« Permanent Member of
BCM Committee

e Permanent Member of

AML Committee

Hendrik
Lambertus

1991, Bachelor
Degree,
University of
Indonesia

Indonesia 53

» 1991-1995, Public Accounting Firm Arthur
Andersen - Prasetio Utomo and Co as Audit
Supervisor

e 1995 - 2000, Bank Universal as Product
Development-Business

2000 - 2001, Amir abadi Jusuf (AAJ) RSM
International Public Accounting Finance as
Manager

« 2001 - 2007, Citibank as Compliance and
Control - Global

¢ 2007 - 2010, HSBC as Vice President
Operational Risk

* 2010 - present, UOB Indonesia as Business
Compliance Head

Has more than 28 years of experience in

finance and accounting and banking

23« Legal Head
« Permanent Member of
RMC

Irvan Indonesia 47 e 1993, Bachelor
Gunardwi
University
¢ 2005, Master
Degree,
University of

Indonesia

Degree, Brawijaya

* 1994 - 1995, Shipping Line Company, Export
Dep Officer

* 1995 - 2003, Bank Bali, Dept Head in Corp
Legal and Compliance Dept

2000 - 2003, Bank Permata, Head of Advisory
and Monitoring

2003 - 2010, Bll Maybank, General Legal
Counsel and Corporate Secretary Division
Head

» 2010 - 2014, Bank DBS, Head of Legal - CBG

2014 - present, UOB Indonesia as Legal Head

Has more than 25 years of experience in

banking

24 e« Strategic Communication Maya Rizano

and Customer Advocacy
Head

« Permanent Member of
BCM Committee

Indonesia 54 1987, Bachelor

Degree, University

of Hartford, USA
and International

Franco_Américain

de Management,
Paris, France

* 1988 - 1996, PT Unilever Indonesia as Marketing
Manager

* 1996 - 1997, Danone International Brands as
Marketing Manager

1997 - 2001, PT Excelcomindo Pratama as
General Manager Marketing Communications

« 2001 - 2007, Citibank as Vice President,
Marketing Communications

» 2007 - 2009, Bank Internasional Indonesia
as Vice President, Head of Marketing and
Branding

» 2009 - 201, Barclays Bank Indonesia as Head of
Marketing and Corporate Affairs

 2011-2015, Hong Kong and Shanghai Bank
Corporation ( HSBC) as Vice President Head of
Corporate Communications

* 2015 - present, UOB Indonesia as Strategic
Communications and Brand Head

Has more than 29 years of experience in banking

and other industries.
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o, . . Education Work Experience
No Position Name Nationality ~Age Background (with last held position)
25 « Compliance Head Candra Putra  Indonesia 40 e 2001, Bachelor ¢ 2001 - 2005, Bank Central Asia, Associate
» Permanent Member of Degree, Gajah Officer in Risk Management Dept
AML Committee Mada University e« 2005 - 2006, Bank Mizuho Indonesia, Officer
» 2009, Master in Credit Risk Management Dept
Degree, Gajah » 2006 - 2006, Citibank NA, Assistant Manager
Mada University in Credit Risk Management Head
¢ 2006 - 2008, Bank DBS, Risk Management
Unit Manager in Risk Management Unit Dept
» 2008 - 2011, Bank Permata, Head of Quality
Assurance and Operational Risk Manager
2011 - present, UOB Indonesia as Compliance
Head
Has more than 18 years of experience in
banking.
26 < Financial Institution (FI)  Edi Wijaya Indonesia 38 2003, Bachelor » 2003-2003, PT Mars Cargo Indonesia as
Credit Head Degree, Charles Finance and Accounting Officer
 Permanent Member of Sturt University  2004-2009, PT Bank Lippo as Non-Bank
Credit Committee Financial Institution Credit Analyst
« Permanent Member of » 2009-2018, PT Bank CIMB Niaga as FI & NBFI
CPC Credit Analyst Head
e 2018 - present, UOB Indonesia as FI Credit
Head
Has more than 15 years of experience in
banking.
27« Operational and Jemy Kristian  Indonesia 42 » 1990, Bachelor e 2000 - 2007, PT Bank Central Asia, Senior
Enterprise Risk Soegiarto Degree, Surabaya Audit Officer
Management Head Institute of e 2007 - 2010, PT Bank Danamon, Audit
« Secretary of RMC Technology Development Head
» Member of AML * 2005, Master « 2010 - 2015, PT Bank CIMB Niaga, Audit
Committee Degree, Sepuluh Group Head
November « 2015 - 2017, PT Bank Maybank Indonesia,
Institute of Non-Retail Credit QA, Policy, and Portfolio
Technology Monitoring
 2017- present, UOB Indonesia as Operational
and Enterprise Risk Management Head
Has more than 19 years of experience in
banking
28  Retail Liabilities Product Jenny Indonesia 45 1990, Bachelor ¢ 1992 -1996, Colliers Jardine International,
Head Hadikusuma Degree, University Marketing Executive
e Permanent Member of of Surabaya * 1996 - 1997, Mal Galaxy, Marketing and PR
ALCO Executive

1997 - 1999, Jones Lang LaSalle, Assistant
Manager

2000 - 2001, Hyatt Regency Surabaya,
Manager

2001 - 2005, PT Broadband Multimedia, Corp
Sales and Customer Manager

2008 - present, UOB Indonesia as Retail
Liabilities Product Head

Has more than 27 years of experience in
banking and other industries.
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Education Work Experience

No Position Name Nationality Age Background (with last held position)
29 o Retail Operations Head  Juliando Indonesia 41 e 2001, Bachelor ~ * 2002 - 2003, Sharp Electronic Indonesia as
» Permanent Member of ~ Menachem Degree, Trisakti Production Engineer
BCM Committee University e 2004 - 2007, Citibank as Credit Initiation
« 2005, Master » 2008 - 20715, Standard Chartered Bank as Unit
Degree, Operasional Risk Manager
University of « 2016 - 2017, PT Bank BNP Paribas Indonesia
Indonesia as Senior VP, Operations and Client
Management
2018 - present, UOB Indonesia as Retail
Operations Head
Has more than 15 years of experience in
banking.
30 e Central Treasury Unit Stanly Indonesia 35 2006, Bachelor of e 2006 - 2007, Lufthansa Systems as Sotware/
Head Gunawan Science in Business System Developer
e Permanent Member of Administration e 2007 - 2011, Standard Chartered Bank as
ALCO MIS and Finance, Senior Assistant Manager, ALCO Support
The University of (Country Finance)
Arizona, USA « 2011 - 2014, PT Bank Commonwealth as
Senior Manager, ALCO and Treasury Analytics
(Global Market, Treasury)
» 2014 - 2016, PT Bank ANZ Indonesia as AVP,
ALM Financial and Governance (Finance)
e 2016 - 2018, PT Bank Commonwealth as VP,
Head of ALM and Portfolio Management
» 2018 - present, UOB Indonesia as Central
Treasury Unit Head
Has more than 12 years of experience in
banking.
31 e« Corporate Real Estate Stella Indonesia 43 1999, Bachelor e 2002 - 2005, PT Ahara Prima Design as
Services Head Damayanti Degree, Project Coordinator
e Permanent Member of Parahyangan » 2005 - 2007, Jones Lang LaSalle Indonesia as
BCM Committee Catholic University Senior Project Manager
e 2007 - 2016, DBS Indonesia as VP, Capex,
Portfolio and Lease/ Transaction Head (CRE
Dept)
2016 - 2018, HSBC as SVP, Head of Corp Real
Estate
« 2018 - Present, UOB Indonesia as Corporate
Real Estate Services Head
Has more than 17 years of experience in
banking and other industries
32« Branch Operational Susan Kwanto  Indonesia 48 1992, Bachelor 1992 - present, UOB Indonesia as Branch
Control and Degree, Sriwijaya  Operational Control and Development Head
Development Head University Has more than 27 years of experience in
» Permanent Member of banking

BCM Committee
e Permanent Member of
AML Committee

—
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o, . . Education Work Experience
No Position Name Nationality ~Age Background (with last held position)
33« Wholesale & GM Wienda Indonesia 49 1992, Bachelor ¢ 1993 - 1996, PT Bank Umum Sevitia TBK as
Operations Head Trifena Degree, Senior Admin Marketing and Credit
e Permanent Member of ~ Widjaja Parahyangan 1996 - 2000, PT Bank Internasional Indonesia

BCM Committee

Catholic University ~ TBK as Origination Department, Capital

Markets Division

¢ 2000 - 2004, The Indonesia Bank
Restructuring Agency (IBRA) as Asset
Management Credit

e 2006 - 2017, PT Bank Commonwealth as Head
of Operations

» 2017 - present, UOB Indonesia as Wholesale
and GM Operations Head

Has more than 25 years of experience in

banking and other industries.

34« Operational Risk Virna Medina  Indonesia 44
Management Head
» Permanent Member of
BCM Committee

2001, Master e 1997 - 2006, Bank Permata, Operational Risk
Degree, Bandung Officer

Institute of 2006 - 2012, BIl Maybank, Divisional OR and
Technology Policy Head

e 2012 - 2014, OCBC NISP, Quality Assurance
and Control Head - Retail Credit

e 2014 - 2015, Standard Chartered Bank, Quality
Assurance and Control Head - Retail Credit

» 2015 - present, UOB Indonesia as Operational
Risk Management Head

Has more than 22 years of experience in

banking.

Note :

EXCO : Executive Committee

ALCO : Assets and Liabilities Committee
RMC : Risk Management Committee

CPC : Credit Policy Committee

BCM : Business Continuity Management
AMLC : Anti-Money Laundering Committee

lIl.Corporate Secretary

The Corporate Secretary is the officer responsible to the Board
of Directors, and acts as the liaison between the Bank and the
Bank internal parties, authorised institutions affiliated with the
Bank, Bank external parties and investors. The Bank appoints the
Corporate Secretary to assist the Board of Commissioners and
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Board of Directors in carrying out the duties and responsibilities
of each related to the implementation of GCG and to manage
communications to interested parties (stakeholders), both
internally and externally.



A. Appointment of Corporate Secretary

The Corporate Secretary is appointed by the Board of
Directors. Currently, the office of the Corporate Secretary is
held by Susilowati, who has officially served since the date of
25 June 2015 by virtue of Board of Directors’ Decree No. 15/
DIR/0021. In the organisational structure of the Bank, the
Corporate Secretary reports directly to the Director of Finance
and Corporate Services.

Susilowati is domiciled in Jakarta and graduated with a Bachelor
Degree in Management from Tarumanegara University Jakarta in
2003 and received a Master Degree in Accounting from Trisakti

University Jakarta in 2009. Susilowati started her career in 2004
at PT Bank Victoria International Tbk and last held the position
of Corporate Secretary.

B. Development of Competencies
Secretary

of Corporate

Ms Susilowati has participated in competency development
programmes namely Risk Management Certification Level 1, 2,
and 3 from Indonesia’s Risk Management Certification Body.

In addition, she attended various trainings/seminars/workshops
in 2018 as set out in the following table:

Workshop/Training

Organiser

The Consequences of the Capital Market Law for Public
Companies and the Things that Need to be Alerted by the
Corporate Secretary

Indonesian Corporate Secretary Association and Bursa Efek
Indonesia

Corporate Secretary Conference

UOB Thailand

POJK socialization of Revaluation of the Main Parties of Financial

Services Institutions

Financial Services Authority

Bank/Corporate Investor Relations Coordination Forum

Bank Indonesia

C. Duties and Responsibilities of Corporate Secretary

Corporate Secretary must at least have the function as

referred to in Financial Services Authority (OJK) Regulation

No. 35/POJK.04/2014 regarding Corporate Secretary of Issuing

Companies or Public Companies and Functions of Corporate

Secretary, as follows:

1. To stay abreast with the developments of Capital Market,
particularly the laws and regulations applicable in the field
of Capital Market;

2. To provide inputs to the Board of Directors and Board of
Commissioners of the Issuing Company or Public Company
in order to comply with the provisions of laws and
regulations in the field of Capital Market;

3. To assist the Board of Directors and the Board of
Commissioners  in  implementing good corporate
governance, which includes:

a. Information transparency to the public, including
availability of information on the Website of the Issuing
Company or Public Company;

b. Submission of reports to the Financial Services Authority
in a timely manner;

c. Conduct and documentation of General Meeting of
Shareholders;

d. Conduct and documentation of Board of Directors and/
or Board of Commissioners meetings; and

e. Implementation of corporate orientation programme for
the Board of Directors and the Board of Commissioners.

4. To act as a liaison between the Bank and the shareholders
of the Issuing Company or Public Company, the Financial
Services Authority and other stakeholders

D. Realisation of Duties
Corporate Secretary
Activities carried out by the Corporate Secretary in 2018 in

relation to her duties and responsibilities include:

1. Preparing and publishing the Annual Report for financial
year 2017 which contains information on the Company’s
performance together with the other working units.

2. Convening the Annual General Meeting of Shareholders
on 9 May 2018 and Extraordinary General Meeting of
Shareholders on 11 October 2018.

and Responsibilities of
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3. Submitting the Annual Report for financial year 2017 and
Financial Statements for financial year 2017 to related
stakeholders.

4. Attending and preparing minutes of Board of Commissioners
meeting, Board of Directors meeting, as well as meetings of
Committees reporting to the Board of Commissioners.

5. Updating the Internal Regulation of the Company regarding
Board of Commissioners and Board of Directors as well as
Committees reporting to the Board of Commissioners in
order to comply with the prevailing regulations.

6. Assisting the Board of Directors and the Board of
Commissioners inimplementing good corporate governance
among others by ensuring smooth communication between
the company and the stakeholders, ensuring the availability
of and access to information as reasonably required by
stakeholders and conveying information about corporate
action to the regulator concerned.

7. Coordinating with the Compliance Function in preparing
data related to self-assessments on Good Corporate
Governance for the Board of Directors, Board of
Commissioners and Committees reporting to the Board of
Commissioners.

8. Coordinating with related functions in preparing the
issuance of Senior Debt Shelf Offering Il of PT Bank UOB
Indonesia.

IV.Corporate Communications

Corporate  Communications function plays a key role in
maintaining the corporate positive image. The communications
strategy is well focused to gain public trust and maintain good
reputation through year-long activities that are focused on
internal and external communications. The function also takes
part in supporting sustainable business for the long term.

Annual Report

Since 2016, Corporate Communications and Corporate Secretary
are jointly responsible to prepare and publish the Annual
Report that discloses UOB Indonesia’s business performance.

Press Release

PT Bank UOB Indonesia (UOB Indonesia) recognises the
importance of engaging with the public and aims to raise its
profile and share pertinent information on its activities. These
objectives are achieved through media activities in the form of
news conferences, media gathering, and one-on-one interviews.

At news conferences and other media activities, UOB Indonesia
issues news releases. In 2018, the news releases covered the
Bank’s new products and services, corporate social responsibility
programmes and contribution towards Indonesian small and
medium enterprises, as well as the outlook of the Indonesian
economy.

PT BANK UOB INDONESIA ANNUAL REPORT 2018

The following is a list of news releases in 2018:

1. UOB signs MOU with PT Sarana Multi Infrastruktur (Persero)
to support infrastructure development in Indonesia,
21 March 2018;

2. UOB Announces Major Education Partnership with Museum
MACAN, 10 April 2018;

3. UOB Indonesia launches the UOB YOLO Credit card
designed for Indonesian millennials, 08 May 2018;

4. UOB Indonesia launches its 2018 Painting of the
Year competition and a series of art workshops for
underprivileged children, 15 May 2018;

5. UOB Heartbeat Run/Walk sees record of more than 2,000
participants in its annual fundraising event, 8 July 2018;

6. Museum MACAN Announces Second Commission for the
Children’s Art Space by Indonesian Artist Mr Gatot Indrajati,
10 July 2018;

7. UOB Indonesia: Indonesian economy to remain resilient
amid global turbulence, 26 July 2018;

8. UOB Indonesia partners COCOWORK to set up a co-
working space to help emerging enterprises manage their
operational costs, 8 August 2018;

9. UOB and Investment Coordinating Board (BKPM) reaffirm
joint commitment to promote foreign direct investments
into Indonesia, 7 Sept 2018;

10. UOB Indonesia: Robust fundamentals to support Indonesia’s
economic growth in 2019 despite global turbulence,
3 October 2018;

1. Technology investments among Indonesian SME's top
priorities to boost business competitiveness, 12 October
2018;

12. UOB Indonesia launches ‘Blast of Surprise 2.0" year-end
promotion for its credit cardmembers, 15 October 2018;

13. A visual commentary on the role of humanity wins the 2018
UOB Painting of the Year (Indonesia) award, 16 October
2018;

14. UOB Indonesia holds 2018 UOB Golf Invitational Tournament
for its Commercial Banking clients, 1 November 2018;

15. Indonesian artist’s evocation on social conflict wins UOB
Southeast Asian Painting of the Year 2018, 1 November 2018;
and

16. UOB and Investment Coordinating Board (BKPM) collaborate
to facilitate foreign direct investment into Indonesia,
9 November 2018.

There was coverage in Indonesia’s main media, such as: Antara,
Bisnis Indonesia, Detik.com, InfoBank.com, Kompas, Koran
Kontan, Koran Sindo, Jawa Pos, Media Indonesia, Metrotvnews.
com and Okezone.com.



V. The Implementation of Compliance, Internal
Audit, and External Audit Functions

A. Compliance Function

The Role of Compliance Function

The implementation of Bank’s Compliance Function refers
to Financial Services Authority (OJK) Regulation No. 46/
POJK.03/2017.

Following are the roles and responsibilities of the Compliance

Function:

1. Create steps in order to support the creation of compliance
culture in the Bank’s business activities and at every
organisational level;

2. Conduct identification, measurement, monitoring, and
control of compliance risk with reference to the regulation
concerning the Implementation of Risk Management for
Commercial Banks;

3. Assess and evaluate strictly, in collaboration with the
business/support units the effectiveness, adequacy, and
conformity of policies, provisions, systems and procedures
of the Bank with prevailing regulations;

4. Conduct reviews and/or recommend update and refinement
of policies, regulations, systems and procedures of the
Bank to ensure compliance with the regulations issued by
regulators and prevailing legislation;

5. Ensure that the policies, provisions, systems  and
procedures, as well as the Bank's business activities are
in compliance with the regulations issued by regulators
and prevailing legislation;

6. Ensure that the execution of all systems for customer
transaction monitoring is in line with prevailing
guidelines, policies and procedures to support a smooth
implementation of the AML/CFT programmes and to
protect the Bank against sanctions;

7. Identify, assess and document the compliance risks
associated with the business activities of the Bank including
new products, services, business practices and material
changes to existing business and customer relationships,etc;

8. Provide regulatory advice and updated information related
to the prevailing Regulator’s regulation and other regulations
to the Board of Directors, Senior Executive Officers and all
business and support units;

9. Develop compliance manuals and guidelines related to
the applicable regulations issued by regulators, other
regulations and key business conduct jointly with Business/
Support Units for use by all officers and staff of the Bank;

10. Identify and maintain an inventory of all prevailing
regulations issued by regulators and other regulations
with the support of internal/external legal counsel where
needed;

11. Assist the Board of Directors and Senior Executive Officers
in educating relevant staff on compliance related issues;

12. Provide advice, guidance and continuous training for staff
on the appropriate implementation of the compliance
framework which includes policies, guidelines and

procedures such as those contained in the Bank’s Compliance
Guidance, Code of Conduct and Bank’s internal guidelines;

13. Advise units/divisions in the Bank and/or Board of Directors
and Senior Executive Officers on Compliance, Laws, Rules
and Standards (CLRS), the implications of new regulations/
regulatory changes, and provide guidance on the proper
and prompt implementation of procedures to comply with
the regulatory requirements;

14. Monitor, test and report on compliance implementation
according to Compliance Framework and internal policies
or procedures to the Senior Executive Officers and Board
of Directors/Board of Commissioners, and if required, to
regulators. However, the responsibility for ensuring day-
to-day compliance remains within each respective work
function;

15. Make enquiries into compliance incidents and complaints,
and carry out further investigations as deemed appropriate;

16. Act as the key liaison body with relevant internal and
external parties, including regulators, regarding the Bank’s
compliance issues; and

17. Fulfill its responsibilities under the compliance plans and
procedures developed in accordance with its compliance
risk management framework including performing
compliance reviews on a risk-based approach.

Actions to Prevent Breaches to Prevailing Regulations

The Compliance Director, through the Compliance Function,
always monitors and controls the Bank's business activities, so
that they do not violate the prevailing regulations by ensuring
the Bank’s compliance to regulators provisions and prevailing
legislation.

This is reflected in measures that have been put in place:

1. Support the creation of a compliance culture in all Bank
business activities at all levels of the organisation through
the establishment of:

a. Compliance Charter;

b. Compliance Organisational Structure;

c. Compliance Guidance; and

d. Compliance Standard Operational Procedure.

2. Identify, measure and monitor Compliance Risk and
implement control processes through:

a. Compliance Review Procedure;
b. Supervision of sanctions imposed by regulators.

3. Establish the Compliance Review and Testing Division to
manage compliance risk through the Compliance Review
Programme, so that Bank can ensure conformity and
adequacy of policy, guidelines, systems and procedures of
the Bank with prevailing legislation through:

a. Reports of Compliance Review Results;
b. Regulatory Risk Assessment Reports.

4. Provide opinions on compliance-related matters.

5. Monitor and report on follow-up action plans arising from
Regulator’s Audit Inspection Results.

6. Socialise regulatory provisions and provide information on
compliance related matters, either through face-to-face
socialisation activities or through Compliance News.

7. Evaluate marketing material checklist.
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8. Monitor the follow-up of RBBR- GCG improvement by RBBR-
GCG (Risk Based Bank Rating-Good Corporate Governance)
Working Group.

9. Act as liaison officer for compliance related issues between
the Bank and regulators or internal Bank units.

The Implementation of Good Corporate Governance

The provisions related to the Implementation of Good
Corporate Governance for Commercial Banks refer to Financial
Services Authority Regulation No. 55/POJK.03/2016 dated 7
December 2016 and OJK Circular Letter No. 13/SEOJK.03/2017
dated 17 March 2017.

The Bank consistently ensures that the GCG principles of
transparency, accountability, responsibility, independence and
fairness are implemented in every business aspect and at all
levels of the Bank. The five GCG principles should be applied
to at least 11 (eleven) GCG implementation factors, and each
factor’s effectiveness should be measurable with respect to 3
(three) governance aspects as a continuous process.

The three governance aspects are:

1. Governance Structure, refers to the Bank’s governance
structure and infrastructure adequacy to ensure that the
outcome of the implementation of the GCG principles
meet the expectations of the Bank’s stakeholders.

2. Governance Process, refers to the effective implementation
of the GCG principles, supported by adequate governance
structure and infrastructure of the Bank in order to produce
an outcome that meets the expectations of the Bank’s
stakeholders.

3. Governance Outcome, reflects the result of the
implementation of the GCG principles that meets the
expectations of the Bank’s stakeholders with the support
of adequate governance structure and infrastructure of the
Bank.

The implementation of the GCG principles is evaluated
periodically through GCG Self-Assessment and the result is
submitted to Regulator and the Bank's Management as a part
of the Bank’s Soundness Rating Report (Risk-Based Bank Rating).

As part of Bank’s commitment to continuously improve the
implementation of the GCG principles, the Bank has formed
the RBBR Working Group which aims to monitor, maintain and/
or improve the composite rating of RBBR. This mechanism is
stipulated in the Bank’s policy, through Board of Directors’
Decree No. 13/SKDIR/0064 dated 17 September 2013 on PT
Bank UOB Indonesia Soundness Rating System.

The Compliance Unit has also reviewed and revised the
previous Compliance Guidance in order to provide guidance
for all stakeholders to improve the effectiveness of the
Compliance Function implementation, as stipulated in Board of
Directors’ Decree No. 18/SKDIR/0092 dated 28 December 2018
on Compliance Guidance of PT Bank UOB Indonesia.
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Moreover, in line with the Financial Services Authority (OJK)
regulation on the implementation of Integrated Corporate
Governance for Financial Conglomerates as stipulated in OJK
Regulation No. 18/POJK.03/2014 and OJK Circular No. 15/
SEOJK.03/2015, the Compliance Work Unit has issued the
Integrated Compliance Charter for Entities in the Financial
Conglomerates of UOB in Indonesia as the umbrella policy for
the implementation of the integrated compliance function, as
stipulated in Board of Directors’ Decree No. 15/SKDIR/0062
dated 30 December 2015 on Integrated Compliance Charter
for the Financial Conglomerates of UOB as updated through
Circular Letter No. 16/CMP/0007 dated 16 November 2016
concerning Amendment on Integrated Compliance Charter
version 2.0

PT Bank UOB Indonesia as the Main Entity in the Financial
Conglomerates has also issued an Integrated Corporate
Governance Guidance as the principal guidelines for each entity
in the Financial Conglomerates in implementing their duties
and responsibilities as stipulated in Board of Directors’ Decree
No. 15/SKDIR/0063 dated 31 December 2015 on Integrated
Corporate Governance Policy for the Financial Conglomerates
of UOB.

B. The Implementation of Internal Audit Function

Pursuant to Bank Indonesia Regulation No. 1/6/PBI/1999 dated
20 September 1999 on the Appointment of Compliance Director
and the Establishment of Standards for the implementation
of Bank’s Internal Audit Function (SPFAIB), the Bank has
implemented internal audit function, issued the Internal Audit
Charter and Internal Audit Guidelines.

Dawny Rachella Tahar, 52 years old, domiciled in Indonesia, has
joined with UOB Indonesia since January 2018 as the Internal
Audit Head. Her appointment as Internal Audit Head is pursuant
to Directors’ Decree No. 18/SKDIR/0003 dated 08 January
2018. She holds a Bachelor Degree of Agribusiness from Institut
Pertanian Bogor and a Postgraduate Diploma of Management
Studies from Nottingham Trent University, United Kingdom.
She has more than 26 years of experience in banking in various
areas, with 7 years spent as Country Head of Audit.

Competency Improvement of Head of Internal Audit

During 2018, the Internal Audit Head attended several
workshops and training such as Chief Audit Executive (CAE)
forum of Bank Internal Auditor Association (IAIB), Risk
Management Certification Level 5, and UOB Indonesia Branded
Service Workshop.

Structure of Internal Audit Function

The Internal Audit Head directly reports to the President
Director and functionally to Audit Committee. There are 5
(five) divisions in the unit namely Credit Audit, Information
Technology Audit, Non Credit & Support Function Audit,
Delivery Channels and Branches Audit and Audit Development
& Support.



President Director

Audit Committee

Internal Audit

Head

Non Credit and
Support Function
Audit

Duties and Responsibilities of Internal Audit Function
Internal Audit supports UOB Indonesia management in the
risk management and governance oversight by providing
independentassurance onadequacy of internal control, financial,
operational and compliance to law and regulation, to mitigate
both current and emerging risks. In the bank’s risk management
framework, Internal Audit serve as the third line of defence and
work closely with the first line (Business and Support units) and
the second line (Compliance and Risk Management functions).
Internal Audit duties and responsibilities forms as part of overall
internal control system in the bank. Internal Audit tasks cover
examination and assessment of all the Bank’s processes, system
and documentation to provide independent, objective, reliable
opinion on effectiveness control design and its implementation
in the Bank.

The internal audit tasks implementation is risk-focused, and
applies the Risk-Based Approach, as the basis for auditors to
analyse, test controls and consider the significance of an audit
issue. Under the Internal Audit Charter, the Internal Audit Head
has unlimited access to any of the Bank’s premises, assets and
documentation, and can directly communicate with the Board
of Commissioners or through the Audit Committee. On a
periodic basis, the Internal Audit Head meets with the Audit
Committee, and discusses significant audit issues, the progress
of audit work and completion of audit issues completion. In
order to maintain its work quality and methodology standard,
the Internal Audit function is subjected to a periodic quality
assurance performance review conducted by internal Quality
Assurance Function within the unit and by external party.

Internal Audit Professional Qualification/Certification
The Bank’s Internal Auditor holds internal audit professional
qualification and certification , including:

Delivery
Channels/
Branches Audit

Audit
Development, QA
and Support

Information

Technology Audit

1. Competency Certification as an Assessor (Manager Level
on Internal Audit Division) from a National Professional
Certification Agency (BNSP).

2. International Certification such as CISA, CCNA, CPA,
CEH, CHFI, CBA, CHSI, 1SO27001/ Information Security
Management System Lead Auditor.

3. Risk Management Certification Level 1 - 5.

Disclosure of Internal Audit Practice in 2018
All internal audit findings had been addressed and rectification
actions were on track for completion.

Internal Audit has established a follow-up process to track
and monitor that the rectification and risk mitigation has been
completed effectively. Significant issues are highlighted to the
Board of Directors and the Audit Committee through audit
reports and regular meetings.

C. The Implementation of External Audit Function

With the approval of shareholders at the AGM and
recommendation from the Audit Committee through the Board
of Commissioners, the Bank has appointed a Public Accountant
Firm registered with Bank Indonesia, namely Purwantono,
Sungkoro & Surja, in which has “BIG 4” qualification and
experience in conducting audits of several major banks in
Indonesia. In addition, the legality of its appointment and
agreement, it has been complied with the applicable regulation.

Public Accountant Firm Purwantono, Sungkoro & Surja met
specified targets and performed the audit independently, and
has also met the public accountant professional standards and
audit scope as specified in prevailing regulations and as stated
in the Engagement Letter between the Public Accountant Firm
and the Bank.

AT
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Public Accountant Firm Purwantono, Sungkoro & Surja,
according to Financial Services Authority (OJK) Regulation
No. 13/POJK.03./2017 on Use of Public Accountant and Public
Accountant Firm in Financial Services Activities, has engaged
in communication with OJK to request information on the
condition of the Bank, as well as provide information on the
audit process from beginning to end.

VI.The Implementation of Risk Management
Including Internal Control System

For further details about the implementation of risk
management including internal control system, please see in
page 131.

VII. Related Party Funding and Large Exposure

The Bank has policies on and procedures for Legal Lending
Limits and allocation of funds to related parties and large
exposures as part of its prudential principles.

The following are loans to related parties and large exposures
as of 31 December 2018:

(in IDR million)
Total
No. Funding

Debtor Amount
1. To Related Parties 175 4,412,747
2. To Core Debtors 25 24,682,081

a) Individual - -
b) Group 25 24,682,081

Notes:

1. Nominal is all related party outstanding (either included or excluded from LLL calculation, e.g: guaranteed by time deposit, lending to

executive officer, with SBLC collateral, Prime Bank).

2. Funding to core debtor, based on explanation in form 10 of Periodic Report of Commercial Bank, which covers 25 debtors/groups (one obligor
concept) excluding related party in relation to total assets of the Bank, pursuant to Bank Indonesia Regulation concerning Bank Soundness

Rating System for Commercial Bank.

VIIl. Bank’s Strategic Plan

In order to improve Good Corporate Governance and to
comply with regulator provisions, the Bank has proposed a
Business Plan detailing the Bank’s business activities in the short
term, medium term and long term so that the direction of the
Bank’s policies and strategic objectives follow proper planning,
are prudent and follow sound banking principles. The Business
Plan took into consideration global and domestic economic
development as well as the Bank’s vision and values

In 2019-2021, Bank has made long term, medium term and short
term target, as follows:

Long Term Plans:

1. Undertake capital management and evaluate the possibility
of raising core capital. This is to ensure that the Bank
has strong capital structure in support of its business
development strategy and complies with the capital
adequacy requirements set by the Regulator.
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2. Issue financial instruments such as subordinated debt and
senior debt and use the funds obtained to support the
growth of productive assets and develop the Bank’s business.
In planning for the issuance of financial instruments, the
Bank always take into account the market conditions
particularly the interest rate movements.

3. Grow alternative sources of funding as a measure for
diversification and improve the liquidity profile to provide
stable USD funding over a sufficiently long period in order
to improve Bank’s Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR) and to
manage the structure of foreign currency funding gap.

4. Manage non-performing loans, including through loan
restructuring, aggressive collection and collateral execution.

5. Recruit and mobilise talents to support the Bank’s
development and strengthen the organisational structure
by increasing bench strength, retention and productivity. In
addition, the Bank also encourage participation in various
level of leadership academy programmes as well as social
responsibility programmes.



6.

Increase focus on building a mass customer base through
customer acquisition to get new customers, customer
activation to build customer loyalty and customer retention
as part of sustainable business growth.

Implement a technology roadmap to build a strategic
platform and aligned with Bank’s business strategy in order
to support sustainable growth.

Embrace digitalisation by promoting awareness of
technological developments, building the required
competence as well as optimising internal resources in the
development of digital technology.

Continue to focus on improving the Bank’s performance
through the concept of “Single Captain’ which will be
reinforced by redefining tasks and responsibilities and
setting reporting matrices.

. Continue to focus on sectoral solutions strategies to better

understand customer needs through industry insights,
building banking industry/sector industry developer and
increase productivity in wealth management to improve
performance as part of the five-year strategic initiative plan.

Medium Term Plans:
Medium-term targets to be achieved by the Bank are as follows:

1.

To reach a Profit Before Tax of IDR1,369 billion in 2021.

2. Average loan growth (CAGR) of 10.38% so that at the end of
2021 total loan distribution will reach IDR98,048 billion.

3. Average deposits growth (CAGR) of 10.22% to achieve total
fund collection of IDR106,918 billion in 2021.

4. To increase Current Account and Saving Account (CASA)
ratio mix to 47.06% by end of 2021.

5. Return on Equity (ROE) of 7.74% and Return on Asset (ROA)
to 1.03%.

6 To maintain Operating Cost to Income (BOPO) ratio at
95.29% by end of 2021.

7. Maintaining Loan to Deposit (LDR) ratio at 91.41% and Loan
to Funding Ratio (LFR) ratio at 90.21%

8. To maintain Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) minimum 100%
and Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR) minimum 100% by end
of 2021.

Short Term Targets:

1.

Issuing subordinated debt under Shelf Programme I
with the maximum amount of IDRI trilion in 2019 with a
maximum period of 10 years as part of the Shelf Programme
to strengthen the capital structure Tier 2. The issuance will
be done with taking account market condition particularly
interest rate development.

2. TheBank plans to issue senior debt under Shelf Programme ||
UOB Indonesia in 2019 as much as IDR2 trillion with a period
of up to 5 years in order to diversify funding structure and
replace senior debt mature in 2019. The issuance will be
done with taking account market conditions, particularly
interest rate development.

3. Planto get offshore long-term borrowing with the maximum

amount of USD155mn (depend on the market condition)

to support foreign currency loan growth and manage the
structure foreign currency funding gap.

To reach a Profit Before Tax of IDR751 billion in 2019.

To increase loan growth by 11.93% in 2019.

To increase deposits growth by 10.02% in 2019.

To increase CASA ratio mix from 38.12% to 41.29% in 2019.

To maintain total Capital Adequacy Ratio of 15.85% by end

of 2019.

To achieve ROE 4.91% and ROA 0.68%.

10 To maintain gross Non Performing Loan (NPL) ratio at 2.35%
and increase NPL coverage ratio minimum 100%.

1. Maintaining LDR ratio at at 92.53% and LFR ratio at 91.05%

12. To maintain short term liquidity by having LCR minimum
100% and NSFR minimum 100% in 2019

13. Maintaining BOPO ratio at 97.05% by the end of 2019.

00 NOovU A
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With proper business strategies and good management
practices along with the implementation of prudent principles
and compliance with internal and external regulations, it is
expected that the Bank’s business will grow and benefit to all
stakeholders.

IX. Transparency of Bank’s Financial and Non
Financial Condition Not Yet Disclosed in
Other Reports

The Bank has fulfilled the transparency principle in
providing financial and non-financial information to the
public in a timely, complete, accurate, up to date and
comprehensive manner.

—
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X. Share Ownership and Financial and Family Relationships of Members of The Board of
Commissioners and Directors with Fellow Members of the Board of Commissioners, Directors
and/or The Controlling Shareholders of the Bank

A. Shares Ownership of Board of Commissioners and Board of Directors

Ownership
No. Name Positionin Company Name Percentage per
PT Bank UOB Indonesia (domestic and overseas) 31 December 2018
(%)
Commissioner
1 Wee Cho Yaw President Commissioner CY Wee & Company Pte Ltd 30.00
2 Wee Ee Cheong Deputy President Kheng Leong Company Pte Ltd 23.67
Commissioner Eastern Century Limited 10.40
KIP Industrial Holdings Ltd 13.00
Phoebus Singapore Holdings Pte Ltd 26.67
Portfolio Nominees Ltd 26.01
Supreme Island Corporation 26.00
UIP Holdings Ltd 10.00
Wee Investments (Pte) Ltd 26.01
Wee Venture (Overseas) Ltd 26.01
E.C. Wee Pte Ltd 98.00
CY Wee & Company Pte Ltd 30.00
3 Lee Chin Yong Francis ~ Commissioner Kemaris Development Sdn Bhd 50.00
Kemaris Holdings Sdn Bhd 50.00
Kemaris Industrial Sdn Bhd 50.00
Kemaris Residences Sdn Bhd 50.00
Kemaris Construction Sdn Bhd 50.00
4 Wayan Alit Antara Independent Commissioner  PT Citra Indah Prayasa Lestari 5.00
5  Aswin Wirjadi Independent Commissioner NIL
6  VJHBoentaran Lesmana Independent Commissioner NIL
Director
1 Lam Sai Yoke President Director NIL
2 lwan Satawidinata Deputy President Director NIL
3 Muljono Tjandra Director NIL
4 Henky Sulistyo Director NIL
5  Soehadie Tansol Compliance Director NIL
6  Paul Rafiuly Director NIL
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B. Financial and Family Relationships of Members of the Board of Commissioners and Directors with other Members
of the Board of Commissioners, Directors and/or the Controlling Shareholders of the Bank

Family Relation With

Financial Relation With

Board of Board of Controlling Board of Board of Controlling
Board of . ) L .
. Commissioners Directors Shareholders ~ Commissioners Directors Shareholders Remarks
Commissioners and
Board of Directors
Yes No No No Yes No Yes No Yes No
Yes Yes
Wee Cho Yaw 4 - - - v - v - - - v - Father of Wee Ee Cheong
Wee Ee Cheong v - - - v - v - - - v - Son of Wee Cho Yaw
Head of Group Retail,
Lee Chin Yong Francis - - - - - - - - - - v - United Overseas Bank
Limited
Wayan Alit Antara - - - - - - - - - - - - None
Aswin Wirjadi - - - - - - - - - - - - None
VJH Boentaran
- - - - - - - - - - - - None
Lesmana
Lam Sai Yoke - - - - - - - - - - - - None
Iwan Satawidinata - - - - - - - - - - - - None
Muljono Tjandra - - - - - - - - - - - - None
Henky Sulistyo - - - - - - - - - - - - None
Soehadie Tansol - - - - - - - - - - - - None
Paul Rafiuly - - - - - - - - - - - - None

X|.Disclose of Remuneration Policy

Preparation Process of Remuneration Policy

Bank has prepared Policies and Structure of Remuneration
as approved by the Board of Commissioners and stated in
Board of Directors’ Decree No. 16/SKDIR/0071 dated 16
December 2016 on Policies and Structure of Remuneration.
Such policies and structure of remuneration was devised to
support organisational capability development which take
into consideration the risk aspect and to provide competitive
excellence for business as well as flexibility on responding the
Bank’s needs and dynamic external market. HR Committee has
reviewed the remuneration policy and made some change on
deferred condition and Material Risk Taker (MRT) criteria.

Scope of Remuneration Policy
The above remuneration Policy has come into effect and has
been implemented in every business unit and regional.

Granting of Remuneration associated with Performance
and Risks

In determining the risks associated with variable remuneration,
the Bank has considered the risks that have significant influence
to business activities as the key risks in accordance to OJK
Regulation concerning implementation of risk management for
commercial bank. Key risks are risks associated with business
activities and have significant impact to the Bank’s risk profile,
which come from eight risks in the Bank’s business activities, i.e.
credit risk, market risk, liquidity risk, operational risk, legal risk,
reputational risk, strategic risk, and compliance risk.

Parties who have duties and responsibilities with significant
impact to the Bank's risk profile, are determined as Material
Risk Taker (MRT). Considering the duties and responsibilities
in decision making which significantly impact the Bank’s risk
profile, it was decided that the MRT of the Bank is the Board of
Directors with total number of 27 people.

s 2 WARN
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The Bank has governed the granting of variable remuneration

especially for MRT position. The granting of remuneration may

be deferred according to the prevailing regulations by taking

into consideration the individual performance, business unit

performance, and Bank’s performance in general.

Performance Measurement Associated with

Remuneration

The granting of variable remuneration is exercised to align the

remuneration with the taken risk in a proper manner and cover

the conformation that reflect:

1. Size of employee performance;

2. Size of financial and non-financial business performance;

3. Risks associated with the business activities, if relevant; and

4. Necessary time to effectively measure the business
activities results.

Performance appraisal is performed in accordance with the
Key Performance Indicator (KPI) which has been determined
according to the role and function of the work and the grant of
variable remuneration is done by keep observing the objectivity
and independency and executed by the HR Committee Panel.

A weak or negative financial performance may leads to decrease
or defer of performance-based variable remuneration, thus

impact to the total compensation. The provision on Granting
of Remuneration associated with Performance and Risks was
implemented in 2017.

Remuneration Adjustment Associated with Performance
and Risk

Variable remuneration cannot be hedged. The total of deferred
amount for Material Risk Taker is about 40 to 60 per cent of
total variable remuneration, by taking into consideration the
defer time associated with performance achievement. The
deferral period is at least three years based on determined risk
period and performance criteria, which is effective since 2017.

The deferred variable remuneration is variable remuneration
that is not yet due in which the granting can be deferred partly
or entirely, or deleted (malus). The Bank can also withdraw the
performance-based variable remuneration which has been paid
(claw back) to the material risk takers if there are cases such as
material risk, error in financial statements, disgraceful actions,
deviations or frauds.

External Consultant
In establishing the remuneration policy, the Bank did not use
any external consultant services.

Xll. Remuneration Package/Policy and Other Benefits for Board of Commissioners and Board

of Directors

A. Type of Remuneration and Other Benefits for Board of Commissioners and Board of Directors

(in IDR million)

Total Received in 1(One) Year

Type of Remuneration and Other Benefits

Board of Commissioners

Board of Directors

Person Total Person Total
Remuneration (salary, bonus, routine allowance, 7 2,922 U 49,767
tantiem, and other facilities in the form of cash)
Other benefits in kind (housing, transportation, - - - -
health insurance, etc.) which *
a. can be owned - - - -
b. cannot be owned - - Ul 1,051

* Counted in Rupiah equivalent
** There was a replacement of Independent Commissioner in May 2018

*** Channels and Digitalisation Director (January-September 2018), replaced by Technology and Operations Director (October-December 2018)
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B. Description of Remuneration Package for Receiver Group

Total Remuneration Per Person

Board of Commissioners Board of Directors
In1(One) Year*
Above Rp 2 Billion - 6
Above Rp 1Billion up to Rp 2 Billion 2 1
Above Rp 500 million up to Rp 1Billion - -
Under Rp 500 million 5 -

* Received in Cash

C. Variable Remuneration

Aligned with the Remuneration Policy and Structure established, variable remuneration for the Board of Commissioners and Board
of Directors includes bonus in cash.

Number of Directors, Commissioners and employees who receive variable remuneration in 1 (one) year and the total amount can
be seen in the the following table.

(in IDR million)

Total Received in 1(One) Year

Variable Remuneration Board of Commissioners Board of Directors Employee
Person Total Person Total Person Total
Total 3 223 7 25,587 4,028 187,386

D. Position and Number of Material Risk Takers

No. Position Number of Person

1 Board of Commissioners -

2  Board of Directors 6

3 Employees 21

E. Shares Option
During 2018, PT Bank UOB Indonesia did not grant Share Options to Commissioners, Directors or Employees.

F. Highest and Lowest Salary Ratio

o Ratio
Description
2017 2018
Ratio of the highest and lowest salary of the employees 1:93.18 1:116.36
Ratio of the highest and lowest salary of the Board of Directors 1:1.64 1:2.28
Ratio of the highest and lowest salary of the Board of Commissioners 1:8.30 1:10.38
Ratio of the highest salary of the Board of Directors and highest salary of the employee 1:1.79 1:1.09
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G. Number of Recipient and Total Amount of Unconditional Variable Remuneration Provided by the Bank to
Candidates of the Board of Directors, Candidates of the Board of Commissioners and/or Employee Candidates
for the first 1 (one) Year of Work

(in IDR million)
Total Received in 1(One) Year
Unconditional Yarlable Board of Commissioners Board of Directors Employee
Remuneration
Person Total Person Total Person Total
Total - - - - - -
H. Service Terminationed and Total Amount of Severance Paid
Total Severance Paid per Person in 1(One) Year Number of Employee
Above Rpl billion -
Between Rp500 million until Rp1 billion -
Rp500 million below 17
Nil 38
I. Total Amount of Deferred Variable Remuneration which Consist of Cash
(in IDR million)
Deferred Variable Board of Commissioners Board of Directors Employee
Remuneration
Person Total Person Total Person Total
Total - - 6 7,925 20 8,280

J. Number of Recipient and Total Variable Remuneration with Deferred Payment for 1(One) Year

(in IDR million)

Deferred Variable Board of Commissioners Board of Directors Employee
Remuneration

Person Total Person Total Person Total
Total - - - - - -
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K. Detail Amount of Remuneration Provided in 1(One) Year

A. Fixed Remuneration *

1. Cash 66,212

2. Shares/Shares-based Instruments Issued by the Bank -

B. Variable Remuneration*

Not Deferred Deferred

1. Cash 40,253 16,205

2. Shares/Shares-based Instruments Issued by the Bank - -

“Only for MRT in IDR million.

L. Quantitative

Total Deductions during Reporting Period

. . Remaining Deferred Due to Due to
Type of Variable Remuneration Amount Explicit Implicit Total
Adjustment  Adjustment (A)+(B)
(A) (B)
1. Cash/Tunai 24,781 - - -

2. Shares/Shares-based Instruments
Issued by the Bank

“ Only for MRT in IDR million.

XIIl. Number of Internal Fraud Cases and Bank’s Effort to Settle the Cases

The number of fraud cases in 2018 is shown in the table below.

Total Cases Conducted By

Board of Directors’
Member and Board
of Commisioners’

Non Permanent
Permanent Employee Employee and

Internal Fraud in 1(One) Year Outsourcing Staff

Member
Previous Curer:rnt Previous Cureraernt Previous Cu;raernt
year (2017) é 018) year (2017) é 018) year (2017) (; 018)
Total number of fraud case 0 0 10 6 0 2
Has been settled 0 0 8 4 0 2
In settlement process in internal Bank 0 0 0 0 0 0
Settlement has not yet been attempted 0 0 0 0 0 0
Has been followed up through legal process 0 0 2 2 0 0

—
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XIV. Number of Legal Cases and Bank’s Effort to Settle the Cases

The legal cases involving the Bank as at 31 December 2018 are detailed in the table below:

Number of cases

Civil Law
Legal Cases
Bank UOB Bank UOB Criminal Law
Indonesia as Indonesia as
plaintiff defendant
Settled (has permanent legal power) 1 19 0
In settlement process 2 62 0
Total 3 81 0

XV. Legal Cases Faced by the Board of
Commissioners and Board of Directors
Throughout 2018 there were no important cases
faced by the Bank involving members of the Board of
Commissioners and/or Board of Directors.

XVI. Administrative Sanctions
In 2018, there was no significant administrative sanction.
Most of the administrative sanctions imposed were
caused by error and lateness in transactional reports.
The Bank has followed-up on improvement actions
in reporting, as well as the risk mitigation such as by
conducting training and improving systems and controls.

PT BANK UOB INDONESIA ANNUAL REPORT 2018

XVIl.Transactions Involving Conflict of Interest
In 2018, there were no transactions within the Bank that
can be classified as conflict of interest transactions.

XVIII. Bank’s Share and Bond Buybacks

In 2018, the Bank did not perform any share or bond
buyback.

XIX. Donation for Social and Political Activities
During the Period of 2018
The Bank believes in its ability to actively develop
a better environment by participating in various
activities to develop the community. Below are the
Bank’s community activities in 2018:



Category Type of Activity Description Total Fund (in IDR)
Total Dana
Employee volunteers worked hand-in-hand in a series of
Cook With Love &  activities, including planting hydrophonic trees, financial
Share The Happiness literacy sessions, cooking healthy food, as well as 50,000,000
2018 donating musical instruments to support the educational
programme .
‘ UOB Indonesia’s employees raised funds to support art
Social aer education for students across Jakarta and greater area, and 230,000,000
Community Maluku through Mari Berbagi Seni movement.
Relations
UOB Indonesia held an employee fundraising through an
UOB Heartbeat art class session.
UOB Indonesia raised funds from its employees to
support more than 400 children of whom impacted by 100,000,000
the earthquake and tsunami in Palu through a cultural
festival.
Sacrificial Livestock To celebrate Islamic Day of Sacrifice 1439 H, employees
Event distributed qurban offerings to neighbours around the 128,280,600
office.
To celebrate Idul Fitri 1439 H, UOB Indonesia held a charity
. event at an orphanage, distributed staple food packages
Mugtrsifdan;:’fay to more than 2,000 UOB employees and “Mudik Bersama” 522,015,000
Religious ) for 292 employees and their families, and provided daycare
facility to employees’ children 5 days after Idul Fitri.
In celebration of Christmas, UOB Indonesia’s employees
. organised a community engagement event, and raised
Los Chr|s.tmas funds to support Kelompok Kerja Sosial (KKS) Melati 26.000.000
Celebration . . - .
Foundation, which focuses on providing services on
literacy for the underprivileged children.
Scholarship for Education donations for 128 employees’ children with 148 900 000
Employees’ Children  outstanding achievements. U
Education Scholarship for EduFation donations for 23 employges with outstanding 388,910,000
Employees achievements to seek higher education.
Internship Provided an opportunity for final-year university students 121,600,000

to have an experience in the work environment.
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Category Type of Activity Description Total Fund (in IDR)
Total Dana
Mapping Post- Introduction of Banking Products and Banking as a career
Graduate Life:
Introduction to 640,000
Banking Services and
Career
Provision of financial literacy, market outlook and digital
Sustaining The Digital economic development information to university and 1071550
Growth in Indonesia  Social and Political Science Faculty (FISIP) lecturer at B
Universitas Parahyangan.
Fihancial UOB Inspirasi: Mulai  Introduction of the benefits of savings from an early age 2091300
Literacy menabung, yuk! to grade schooler at Sekolah Anak Jalanan (SAJA) B
UOB Indonesia Provision of professional information related to the latest
. S o 2,228,000,000
Economic Outlook  local and global economic situation and condition.
2018
Ignite !—:ducat~e umveryty Stgdent regarding banking industry 71,496,000
including financial services to consumers.
Transaction Banking  Increase knowledge of UOB Internet Banking features and
Experience Center  the use of internet banking for corporate customers. 165,000,000
(TBEX)
Participation in Art Jakarta 2018 to showcase the works
154,440,000
Art Jakarta of UOB Painting of the Year's winners and finalists” alumni.
Discovery and support new generations of artists through
Painting competition the 201§ UOB Painting of th‘e.Ye'ar conjpetltlor], while 560,000,000
connecting them to opportunities in the international art
stage.
UOB Indonesia held series of art talk sessions in four 312.156.795
UOB Painting of the  cities, Jakarta, Bandung, Yogyakarta and Bali. The talks e
Year Road Show focused on helping the local community to have a better
understanding on the current art scene.
Art Art workshop with underprivileged children in four cities,
UOB Art Apprentice  Jakarta, Bandung, Yogyakarta, and Bali, led by UOB Painting
of the Year finalist, together with employee volunteers.
UOB is the Major Education Partner of the Museum
MACAN. The partnership strengthens the cross-sector
UOB Museurn supp?rrht fsr tar’c ar;]d eFJu(l:a‘;lon in Jgkartfa and the greate}:
MACAN Major area. The Partnerships includes a series of programme, suc 1,000,000,000

Education Partner

as Monthly School Visits, School Outreach Programme,
MACAN Educators Forum, Education Resource Kit, and
a dedicated education area for children, UOB Museum
MACAN Children’s Art Space.

Total Contribution

5,310,601,245
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XX. Code of Conduct

A. Code of Conduct

The code of conduct is the basis of the Bank's corporate
governance framework which reflects the Bank’s commitment to
act fairly, properly and does not break the law. The management
and employees, without exception, are committed to continue
and enhance the implementation of corporate governance
practices that promote moral and ethical principles appropriate
to Bank’s code of conduct.

B. Coverage of Code of Conduct Implementation

All parties including the Board of Directors, Board of
Commissioners and employees without exception, must
understand, comply with and implement Code of Conduct.

C. Main Points of the Code of Conduct

The Bank periodically reviews the contents of the Code
of Conduct and disseminates them to all employees and
management, ensuring the guidelines and codes of conduct
are understood and executed. The Bank’s Code of Conduct is
outlined in 6 (six) components, namely:

1. Responsibilities at the Work Place
The Bank is responsible for creating a conducive working
environment which is non-discriminatory in nature. The
Bank also provides regular training to all employees and
assesses the effectiveness of training activities regularly.

2. Responsibilities to the Customers and Other External
Parties
The Code of Conduct contains provisions to treat
Customers fairly, prohibit employees from accepting any
gift and entertainment where it may appear to others that
business judgment has been compromised or conflicts with
employees’ duty, prohibit employees from accepting money
from external parties, and requires employees to exercise
appropriate business judgment when selecting third-
party business associates or vendors. An employee may
participate in political activities if he or she has obtained
prior approval from Human Resources function.

3. Responsibilities to the Bank

Employees are obliged to cooperate with external and
internal investigators, to safeguard the interests of the
Bank in terms of intellectual property rights and the
use of information technology tools, to ensure accurate
documentation is in place, to ensure proper records
retention and proper handling of records’ disposal, and
are prohibited to influence other employees to leave the
employment of the Bank or draw business away from the
Bank (non-solicitation).

4. Confidentiality
Every employee shall protect the privacy of customers as
well as the confidentiality of customers’ data.

5. External Investment and Activities
The Bank prohibits insider trading, avoid involvement in
transactions that contain conflict of interest and prohibits
any activities outside the Bank which directly or indirectly
may interfere the performance of that employee and/or
Bank.

6. Legal Provisions and Other Major Compliance
The Bank’s provisions prohibit any violation of the prevailing
anti-trust law and oblige employees to comply with all
prevailing laws and regulations.

D. Dissemination of Enforcement and Sanctions
of Code of Conduct

Socialisation for the Bank’s Code of Conduct is executed from
the time an employee joins the Bank, when he is required to
read, understand and sign to indicate his compliance with the
Bank’s Code of Conduct. In ensuring that the employee has
read, understand and implement the provision of Bank’s Code
of Conduct, the Bank requires its employee to fill a declaration
letter for an annual basis, in which the content is to declare
that the employee has read and understand the provision of
Bank’s Code of Conduct as refreshment. The Bank also regularly
creates Code of Conduct awareness through HR News.

As an enforcement action, the Bank has also monitored the
transactions of the employees’ account, monitor employees’
change of behaviour and use vendor services to screen
candidate’s data and profile and also conduct Financial Service
Information System (SLIK) checking.

Employees are expected to be responsible for and to participate
actively in preserving and enforcing the provision of Bank’s
Code of Conduct.

XXI. Corporate Culture

The Bank believes in the importance of fundamentals aspect in
doing business. To that end, the Bank utilises its experience and
expertise to support customers wherever they are. The Bank
strives to provide the right solutions for customers to grow
their assets, manage their business, and capture opportunities
across the region. The Bank also believes in the importance
of nurturing deep relationship and staying committed for
economic and society growth where we operate.

In this way, the Bank creates value for all of stakeholders, now
and in the future.
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The core values of the Bank are as follows:

» Honourable - we act prudently to fuel our customers’
success and maintain the highest professional and moral
standard in all we do.

e Enterprising - we possess a forward-looking mindset,
provide deep insight and taking initiative to find solutions.

* United - we reach our corporate and individual goals
through cooperation, mutual respect and loyalty.

o Committed - we are accountable for ensuring that UOB is a
trusted source of stability, security and strength.

XXII. Whistleblowing

The Bank has established a policy and procedures for
whistleblowing. This policy provides for any employee to
report in confidence any breach or potential breach of laws,
regulations, and the UOB Indonesia’s policies, guidelines and
code of conduct. UOB Indonesia prohibits reprisal against
whistleblowers who have acted in good faith. Whistleblowers
may report through Whistleblowing Hotline, or to their
respective direct supervisor, Internal Audit Head, President
Director or Chairman of the Audit Committee.

A. Whistleblowing Procedure

Any whistleblowing report should be made based on fact.
Anonymous reports received will be handled according to
established procedures. The whistleblower must provide
clear information and evidence which can be investigated
and followed-up accordingly and has to be submitted either
verbally or written to the whistleblowing channels. However,
the process relies on the severity or sensitivity of the related
issues and the party suspected to commit the offence. If
the whistleblower feels uncomfortable to report the issue
or has suspicion on the management staff (including direct
supervisor/manager) and the Directors, then the report must
be directly submitted to the Internal Audit Head or Chairman
of the Audit Committee.

B. Protection for Whistleblower and Reported
Party

Any whistleblower submitting the report according to the
policy, and acting in good faith, will be protected from the
risk of dismissal or retaliatory action. The protection is not
valid for a whistleblower who intentionally submits a false
report, or reports made with malicious intent. UOB Indonesia
will protect the whistleblower’s identity and will not disclose
his/her identity without their permission. If there are any
particular circumstances where UOB Indonesia fails to settle
the issue without disclosing the whistleblower’s identity (e.g.
due to the evidence is required by the Court), UOB Indonesia
will discuss it with the whistleblower on how to follow-up this
issue. UOB Indonesia assures that every report submitted to
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the UOB Indonesia’s officers will be treated with a high level

of confidentiality. UOB Indonesia will also optimally strive to

protect the confidentiality of whistleblower or a suspected
party, and for anyone who provides information during the
investigation process based on the prevailing laws. Internal

Audit officers who are in charge of Whistleblowing Hotline

will respond to every report submitted as well as ongoing issue

through the following mechanism:

e Followed up by proper party according to the roles and
responsibilities as stated in UOB Indonesia’s Whistleblowing
Policy.

» Referred to the police if needed based on decision of HR
Committee.

» Reported to President Director, Board of Commissioners
and Audit Committee.

The policy implementation is not limited to the complaint
severity, credibility and the extent to which it can be verified
by existing sources.

C. Result of Whistleblowing

During 2018, there were four cases reported through
whistleblowing hotline, three cases have been resolved and the
remaining one case is being further investigated.

XXIIl. Internal Communications

The Bank uses various internal communications media to
educate its employees about banking industry, and to provide
information on related business activities, policies, and the
Bank’s plan. The internal communications network consist of:

1. UOB Intranet Portal
An online intranet portal containing important information
to support Bank’s services and daily operations.

2. CEO Message
Containing information about Bank’s strategic plan and
achievement, also congratulatory messages on religious and
cultural activities presented by the President Director.

3. E-Learning
Conducted as a refreshment of implementing the Bank's
policy information in which all UOB staff must participate
in. The information provided includes policies on Know Your
Customer, Anti-Money Laundering, IT Security Awareness,
Fair Dealing, Insider Trading and other policies related to
banking operations.

4. Daily News
Sent on a daily basis to all staff which containing news
summaries associated to financial institution and UOB
Indonesia coverage in various printed and online media.
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HR News
Sent to all staff which containing information on policies
related to human resources in the Bank’s environment.

PFS News

Containing information related to promotional activities
carried out by the Personal Financial Services (PFS) function
on privilege banking, savings, time deposits, credit cards,
housing loans and other internal events held by PFS.

TSB News
Containing information on activities
Transaction Banking (TSB) Function.

conducted by

Customer Advocacy and Service Quality (CASQ)
Containing routine publication on information associated
to customers’ service quality.

IT News

Containing information related to policies relating to the
information and technology systems within the Bank’s
environment.

Risk Management
Containing information on risk imanagement policies in the
Bank.

Poster

The Bank created posters which contain information related
to the Bank’s policies, and stationed in staff’s offices, both in
head office and branch offices.

Screen Saver

The latest information about programmes related to the
employees’ personal development is provided in the form
of a screen saver on the computers of employees.

XXIV. Corporate Social Responsibility

UOB Indonesia is dedicated to helping customers to manage
their personal and business financial, and in conducting the
Bank's business activities, we also committed in empowering
the community where we operate. On that, the Bank is actively
participating in the community through Corporate Social
Responsibility.

XXV. Customer Protection

The Bank conducts its business in a responsible manner. We
provide quality services to our customers and ensure their
financial needs are met. Our Customer Service and Call Centre
always support every need relating to customer transactions.
To ensure that the complaints and concerns of customers
are well addressed, the Bank has implemented a policy for
handling complaints and settling disputes with customers. Bank
procedures in receiving customer complaints in a branch office
or our business units and for the settlement of disputes carried
out in accordance with Indonesian laws and other regulations
through Circular No. 18/SCA/0008 regarding Revised
Guidelines for Acceptance and Settlement of Customer
Complaints. Customers who want to give feedback on the
services of the Bank can fill out a form provided by Customer
Service Officers at our branches. In addition, the Bank also
provides information to customers about banking mediation
through posters mounted on our branches and website (www.
uob.co.id). The Bank Call Centre is equipped with an automatic
answering machine and call center agent service for 24 hours.
Call Centre handles customer questions about credit cards,
savings and loans. We continuously improve the quality of
service, therefore the Bank regularly holds special development
programme for the agents to increase their knowledge and
ensure the delivery of accurate information to customers
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Good Corporate Governance

Table of Customer Complaint of 2018

Resolved

Types of In Progress Unresoved
No. 8 Number of
Financial Transaction Complaints
Total Percentage Total Percentage Total Percentage
1 ATM / Debit Card 502 97% 15 3% 0 0% 517
2 Bancassurance 2 100% 0 0% 0 0% 2
3 Electronic Banking 34 100% 0 0% 0 0% 34
4  Giro 6 100% 0 0% 0 0% 6
5  Credit Card 721 87% 12 13% 0 0% 833
6  Consumer Loan / Financing 6 100% 0 0% 0 0% 6
7 Workihg Capital Loan / 2 100% 0 0% 0 0% 2
Financing
8  Remittance 3 100% 0 0% 0 0% 3
9 Real Time Gross Settlement ] 100% 0 0% 0 0% 1
(RTGS)
10 Standing Instruction 1 100% 0 0% 0 0% 1
TOTAL 1,278 91% 127 9% 0 0% 1,405

As at 31 December 2018

XXVI.General Conclusion of The Result of Self-
Assessment of the Implementation of
Good Corporate Governance at PT Bank
UOB Indonesia

The Bank conducted a self-assessment of its implementation of
Good Corporate Governance principles as at December 2018.

The Bank is rated by comparing its Good Corporate Governance
implementation against the minimum criteria set by the
Financial Services Authority (OJK).

The Management is fully aware that the Bank should implement
Good Corporate Governance to gain trust from customers as
well as shareholders.

The Bank believes that Good Corporate Governance should
be achieved with high standards in order to support business
(for business growth, profitability, and value-added for all
stakeholders) as well as to enhance its ability so that long-term
business sustainability can be achieved.

Based on the GCG Self-Assessment in the 2" Half of 2018, the
Bank scored a composite rating of 2, which means that the Bank
has achieved generally ‘Good” GCG implementation. This is
reflected by the adequate fulfilment of GCG principles.
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Below is the result of GCG Self-Assessment viewed from
the aspect of governance structure, governance process and
governance outcome.

The Bank has conducted a self-assessment of the
implementation of Good Corporate Governance principles for
the period of January to December 2018. In general, the Good
Corporate Governance principles have been applied to satisfy
all assessment factors and has included aspects of governance
structure, governance process and governance outcome
adequately.

Based on the assessment of the Governance Structure aspect,
the Bank’s organisational structure is made up of a Board of
Commissioners, a Board of Directors and Committees, as well as
work functions according to the Bank’s needs and has complied
with regulatory requirements. Its organisational structure is
supported by a comprehensive set of policies and procedures,
and management information system, as well as the provision
of main duties and functions.

In the aspect of Governance Process, the Bank has periodically
conducts inspections to ensure effectiveness of the
implementation of Bank's policies, procedures and management
information system by an independent Internal Audit Work
Unit and External Audit periodically.



In general, the Bank has achieved good results in 2018,
particularly in the aspect of:

N N

adequacy of report transparency;

compliance with laws and regulations;

customer protection;

objectivity in performing assessment/audit;

Bank performance (in earnings, efficiency, and capital); and
improvement of compliance with prevailing provisions.

In terms of strategic plans, the Bank’s performance by the end
of 2018 can be reflected from:

1.

2.

3.

NPBT reached IDR710 billion or 94.69 per cent of the target.
Lending reached IDR73,937 billion or 5.83 per cent above
target.

Funding reached IDR77,251 billion or 99.74 per cent of target.
Capital Adequacy Ratio (CAR) at 15.34 per cent, which is still
above regulatory requirement.

Core capital ratio against Risk Weighted Asset (RWA) at
13.08 per cent.

The Bank also supports Government programme to create
economic independence by providing credit to tourism for 3.91
per cent, infrastructure for 3.91 per cent, maritime for 140 per
cent, and agriculture economic sectors for 6.80 per cent from
the Bank total loans as at the end of 2018.

Based on the assessments results of the governance aspects,
a few areas for enhancement have been identified as follows:

1.

Improvements are still required in the Bank’s internal control
system, i.e. related to administrative sanctions imposed by
regulators due to error in regulatory reporting, which was
generally caused by human error and lack of control from
supervisor. As form of improvement actions and prevention
of similar incidents from occurring, the Bank has form task
force to analyse potential errors in regulatory reporting and
other necessary improvements.

As a means to improve and prevent punitive measures from

regulators, the Bank has performed the following:

- Formed a task force to analyse potential regulatory
reporting error and improvements required.

- Review to increase the weight of Key Performance
Indicator (KPI) deduction point.

- Conduct refreshment training to reporting officer and
its supervisor.

Socialisation of policies related to risk managements need

to be constantly improved in line with the development

of business strategies, changes of internal and external

factors and employee turnovers, in order to maintain the

implementation consistencies.
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Risk Management

Risk Management holds a very important role in UOB Indonesia
to support the sustainability of business activities. A good risk
management implementation supports the Bank to prevent
losses and minimise future potential losses. Additionally, a
proper and effective risk management implementation also
could provide additional value for shareholders, as UOB
Indonesia could take proper anticipated measures through the
availability of the updated information on potential risks.

Risk Management in UOB Indonesia is implemented thoroughly
to support the sustainability and business growth of the Bank.
This process is in accordance with the Risk Management vision
which is “To have risk management embedded as a culture
(risk aware) to support sustainable, trustworthy and sound
business growth” With this strong risk management culture,
the risks arising from business activities shall be consistently
identified, managed, monitored, supported with internal
control and followed up with the appropriate measures, to
minimise the impact of risk, if or when it occurs. The impact
of failure in mitigating risks on a timely basis may be very
significant. However, if the risks are identified and mitigated
effectively and promptly, it may result in opportunities for
business development. Hence, the Bank constantly develops
and implements risk management controls for all its inherent
risks.

In order to achieve the risk management vision, the Bank has

established its risk management mission as follows:

1. Promotion of sustainable long-term growth through
embracing sound risk management principles and business
practices;

2. Continual improvement of risk discovery capabilities and
establishment of appropriate value-creating risk controls;
and

3. Facilitating business development within a prudent,
consistent and efficient risk management framework that
balances risks and returns.

The risks taken by UOB Indonesia in implementing its business
strategies are managed in accordance with the Bank’s prudential
principle. The Bank also has established Risk Management
values which are “AWARE” (Accountable, Weighted, Accurate,
Responsive, and Excellence).
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Risk management is also the responsibility of every employee
within the Bank. Risk awareness and accountability are
embedded in our culture through an established framework
that ensures appropriate oversight and accountability for the
effective management of risk throughout the Bank and across
risk types. This is executed through an organisational control
structure that provides three “lines-of-defence” as follows:

1. First Line of Defence — The Risk Owner

The business and support functions have primary
responsibility for implementing and executing effective
controls for the management of risks arising from their
business activities. This includes establishing adequate
managerial and supervisory controls to ensure compliance
with approved risk policies, appetite, limits and controls and
to highlight control breakdowns, inadequacy of processes
and unexpected risk events.

2. Second Line of Defence - Risk Oversight
The risk and control oversight functions (such as
Risk Management, Compliance, and Integrated Fraud
Management) and the Risk Management Director/Chief
Risk Officer (CRO) provide the second line of defence.

The risk and control oversight functions support UOB
Indonesia’s strategy of balancing growth with stability by
establishing risk frameworks, policies, appetite and limits
within which the business functions must operate. The risk
and control oversight functions are also responsible for
the independent review and monitoring of the Bank’s risk
profile and highlighting any significant vulnerabilities and
risk issues to the respective management committees.

The independence of risk and control oversight functions
from business functions ensures the necessary checks and
balances are in place.

3. Third Line of Defence — Independent Audit:

The Bank’s internal and external auditors conduct risk-based
audits covering all aspects of the first and second lines of
defence to provide independent assurance to the President
Director and Board of Commisioners (BOC) through Audit
Committee on the effectiveness of the risk management
and control structure, policies, frameworks, systems and
processes.
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Risk Management

As governed in the regulatory provision, UOB Indonesia established an independent Risk Management Function which directly
reports to the President Director.

President Director

Risk Management
Director

Market and
Balance Sheet Risk
Management

Operational and
Enterprise Risk
Management

Credit Risk
Management

Special Asset
Management

Risk Management Function, actively reviews the overall risk appetite and risk limits for each type of risk, develops Risk Management
policies and procedures in accordance with the business strategy of the Bank, and emphasises that the risk management process
should also involve all relevant parties in the business lines. Hence, the Bank seeks to build a strong Risk Management culture
through the implementation of various risk awareness campaigns coordinated by Risk Management.

Risk Management aims to improve the quality of managing UOB Indonesia through two aspects, which are to maintain capital
and optimise returns in accordance with the risk appetite. Due to a wide scale of operation and increase of business volume, UOB
Indonesia continues to improve the quality of risk management in a comprehensive and integrated manner (Enterprise-wide Risk
Management) through process of identification, measurement, monitoring and controlling risk exposures across all organisational
lines promptly and accurately.

A. General Risk Management Implementation

UOB Indonesia implements Risk Management framework which covered the implementation of four pillars of Risk Management
in accordance with OJK Regulation No.18/POJK.03,/2016 regarding Risk Management Implementation for Commercial Banks which
consists of:

1. Active supervision of the Board of Commissioners and Directors

2. Adequacy of policies, procedures, and limits

3. Risk Management processes and Risk Management information system

4. Internal control system

with brief explanations as follows:

Al Active Supervision by Board of Commissioners and Directors

Board of Commissioners and Directors are responsible to ensure the adequacy of Risk Management implementation aligned with
the characteristics, complexity, and risk profile of the Bank, and to have a good understanding of the types and levels of risks
inherent in the business activities of UOB Indonesia.

UOB Indonesia has several committees at the Board of Commissioners level which consist of the Risk Monitoring Committee,
the Remuneration and Nomination Committee, and the Audit Committee. In the process of supervision, the Risk Monitoring
Committee conducts regular meetings with the Risk Management Function to oversee the implementation of the Risk Management
Framework in UOB Indonesia.
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Meanwhile at the Board of Directors level, UOB Indonesia has
various committees such as the Risk Management Committee
(RMC), the Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO), the
Credit Policy Committee (CPC), and others. The duties and
responsibilities of these committees are to review the adequacy
of the Risk Management methodologies, policies, procedures
and authorisation of limits. These duties and responsibilities
are documented in the Terms of Reference of each committee.

To support the Risk Management implementation, the Board
of Directors determines clear qualification criteria for risk
management personnel and ensures sufficiency of competent
staff through recruitment and various programmes including
continuous development and training, succession planning and
job rotations. These ensure that officers and staff understand
and manage risks in accordance with the Risk Management
Framework.

A.2 Adequacy of Policy, Procedure, and Limit

UOB Indonesia establishes various Risk Management
Frameworks, Policies and Procedures to identify, measure,
monitor and control risks. The Risk Management Function
continues to develop and update these frameworks, policies,
and procedures to align with the changes in UOB Indonesia’s
business activities and any regulatory requirements.

UOB Indonesia reviews the risk appetite regularly in order to
align with the changes of internal and external conditions of
the Bank, management expectations, as well as the regulatory
provisions. Risk limits have been in place for various risk types
and in line with the Bank’s risk appetite. All excess limits and
any significant changes are escalated to the related Directors
and officers for further action plans.

A3 Risk Management Process and Risk Management
Information System

UOB Indonesia implements Risk Management through four

stages which consist of:

1. Risk identification: conducted pro-actively, by analysing
all sources of risk on the products and activities of Bank,
including ensuring the adequacy process of identification
and assessment of the inherent risks on new products and
activities prior to its launch;

2. Risk measurement: conducted in regular basis to measure
overall and individual risk factors and exposures on all
products and business activities of Bank;

3. Risk monitoring: covers monitoring the level of risk
exposure, risk tolerance, internal limit compliance, stress
testing result, and consistency between the implementation
and the established policies and procedures; and

4. Risk controlling: conducted through a framework of
policies, processes, and procedures which include the
determination of exposure and concentration limits, proper
segregation of duties, and other risk mitigation methods as
well as improvement of control functions at all activities of
the Bank.

To support the overall Risk Management process, the Bank
implementsand develops arobust Risk Management information
system in order to identify, measure, monitor, and control risks.
The Risk Management Function also provides various reports
of UOB Indonesias Risk Management implementation to the
Board of Directors and Senior Executive Officer, as well as
regulators.

UOB Indonesia conducts investment to build and develop
Information Technology based-automation systems to ensure
the accuracy of risk profile monitoring process result. Some of
these automation processes have been in place to identify and
detect any changes in the risk profile promptly and accurately
so that the Bank can take effective and efficient risk mitigating
measures.

A.4 Internal Control System

An effective internal control system is performed towards the

implementation of business and operational activities at all

organisation levels to support the process of Risk Management
implementation based on the established policies and
procedures which include:

1. Conduct segregation of duties between operational units
with risk control units;

2. Assign an independent Risk Management Function, which is
responsible in developing various Risk Management policies,
limits and, develop risk measurement methodologies, as
well as performing data/model validation;

3. Assign an independent Internal Audit Function, responsible
in conducting periodic audits, document audit findings
and management responses of the audit result, and also
reviewing the follow up of audit findings; and

4. Review and monitor every transaction and functional
activities that have risk exposures as necessary, which is
performed by each unit.

B. Risk Management Implementation for Each
Risk Type

The Bank established various Risk Management policies which
consist of eight types of risk; Credit Risk, Market Risk, Liquidity
Risk, Operational Risk, Compliance Risk, Strategic Risk, Legal
Risk and Reputation Risk.
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Risk Management

B.1 Credit Risk

Credit Risk is defined as the risk of loss arising from any failure
by a debtor or a counterparty to fulfill its financial obligations as
and when they fall due. Credit Risk is the single largest risk that
the Bank faces in its core business as a commercial bank, arising
primarily from loans and other lending-related commitments
to retail, corporate and institutional borrowers. Treasury
and capital market operations, and investments also expose
UOB Indonesia to counterparty and issuer Credit Risks. UOB
Indonesia believes that a disciplined approach toward credit
risk measurement is essential to the effective understanding
and management of credit risk.

Credit Risk Management Governance Structure

Board of Commissioners, Directors and Senior Executive

Officers are responsible to ensure the following governance

activities:

1. Ensure the adequacy of Risk Management resources

2. Review the overall risk profile, limits and tolerance

3. Review and approve risk measurement models and
approaches

4. Approve Bank’s credit policies

5. Approve credit concentration limits (including industry,
borrower, obligor and portfolio limits)

6. Approve Internal Rating-Based (IRB) parameters, models
and scorecards in accordance with the Bank policies

To support the above responsibilities related to Credit Risk
Management, UOB Indonesia has several committees at
Director level such as Credit Committee (CC) to give approval
decision for credit proposal and Credit Policy Committee
(CPC) to give approval for credit policies in UOB Indonesia and
monitor any credit issue related to policy implementation.

In line with FSA policy concerning Application of Responsible
Financing, the Bank will continue to apply and enhanced
its Environmental, Social, and Governance (ESG) policy and
approach for wholesale banking segment debtors, which aims
to direct customers to conduct their business practices with
due regard for the environment.

Credit Risk Management (CRM) Division provides independent
oversight of Credit Risk and is responsible to report and conduct
analysis of all elements of Credit Risk. CRM develops various
core policies and guidelines related to Credit activities, and
also monitors and manages Credit Risk within the established
framework. CRM actively engages with business functions to
manage credit issues, which focus in facilitating the prudent
business developments, consistently and in accordance with
the Credit Risk Management Framework. It aims to create
added value for the Bank through the implementation of Credit
Risk method and policies consistently.
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To maintain independency and integrity of the credit
approval process, Credit Approval Function is separated from
business functions. Credit Approval Function is independently
responsible for performing overall analysis, evaluation, and
credit approval without relying on external credit assessors.
Credit Approval Function performs its duties guided by the
credit policies, product programmes and credit initiation
guidelines.

Furthermore, UOB Indonesia has an independent credit review
process and independent credit processing function namely
Independent Credit Review Unit (ICRU), to ensure all accounts
are properly graded and classified according to internal policies
and regulatory provisions.

Credit Risk Management Framework

Credit Risk Management Framework covers the whole cycle of
Credit Risk, supported by comprehensive Credit Risk process,
which also use models to quantify and manage the risk
efficiently and consistently.

Credit Risk Mitigation

As a basic principle of credit activity, the Bank does not grant
credit facilities based solely on the collateral provided. All
credit facilities are granted based on the credit standing of the
borrower, source of repayment and debt servicing ability.

Collateral is taken whenever possible to mitigate Credit Risk
and the value of the collateral is monitored periodically. The
frequency of valuation depends on the type, liquidity, and
volatility of the collateral value. The main types of collateral
taken by the Bank are cash, marketable securities, real estate,
equipment, inventory and receivables.

Credit Assessment and Approval

Approval of credit facilities and exposures to borrowers
and/or other counterparties is in accordance to the credit
discretionary limits approved by the Board of Commissioners
(BOC). UOB Indonesia has established a structure for the
delegation of Credit Discretionary Limits (CDL), including the
escalation process for approval of exception, excesses and
credit extension beyond prescribed limits.

The delegation of CDL follows a stringent process that takes
into consideration the experience, seniority and track record
of the officer. Credit Risk Management Division acts as the
custodian of the CDL structure to ensure that the CDLs are
properly administered and reviewed.



Credit Management and Special Asset Management

UOB Indonesia classifies its credit portfolios according to
borrower’s ability to repay the credit facility from their normal
source of income. All borrowing accounts are categorised
into Pass, Special Mention, or Non-Performing (Substandard,
Doubtful or Loss) in accordance with the regulatory provisions.
Account grading must be supported by a credit assessment
based on OJK’s three pillars i.e. the repayment capability,
business prospect, and debtor’s performance.

Retail Credit Management and Special Asset Management
Divisions respectively monitor weak credits and manage non
performing assets. These units are separate from the loan
origination units to ensure independency and objectivity in
managing NPL.

Impairment

Credit facilities are downgraded to impaired/non-performing

loan status when any of the following criterias are met:

1. the principal and / or interest are in past due more than 90
days;

2 the outstanding amount, including interest of a revolving
credit facility is in excess for more than 90 days; and

3. the credit facility exhibits weaknesses that render a
classification appropriate, although the amount past due or
in excess is less than 90 days.

UOB Indonesia uses both Individual and Collective approaches
in determining the impairment allowances.

Credit Risk Management Policies

The Bank established various policies to manage Credit Risk

among others as follows:

1. General Credit Policy for Corporate, Commercial, Bank
(including Non-Bank Financial Institution) and Sovereign
that governs the principles of credit extension and the
broad credit principles and standards by which the Bank
undertakes and manages Credit Risk. This policy also
includes the Credit Classification rule that governs the
assessment of credit quality based on five credit grades of
Pass, Special Mention, Substandard, Doubtful and Loss;

2. Consumer Credit Policy that governs the principles of credit
extension, the credit principles and standards by which the
Bank undertakes and manages Credit Risk for the consumer
segment;

3. Credit Concentration Risk Management Policy that manages
Credit Concentration Risk;

4. Credit Restructuring Policy (Non-Retail) provides guidance
on restructuring credit facilities to borrowers who are facing
difficulties in meeting their financial obligation to the Bank.

5. Green Banking Guidelines, on UOB Indonesias role to
support the Government’s programme to preserve the
environment;

6. Watchlist Accounts Guidelines provide the criteria of
watchlist accounts and guidance on the management of
watchlist accounts. These watchlist accounts require close
monitoring due to the potential deterioration of borrower’s
repayment capability;

7. The Asset Classification Policy lays down the guidelines for
classifying exposures into the Basel Il Asset Classes for Risk
Weighted Asset calculation;

8. The Credit Risk Mitigation Policy specifies the types and
minimum requirements for collateral, guarantees and credit
derivatives to be eligible for capital relief;

9. Credit Risk Scorecard and Override Rating Policy, contains
UOB Indonesia override policies and guidelines for adjusting
the rating output;

10. The Workflow for Basel Il ECAI (External Credit Assessment
Institutions) Process lays down the guidelines for obtaining
and maintaining the external ratings of debtors for Risk
Weighted Asset calculation; and

1. Credit Risk Management Framework that governs the
management of Credit Risk in the Bank.

Credit Exposures under Basel Il

UOB Indonesia currently uses the Standardised Approach under
Basel Il to measure the risk-weighted asset (RWA) for Credit Risk.
The guidelines for assignment of credit exposures to Basel I
asset classes are documented in the Asset Classification Policy.

Under the Standardised Approach, UOB Indonesia’s exposures
are classified into 11 asset classifications and portfolios, as
follows:

1. Sovereign

Non-Central Government Public Sector Entities
Multilateral Development Bank

Banks

Corporate

Employee/Retiree

Claim Secured by Residential Property

Claim Secured by Commercial Real Estate

Overdue Claims

Other Assets

Claims on Micro Business, Small Business, and Retail
Portfolio

VW NV A W

- =
— O

Stress Test

In 2018, UOB Indonesia has conducted stress test exercise to
assess the capital adequacy resilience level and bank’s liquidity
in responding to changes and shocks in macroeconomic
conditions. UOB Indonesia will conduct stress tests exercise
periodically as part of the bank’s risk management process.

B.2 Market Risk

Market Risk is the risk of loss arising from movements in market
variables on the position held by UOB Indonesia which can
result in losses for the Bank. Market variables that influence
the position of the Bank are interest rates and exchange rates,
including changes in the price of the option.
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Risk Management

Market Risk Management Governance Structure

Board of Directors delegates authority to Assets and Liabilities
Committee (ALCO) to provide oversight on Market Risk
Management. ALCO reviews and provides direction on all
market risk related matters.

In practice, ALCO is supported by Market and Balance Sheet
Risk Management (MBR) Division. MBR Division, particularly
through Market Risk Management and Product Control Unit,
is an independent risk control unit that is responsible to
operationalise the Market Risk Management Framework in
order to support the business growth and ensure the adequacy
of risk control and oversight.

We established the roles and responsibilities on each level
of the position related to the implementation of Market Risk
Management and tailored with the purpose, business policy,
size and complexity of the Bank. These roles and responsibilities
are governed in the Market Risk Management Policy.

Market Risk Management Framework

The Bank’s Market Risk Framework comprises of Market Risk
policies and practices, delegation of authority and Market Risk
limits, validation of valuation and risk models, and others. This
framework also encompasses the process of new product/
activity to ensure that the Market Risk issues are appropriately
identified prior to its launch.

The main responsibility of Market Risk Management and
Product Control Unit (part of Market and Balance Sheet Risk
Management Division) are to identify, measure, monitor and
to mitigate Market Risk, as well as to escalate any breach of
transaction limit. All Market Risk appetite and controlling limits
are reviewed at least once a year, in line with the business
strategy and capital adequacy of the Bank.

UOB Indonesia Market Risk measurement methods are able to:

1. Measure the sensitivity and Market Risk exposures under
normal and stress conditions;

2. Provide the actual data for potential profit and loss on a
daily basis;

3. Perform mark-to-market valuations; and

4. Acommodate the increase of activities, volume, changes
of valuation techniques, changes in methodology and new
products.

We calculate Market Risk capital requirements using the
standardised approach as defined by the Regulator. Internally
UOB Indonesia also adopted the method of Value at Risk
(VaR) calculation with a historical simulation to measure the
potential losses at 99 per cent confidence level using historical
data of 300 days. Estimation of VaR is backtested using Profit
and Loss data on trading book to measure the effectiveness on
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the accuracy of the methodology. The process of backtesting
is performed to analyse whether the deviation occurred due to
weaknesses in the model calculation or genuine movement in
the market. All identified irregularities are explained and model
deficiencies are addressed. To complement VaR measurement,
stress test is conducted on the trading book portfolios to
identify UOB Indonesia’s vulnerability in the event of crisis.

Market Risk Management Policy

The Bank established Market Risk Management policy as
a guidance for Market Risk Management implementation.
Market Risk Management Policy is reviewed at least annually
to conform with business strategy, management directives and
regulatory requirements, approved by ALCO.

Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Book (IRRBB)

Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Book is defined as the risk of
potential loss of capital or reduction in earnings due to changes
in interest rates environment.

Interest Rate Risk Management Governance Structure

ALCO is delegated by the Board of Directors to supervise the
effectiveness of Interest Rate Risk Management governance.
Market and Balance Sheet Risk Management Division supports
ALCO in monitoring the profile of interest rate risk in the
banking book. At the operational level, the Global Markets -
PLM (GM-PLM) and Central Treasury Unit (CTU) Divisions are
responsible for the effectiveness of the management of interest
risk in the banking book tailored with the established interest
rate risk management policy.

Interest Rate Risk Management Framework

The primary objective of interest rate risk management is to
protect and enhance economic value of capital and maintain a
stable and positive growth in net interest income through the
management of the repricing gap in the balance sheet.

The banking book interest rate risk exposure is quantified on a
monthly basis using simulation techniques. The bank employs
a holistic approach towards Balance Sheet Risk Management.

Interest rate risk varies with different repricing periods,
currencies, embedded options and interest rate Dbasis.
Embedded options may be in the form of loan prepayment and
time deposit early withdrawal. In Economic Value of Equity (EVE)
sensitivity simulations, the Bank computes the present values
for repricing cash flows, with the focus on changes in EVE under
different interest rate scenarios. This economic perspective
measures interest rate risks across the full maturity profile of
the balance sheet, including off-balance sheet items. The Bank
estimates the potential effects of interest rate changes on Net
Interest Income (NII) by simulating the possible future course of
interest rates over time.



Mismatches in the longer tenor will experience greater
change in EVE than similar positions in the shorter tenor while
mismatches in the shorter tenor will have a greater impact on
NII. Interest rate scenarios used in simulations include the six
standard scenarios prescribed by Basel. The Bank also performs
stress tests regularly to determine the adequacy of capital in
meeting the impact of extreme interest rate movements on the
balance sheet. Such tests are also performed to provide early
warnings of potential extreme losses, facilitating the proactive
management of interest rate risks in an environment of rapid
financial market changes.

B.3 Liquidity Risk

Liquidity Risk is defined as the risk from the Bank’s inability to
meet its obligations or fund the increase in assets as they fall
due.

Liquidity Risk Management Governance Structure

Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO) assists the Board of
Directors in managing the Bank’s Liquidity Risk. Liquidity Risk
is consistently reported and discussed in the ALCO meeting,
which is conducted regularly, with minimum once a month.

In addition, the growth of the liquidity position is also
presented in Risk Management Committee (RMC) meeting
and to the Board of Commissioners (BOC) through Risk
Monitoring Committee (ROC) meeting. Analysis and control
of Liquidity Risk is performed by Market and Balance Sheet
Risk Management (MBR) Division, particularly through Balance
Sheet Risk Management Unit, responsible to monitor, measure
and report the Bank’s Liquidity Risk and IRRBB.

UOB Indonesia established the roles and responsibilities on
each level of position which is related to the implementation of
Balance Sheet Risk Management and tailored with the purpose,
business policy, size and complexity of Bank. These roles and
responsibilities are governed in the Liquidity Risk Management
Policy.

Liquidity Risk Management Framework

Liquidity Risk arises because of discrepancy between the period
of funding and disbursement of loan on UOB Indonesia business
activities. To mitigate the Liquidity Risk, the Bank established
Liquidity Risk management policy, including the establishment
of strategies and limits which appropriate with the risk level
taken by the Bank.

UOB Indonesia strategies focus on the business development
within the Liquidity Risk framework which is performed
prudently, consistently and efficiently in order to balance the
risk and returns. The Bank has determined clear duties and
responsibilities on every level related to the Liquidity Risk
Management implementation tailored with the objectives,
business policy, size and complexity of the Bank.

The key measures used by the Bank for managing Liquidity Risk
are using cash flow projection under ‘business as usual’, ‘bank-
specific crisis’ and ‘general market crisis’ scenarios, and also
by monitoring liquidity ratios as an early warning indicator i.e.
decreased in non-bank deposits, LDR, Top 50 and 20 non-bank
depositors ratios, swap funding ratio, undrawn facility ratio,
Interbank Funding Mix ratio, and Top 20 bank depositors ratio.
In addition, the Bank also monitors the stability of its ‘core
deposits’ which consist of non-bank stable deposits such as
current account, savings account, and fixed deposit by analysing
their volatility overtime. Balance Sheet Risk Management Unit
is responsible to enhance, implement, maintain, review, develop
and communicate assumptions, methodologies, sources of
data, delegation of authority, stress testing and procedures
used to measure the Liquidity Risk.

Several strategic actions have been taken to manage Liquidity
Risk. On the funding side, the Bank conducts an in-depth
evaluation of its funding capacity focusing on funding sources,
concentration, tenor, and access to other funding sources
in the market. On the asset side, UOB Indonesia conducts
analysis of the type and composition of asset such as loans,
liquid asset and policies for financial instrument that covers the
acceptable criteria for trading and investment assets. Updated
information regarding financial market and economic condition
are also critical to be done in order to understand the amount
of funding available from the market under normal and stress
conditions. Furthermore, new product/transaction/activities
that have exposure to Liquidity Risk should be adequately
reviewed and approved prior to its initiation.

The cash flow analysis of net funding requirement involves
the preparation of cash flow mismatch based on actual
contractual maturity. Contractual cash flow profile allocates
asset, liabilities, and off balance sheet items into time band
by remaining maturity. UOB Indonesia also produces cash flow
mismatch report based on behavior assumption, related to
behavior analysis of asset, liabilities, and off balance sheet, and
provides potential cash flow projection based on assumptions
which derived from the behavior patterns. From the behavior
cash flow analysis, the expected Net Cumulative Outflow
(NCO) gaps that will be encountered are obtained.
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The daily and monthly cash flow mismatch reports are
produced and monitored by Balance Sheet Risk Management
Unit by comparing the daily report position against NCO limit.
Balance Sheet Risk Management Unit also ensures that the
Bank is not exposed by Liquidity Risk and provides report to
senior management for action that will be taken to mitigate
and manage the Liquidity Risk.

UOB Indonesia performs calculation and monitoring of
Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR) and Net Stable Funding Ratio
(NSFR). Both ratios are above the regulatory requirement.

Liquidity Risk Management Policies

Liquidity Risk Management Policy is developed by Balance Sheet
Risk Management Unit (part of Market and Balance Sheet Risk
Management Division), which provides details on how Liquidity
Risk is effectively managed by UOB Indonesia. This policy aims
to address the Liquidity Risks that might arise primarily from
the business activities of extending loans, making investments,
accepting deposits and other funding requirements on trading
activities. This policy is reviewed at least annually to incorporate
significant business changes, management objectives and
regulatory requirements approved by ALCO.

Contingency Funding Plan

The Contingency Funding Plan (CFP) is a critical component of
the liquidity management framework and serves as an extension
of our operational or daily liquidity management policy.
The CFP describes the actions that should be taken by UOB
Indonesia in the event of a liquidity crisis, whether occurring
in a bank-specific or a general market. The CFP serves to
identify and recognise a liquidity crisis, define the appropriate
management responsibilities and responses during a crisis,
rectify areas of concern and ensure that information flows
remain timely and uninterrupted to facilitate quick, precise
and effective decision-making. The level of sophistication and
detail of the plan would commensurate with the complexity,
risk exposure, activities, products and organisational structure
of the Bank, in order to determine the most relevant indicators
for managing liquidity and funding. In addition, UOB Indonesia
also established a Liquidity Task Force (LTF) that is responsible
to evaluate liquidity position and decide actions to be taken
when crisis occurs.

B.4 Operational Risk

Operational Risk is defined as the risk of loss resulting from
inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems or
from external events. The purpose of grouping those risk types
is to align the perception and understanding throughout the
organisation and set the basis for Operational Risk identification,

PT BANK UOB INDONESIA ANNUAL REPORT 2018

measurement, mitigation, monitoring and reporting. The
main objective is to manage operational risk (identification,
measurement, evaluation, mitigation, monitoring and reporting)
at appropriate and tolerable level relative to the markets in
which the businesses operate.

Operational Risk Governance

Operational risk is managed through a framework of policies
and procedures by which business and support units identify,
assess, monitor, mitigate and report their risks. The Operational
Risk Management Committee (ORMC), which is a sub-section
of the Risk Management Committee meets on a monthly basis,
and aims to improve the effectiveness of UOB Indonesia’s
overall Operational Risk Management. The Operational Risk
Governance structure adopts the Three Lines of Defence Model.
The business and support units, as the first line of defence, are
responsible for establishing a robust control environment as
part of their day-to-day operations. Each business/support unit
is responsible for implementing the operational risk framework
and policies, embedding appropriate internal controls into
processes and maintaining business resilience for key activities.

The Operational Risk Management Division, as the second
Line of Defence is supported by Operational Risk Management
policies, procedures and tools that are tailored to the Bank's
business activities. Our limits and policies are reviewed at
least annually to comply with the Bank’s conditions. ORM also
ensures that operational risks and incidents are escalated to
Senior Management and Management Committees.

Independent reviews of the implementation of the Operational
Risk Management programme was also carried out by Internal
Audit as the third Line of Defence on a regular basis.

Operational Risk Management Framework and Policies

UOB Indonesia established an Operational Risk Management
Framework and Policies to ensure robust Operational Risk
Management that comprises risk identification, assessment,
mitigation and monitoring in a structured and consistent
manner. Operational Risk Management process is applied based
on effective market best practices. In general, the Operational
Risk control strategy is carried out through the principal and
methodology of Three Lines of Defence, which also comprises
Business Continuity Management, Fraud Management and
Outsourcing Risk Management.

Operational Risk Management Framework and Policies are
reviewed annually to align with the Bank’s internal and external
conditions and approved by the Board of Directors through the
Risk Management Committee and Board of Commissioners.



The update of Operational Risk Management Framework and

Policies have been performed through the following:

1. Changes in Operational Risk Management strategy and
tools;

2. Assessment of new product and activities;

3. Assessment of outsourcing activities in order to comply
with the prevailing regulations;

4. Assessment of  Business
implementation strategy; and

5. Assessment of Operational Risk Management monitoring
process and reporting.

Continuity  Management

Operational Risk Management Programme

The main focus of the UOB Indonesias Operational Risk

Management programme is to strengthen the Operational Risk

Management infrastructure and governance. Our Operational

Risk Management Framework includes:

1. Operational Risk identification by conducting Key Risk and
Control Self Assessment (KRCSA), General Operating and
Control Environment Questionnaire (GOCEQ), identify
the Key Operational Risk Indicators (KORI), outsourcing
risk assessment and reviewing the Bank’s new products and
activities;

2. Operational Risk is measured using an impact and likelihood
matrix;

3. Operational Risk is monitored through various reports
such as Operational Risk Highlights, Risk Dashboard, Event
Risk Reporting (ERR), KORI, KRCSA, GOCEQ outsourcing
activities, as well as new products and activities; and

4. Operational Risk is controlled by carrying out the action
plans for the various Operational Risk events that have
been identified through a variety of Operational Risk
tools and methodologies, including the determination of
limit transactions and risk transfer through insurance and
outsourcing as well as the establishment of a Business
Continuity Plan (BCP).

Operational Risk Management is the responsibility of all

employees in the Bank. Various Operational Risk Management

initiatives and programmes have been implemented to
increase risk awareness and effectiveness of Operational Risk

Management implementation, as follows:

1. Appoints Line Risk and Control Manager (LRCM) as the
person in charge (PIC) for the implementation of operational
risk management in each working unit as the first Line of
Defence. This is to ensure that the Bank’s operations are
aligned with the level of risk tolerance. To elevate the skill
of LRCMs, ORM Division collaborates with HR — Learning
and Development Division to conduct regular training and
socialisation sessions on Operational Risk Management for
the LRCMs;

2. Conducts Crisis Management simulation on an annual basis
to ensure the preparedness of the Crisis Management Team
(CMT);

3. Continues and conducts regular reviews on the
implementation of Operational Risk programmes, such as
Operational Risk Incident Reporting, Key Risk and Control Self
Assessment (KRCSA), Key Operational Risk Indicator (KORI),
Outsourcing Management and Insurance Management;

4. Develops Operational Risk Management culture in all
working units through socialisation and training (such as
an e-mail broadcast, workshop and training, e-learning and
others);

5. Develops specific operational risk management campaign
to promote risk awareness and improve risk culture by
giving recognition to the best KRCSA and best LRCM
that is essential in assisting the Business Unit/Supporting
Unit Head in the implementation of operational Risk
Management;

6. Establishes and continues to update Technology Risk
Management Framework to manage technology risks in a
systematic and consistent manner; and

7. Strengthens Business Continuity Management (BCM) policy
implementation, through developing Regional and Local
Command Center, establishing Regional Command Center
Procedures, forming Emergency Response and Recovery
Team, and conducting simulation, training and testing to
ensure readiness.

Business Continuity Management

UOB Indonesia establishes and regularly updates Business
Continuity Management (BCM) Policy and Guideline that cover
Business Impact Analysis (BIA), Operational Risk assessment,
recovery strategy performed by the Bank for each type of
disruption, documentation of disaster recovery and contingency
plan, and evaluation of BCM programme effectiveness.

We will continue to increase our capability to minimise the
likelihood and impact of identified disaster. The Bank has
initiated a strategy to manage a wide-area disruption, especially
for Jakarta. In order to support and improve UOB Indonesia’s
BCM readiness, several BCP exercises are conducted on a regular
basis. The exercises include BCP Exercise, Disaster Recovery
Exercise for IT system and Management Call Tree Exercise. In
addition, the Bank has also established a Crisis Management Plan
and conducted an Integrated Crisis Management Simulation
exercise in November 2018 to ensure readiness of the Crisis
Management Team in executing the plan in case of a crisis.
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Fraud Risk Management

UOB Indonesia defines fraud as:

1. An act, with an element to deceive or to conceal facts,
and is not restricted to the gain of monetary or material
benefits;

2. A deviating act or a purposeful neglect undertaken in order
to deceive, cheat, or manipulate the Bank, customer, or
another party, that occurs inside the Bank and/or using
the facility so as to cause the Bank, customer, or another
party to suffer a loss and/or to cause the fraudster to gain a
benefit, both directly as well as indirectly. This definition is
in accordance to SEBI No. 13/28/DPNP dated 9 December
2011

The above definitions are complementing one another.

UOB Indonesia actively manages fraud risks. The Integrated
Fraud Management (IFM) Division, as the Second Line of
Defence, drives strategy and governance and oversees the
framework of fraud Risk Management across the Bank. The
corporate governance of fraud risk is provided by the Audit
Committee at Board of Commissioners level, and primarily by
the Risk Management Committee at Management level.

All employees are required to uphold the UOB Code of
Conduct, which includes anti-bribery and anti-corruption
provisions. The Bank’s fraud hotline ensures independent fraud
investigation. IFM works closely with business and support
units to strengthen their current practices across the five anti-
fraud pillars of prevention, detection, response, remediation
and reporting.

B.5 Compliance Risk

Regulatory Compliance Risk as stipulated in Financial Services
Authority/Otoritas Jasa Keuangan (OJK) is the risk arising due
to the Bank’s failure to comply with and/or implement the
prevailing laws and regulations.

For UOB Indonesia’s internal purposes, Regulatory Compliance

Risk is defined as follows:

1. The risk of regulatory sanctions, financial loss, or damage
to the Bank’s reputation and franchise value that may arise
when the Bank fails to comply with laws, regulations, rules,
standards or codes of conduct (established by industry
associations) applicable to the Bank’s regulated business
activities;

2. The risk that a change in laws and regulations, can increase
the cost of operation and the cost of capital for the Bank
thereby impacting the Bank’s earnings or returns.

In line with Financial Services Authority Regulation No. 46/
POJK.03/2017 concerning the Implementation of Compliance
Function for Commercial Banks, UOB Indonesia is required to
ensure the implementation of compliance function by creating
compliance culture on all levels of organisation and to ensure
that all of the Bank’s policies and business activities are in
compliance with the prevailing laws and regulations.
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Compliance Risk Management Governance Structure
Stakeholders involved in managing Compliance Risk are as
follows:

1. Board of Commissioners

a. Evaluate the implementation of Bank’s compliance
function at least twice a year;

b. Based on the evaluation results of compliance function
implementation, the Board of Commissioners are
to provide advice in order to improve the quality of
compliance function implementation to President
Director and copied to Compliance Director.

2. Board of Directors

a. Approve Compliance Charter as a basis for the Bank to
implement compliance principles;

b. Foster and embody the implementation of the
Compliance Culture at all levels of the organisation and
the Bank’s business activities;

c. Ensure the implementation of Bank's compliance
function; and

d. Responsible in overseeing the management of the Bank’s
compliance risk.

3. Senior Executive Officers

a. Responsibleforestablishingcomplianceriskmanagement
framework that contains the basic principles to be
approved by the Board of Commissioners and explains
the main processes by which compliance risks are to
be identified and managed through all levels of the
organisation;

b. Foster awareness of major aspects of Bank’s compliance
risks that should be explicitly managed;

c. Ensure that the Bank can rely on a permanent and
effective compliance function that is sufficiently
resourced to carry out its role;

d. Ensure the implementation of Bank's compliance
function;

e. Ensure that appropriate remedial or disciplinary action
is taken if breaches are identified; and

f. Ensure that the Compliance Charter, Compliance
Guidance and other relevant frameworks/policies and
guidelines/handbooks are observed.

4. Executive Officers

a. Ensure the implementation of the compliance culture in
all activities of its respective functions and/or branches
and/or units;

b. Ensure that preventive actions and corrective actions are
properly implemented within its respective functions
and/or branches and/or units towards potential/
actual breaches on the prevailing regulations and/or
legislations.

5. Compliance Director

a. Formulates strategies to encourage the creation of the
Bank’s compliance culture;

b. Proposes compliance policies or principles that will be
set by the Board of Directors;

c. Establishes compliance systems and procedures that
will be used to formulate Bank’s internal provisions and
guidelines;



Ensures that all policies, provisions, systems and
procedures, as well as business activities conducted
by the Bank are in compliance with the prevailing
Regulators’ provisions and legislations;

Identifies, manages, and coordinates regulatory
compliance risks and provides oversight and functional
Compliance leadership to manage/minimise the
Compliance Risk of the Bank;

Takes precautionary action to ensure that the policies
and/or decisions taken by the Board of Directors of
the Bank do not deviate from the prevailing Regulators’
provisions and legislations;

Submits reports to Regulators and Board of
Commissioners and Board of Directors on the
implementation of his/her duties; and

Carries out other duties that are related to Compliance
Function, including ensuring that the Board of Directors
and Senior Executive Officers are informed of significant
compliance issues and plans for resolution.

Compliance Function

a.

Create steps to support the creation of compliance
culture across the Bank’s business activities and at every
level of organisation;

Conduct identification, measurement, monitoring,
and control of Compliance Risk with reference to the
Regulators’ Regulations concerning the implementation
of Risk Management for Commercial Banks;

Assess and evaluate strictly, in collaboration with the
Business/Support Units, the effectiveness, adequacy,
and appropriateness of policies, provisions, systems
and procedures that are owned by the Bank with the
prevailing regulations;

Conduct reviews and/or provide recommendation
on updating and refinement of policies, regulations,
systems and procedures that are owned by the Bank to
comply with the prevailing Regulators’ provisions and
legislations;

Conduct efforts to ensure that the policies, provisions,
systems and procedures, as well as the Bank’s business
activities are in compliance with the prevailing
Regulators’ provisions and legislations;

Fulfill the role of anti-money laundering function by
ensuring the implementation of the entire monitoring
system of transactions conducted by customers are in
line with the guidelines, policies and procedures that
have been stipulated so that the Anti-Money Laundering
and Countering the Financing of Terrorism (AML/CFT)
Programmes are successfully implemented and to
prevent the Bank from the imposition of sanctions;
Identify, assess and document compliance risks
associated with business activities of the Bank including
new products, services, business practices and material
changes to existing business and customer relationships,
etc;

8.

h. Provide advice to Business and Support Units including
the Board of Directors and Senior Executive Officers and
keeping them informed about developments related to
prevailing Regulator’s provisions and other regulations;

i. Develop compliance manuals and guidelines containing
the prevailing Regulators’ provisions, other regulations
and key business conduct jointly with the Business/
Support Units to be used by all officers and staff of the
Bank;

j-Identify and maintain an inventory of all prevailing

Regulators’ provisions and legislations with the support
of internal/external legal counsel when necessary;

k. Assist the Board of Directors and Senior Executive
Officers in educating relevant staff members on
compliance issues;

| Provide advice, guidance and continuous training
to staff members on appropriate implementation
of compliance framework which include policies,
guidelines and procedures such as those contained in
the Bank’s Compliance Guidance, Code of Conduct and
the Bank’s internal guidelines.

m. Advise units/divisions in the Bank and/or Board of
Directors and Senior Executive Officers on Compliance
Laws, Rules and Standards (“CLRS”), the implications
of new regulations/regulatory changes and provide
guidance on the proper and prompt implementation of
procedures to comply with the requirements;

n. Monitor, test and report on compliance with relevant
compliance risk management framework and internal
policies/procedures to Senior Executive Officers and
Board of Commissioners/Board of Directors and, if
required, to any regulatory authority. However, the
responsibility for ensuring day-to-day compliance
remains with the Function;

o. Make enquiries into compliance incidents and
complaints, and carrying out further investigations as
appropriate;

p. Act as the key liaison person with relevant internal and
external parties, including Regulators, regarding Bank’s
compliance issues; and

q. Fulfill its responsibilities under the compliance plans
and procedures developed for each business entity
in accordance with its compliance risk management
framework including performing compliance review on
a risk-based approach.

Risk Management Function is responsible to develop
and implement the Risk Management frameworks/
infrastructure, strategy, policies and processes to manage all
risks of the Bank. The risk management framework includes
the identification, assessment, measurement, monitoring
and reporting of the Bank’s risks.

Internal Audit function

a. As the third line of defence independently evaluates
the reliability, adequacy and effectiveness of the
governance process, risk management processes and
internal controls of the Bank; assesses the extent to
which the Bank’s objectives, corporate governance and

—
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management directives are achieved through the review
of systems and operations; determines whether the
Bank complies with laws and regulations and adheres to
established policies, plans and procedures, and whether
Management is taking the appropriate steps to address
control deficiencies; and provides objective assurance
to add value and improve the Bank’s operations;

b. Provides audit report and summary of audit activities to
President Director and Board of Commissioner through
Audit Committee with a copy to Compliance Director.
All correspondences with Regulator have also been
forwarded to Compliance Director.

9. Legal Function is responsible to provide advice from the
legal viewpoint on the applicable Laws and Regulations,
and also for the development and maintenance of policies,
procedures and guidelines for the management of legal
risks on a Bank-wide basis.

10. Line Managers and Staffs

a. Ultimately responsible and accountable for compliance
risk, including ensuring that all business activities are in
compliance with prevailing Regulators’ provisions and
legislations;

b. Required to understand prevailing Regulators’ provisions
and legislations and are responsible to ensure compliance
with these provisions and legislations, which include:

+ Organising and managing their business and
operational functions in proper and professional
manner in compliance with the Regulatory provisions
and legislations;

e Implementing compliance manuals in their
respective businesses and operational areas; and

» Reporting promptly all incidents of non-compliance,
both actual and potential, to the Compliance
Function.

Compliance Risk Management Framework

In order to strengthen our internal control system framework,
especially for Compliance Function as the second line of
Defence, the Bank developed an organisational structure under
Compliance Function, into three units namely Compliance
Review and Testing, Compliance Advisory and Monitoring,
and AML/CFT and Sanctions. Strategies to implement the
Bank’s compliance function are through aspects of compliance
function governance, compliance risk management, as well as
the implementation of compliance culture.

UOB Indonesias compliance function framework on the
compliance risk governance aspects are reflected in the
Compliance organisational structure which is independent from
the business and other supporting units, where the Compliance
Director reports directly to the President Director. This enables
the Compliance Function to be managed independently.

In the aspect of Compliance Risk Management, Compliance

Function plays a role in providing views/directions towards the
fulfillment and/or implementation of laws, policies, regulations,
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standards or codes of conduct, monitoring compliance towards
the fulfillment of the Bank’s commitments and completion of
corrective action plans arising from Regulatory Audit inspections
and Bank’s Internal Audit reviews, managing the imposition of
penalty/fines from regulatory breaches, perfoming Compliance
Review and others.

Moreover in the aspect of compliance culture implementation,
Compliance Function has stipulated and educated through
the Compliance Code of Conduct as a basic reference for all
employees in implementing values, actions, behaviours and
actualisations of compliance principles.

Compliance Function and Operational Risk Management
also perform monitoring and reporting of operational events
related to Regulatory Compliance Risk and Operational Risk
respectively.

Compliance Risk Management Policies and Guidelines

One of the strategies for Compliance Risk Management is

the establishment of Compliance Charter and Compliance

Guidance as two main policies and procedures in managing

Compliance Risk. Both policies set out:

1. Compliance Framework

2. Compliance Code of Conduct

3. Compliance Review Procedure

4. Monitoring of Bank's commitment monitoring and follow-
up on request from related Regulator procedure

5. Escalation and Reporting of Compliance Risk Incident
Procedure

6. Provisions related to Compliance Function

7. Compliance Risk Assessment

Compliance Charter and Compliance Guidance are reviewed
annually to ensure an adequate and timely compliance function
implementation in all level of the organisation, and thus
facilitate the Bank to better harmonise between commercial
interest and compliance towards prevailing regulations. For
such policy and procedure to be implemented effectively, the
most fundamental aspect that must be in place is compliance
culture, which drives the value, behavior and action that
supports the Bank’s compliance towards the prevailing laws and
regulations.

B.6 Strategic Risk

Strategic Risk is defined as risk due to improper setting and/or
implementation of a strategic decision and failure to anticipate
any changes in business environment.

Strategic Risk Management Governance Structure

Related parties involved in managing Strategic Risk are as

follows:

1. The Board of Commissioners and Directors formulate and
approve strategic plans and business plans that have been
adjusted with the Bank’s vision and strategic objectives,
direct, monitor and evaluate the implementation of the
Bank’s strategic policies, including communicating it to all
employees across all levels of the organisation;



2. The Risk Management Committee supports the Board of
Directors in monitoring the Strategic Risk management
implementation in the Bank, as well as providing information
related to material risk exposures, issues and action plans;

3. Business and support functions monitor and manage
Strategic Risk in their respective areas, and are responsible
to ensure all material risks that arise from the business
activities and implementation of strategy are reported in
timely manner to the related Directors or Senior Executive
Officers. Each working function is also responsible for
ensuring that the target of its respective working function
can be achieved well and in line with the Bank’s overall
target;

4. Risk Management Function, together with Finance Division,
conducts evaluation on the realisation of Bank’s Business Plan
to support the adequacy of the strategic risk management
information system; and

5. CEO Office Working Function supports the management of
strategic risk and is responsible in translating the company’s
strategy into operational plans, monitoring the execution
of operational plans, evaluating the progress from
predetermined Balance Score Card, as well as highlighting
areas that requires attention from the Management.

Strategic Risk Management Framework

UOB Indonesia adheres to prudent principles in all its business
decisions so as to minimise and mitigate any risks involved.
In managing Strategic Risk, the Bank constantly monitors
the environment in which it operates, analyses the Bank’s
performance in relation to its competitors, and takes corrective
actions to adjust its strategies and plans as appropriate.
Implementation of strategic decisions and anticipation of
changes in the business environment is carried out through a
strategic risk management cycle with the main elements in the
form of the application of vision and mission; setting objectives
and strategic plans; target and business plan setting; as well as
implementation, monitoring and evaluation of performance.

The Bank sets a strategic plan based on a proper and realistic
manner, as well as considering the prudential principles and risk
management implementation. The Bank’s strategic plans are
prepared by the Board of Directors, and upon approval of the
Board of Commissioners, communicated to all employees of
the Bank on each level of the organisation. Each Function Head
is responsible to ensure the alignment of the annual work plans
in their respective functions, with the work plan established by
the Board of Directors.

On an ongoing basis, UOB Indonesia performs periodic reviews
on the achievement of financial targets and strategy realisation.
The reviews and evaluation coverage is adjusted based on the
development of the Bank’s risk exposure, market changes,
risk measurement and management methods. The Board of
Commissioners and Directors also conduct periodical review

towards the Bank’s achievement on financial targets and its
realisation through various forum and meeting coordinations,
such as Board of Directors meeting. All functions are also
responsible for monitoring their respective Strategic Risks and
reporting promptly to the related Directors and/or Senior
Executive Officers on any potential issues or problems that
have strategic implications on the Bank. All results of the
review and related reports serve as input in order to improve
the overall risk management framework and process.

Strategic Risk Management Policies

An effective implementation of Strategic Risk Management is
supported with adequate policies and procedures as well as
risk limits which are aligned with the Bank’s vision, mission
and business strategy. The development of these policies and
procedures is tailored with the type, complexity of business
activity, risk profile and risk limit in accordance with regulations
stipulated by Regulators and/or sound banking practices.
The implementation of these policies and procedures is also
supported with the adequacy of capital and quality of human
resources.

With regards to the implementation of strategic risk
management, internal control system is applied effectively
towards the implementation of business activities and
operations across all levels of the organisation by referring to
the established policies and procedures. The internal control
system is also carried out to ensure that the Bank can timely
detect weaknesses and irregularities that occur in the process
of implementing strategic management.

B.7 Legal Risk

Legal Risk impacts on UOB Indonesias financial position,

operations or reputation, arising out of:

1. Unenforceable/unfavourable/defective/unintended
contracts;

2. Lawsuits or claims involving the Bank;

3. Developments in laws and regulations; or

4. Non-compliance with applicable laws,
professional standards.

rules and

Legal Risk Management Governance Structure

The parties involved in managing legal risk are:

1. Board of Commissioners and Board of Directors (through
Risk Management Committee and Risk Monitoring
Committee) are responsible for supervising and managing
legal risk arising from the Bank’s business activities;

2. Risk Management Committee supports the Board of
Directors in monitoring risk management in the Bank,
providing information on material risk related to exposure,
issues and action plans;

3. Business and Support functions are responsible for
monitoring and managing Legal Risk and its impact in their
respective areas; and
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Risk Management

4. Subject matter specialists, such as Compliance, Legal,
Human Resources, Technology and Operations, Corporate
Real Estate Service, and Corporate Services are responsible
for providing guidance related to their respective areas of
expertise.

Legal Risk Management Framework

Risk measurement for Legal Risk is conducted by using indicators
such as potential losses due to litigation, cancellation of
contracts due to unenforceability and changes of regulations.
Every Legal Risk incident and its potential loss numbers must
be documented and reported.

The Legal function provides legal advice and guidance to
all units of the Bank, as and when needed. This includes the
oversight and periodic review of:

(a) all standard contracts / agreements;

(b) all standard loan agreements and standard Letters of Offer;
between the Bank and other parties.

The Legal Function is also responsible for highlighting new
or emerging legal risks, and managing significant litigation
involving the Bank.

Legal Risk Management Policies

The Bank has a Policy on Management of Legal Risk which
governs the Legal Risk Management Governance Structure
and sets out the duties and responsibilities of each party in
implementing Legal Risk Management.

Legal Function has established various guidelines related
to Legal Risk Management, such as Guidelines on Managing
Intellectual Property Risk, Guidelines on Engagement of
External Lawyers, and Guidelines on Managing Contractual Risk.

B.8 Reputation Risk

Reputation Risk is the adverse impact on UOB Indonesia’s
income, liquidity or capital arising from negative stakeholders’
perception or opinion of the Bank’s business practices, activities
and financial condition.

Reputation Risk Management Governance Structure

Related parties involved in managing Reputation Risk are as

follows:

1. Board of Commissioners and Directors are responsible for
managing Bank’s Reputation Risk.

2. Risk Management Committee assists the Board of Directors
in the oversight of the management of Reputation Risk
in the Bank, keeping them apprised of the material risk
exposures, issues and resolution plans;

3. Reputation Risk Management panel is a sub-committee
of the Risk Management Committee which is responsible
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to confirm the impact of high reputational risk events,
determine the appropriate action plan, appoint relevant
task force and approve the closure of the case;

4. Business and support functions are responsible for
monitoring and managing the various types of risks that are
deemed to potentially impact on the reputation risk;

5. Risk Management Function is responsible for developing and
maintaining Risk Management policies and procedures, also
training and advising the business and support functions in
managing their risks, including reputation risk; and

6. Subject matter specialists are from the various functions of
Strategic Communications and Brand, Customer Advocacy
and Service Quality, Compliance, Legal, Human Resources,
Technology and Operations and Corporate Services.

Reputation Risk Management Framework

Risk identification and measurement for Reputation Risk is
conducted using information from various sources such as the
mass media, customer complaints (e.g. through contact centre)
and customer satisfaction survey.

Risk monitoring for Reputation Risk is conducted on a regular
basis in accordance with UOB Indonesia’s policies, procedures
and guidelines, as well as the Bank’s past experiences.

Risk controlling for Reputation Risk is conducted through:

1. Prevention of events that can lead to Reputation Risk,
are among other through media training, daily media
coverage monitoring, periodic communications to various
stakeholders to create a positive reputation, and corporate
social responsibility programmes;

2. Restoration of UOB Indonesia’s reputation after a Reputation
Risk event and the measures in place to minimise any
negative impact to the reputation of the Bank.

Any incidents related to Reputation Risk, including the amount

of potential losses resulting from those incidents shall be noted

and tracked for closure.

Where the Reputation Risk event affects the Bank’s ability to
continue its business activities and/or to obtain funding, the
Bank will activate the Crisis Management Plan (CMP), Business
Continuity Plan (BCP), Disaster Recovery Plan (DRP) and/or
Contingency Funding Plan (as relevant).

Reputation Risk Management Policies

The Bank establishes a Reputation Risk Management Policy
that governs the Reputation Risk Management Governance
Structure, methodology and toolkits for managing the
ReputationRisk, including its communication process, escalation
process, establishment of Reputation Risk Management Panel,
Reputation Risk issue owner and others.



C. Recovery Plan (RCP)

Although it is yet required by Regulator, Risk Management has
established a Recovery Plan (RCP) to enable UOB Indonesia
to recover from severely adverse conditions that could cause
failure. The recovery plan covers recovery options when the
Bank is facing solvability issues (i.e. Capital, Liquidity, Earnings,
and Asset Quality). This includes the determination of
indicators and trigger levels for each indicator for the purposes
of prevention, recovery, and resolution.

D. Risk Based Bank Rating (RBBR)

In a regular basis, UOB Indonesia conducts assessment on the
Risk Based Bank Rating according to OJK Regulation No. 4/
POJK.03,/2016 and OJK Circular Letter No. 14/SEOJK.03/2017
regarding the Assessment of Bank’s Soundness Rating for
Commercial Banks. The assessment of RBBR is conducted
towards four factors namely Risk Profile, Good Corporate
Governance, Earnings, and Capital.

The self assessment result of RBBR for semester Il - 2018 was
as follows:

No. Assessment Factor Rating
1 Risk Profile 2
2 Good Corporate Governance 2
3 Earnings 2
4 Capital 2
RBBR Rating 2

Based on the self assessment, UOB Indonesia assessed its
soundness rating in the second semester of 2018 at “2” or in
a good condition, which means the Bank is able to encounter
significant negative effects and changes in business conditions
and other external factors reflected in assessment factors
rating, namely, Risk Profile, Good Corporate Governance
Implementation, Earnings and Capital. The weaknesses
identified in the assessment factors do not significantly affect
the soundness rating of the Bank.

E. Risk Management System Implementation

The applied Risk management system aims to conduct analysis
of current or future risks and/or potential risks faced by the
Bank and to determine mitigation measures for these risks. Risk

management system is regularly evaluated in order to measure
its effectiveness level. Through this evaluation, the Bank is
expected to be able to re-analyse whether these strategies are
in line with the established target.

Evaluation of the Risk Management system is conducted
internally and externally. Internally, Risk Monitoring Committee
and Audit Committee review and evaluate the Bank’s Risk
Management policies and implementation, as well as provide
inputs and recommendations to the Board of Commissioners in
order to carry out the oversight function. Internal Audit function
regularly reviews and conducts audit on risk management
implementation based on risk-based audit principles, with
the purposes not only as an internal control, but also to
continuously improve risk management implementation.
Externally, the evaluation of risk management implementation
is performed by the external auditor and Regulator.

F. Basel Implementation

In line with the implementation of regulatory provision, the
Bank adopts Standardised Approach (SA) for Credit and Market
Risk, and Basic Indicator Approach (BIA) for Operational Risk.
Furthermore, UOB Indonesia has also adopted a Credit Valuation
Adjustment (CVA) as Capital charge for counterparty credit risk
(CCR) for OTC Derivatives transaction. UOB Indonesia continues
to prepare a foundation to establish Basel Il and Basel I
implementation supported with sufficient information system
and tailored with the development of banking architecture and
prevailed regulation.

Related to the implementation of Basel Il particularly for
Liquidity Risk, the Bank has reported a Liquidity Coverage Ratio
(LCR) as accordance to OJK regulation No. 42,/POJK.03,/2015 on
amonthly basis starting June 2016 to Regulator, and published in
the Bank’s website on a quarterly basis starting September 2016.
Report and publication of Net Stable Funding Ratio (NSFR) as
accordance to OJK regulation No. 50/POJK.03/2017 has been
conducted quarterly starting March 2018.

UOB Indonesia also continues to improve the implementation
of Pillar 2 “Internal Capital Adequacy Assessment Process”
(ICAAP) to assess the overall capital adequacy associated with
risk profile and strategy, to maintain the level of the Bank’s
capital. On going basis, the Bank improves the implementation
of Pillar 3 “Market Discipline” to ensure the transparency of the
Bank’s financial and non-financial information.
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Disclosure of Pillar 3

Credit Risk

1. Disclosure of Credit Risk Net Claims by Region - Individual Bank

(in IDR million)
31 December 2018
Net Claims by Region
e rortiolio Categery Central  East) av‘? Jakarta Kalll'aT;adntan Sumatera vt Total
Java and Bali Makassar Java
() (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (%)
1 Claims on Sovereigns - - 17,340,334 - - - 17,340,334
2 Claims on Public Sector Entities - - 3,311,440 - - - 3,311,440
3 Claims on Multilateral - - . - - - .
Development Banks and
International Institutions
4 Claims on Banks 5,423 986,811 9,979,808 907 2,556 3,145 10,978,650
Claims Secured by Residential 186,534 476,129 3,827,354 73,837 313,652 461,252 5,338,758
Property
6 Claims Secured by Commercial 849,214 540,188 3,156,907 537,488 304,601 122,176 5,510,574
Property
Claims on Employees/Retirees - - - - - - -
Claims on Micro, Small Business 70,950 123,198 2,345,969 83,690 162,645 89,706 2,876,158
and Retail Portfolio
9 Claims on Corporations 4,311,993 5,766,782 39,907,456 1,849,481 6,144,397 3,724,089 61,704,198
10 Past Due 89,589 97,654 231,921 25,924 71,138 45585 561,811
1 Other Assets 99,076 109,405 1,708,516 6,566 104,350 74,568 2,102,481
Total 5,612,779 8,100,167 81,809,705 2,577,893 7,103,339 4,520,521 109,724,404
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(in IDR million)

31 December 2017

Net Claims by Region

No- Portfolio Category Central EastJava Kalipantan West
Java and Bali Jakarta and Sumatera Java Total
Makassar

() (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9)

1 Claims on Sovereigns - - 19,782,839 - - - 19,782,839

2 Claims on Public Sector Entities - - 798,666 - - - 798,666

3 Claims on Multilateral - - - - - - -
Development Banks and
International Institutions

4 Claims on Banks 4,484 882,263 7,713,056 344 7,508 21,491 8,629,146
Claims Secured by Residential 168,306 314,604 2,467,012 64,009 220,622 419,862 3,654,415
Property

6 Claims Secured by Commercial 397,072 311,637 1,818,115 198,187 215,564 142,949 3,083,524
Property

7 Claims on Employees/Retirees - - - - - - -

8  Claims on Micro, Small Business 109,654 192,926 2,267,872 123,338 229,394 156,198 3,079,382
and Retail Portfolio

9 Claims on Corporations 4,746,550 4,722,828 37,689,977 2,136,508 5,831,265 3,294,725 58,421,853

10 Past Due 63,861 45595 188,910 17,840 17,048 38,163 371,417

11 Other Assets 76,790 93,136 1,357,352 39,608 99,375 64,541 1,730,802
Total 5,566,717 6,562,989 74,083,799 2,579,834 6,620,776 4,137,929 99,552,044
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Disclosure of Pillar 3

2. Disclosure of Credit Risk Net Claims by Remaining Contract Period - Individual Bank

(in IDR million)
31 December 2018
No. Portfolio Category Net Claims by Remaining Contract Period
<lyear 1lyearto3 3yearsto >5years Non Total
years 5 years Contractual
U (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
1 Claims on Sovereigns 6,801,216 2,359,275 999,754 1,144,425 6,035,664 17,340,334
2 Claims on Public Sector Entities 1,147,442 2,162,203 - - 1,795 3,311,440
3 Claims on Multilateral - - - - - -
Development Banks and
International Institutions
4 Claims on Banks 8,657,581 791,973 239,503 - 1,289,593 10,978,650
Claims Secured by residential 165,271 239,551 580,050 4,352,237 1,649 5,338,758
property
6  Claims Secured by Commercial 468,073 705,464 1,033,581 3,303,456 - 5,510,574
Property
Claims on Employees/Retirees - - - - - -
8  Claims on Micro, Small Business 923,027 495,030 1,212,110 243,454 2,537 2,876,158
and Retail Portfolio
9 Claims on Corporations 44,401,036 7,126,222 5,550,157 4,397,336 229,447 61,704,198
10 Past Due 257,720 57,292 53,978 191,358 1,463 561,811
1 Other Assets - - - - 2,102,481 2,102,481
Total 62,821,366 13,937,010 9,669,133 13,632,266 9,664,629 109,724,404
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(in IDR million)

31 December 2017

Net Claims by Remaining Contract Period

No. Portfolio Category
<lTyear 1lyearto3 3yearsto >5years Non Total
years 5 years Contractual
() 2) 6) () () ) () ©)
1 Claims on Sovereigns 10,210,268 2,543,707 381,608 575,741 6,071,515 19,782,839
2 Claims on Public Sector Entities 798,551 - - - 115 798,666
3 Claims on Multilateral - - - - - -
Development Banks and
International Institutions
4 Claims on Banks 4,979,699 761,563 80,668 - 2,807,216 8,629,146
5 Claims Secured by residential 172,250 197,761 486,755 2,796,682 967 3,654,415
property
6  Claims Secured by Commercial 100,576 1,011,911 692,770 1,278,267 - 3,083,524
Property
Claims on Employees/Retirees - - - - - -
8  Claims on Micro, Small Business 878,866 790,509 828,620 563,610 17,777 3,079,382
and Retail Portfolio
9 Claims on Corporations 39,378,384 6,315,443 6,258,380 6,220,999 248,647 58,421,853
10 Past Due 162,844 29,413 36,781 138,990 3,389 371,417
1 Other Assets - - - - 1,730,802 1,730,802
Total 56,681,438 11,650,307 8,765,582 11,574,289 10,880,428 99,552,044

-
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Disclosure of Pillar 3

3. Disclosure of Credit Risk Net Claims by Economic Sector - Individual Bank

(in IDR million)

Economic Sector

31 December 2018

Claims on
Sovereign

Claims on
Multilateral
Development
Banks and
International
Institutions

Claims on
Public Sector
Entities

Claims on
Banks

Claims
Secured by
Residential

Property

Claims
Secured by
Commercial

Property

Claims on
Employee
or Retirees

Claims on
Micro, Small

Claims on

Business and  Corporation

Retail Portfolio

Past Due Other Assets

2

(4) ©) (6)

(8)

)

(10)

(m

20

Agriculture, hunting
and foresty

Fishery
Mining and excavation
Processing industry

Electricity, gas and
water

Construction

Wholesale and retail
trade

Provision of
accomodation and
eating - drinking

Transportation,
warehousing and
communications

Financial
intermediaries

Real estate, business
ownership and
business service

Government
administration,
defense and
compulsory social
security

Education services

Health services and
social activities

Community,
sociocultural,
entertainment and
other individual
services

Individual services
which serve
household

International agency
and other extra
international agency

Business activities
which are not clearly
defined

Non industrial origin
others

Others

2,294,113

8,825,557

6,220,664

747,666 - -

2,563,774 - 10,978,650

5,338,758

178,614

3,713
720,889

158,293

156,165

1,102,192

1,007,977

92,978

2,046,727

5,291

22,529

14,814

392

5,325

3,013
434
76,924

1,718

20,437

286,824

7,800

11,158

14,108

671

503

2,444

10,927

195

2,433,677

4,420,795

40,914
2,158,919
19,528,086

281,734

2,787,233

16,008,939

1,323,826

1,796,621

6,040,076

2,348,598

3,555

43,881

20,197

163,851

3,081

30,534

4,703,358

2,479 -
976 -

83,920 25

28,947 -

208,099 -

23,694 -

3,634 -

4,069 -

205,993 -

- 2,102,392

Total

17,340,334

3,311,440 - 10,978,650

5,338,758

5,510,574

2,876,158

61,704,198

561,811 2,102,481
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(in IDR million)

31 December 2017

Claims on
Claims Multilateral Claims Claims Claims on Claims on
Economic Sector Claims on on Public Development Claimson Securedby Secured by Micro, Small  Claims on Other
. X . .~ Employee or K X Past Due
Sovereign Sector Banks and Banks  Residential Commercial Bt Business and Corporation Assets
Entities  International Property Property Retail Portfolio
Institutions
U] () ©) “4) (5) (6) (7) (8) © (19) m (12) (13)
1 Agriculture, hunting - - - - - 605 5,245 4,054,220 - -
and foresty
2 Fishery - - - - - 723 2,461 44,904 - -
3 Mining and excavation - - - - - 827 586 1,243,760 1,287 -
4 Processing industry - - - - - 567,078 85,509 15,606,576 45,771 25
5  Electricity, gas and - - - - - 137,481 756 289,535 - -
water
6 Construction - 797,696 - - - 220,106 17,588 1,335,854 22,627 -
7  Wholesale and retail - - - - - 840,676 412,942 15,068,069 119,896 -
trade
8  Provision of - - - - - 729,271 9,803 1,871,488 2,973 -
accomodation and
eating - drinking
9  Transportation, - - - - - 57,899 20,576 3,119,255 8,102 -
warehousing and
communications
10 Financial 6,355,436 970 - 8,629,146 - - 804 3,361,627 - 64
intermediaries
1 Real estate, business - - - - - 477,466 12,268 3,583,771 150 -
ownership and
business service
12 Government - - - - - - 98 3,121 - -
administration,
defense and
compulsory social
security
13 Education services - - - - - 3,595 518 47,564 3,433 -
14 Health services and - - - - - 30,087 2,930 52,660 - -
social activities
15 Community, - - - - - 17,265 9,830 125,288 7,717 -
sociocultural,
entertainment and
other individual
services
16  Individual services - - - - - 445 185 2,530 - -
which serve household
17 International agency - - - - - - - - - -
and other extra
international agency
18  Business activities - - - - - - - 26,259 - -
which are not clearly
defined
19 Non industrial origin 5,017,833 - - - 3,654,415 - 2,497,283 8,585,372 159,461 -
others
20 Others 8,409,570 - - - - - - - - 1,730,713
Total 19,782,839 798,666 - 8,629,146 3,654,415 3,083,524 3,079,382 58,421,853 371,417 1,730,802
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Disclosure of Pillar 3

4. Disclosure of Claims and Provision by Region - Individual Bank

(in IDR million)
31 December 2018
No. Description East) o R;feglon
ast Java alimantan
Central Java 2 Bali Jakarta & Makassar Sumatera West Java Total
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) %)
1 Receivable 5,421,332 7,624,705 69,460,105 2,517,403 6,769,724 4,355,705 96,148,974
2 Receivable Impaired :
2. Not Yet Due 10,951 2,715 231,089 6,818 19,875 19,084 290,532
b. Past Due 108,645 111,306 375,168 31,984 78,624 49,287 755,014
3 Al[owance for |mpairement 20,397 13,763 463,021 6,065 10,222 5,329 518,797
Losses - Individual
4  Allowance for Impairement 100,163 126,940 562,162 45,407 73,777 12,948 921,397
Losses - Collective
5 Write Off 9,753 17,573 250,081 3,685 20,849 12,498 314,439
(in IDR million)
31 December 2017
No. Description East) o Fi.eglon
ast Java alimantan
Central Java 2 Bali Jakarta & Makassar Sumatera West Java Total
(1 (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (%)
1 Receivable 5,433,332 6,113,842 61,260,515 2,492,573 6,451,864 3,955,334 85,707,460
2 Receivable Impaired -
a. Not Yet Due 10,331 19,492 154,506 993 62,752 8,344 256,418
b. Past Due 81,907 51,269 216,525 18,535 18,236 41,677 428,149
3 A“owance for |mpairement 22,701 6,555 31 ,744 695 3,41 7 3,738 68,850
Losses - Individual
4 Allowance for |mpairement 146,769 25,190 712,867 58,785 53,109 17,700 1,014,420
Losses - Collective
5 Write Off 95,340 98,028 455,835 83,786 30,368 11,103 774,460
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Disclosure of Pillar 3

5. Disclosure of Claims and Provision by Economic Sector - Individual Bank

(in IDR million)
31 December 2018
No Economic Sector Receivable Impaired Allowance for Allowance for
' Receivable Impairment Losses - Impairment Losses - Write Off
Not yet due Past due . .
Individual Collective
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
1 Agriculture, hunting and 4,604,784 - - - 32,653 2
foresty
2 Fishery 46,379 1 19,178 16,700 292 -
3 Mining and excavations 2,164,210 12,030 976 - 17,984 -
4 Processing industry 23,609,869 192,065 169,342 432,287 159,162 29,555
5  Electricity, gas and water 441,897 - - - 4,681 1,033
6 Construction 3,981,590 1,019 29,190 244 55,945 11,739
7  Wholesale and retail trade 17,622,008 57,327 253,368 52,449 261,147 59,794
8  Provision of accomodation 2,349,474 - - - 120,733 -
and eating - drinking
9 Transportation, warehousing ~ 1:925.275 467 26,363 2,942 10,364 12,271
and communications
10 Financial intermediaries 15,863,197 - - - 33,698 -
11 Real estate, business 4,411,736 27 - - 120,795 6
ownership and business
service
12 Government administration, 4,193 - - - 3 -
defense and compulsory
social security
13 Education services 53,309 - 2,634 - 27 -
14 Health services and social 44,855 - - - 604 17,509
activities
15 Community, sociocultural, 193,811 - 4,654 586 280 1,137
entertainment and other
individual services
16 Individual services which 3,668 - - - 3 -
serve household
17 International agency and - - - - - -
other extra international
agency
18  Business activities which are 26,341 - - - - -
not clearly defined
19 Non industrial origin others 18,802,378 27,596 249,309 13,589 103,026 181,393
20 Others - - - - - -
Total 96,148,974 290,532 755,014 518,797 921,397 314,439

—
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Disclosure of Pillar 3

(in IDR million)
31 December 2017
No Economic Sector Receivable Impaired Allowance for Allowance for
Receivable Impairment Losses - Impairment Losses - Write Off
Not yet due Past due . .
Individual Collective
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
1 Agriculture, hunting and 4,060,106 - 1 1 34,367 60
foresty
2 Fishery 48,052 - - - 1,240 -
3 Mining and excavations 1,246,484 - 1,287 - 10,746 52,469
4 Processing industry 19,456,001 52,688 58,645 15,550 176,419 83,327
5  Electricity, gas and water 427,850 - 2,418 2,433 1,489 -
6 Construction 2,472,156 6,406 22,827 1,733 28,482 2,407
7  Wholesale and retail trade 16,448,729 30,731 150,295 34,433 205,623 232,387
8 Provision of accomodation 2,614,900 7,120 2,973 509 261,629 25,492
and eating - drinking
9 Transportations, 3,206,214 23,782 10,266 4,180 26,597 123,497
warehousing and
communications
10 Financial intermediaries 17,636,655 - - - 23,988 -
11 Real estate, business 4,074,622 38,753 255 105 147,724 20,941
ownership and business
service
12 Government administration, 3194 - - - 3 -
defense and compulsory
social security
13 Education services 55,110 - 3,631 198 79 -
14 Health services and social 85,682 - - - 1,811 5,098
activities
15 Community, sociocultural, 159,975 4,271 7,719 611 180 452
entertainment and other
individual services
16 Individual services which 3,160 - - - 3 343
serve household
17 International agency and - - - - - -
other extra international
agency
18  Business activities which are 23,065 - - - - -
not clearly defined
19 Non industrial origin others 13,685,505 92,667 167,832 9,097 94,040 227,987
20 Others - - - - - -
Total 85,707,460 256,418 428,149 68,850 1,014,420 774,460
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Disclosure of Pillar 3

6. Disclosure of Movements in Allowance for Impairment Losses - Individual Bank

(in IDR million)

31 December 2018

No. Description
P Impairment Individual Impairment Collective
V) (2) (3) (4)
1 Beginning balance of allowance for impairment losses 68,850 1,014,420
2 Provision for (recovery of) allowance for impairment losses in 775,638 (113,551)
current period (net)
a. Provision for allowance for impairment losses in current 775,638 -
period
b. Recovery of allowance for impairment losses in current period - (113,551)
3 Allowance for impairment losses allocated to write off in current (314,439) -
period
4 Provision for losses on loan sales (133,611) -
Other provisioning (recovery) in current period 122,359 20,528
Ending balance of allowance for impairment losses 518,797 921,397
(in IDR million)
o 31 December 2017
No. Description - — - -
Impairment Individual Impairment Collective
V) (2) (3) (4)
1 Beginning balance of allowance for impairment losses 379,087 764,407
2 Provision for (recovery of) allowance for impairment losses in 1,005,010 250,980
current period (net)
a. Provision for allowance for impairment losses in current 1,005,010 250,980
period
b. Recovery of allowance for impairment losses in current period - -
3 Allowance for impairment losses allocated to write off in current (774,460 -
period
4 Provision for losses on loan sales (648,966) -
Other provisioning (recovery) in current period 108,179 (967)
Ending balance of allowance for impairment losses 68,850 1,014,420
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Disclosure of Pillar 3

7. Disclosure of Net Claims by Portfolio and Rating - Individual Bank

Credit Rating Agency Long-Term Rating

Standard and Poor’s AAA AA+sd AA- A+sd A- BBB+ s.d BBB-
Fitch Rating AAA AA+sd AA- A+sd A- BBB+ s.d BBB-
Moody’s Aaa Aal s.d Aa3 Alsd A3 Baal s.d Baa3
No. Portfolio Category
PT Fitch Ratings AAA (idn) AA+(idn) s.d AA-(idn)  A+(idn) s.d. A-(idn) BBB+(idn) s.d
Indonesia BBB-(idn)
PT ICRA Indonesia [Idr]AAA [Idr]AA+ sd [Idr]AA-  [Idr]A+ s.d [Idr]A-  [Idr]BBB+ s.d [Idr]
BBB-
PT Pemeringkat Efek idAAA idAA+ s.d idAA- idA+ sd id A- id BBB+s.d id
Indonesia BBB-
U (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7)

1 Claims on Sovereigns

2 Claims on Public Sector
Entities

3 Claims on Multilateral
Development Banks and
International Institutions

4 Claims on Banks

5  Claims Secured by
Residential Property

6  Claims Secured by
Commercial Property

7 Claims on Employees/
Retirees

8  Claims on Micro, Small
Business and Retail
Portfolio

9  Claims on Corporation

10 Past Due
11 Other Assets
TOTAL
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(in IDR million)

31 December 2018

Net Claim
Short-Term Rating No Rating Total
BB+ s.d BB- B+ s.d B- Less than B- A-l A-2 A-3 Less than A-3
BB+ s.d BB- B+ s.d B- Less than B- Fl+s.d Fl F2 F3 Less than F3
Bal s.d Ba3 Bls.d B3 Less than B3 P-1 P-2 P-3 Less than P-3
BB+(idn) s.d B+(idn) s.d Less than Fl+(idn)sd  F2(idn) F3(idn) Less than F3(idn)
BB-(idn) B-(idn) B-(idn) Fl(idn)
[Idr]BB+s.d [Idr] [Idr]B+s.d[Idr] Lessthan[Idr] [Idr]Al+sd [Idr]JA2+sd [Idr]JA3+sd  Less than [Idr]A3
BB- B- B- [Idr]Al A2 [Idr] A3
id BB+ s.d id BB- idB+s.didB-  LessthanidB- idAl idA2 idA3 s.did Less than idA4
A4

(8)

)

(10)

(m

(12)

(13)

(14)

(15) (16)

17.340.334 17.340.334
3.311.440 3.311.440

10.978.650  10.978.650
5338758 5338758

5.510.574 5.510.574

2.876158 2.876158

61.704.198 61704198
561.811 561.811
2.102.481 2102.481

109.724.404  109.724.404
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Disclosure of Pillar 3

Credit Rating Agency

Long-Term Rating

Standard and Poor’s AAA AA+sd AA- A+sd A- BBB+ s.d BBB-
Fitch Rating AAA AA+sd AA- A+sd A- BBB+ s.d BBB-
Moody’s Aaa Aal s.d Aa3 Alsd A3 Baal s.d Baa3
No. Portfolio Category
PT Fitch Ratings AAA (idn) AA+(idn) s.d AA-(idn) A+(idn) s.d. A-(idn)  BBB+(idn) s.d
Indonesia BBB-(idn)
PT ICRA Indonesia [Idr]AAA [Idr]AA+ sd [Idr]AA-  [Idr]A+sd[Idr]JA-  [Idr]BBB+ s.d [Idr]
BBB-
PT Pemeringkat Efek idAAA idAA+ s.d idAA- idA+ sd id A- id BBB+s.d id
Indonesia BBB-
U (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7)

10
1l

Claims on Sovereigns

Claims on Public Sector
Entities

Claims on Multilateral
Development Banks and
International Institutions

Claims on Banks

Claims Secured by
Residential Property

Claims Secured by
Commercial Property

Claims on Employees/
Retirees

Claims on Micro, Small
Business and Retail
Portfolio

Claims on Corporation
Past Due
Other Assets

TOTAL
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(in IDR million)

31 December 2017

Net Claim
Short-Term Rating Unrated Total
BB+ s.d BB- B+ s.d B- Less than B- A-1 A-2 A-3 Less than A-3
BB+ s.d BB- B+ s.d B- Less than B- Fl+sdFl F2 F3 Less than F3
Bal s.d Ba3 Bls.dB3 Less than B3 P-1 P-2 P-3 Less than P-3
BB+(idn) s.d BB-(idn) B+(idn) s.d Less than Fl+(idn)s.d  F2(idn) F3(idn) Less than F3(idn)
B-(idn) B-(idn) F1(idn)
[Idr]BB+ s.d [Idr]BB- [Idr]B+s.d [Idr]B- Less than [Idr]Al+sd  [Idr]A2+sd [Idr]A3+s.d Less than [Idr]
[Idr]B- [Idr]Al A2 [Idr] A3 A3
id BB+ s.d id BB- id B+ s.d id B- Less than idB-  idAl idA2 idA3sdid  LessthanidA4

A4

(8)

)

(10)

(m

(12)

(13) (14) (15)

(16)

19.782.839  19.782.839

798.666

8.629146
3.654.415

3.083.524

3.079.382

58.421.853
371.417
1.730.802

798.666

8.629146
3.654.415

3.083.524

3.079.382

58.421.853
371417
1.730.802

99.552.044  99.552.044
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Disclosure of Pillar 3

8. Disclosure of Counterparty Credit Risk - Individual Bank

a. Derivative Transactions (Over the Counter)

(in IDR million)

31 December 2018

Underlying Notional Amount Net Claims Net Claims
No. Variable Derivative Derivative before  Credit Risk after Credit
< year >15year " >5years Receivables Liabilities CreditRisk Mitigation Risk
¢ years Mitigation Mitigation
1 Interest Rate 21,568,700 10,781,568 - 396,135 343,500 1,499,057 - 1,499,057
2 Exchange Rate 27,979,026 10,890,441 - 271,626 275,085 637,653 - 637,653
3 Others - - ;
Total 49,547,726 21,672,009 - 667,761 618,585 2,136,710 - 2,136,710
(in IDR million)
31 December 2017
Underlying Notional Amount Net Claims Net Claims
No. Variable Derivative Derivative  before  Credit Risk after Credit
<1year >15year ~ 5years Receivables Liabilities Credit Risk Mitigation Risk
¢ years Mitigation Mitigation
1 Interest Rate 6,195,886 13,584,501 - 100,293 82,343 168,216 168,216
2 Exchange Rate 13,467,804 6,669,540 - 46,106 23,427 514,261 514,261
3 Others - - -
Total 19,663,690 20,254,041 - 146,399 105,770 682,477 - 682,477
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b. Repo Transactions

(in IDR million)
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
No. Portfolio Category  Fair Value of  Repo Net oy |FairValueof  Repo Net oA
SSB Repo  Liabilities  Claims SSB Repo  Liabilities Claims
(" (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) (9) (10)
1 Claims on Sovereigns - - - - - - - -
2 Claims on Public Sector - - - - - - - -
Entities
3 Claims on Multilateral - - - - - - - -
Development Banks and
International Institutions
4 Claims on Banks - - - - - - - -
5 Claims on Micro, Small - - - - - - - -
Business and Retail
Portfolio
6 Claims on Corporations : : : : - - - -
TOTAL - - - - - - - -
c. Repo Reverse Transactions
(in IDR million)
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
No. Portfolio Category  Fair Value of ~ Repo Net rwa | FairValue of  Repo Net o
SSB Repo Liabilities Claims SSB Repo Liabilities Claims
(1 (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8) ©) (10)
1 Cla|ms on Sovereigns 425,768 - 425,768 - 1,015,168 - 1,015,168 -
2 Claims on Public Sector - - - - - - - -
Entities
3 Claims on Multilateral - - - - - - - -
Development Banks and
International Institutions
4 Claims on Banks 481,248 - 481,248 162,084 - - - -
5 Claims on Micro, Small - - - - - - - -
Business and Retail
Portfolio
6 Claims on Corporations - - - - - - - -
TOTAL 907,016 - 907,016 162,084 1,015,168 - 1,015,168 -
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Disclosure of Pillar 3

9. Disclosure of Net Claims by Risk Weight after Credit Risk Mitigation - Individual Bank

Z
o

Portfolio Category

0% 20% 25% 35%

—_
=
=

@) (3) (4) (5) (6)

>

On Balance Sheet Exposures

j—

Claims on Sovereigns 16,871,787 - - -
Claims on Public Sector Entities - - - -
Claims on Multilateral Development Banks and International Institutions - - - -
Claims on Banks 2,532 4,156,474 - -
Claims secured by Residential Property 20 1,112,342 2,035463 2,190,863
Claims secured by Commercial Property - - - -
Claims on Employees/Retirees - - - -

Claims on Micro, Small Business and Retail Portfolio 66,059 - - -

O 00 N O MW N

Claims on Corporations 3,356,113 - - -

]

Past Due - - - -

Other Assets 519,377 - - -
Total Balance Sheet Exposures 20,815,888 5,268,816 2,035,463 2,190,863

j—
=

w

Commitment/Contingency Exposure on Administrative Account Transaction

—_

Claims on Sovereigns - - - -
Claims on Public Sector Entities - : - -
Claims on Multilateral Development Banks and International Institutions - - - -
Claims on Banks - 385 - -
Claims secured by Residential Property - 8 62 -
Claims secured by Commercial Property - - - -
Claims on Employees/Retirees - - - -

Claims on Micro, Small Business and Retail Portfolio 3,415 - - -

O 00 N o U MNWwWN

Claims on Corporations 654,716 - - -

)

Past Due - - - -
Total TRA Exposure 658,131 393 62 -

C  Counterparty Credit Risk Exposure

1 Claims on Sovereigns 468,547 - - -
Claims on Public Sector Entities - - - -
Claims on Multilateral Development Banks and International Institutions - - - -
Claims on Banks - 400,817 - -
Claims on Micro, Small Business and Retail Portfolio - - - -

Claims on Corporations - - - -

N O o W N

Weighted Exposure from Credit Valuation Adjustment (CVA) - - - -
Total Counterparty Credit Risk Exposures 468,547 400,817 - -
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(in IDR million)

31 December 2018

Net Claims After Credit Risk Mitigation RWA Capital Charges
40% 45% 50% 75% 100% 150% Lainnya
(7) (8) ) (10) (M) (12) (13) (14) (15)
- - 3,265,520 - - - 1,632,760 146,948
- - 3,563,874 - - - 2,613,232 235,191
- - - - - - 1,498,136 134,832
- - - - 5,340,860 - 5,340,860 480,677
- - - 2,696,033 - - 2,022,025 181,982
- - - - 54,164,701 - 54,164,701 4,874,823
- - - - 130,986 430,825 777,224 69,950
- - - - 1,514,044 69,060 1,617,634 145,587
- - 6,829,394 2,696,033 61,150,591 499,885 - 69,666,572 6,269,991
- - 45,920 - - - 22,960 2,066
- - 1,234,037 - - - 617,096 55,539
- - - - - - 17 2
- - - - 169,714 - 169,714 15,274
- - - 761 - - 571 51
- - - - 3,084,727 - 3,084,727 277,625
- - 1,279,956 761 3,254,441 - - 3,895,085 350,558
- - 1,620,531 - - - 890,429 80,139
- - - 109,890 - - 82,418 7,418
- - - - 443,941 - 443,941 39,955
- - - - - - 798,229 71,841
- - 1,620,531 109,890 443,941 - - 2,215,017 199,352

- i
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Disclosure of Pillar 3

Z
o

Portfolio Category

0% 20% 25% 35%

—_
=
=

(2) (3) (4) (5) (6)

>

On Balance Sheet Exposures

j—

Claims on Sovereigns 18,767,671

Claims on Public Sector Entities - - - -

Claims on Multilateral Development Banks and International Institutions
Claims on Banks 5,555 4,314,909 - -

Claims secured by Residential Property 21 - - 3,654,394

Claims secured by Commercial Property 1,404
Claims on Employees/Retirees - - - -

Claims on Micro, Small Business and Retail Portfolio 77,754

O 00 N O MW N

Claims on Corporations 3,000,016 - - -

]

Past Due - - - -

Other Assets 398,298 - - -
Total Balance Sheet Exposures 22,250,719 4,314,909 - 3,654,394

j—
=

w

Commitment/Contingency Exposure on Administrative Account Transaction

—_

Claims on Sovereigns

Claims on Public Sector Entities
Claims on Multilateral Development Banks and International Institutions - - - -
Claims on Banks

Claims secured by Residential Property
Claims secured by Commercial Property - - - -

Claims on Employees/Retirees

Claims on Micro, Small Business and Retail Portfolio 2,247

O 00 N o U MNWwWN

Claims on Corporations 168,395 - - -

)

Past Due - - - -

Total TRA Exposure 170,642 - - -
C Counterparty Credit Risk Exposure
1 Claims on Sovereigns 1,015,168
Claims on Public Sector Entities - - - -
Claims on Multilateral Development Banks and International Institutions - - - -
Claims on Banks - 74,108 - -
Claims on Micro, Small Business and Retail Portfolio - - - -

Claims on Corporations - - - -

N O o W N

Weighted Exposure from Credit Valuation Adjustment (CVA) - - - -
Total Counterparty Credit Risk Exposures 1,015,168 74,108 - -
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(in IDR million)

31 December 2017

Net Claims After Credit Risk Mitigation RWA Capital Charges
40% 45% 50% 75% 100% 150% Lainnya
(7) (8) ) (10) (M) (12) (13) (14) (15)
- - 413,571 - - - 206,786 18,611
- - 2,538,011 - - - 2,131,988 191,879
- - - - - - 1,279,038 115,113
- - - - 3,081,495 - 3,081,495 277,335
- - - 2,950,918 - - 2,213,189 199,187
- - - - 52,625,882 - 52,625,882 4,736,329
- - - - 88,309 283,108 512,971 46,167
- - - - 1,295,658 36,846 1,350,928 121,584
- - 2,951,582 2,950,918 57,091,344 319,954 - 63,402,277 5,706,205
- - 384,125 - - - 192,063 17,286
- - 1,326,979 - - - 663,490 59,714
- - - - 625 - 625 56
- - - 12,971 - - 9,728 876
- - - - 2,418,766 - 2,418,766 217,689
- - 1,711,104 12,971 2,419,391 - - 3,284,672 295,620
- - 970 - - - 485 44
- - 369,584 - - - 199,614 17,965
- - - 35,492 - - 26,619 2,396
- - - - 208,794 - 208,794 18,791
- - - - - - 234,181 21,076
- - 370,553 35,492 208,794 - - 669,693 60,272
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Disclosure of Pillar 3

10. Disclosure of Net Claims and Credit Risk Mitigation Methods - Individual Bank

(in IDR million)

31 December 2018

Portions Secured by

Unsecured
No. Portfolio Category Net Claims Clusrantes Credit Others Portion
Insurance
M @ @) (5) (©) 7) ® = @-
[(A)+5)+(6)+(7)]
A On Balance Sheet Exposures
1 Claims on Sovereigns 16,871,787 - 16,871,787
2 Claims on Public Sector Entities 3,265,520 - 3,265,520
3 Claims on Multilateral Development Banks and - - -
International Institutions
4 Claims on Banks 7,722,880 2,532 7,720,348
5  Claims secured by Residential Property 5,338,688 20 5,338,668
6  Claims secured by Commercial Property 5,340,860 - 5,340,860
7 Claims on Employees/Retirees - - -
8  Claims on Micro, Small Business and Retail Portfolio 2,762,092 66,059 2,696,033
9  Claims on Corporations 57,520,814 3,356,113 54,164,701
10  Past Due 561,811 - 561,811
N Other Assets 2,102,481 - 2,102,481
Total Balance Sheet Exposure 101,486,933 3,424,724 98,062,209
B Off Balance Sheet Exposures
1 Claims on Sovereigns - - -
2 Claims on Public Sector Entities 45,920 - 45,920
3 Claims on Multilateral Development Banks and - - -
International Institutions
4 Claims on Banks 1,234,422 - 1,234,422
5  Claims secured by Residential Property 70 - 70
6  Claims secured by Commercial Property 169,714 - 169,714
7 Claims on Employees/Retirees - - -
8  Claims on Micro, Small Business and Retail Portfolio 4,176 3415 761
9  Claims on Corporations 3,739,443 654,716 3,084,727
10 Past Due - - -
Total Off Balance Sheet Exposure 5,193,745 658,131 4,535,614
C  Counterparty Credit Risk Exposures
1 Claims on Sovereigns 468,547 - 468,547
2 Claims on Public Sector Entities - - -
3 Claims on Multilateral Development Banks and - - -
International Institutions
4 Claims on Banks 2,021,348 - 2,021,348
5  Claims on Micro, Small Business and Retail Portfolio 109,890 - 109,890
6  Claims on Corporations 443,941 - 443,941
Total Counterparty Credit Risk Exposures 3,043,726 - 3,043,726
Total (A+B+C) 109,724,404 4,082,855 105,641,549
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(in IDR million)

31 December 2017

Portions Secured by

Unsecured
No Portfolio Category Net Claims Collateral  Guarantee Credit Others Portion
Insurance
U @) (©) (@) (5) (6) @) @ =@
[(A)+5)+(6)+(7)]
A On Balance Sheet Exposures
1 Claims on Sovereigns 18,767,671 - - - 18,767,671
2 Claims on Public Sector Entities 413,571 - - - 413,571
3 Claims on Multilateral Development Banks and - - - - -
International Institutions
4 Claims on Banks 6,858,475 5,555 - . 6,852,920
5  Claims secured by Residential Property 3,654,415 21 - - 3,654,394
6  Claims secured by Commercial Property 3,082,899 1,404 - - 3,081,495
7 Claims on Employees/Retirees - - - - -
8  Claims on Micro, Small Business and Retail Portfolio 3,028,672 77,754 - - 2,950,918
9 Claims on Corporations 55,625,398 3,000,016 - . 52,625,382
10  Past Due 371,417 1,000 - - 370,417
1 Other Assets 1,730,802 . - § 1,730,802
Total Balance Sheet Exposure 93,533,820 3,085,750 - - - 90,448,070
B Off Balance Sheet Exposures
1 Claims on Sovereigns - - - - -
2 Claims on Public Sector Entities 384,125 - - - 384,125
3 Claims on Multilateral Development Banks and - - - - -
International Institutions
4 Claims on Banks 1,326,979 - - - 1,326,979
5  Claims secured by Residential Property - - - - -
6  Claims secured by Commercial Property 625 - - - 625
7 Claims on Employees/Retirees - - - - -
8  Claims on Micro, Small Business and Retail Portfolio 15,218 2,247 - - 12,971
9  Claims on Corporations 2,587,161 168,395 - - 2,418,766
10 Past Due - - - - -
Total Off Balance Sheet Exposure 4,314,108 170,642 - - - 4,143,466
C  Counterparty Credit Risk Exposures
1 Claims on Sovereigns 1,015,168 - - - 1,015,168
2 Claims on Public Sector Entities 970 - - - 970
3 Claims on Multilateral Development Banks and - - - - -
International Institutions
4 Claims on Banks 443,692 - - - 443,692
5  Claims on Micro, Small Business and Retail Portfolio 35,492 - - - 35,492
6  Claims on Corporations 208,794 - - - 208,794
Total Counterparty Credit Risk Exposures 1,704,116 - - - - 1,704,116
Total (A+B+C) 99,552,044 3,256,392 - - - 96,295,652
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Disclosure of Pillar 3

11. Disclosure of Asset Securitisation Transaction - Bank Individually

As of 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the Bank has no asset securitisation.

12. Disclosure of Assets Securitisation Transaction Activities Summary on Bank as Initial Creditor - Individual Bank

As of 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017, the Bank has no assets securitisation transaction on bank as initial creditor.

13. Disclosure of Calculation of Credit Risk RWA by Standard Approach - Individual Bank

a.  On Balance Sheet Exposure
(in IDR million)
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
No. Portfolio Category Net RWA 'bef.ore RWA aft'er Net RWA 'bef.ore RWA af’Fer
Claims Credit Risk  Credit Risk Claims Credit Risk  Credit Risk
Mitigation  Mitigation Mitigation  Mitigation
(M (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
1 Claims on Sovereigns 16,871,787 - -1 18,767,671 - -
2 Claims on Public Sector Entities 3,265,520 1,632,760 1,632,760 413,571 206,786 206,786
3 Claims on Multilateral - - - - - -
Development Banks and
International Institutions
4 Claims on Banks 7,722,880 2,614,217 2,613232| 6,858,475 2,133,150 2,131,988
5 Claims Secured by Residential 5,338,688 1,498,1 40 1 ,498,1 36 3,654,41 5 1,279,045 1 ,279,038
Property
6 Cla|ms Secured b)/ Commerc]al 5,340,860 5,340,860 5,340,860 3,082,899 3,082,899 3,081 ,495
Property
7  Claims on Employees/Retirees - - - - - -
8  Claims on Micro, Small Business 2,762,092 2,071,569 2,022,025 3,028,672 2,271,504 2,213,189
and Retail Portfolio
9 Claims on Corporations 57,520,814 57,520,814 54,164,701| 55625898 55,625,898 52,625,882
10 Past Due 561,811 777,224 777,224 371,417 512,971 512,971
1 Other Assets 2,102,481 - 1,617,634 1,730,802 - 1,350,928
Total 101,486,933 71,455,584 69,666,572 93,533,820 65,112,253 63,402,277
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b. Off Balance Sheet (Commitment/Contingencies) Exposure

(in IDR million)

31 December 2018

31 December 2017

No. Portfolio Category Net RWA before RWA after Net RWA before  RWA after
Claims Credit Risk  Credit Risk Claims Credit Risk  Credit Risk
Mitigation  Mitigation Mitigation Mitigation
(1) (2) (3) 4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
1 Claims on Sovereigns - - - - - -
3 Claims on Multilateral - - - - - -
Development Banks and
International Institutions
4 Claims on Banks 1,234,422 617,096 617,09 1,326,979 663,490 663,490
5  Claims Secured by Residential 70 17 17 - - -
Property
Property
7 Claims on Employees/Retirees - - . - - -
8  Claims on Micro, Small Business 4,176 3,132 571 15,218 11,414 9,728
and Retail Portfolio
9 Claims on Corporations 3,739,443 3,739,443 3,084,727| 2,587,161 2,587,161 2,418,766
10 Past Due - - - - - -
Total 5,193,745 4,552,362 3,895,085 4,314,108 3,454,753 3,284,672
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c. Counterparty Credit Risk Exposure

(in IDR million)
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
No. Portfolio Category Net RWA before RWA after Net RWA before  RWA after
Claims Credit Risk Credit Risk Claims Credit Risk  Credit Risk
Mitigation  Mitigation Mitigation Mitigation
(1) (2) (3) 4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
1 Claims on Sovereigns 468,547 - - 1,015,168 - -
2 Claims on Public Sector Entities - - - 970 485 485
3 Claims on Multilateral - - - - - -
Development Banks and
International Institutions
4 Claims on Banks 2,021,348 162,084 890,429 443,692 199,614 199,614
5 Claims on Micro, Small Business 109,890 - 82,418 35,492 26,619 26,619
and Retail Portfolio
7 Weighted Exposure from Credit - - 798,229 - - 234,181
Valuation Adjustment (CVA)
Total 3,043,726 162,084 2,215,017 1,704,116 435,512 669,693
d. Settlement Risk Exposure
(in IDR million)
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
No. Transaction Tvpe Capital RWA after Capital RWA after
P E\);Eﬁjs:sre Deduction Credit Risk E:,EIC; seusre Deduction  Credit Risk
Factor Mitigation Factor Mitigation

(M (2)

(3) (4) (5)

(6) (7) (8)

1 Delivery Versus Payment

a. Capital Charges 8%
(5 -15 days)

b. Capital Charges 50%
(16 - 30 days)

c. Capital Charges 75%
(31 - 45 days)

d. Capital Charges 100%
(> 45 days)

2 Non-Delivery Versus Payment

Total
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e. Securitisation Exposure

(in IDR million)
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
No. Portfolio Category Capital RWA after Capital RWA after
Deduction Credit Risk Deduction Credit Risk
Factor Mitigation Factor Mitigation
M (2) (3) (4) (5) (6)
1 Credit enhancement that meets the requirements
2 Credit enhancement that does not meet the
requirement
3 Liquidity facility that meets the requirements
4 Liquidity facility that does not meet the requirements
5 Purchase of asset-backed securities that meet the
requirements
6 Purchase of asset-backed securities that does not
meet the requirements
7 Securitisation exposures not included in regulation
on the cautionary approach in asset securitisation
activities for commercial banks
Total
f Total Credit Risk Measurement
(in IDR million)

Transaction Type

31 December 2018

31 December 2017

Total RWA Credit Risk 75,776,674

Total Capital Deduction Factor -

67,356,642
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Disclosure of Pillar 3

Market Risk

1. Disclosure of Market Risk by Standard Methods

(in IDR million)

31 December 2018

31 December 2017

No Type of Risk Individual Individual
Capital Charges RWA Capital Charges RWA
U (2) (3) (4) (5) (6)
1 Interest Rate Risk
a. Specific Risk 10,788 134,850 6,172 77,150
b. General Risk 83,928 1,049,095 58,140 726,750
2 Exchange Rate Risk 85,972 1,074,645 23,073 288,413
3 Equity Risk - -
4 Commodity Risk - -
5 Option Risk - - - -
Total 180,687 2,258,590 87,385 1,092,313

2. Disclosure of Interest Rate Risk in Banking Book Exposure

(in IDR million)

31 December 2018

31 December 2017

Economic Value EVE Percentage Economic Value Capital EVE Percentage
to Capital to Capital
(460,994) -3.49% (285,967) 12,972,789 -2.20%
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Liquidity Risk

1.

Disclosure of Rupiah and Forex Maturity Profile - Individual Bank

a. Profile of Rupiah Maturity

(in IDR million)

31 December 2018

Maturity
No. Account Balance >Imonthto >3 monthsto Slncets
<1 month to > 12 months
3 months 6 months
12 months
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
I ONBALANCE SHEET
A. Assets
1. Cash 471,848 471,848 - - - -
2. Placement with Bank Indonesia 5,197,726 4,006,310 - 687,205 504,211 -
3. Placement with Other Bank 220,959 220,959 - - - -
4. Marketable Securities 11,119,199 979,918 1,898,059 2,437,422 1,427,461 4,376,339
5. Loans 53,168,449 3,869,050 9,126,109 5,047,073 12,769,191 22,357,026
6. Other Receivable 1,630,955 990,412 429,098 119,686 46,778 44,981
7. Other 630,290 480,988 137,947 - 11,355 -
Total Assets 72,439,426 11,019,485 11,591,213 8,291,386 14,758,996 26,778,346
B. Liabilities
1. Third Party Fund 54,597,419 19,018,261 16,607,286 3,487,353 686,142 14,798,377
2. Due to Bank Indonesia - - - - - -
3. Due to Other Bank 666,328 666,328 - - - -
4. Marketable Securities Issued 3,791,207 - - 860,997 599,003 2,331,207
5. Borrowings 758,075 - - - 758,075 -
6. Other Payable 877,809 346,021 349,801 119,621 21,448 40,918
7. Others 691,265 268,740 - - - 422,525
Total Liabilities 61,382,103 20,299,350 16,957,087 4,467,971 2,064,668 17,593,027
S:f:ar;zt;zvze” AssetsandLiabilities 44 557 393 (9,279,865)  (5,365,874) 3823415 12,694,328 9,185,319
Il OFF BALANCE SHEET
A. Off Balance Sheet Receivables
1. Commitment 12,852 12,852 - - - _
2. Contingencies - - - - - -
Total Off Balance Sheet Receivables 12,852 12,852 - o o -
B. Off Balance Sheet Payable
1. Commitment 29,484,575 3,109,791 3,612,435 4,363,352 8,822,523 9,576,474
2. Contingencies 2,119,086 375,401 236,429 372,188 734,970 400,098
Total Off Balance Sheet Payables 31,603,661 3,485,192 3,848,864 4,735,540 9,557,493 9,976,572
g:;:ﬁ:g:::”ab'es and Payables (31,590,809)  (3,472,340)  (3,848,864) (4,735,540)  (9,557,493)  (9,976,572)
Difference (20,533,486) (12,752,205) (9,214,738) (912,125) 3,136,835 (791,253)
[(IA-1B)+(IIA-1IB)]
Cumulative Difference (12,752,205) (21,966,943) (22,879,068) (19,742,233) (20,533,486)
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Liquidity Risk

(in IDR million)

31 December 2017

Maturity
Ne- Account Balance >Imonthto >3 monthsto SIS
<1 month to > 12 months
3 months 6 months
12 months
() (2) (3) (4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
I ONBALANCE SHEET
A. Assets
1. Cash 326,846 326,846 - - - -
2. Placement with Bank Indonesia 11,075,013 5,506,864 1,589,018 2,939,097 1,040,034 -
3. Placement with Other Bank 776,720 5,829 770,891 - - -
4. Marketable Securities 7,318,963 713,418 1,239,267 1,280,856 585,689 3,499,733
5. Loans 46,073,750 3,036,833 5,137,904 8,511,208 8,998,515 20,389,290
6. Other Receivable 1,326,333 1,116,556 110,872 53,562 21,064 24,279
7. Other 682,031 375,883 295,004 - 11,144 -
Total Assets 67,579,656 11,082,229 9,142,956 12,784,723 10,656,446 23,913,302
B. Liabilities
1. Third Party Fund 51,890,130 18,253,124 16,267,321 1,697,652 770,459 14,901,574
2. Due to Bank Indonesia - - - - - -
3. Due to Other Bank 49,468 44,468 - - 5,000 -
4. Marketable Securities Issued 3,388,604 - - 599,576 - 2,789,028
5. Borrowings - - - - - -
6. Other Payable 244,519 56,042 111,032 53,612 21,065 2,768
7. Others 729,395 242,450 - - - 486,945
Total Liabilities 56,302,116 18,596,084 16,378,353 2,350,840 796,524 18,180,315
Difference between Assets and Liabilities 44 577 540 (7,513,855)  (7,235,397) 10,433,883 9,859,922 5,732,987
on Balance Sheet
Il OFF BALANCE SHEET
A. Off Balance Sheet Receivables
1. Commitment 100,006 100,006 - - - -
2. Contingencies - - - - - -
Total Off Balance Sheet Receivables 100,006 100,006 - - - -
B. Off Balance Sheet Payable
1. Commitment 21,857,663 2,001,559 3,005,557 3,902,580 8,123,283 4,824,684
2. Contingencies 1,864,461 233,390 303,977 384,918 259,500 682,676
Total Off Balance Sheet Payables 23,722,124 2,234,949 3,309,534 4,287,498 8,382,783 5,507,360
Zi:zj:;ieog::gfivab'es and Payables (23,622,118)  (2,134,943)  (3,309,534) (4,287,498)  (8,382,783)  (5,507,360)
Difference (12,344,578) (9,648,798) (10,544,931) 6,146,385 1,477,139 225,627
[(IA-IB)+(1IA-11B)]
Cumulative Difference (9,648,798) (20,193,729) (14,047,344) (12,570,205) (12,344,578)
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Disclosure of Pillar 3

b. Profile of Forex Maturity

(in IDR million)
31 December 2018
Maturity
No. Account Balance <1month  >1month >3 months > 6 months to >12 months
to to 12 months
3 months 6 months
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5 (6) (7) (8)
I O BALANCE SHEET
A. Assets
1. Cash 47,529 47,529 - - - -
2. Placement with Bank Indonesia 2,474,581 2,474,581 - - - -
3. Placement with Other Bank 2,477,799 2,477,799 - - - -
4. Marketable Securities 3,400,194 992,516 1,345,511 655,341 - 406,827
5. Loans 20,512,716 1,980,155 711,939 3,904,918 5,383,540 8,532,164
6. Other Receivable 2,212,622 386,549 915,675 469,579 163,213 277,606
7. Other 9,534 2,258 7,276 - - -
Total Assets 31,134,975 8,361,387 2,980,402 5,029,837 5,546,753 9,216,596
B. Liabilities
1. Third Party Fund 22,725,155 7,575,508 4,947,281 740,038 375,203 9,087,125
2. Due to Bank Indonesia - - - - - -
3. Due to Other Bank 2,475,960 534,660 1,797,500 143,800 - -
4. Marketable Securities Issued - - - - - -
5. Borrowings 2,442,165 4,874 - - - 2,437,291
6. Other Payable 2,539,853 742,727 890,093 460,649 186,998 259,386
7. Others 32,024 17,932 14,092 - - -
Total Liabilities 30,215,157 8,875,701 7,648,966 1,344,487 562,200 11,783,802
Difference between Assets and 919,819 (514,314)  (4,668,565) 3,685,351 4,984,552  (2,567,206)
Liabilities on Balance Sheet
Il OFF BALANCE SHEET
A. Off Balance Sheet Receivables
1. Commitment 52,639,084 7,611,884 7,340,185 1,572,033 19,976,869 16,138,113
2. Contingencies - - - - - -
Total Off Balance Sheet Receivables 52,639,084 7,611,884 7,340,185 1,572,033 19,976,869 16,138,113
B. Off Balance Sheet Payables
1. Commitment 63,583,474 9,239,009 8,804,443 3,226,758 22,845,046 19,468,219
2. Contingencies 2,610,430 748,450 812,111 281,388 713,277 55,205
Total Off Balance Sheet payables 66,193,904 9,987,459 9,616,553 3,508,146 23,558,323 19,523,424
Difference of Receivables and (13,554,821) (2,375,575) (2,276,368) (1,936,113) (3,581,454) (3,385,311)
Payables Off Balance Sheet
Difference [(IA-IB)+(I1A-1IB)] (12,635,002) (2,889,889) (6,944,933) 1,749,238 1,403,098 (5,952,517)
Cumulative Difference (2,889,889) (9,834,822) (8,085,584) (6,682,486) (12,635,002)

— _
PT BANK UOB INDONESIA ANNUAL REPORT 2018 173 A "‘\?\‘



Disclosure of Pillar 3

" WASYMY 4

(in IDR million)
31 December 2017
Maturity
No. Account Balance <1month  >1month >3 months > 6 months to >12 months
to to 12 months
3 months 6 months
(1) (2) (3) (4) (5 (6) (7) (8)
I O BALANCE SHEET
A. Assets
1. Cash 71,446 71,446 . _ ) )
2. Placement with Bank Indonesia 3,312,180 3,312,180 - - - -
3. Placement with Other Bank 3,121,488 3,121,488 - - - -
4. Marketable Securities 2,335,252 899,010 832,230 590,417 - 13,595
5. Loans 17,112,294 558,370 4,718,587 1,842,589 2,547,095 7,445,654
6. Other Receivable 1,725,094 342,105 685,145 594,406 19,361 84,078
7. Other 7,571 706 6,865 - - -
Total Assets 27,685,325 8,305,304 6,242,827 3,027,411 2,566,455 7,543,326
B. Liabilities
1. Third Party Fund 23,028,145 9,710,165 3,348,730 863,585 1,134,704 7,970,961
2. Due to Bank Indonesia - - - - - -
3. Due to Other Bank 2,265,365 699,676 1,565,690 - - -
4. Marketable Securities Issued - - - - - -
5. Borrowings 333,136 - - - - 333,136
6. Other Payable 1,705,136 337,994 681,292 591,964 19,089 74,798
7. Others 38,640 14,300 24,340 - - -
Total Liabilities 27,370,423 10,762,134 5,620,052 1,455,549 1,153,794 8,378,895
Difference between Assets and 314,902 (2,456,830) 622,775 1,571,863 1,412,662 (835,568)
Liabilities on Balance Sheet
Il OFF BALANCE SHEET
A. Off Balance Sheet Receivables
1. Commitment 23,726,858 5,245,101 1,478,559 8,787,751 8,215,447 -
2. Contingencies - - - - - -
Total Off Balance Sheet Receivables 23,726,858 5,245,101 1,478,559 8,787,751 8,215,447 -
B. Off Balance Sheet Payables
1. Commitment 32,814,532 5,998,477 4,793,574 2,283,654 3,225,551 16,513,276
2. Contingencies 3,514,498 43,714 988,637 1,624,193 323,463 534,492
Total Off Balance Sheet payables 36,329,030 6,042,191 5,782,211 3,907,847 3,549,014 17,047,767
Difference of Receivables and (12,602,172) (797,091) (4,303,652) 4,879,904 4,666,433 (17,047,767)
Payables Off Balance Sheet
Difference [(IA-IB)+(I1A-1IB)] (12,287,271) (3,253,921) (3,680,876) 6,451,767 6,079,095 (17,883,335)
Cumulative Difference (3,253,921) (6,934,797) (483,030) 5,596,065 (12,287,271)
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2. Disclosure of Liquidity Coverage Ratio (LCR)

2018 2017
Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter Quarter
I Il 1l v I Il n v
(1) ) (3) 4) (1) (2) (3) (4)
Individual Individual
Bank 175% 163% 198% 159% Bank 200% 179% 178% 222%
Operational Risk
(in IDR million)
31 December 2018 31 December 2017
No Adopted Approach Gross Income . Gross Income .
P PP (Last 3 years Cepll RWA | (Last 3 years Cepiel RWA
Charges Charges
average) average)
(1) (2) (3) 4) (5) (6) (7) (8)
Total 4,243,609 636,541 7,956,767 4,000,975 600,146 7,501,828
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Statement of the Members of Board of Commissioners and Board of Directors
Regarding Responsibility for 2018 Annual Report of PT Bank UOB Indonesia

We, the undersigned, hereby declare that all information in the 2018 Annual Report of PT Bank UOB Indonesia has been completely

presented, and we are fully responsible for the accuracy of the content of this Annual Report.
This statement is hereby made truthfully.
Jakarta, April 2019

Board of Commissioners

—— i 7

Wee Ee Cheong &\
Deputy President Commissioner

Wayan Alit Antara Aswin Wirjadi
Independent Commissioner Independent Commissioner

Board of Directors

[

\‘_ﬁ______—_
Lam Sai Yoke Iwan Satawidinata
President Director Deputy President Director
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~ Hen y'Sulistyo Paul Rafiuly

Director Director
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Commissioner
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Independent Commissioner

Muljono Tjandra
Director
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Soehadie Tansol

/Compliance Director
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PT Bank UOB Indonesia

Laporan keuangan tanggal 31 Desember 2018

dan untuk tahun yang berakhir pada tanggal tersebut
beserta laporan auditor independen/

Financial statements

as of 31 December 2018

and for the year then ended

with independent auditors’ report

— _
PT BANK UOB INDONESIA ANNUAL REPORT 2018 179 A= "‘\?\‘



v
i
1

1 If Y1)
W S LS

Mo. 19/DIRMO0354A

SURAT PERNYATAAN DIREKSI DIRECTORS STATEMENT
TEMTANG REGARDING
TANQGUNGE JAWAE ATAS THE RESPONSIBILITY FOR
LAPORAN KEUANGAN THE RINANCIAL STA TEMENTS
FADA TANGSAL 31 DESEMBER 2018 AS OF 31 DECEMBER 2018
DAN UNTUK TAHURK TANG BERAKHIR AND FOR THE YEAR THEN ENDED
PADA TANGGAL TERSEBUT FT 8a/K UOR INDONESIA

PT BANK UOE HDOMNESIA

kemi yang oertends fangan di bawah ini / We, the undersignac

¢ LA 54l YOKE
: Gedung UOB Plagza Ji MH, Thamrin Ne. 10
Jakarta Pusat 10230
. shangri-La Residence, JI. Jend. Sudirmzn Kav,1 Jakarta
o [E2.21) 23505000
o [DHrektur Ukama f President Oirectar

1. Mamefame
Adzmat Kartor/Offer Adtress

Alamat DomisilifAddrass of Domicla
Mormer TalapordPhone Membar
JabataniPosifion

- MULJONG TJANDEA

o Gedung UOB Plaza JI. BLH, Thamrin Na. 10
Jakarta Pusat 10230

¢ JI Pulaw Matshari Blok B.5 Mo.8, Taman Pernata Busna RT 017/002
kembangan Utara — Kembangan Jekarts Barat

©OB2-217 23508000

: Direktur Keuangan dan Layanan Kerponsi /
Finance and Corpovale Services Director

2. Mama'fame
Alarnal KaslenOffice Address

Alamai DomisililAddress of Comvicile

“Morwr | efeprniPione Nurber
Jabatan/FPosition

daciave il

We &re responsible for the preparation and
presaittalicn of AT Bank VOB fndonesiz ("Bank"}'
Rnancial séstenants;

menyatakan bzt

t. Kami berangoung jaweb afas penyusunan dan i
penysjian  laporan  keuangan FT  Bank UOB
Indonesis ("Bank’),

" A3 180

2. Lsporan keuangan Bank feleh disusun dan Slaallkan 2. The Bank's financial statements have been pregared
easuai dengan Standzr Akuntansi Keuangan di and  pressnled fn o ecocordsnce  wath  lndonesion
Irdonesia; Finencial Accouniing Standards:

3. 2 Semua ivfermasi dalam laporan keuangan Bank
felah dirmuet secera lenghag dan benar;

k. laporan hksuangan Bank fidek mengandung
informas’ stau faxta material yang tidak banar,
dan fidak menghilangkan infarmasi atau Skia
matenial

4. Kami bertznggung jawab atas sistemn pengendalian
internal Bank.

Demikian parmyataan ini dibuat dengan sebenamya.

3 & Al iforretion  in fhe  Bank®  fnancial
slafements have been disclosed n a complkds
and trdhiul rmannes

b The Bank's financiel statements do ot conlatr
anvy incorroct armalion or mataris! fects, mor do
they ool infordion oF megteis! Gols;

4. We are responsible for the Barlc's intermal controf
sysfem.

Thus (his sfatement is made fruthfully.

Jakaria, 26 Januari 2018 25 January 2019 //

ERAI
ViFEL

LW

ﬂ-—'—"-z‘-ﬁﬁuﬂl:l‘lﬁ-l

LAM SAl YOKE
Direktur tama |
Presiden! Director
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Dirsktur Keuangan dan Layanan Korparasi /
Finance and Comporate Sendoes Direclor



PT BANK UOB INDONESIA
LAPORAN KEUANGAN
TANGGAL 31 DESEMBER 2018 DAN UNTUK
TAHUN YANG BERAKHIR
PADA TANGGAL TERSEBUT
BESERTA LAPORAN AUDITOR INDEPENDEN

Daftar Isi

The original financial statements included herein are in the Indonesian
language.

PT BANK UOB INDONESIA
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Fuudledinng a ey
workiing workd
Indlonasia stock Exchange Butlding
Tower 2, T Fioar
JI. Jend. Sudirman Kav, 5253
Jakzriz 121590, Indonesia

Laporan Auditor Independen

Laporan Ma, 00110/2. 103204k L/07/0240-
117142018

Pemegang Saham, Dewan Kamisaris dan Direksi
FT Bank UOB Indenesla

Kami felah mengaudit laporan kevangan T Bank
UO8 Indaresia tarlampir, yang terdiri dari laporan
pasisi kegangan Fanggal 31 Desember 2618, serta
Izporan labz runi dan penghasilan koemprehensif
fain, laporan perukbahan ekditas, dan laporas arus
kas untuk fahan yang berakmr pada tanggal
tersebut, dan suatu ‘khtizar kebijakan z<untansi
signifikan dan infarmasi penjelasan lainnya.

laporan

Tanggung jawab manajemen atas

keuangan

Mansemen bartanggundg jawab atas pemyusunan
dan penyajian wajar lapcran keuangan tersebut
sesuai dengan Standar Akuntansi Keuangan di
Indonesia, dan ates pengendaliarn interral yang
dianogap  perlu oleh marajsmen  untuk
mamungkinkan penyusunan laporan keusngan
vany bebas dani kesalaban peryaian matenial,
baik vang disebabkan aleh kecarangan maupun
kesalahan.

Tanggung |awab auditar

Tanggung jawas kami adalah untuk mewvatakan
sualu e alas lapoean kedangan  terssbot
b